*auibew ued noA
buiyjAue jurid ued

NOA 9193YM pliom y

UOISIA JNQ

BBBBBBBBBB



2021 at a glance

Building for the future
Our customers seek to work with

partners who can help them get their

preducts to market efficiently and

effectively and who can support them

throughout the praduct lifetime.

Qur strateqy 1s lo provide an inlegrated soluton for aur
customers and ty wark col(abarativety with thent s
1nat they get 12 market more quickly whilst delwering

iiovanve and rapust progucts This strategy will
ultimately ensure we sell more printheads

Read more on page 11

ImagineX

Qur ImagineX pninthead platform
is already delivering unique product
capabiities such as printing at up

to 180 metres per minute.

2021 produet Waunch: Xaar Nitrex

Print fast

Operating up 10 48KHz. combined with drop-in

plug and priot capability, for getting ug and
runnittg & SPEED it AhUES

Print perfect

Unbeatabie uniformity vath TF Technglogy
and AcuGhp for printing perfectly the first
hme.and gvery ime

Print almast anything

The wiges! apphealion window and ability
to handte breadest range of lluids

Read more aboul the imagineX plstform on page 2

Printheads
Designed, developed and
manulactured by Xaar
Sub Systems
Elecirgnics, Software,
ihk system

ink

Print Bar

Print Engine

QOEMs

Integrated solutions

Read more about our strategy for delivering
maore integrated inkjet selutions on page 17

Business responsibility

Our three main areas of focus during 2021 have
been: sustainability, employee engagernent

and charity support.

Sustainability
Our Sustaability Readmap ceptres
on [our areas. each ol which has
agoal

Environment

Feople

innovation

Community

Read mora on page 28

Employee engagement

Our success depends on the
capahiuty and engagernent al our
people, which has included a focus
during 2021 pn ernbedding our
values deeper into the Xaar culture

Read more about employee
engagement an page J

Charity suppart

We continued our suppon of
local charities via a collaberation
with Break charty's Cows Abaut
Cambnidge Event

Read more aboul our charity
suppert on page 3

New opportunities

During the course of 2021 we have
seen a broadening of the range of
applications using Xaar technology
and a number of our OEMs launched
new machines based on Xaar
technolagy.

OEM products launched meluded an indusinal grade
print engine n China and an eatry tevel 30 printer in
Eurape We alsa collabgrated with malenals science
company, Mefa Addiive. recently acquired by Desklop

Metal, whe have used our technology to push the
baundanies ol binder jetting technology

Read more about our new spportunitves on page 3



Driven by our mission

We help companies and industries be more
colourful creative and productive through
our world-class technology and printheads.

Qverview

We are a world leader in the development

of digital irkjet technology. We design and
manufactLre printheads which we sell globally
ta Original Eguipment Manufacturers [OEMs)
and User Developer Integrators [UDIs).

Our technology drives the conversion of analogue prnling and
manutacturing ~ethods to digital inkjet, which s more efficient,
mare econoimical and more productive thap the tradional
methods it replaces

We alse gevelop print systems far product decoration and

30 prinbing which use our 1nkjet tlechnalogy, and our digaal
rnaging businexs, FFEL provides gh performance utal
imaging techna ogy tar lwo man applications - inkjet printing
and digital patnslogy.

We put innavaticn and collanoration at the core af our global
partnerships, NElping our custamers ta unleash the true power
ot aur techmolocies and open up a wo-ld of opporlurilies

tor their businees, roday and Into the future

Our culture
We champion a v2lues-led culture so gach memaer
ot our taam s empowered lo do their very besi, creating
a working enviranmenl 1hal peaple love (6 be in and
where we can all achieve our ambilions.
Watch ouf new video demonstratng how
these vatues are part of sur day-to-day lives.
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Our progress in 2021

Building for the future

We place customers Qur strategy s 1o provide
at the heart of our legrated selutians, allowing

. our customers to access nat
strategy. It is anly when only Xaar's leading printhead
our customers are technolagy but also the
successful that Xaaris Ik ,msnuz and electronic

control systems required to
“nucnnmmm__.__. and our aim ensure sustained and reliable
is to be the partner of performance from awide range
choice, enabling our of fluds thal deliver market
customners to _.mmﬂa_._n leading print quality every time.
quickty and efficiently o.c_,__ima_aam_m printhead
to ﬂ—._m:nm_..m market plattorm delivers unique
needs with robust and resolution, Ultra High Viscosity
reliable products that and High Laydown Technology
are ﬂoim_dn wu.XDu_. printing al speeds of up to
technology 100 metres per minute.
OM Xaar ple - Aanuat Repart and Financial Ststements 2021
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We launched two new
arintheads from this platform
during 2021 and have an
ongoing roadmap of product
developments to enable our
customers to address a broader
range of applications.

The atquisition of print sysitems
and printbar specialist FFE|

in 2021 widens our product
range for our OEM and UDI
|User Developer Integrators)
custorners with a broader
producl range including

Xaar Versatex print engines

for adding effects and
embpellishments digitally.

Al the heart of our new ink
strategy is a close collaboration
with leading fluid companies 10
fully optimise the fluid for the
best print performance, not just
in lhe printhead testing fab, but
also throughoul Lhe machine
development programme,
through to user integration

and beyond, UDI custormers
can also buy théir luigs direct
from Xaar, giving them a single
point of contact for both the
printhead and the fluids, saving
Lhem time and simplifying

the development process.

Our new Ink Supply System
roadmap will ensure we can
deliver products that help
customers evaluate and adopt
our technolegy whilst alse
reducing their time-lg-markel,
We offer a number of inkjet
supply systems under the
Xaar brand, and have turther
added to our capability with
the acqs on of Megnajet in
March 2022, One of the market
leaders, Megnajet designs
e Tt eihusiviah
nk management and supply
systems for digital inkjet.

These essily integrated products
2re among the most campact
ink managemenl and supply
systems on the market today,
with options of [ast and retiable
routes to market when developing
industrial inkjet printers,

The acquisition of Megnajet is
partof Xaar's growth strategy
which fecuses on offeting our
cusiomers, particukarly UDIs,

a more integrated inkjet solution,
which will attract a broader
range of opportunities for us

tnturn, UDI customers

will be able to reduce their
development timescales and
shorten their time to market.
This acquisition alse engbles
Megnajet ta focus on growth
through new developments
3ng shared expertise,

Whilst enabling 2 broader range
of products under the Xaar brand,
Megnajel will also continue to
offer products to a wide tustorner
base |sectors), under the
Magnajel label,

In addition, our datapath
roadmap has been developed

to provide a rich portfolio of
datapath products to enable our
cuslomers to build their awn
systems more easily which take
advantage of the full potential
of our ImagsneX platform.

EPS progress

In 2021 we achieved +%%
growth in sales. In addition, we
changed the leadership of EPS
and strenglhenad cur teams in
Finance, Human Resources, and
FHAS Management, as well a5
re-organising the sales team
into two distinct Groups.

Find out more on page 22

FFEI progress

Since acquisition 1n July,

the alignment with Xaar has
progressed well, In additian,
FFE! has developed its readmap
aof integrated inkjet systems

for Xaar to sell te its UDI
customers, with the first product
launch in March 2022. On the
life sciences side of the business
FFE! has continued to gevelop
ils product partlotio and now
‘nas a pipeline ot next generafion
scanning technalogies. Same
technalogies are very close

to markel readiness, athers
further developiment.
FFEl is now laoking for new
partners 1 reap the rewards

of thesa next generation
scanning systemns.

Find out more on page 23



New opportunities

B

During the course of
2021 we have seen

a broadening of the
range of applications
using Xaar technology.

Crinese DEM, King Tav, a
poneer i the ceramcs and
graphics seclors, lavnched
a new industrial-grade priat
enging, The Magic Cube’,
ncorporaling Xaar's advanced
prnthead lechnologies
Betng Natienal Innovation
Institute of Lightwenghl Lid
Bt and Xaar announced 3
Joint Laboratary to develop
new applicatons in digital
Inket such &5 prinung
glass, electranics, 30 ang
autemalive spray painting

The wite operating windiw
and umigue technologies
withim the Xaar 1003
printhead have enabled Meta
Additive to uge 3 varely ot
fluids thal had previousty
been seen as Loo difficult

i jet. With Xaar technology,
Meta Additve was able to
moave beyond the ranventional
Lemits ot inkjet pnnting with
1ts binder jeting innovation
The Xaar 2002 printhead

15 successiully addressing
the CUrrBnt CEramics

trend for printing big slap
apglicalions such as dining
tables, kitchenware and
santary ware, where tile
wewng distances are much
closer Customers are
loaking *or higher quality
tiles with higher resoluton
and dehimbion, produced by
our 720 dpi capabibty - no
other printhead can deliver
resolution this high an¢
with this capability we have
now sel the image quality
standard In ceramics.

« Inthe 30 printing markel,
dp polar launched is latest
maching, the AMpolar® 11
which jets 30 parts at volume
on atruly industrizl scale
The combination of scalability,
productmty and agility of
this new machine achieves
an oulput thal tradibionally
would have required multiple
conventional 30 machines,
and sigmbicantly more capitat
wvestment

Xaar continues Lo see 3
growing number of new
opportunities within the

30 printing markels Our
technology offers sigmificant
advanlages and therefore
value tor managing high
wiscosity (luids and delivering
industnal levels o) relizbity
across a range of additive
manuiactening applications

Business responsibility

Weaoperateasa
socially, culturally
and environmentally
responsible business.

Qur three main

areas of focus

during 2021 have
been: sustainability,
eimployee engagement
and charity support.

Sustainability

Dunng 7021 we setupa
Sustainability team with
rmembers fram across the
Company to wark on a roagmap
of projects with defined
objectwes The Roadmap
centres on four areas, each

ot which has a goal

and ging tech gl

EPS ended s year by landing
the largest single arder in the
Company’s history wrch will
be manulaclured and delivered
during 2022 The Company
closed 1071 wilh a strong order

book lor bespake systerns and a
plan for continued sirang growth

tor 2022,

Xaar's recenl acquisifions of
FFEIl and Megnajel enable us to

alfer our custorners, particularly

UDIs, a more integrated inkjet
solution, winch swill attract 3
aroader range of oppartuiities,
for us Iram here an in

Read more on page 12

1 .
Leading the wayin
environmental suslamabilty
lor the Ingusinal inkjet
technology sactor,

? People
To be amployer ol choie
by pulting our peeple, their
potential and well-being at
the heart of all we do.

3 'nhovation
Encouraging more
sustainable appreaches
to design. manufacture,
technology and callaboralion
across Lhe whole product
fecycle

4 Community
Actvely engaging with our
communities o prowde
practical, lasting suppert
that benefits society

The full sustainahility strategy
and roadmap can be found
an pages 29 to 37

Employee engagement

We hosted a number ol
COVID-19 sale lunches for

our employees 10 encourage
collaboration and leam
building, 25 well 45 1o help aew
employess meet the wider team
In July we held an employee
avent to officialiy open our new
Corporate HQ and bespoke
R&D tab at Lhe Cambridge
Research Park.

We have a(so been working on
embedding our values more inlo
our cutture A cross fenctional
project team developed an
easy o ramember logo for sur
values, laynched a new values
award which runs across the
whote Group and developed a
new video whith we are using
far employee engagement,
recruitment and induction

itps./fyautu. be/4rXmXMIEpag

Read more about our values
on page 5

In addilion, we have itroduced
packs for key employes
arcasions: néw starter packs,
new baby packs and an
annversary card to mark certain
milestongs {first year, five, ten,
20, 20 yaars)

Supporting local charities
Qur emplgyees nominaled two
charities and each received

a donation of £2,000. with

the beneliciaries being the
Special Care Baby Unit al
Hinchingbrooke Hosmtal in

Q1 2021 and Woad Green,

The Anirnals Chanty in Q4 2020,

Later in the year we fund-raized
for Break Charily lwww. break-
chanty argfcharityl) As well a5
sponsoring their Cows about
Cambridge Farewell waekend,
Xazr employees hasled a stand
at the event and rarsed £150

by selng for a £1 donation
colourful miniature cows Lhat
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Chairman’s introduction

Our focus on customers and a
product roadmap that reflects
current and potential customer
needs has increased the quality
and responsiveness of the business,
and means we are well placed

for further performance
improvement,

Leading the way
with our strong
partnerships

In my tirst report as Chairman
two years ago, | spake of

my confidence in the new
leadership team and in oyr
ability to turn the business
around after the chatlenges
encountered in 2019. At the end
of 2021 and following a period
of unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the COVID-19
pandemic, | am pleased to
report gaod progress continues
to be made.

Curfundamental tacus has been on Xaar's
core competence in design ano manufaciure
ol worid leaging printheads, whilst rebu(ding
and strengihening all areas of ihe business

lo betler serve our customers and delwver
cansistem and reliable business performance

There has been a realigrnment of aur go-to-
maikel approach witha clear locus on the value
chan and our tystomers, a strengthening ol
our senior leadership and lunctionz! teams, 3
revitalisation ol our brand and comorate identity
and, impariantly, & focus on the technical and
campelitve advantages of the Xaar Dulk piezo
product range.

The introductian of cur new Irag:neX

bulk prezo platlorm has created a pipeline
of new produc! developments with the lrsl
wo products Nitrox and (nix, launched
during 2021

The Board 15 pleased wath the progress
that the management team has made i
re-enerqising 1he busimess and would atse
like ta thank gur teams worldwade for their
cemmitment and adaptability, particularty
across our sypply chain, during this period
of unceriainry

Strategic progress

We have cantinued to embed our stralegy
across the Group and through eur people

2 hey enabler of the strong performante

1n 2021 Qur focus on custamers and a
proguct roadmap that reflects current and
polential cuslomer needs has increased the
quaiity and respensiveness of the busmess,
and this means thal we are well placed

lor further performance impr

During the year. our ability to serve
customers was further advanced through

the acquisthan ol FFEI. adding bath capability
and capacity whilsl enabling a more vertically
ntegrated approach Lo assishing custamers.
with the adootan of digital print technology
In Novermber 2621 we completed the sale of
our stake in Xaar 30 to pur pariner Stralasys
further strengthemng our balance sheel
whvilst retaining a strong cammercial partner
1n the 30 market

We recently [March 2022) sirengihened

the bussness furiher wath the acquisiion ol
Megnajet, a leader m design and manulacture
ot ink delivery syslems Megnajet adds
complementary skills to Xaar's core
competence 3% we huild the capatility 1o
provide cuslomers with a8 mare complets
package of integration taols and accelerate
the adoption ol Xaar printhead technology

Wo welcome the Megaaje! team Lo the Graup

Financial resylts

In whal has proven to be another challenging
year for the glebal economy. the Group

has delivered sales growth of 23% and
moved back snlo prolit in the second hatt

of the year Aclions have been taxen lo

build management and orgamisational
strength, while cost control and careful

cash management demonsirate our clear
locus on perfarmance and a return to prolt

The Printhead business has made good
progress bath commercially and operationally.
Sales volumes have grown and a programme
to improve elfciency and censisiency of

We believe a sigrificant opportunity exists
n market sectors and appuications where
Xzar technology provides commercial and
technical pertarmance advantages and thal
15 our focus

th Xaar ple - Annual Report and Financlal Statements 2021
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_. performance 15 arogressing well
A specilic area of locws has been our supply
chain and our respense to the challenges
caused by the pandemic An early recognition
al\he patantial cansirainls an supply and
logistics enabled us to secure matenals ta
meet expecled production requirements

and to proactively adapt product designs (o
accommodate alternatve com ponents



Strategic and operational hightights

Re-alignire ent of our go-to-markat approach
has strenclhened customer engagement

Strong performance for the Printhead
business with consistent wins of new
custerners and projects and renewed
focus on i arkels where products have 2
competitivz advantage

Ongoing drlvery of groduct readmap with
two successiul product launches from our
ImagineX pialform

Investrnent in working capital has allowed
Xaar te suczessiully miligate supply chain
constrainte and secure ability 10 deliver on
customer cemand

These aciions nave increased business
resilience and will help us maintain
uninterrupted supply to customers
during 2022.

Alter encounte~ing weaker demand and
challenges in EPS, during the lirst half of
the year, the appoinlment of new leadership
and a realigniment of stralegy led lo a much
stronger second half of the year with sales
25% higher than i the first half. White
perfarmance fcr the year as a whole was
impacted by praviously announced non-cash
adjustments re_aling to slow moving and
obsolete inventary, there 1s good momentum
in the arder bock and sperational
performance is improving in EPS.

We are pleased with the progress made at
FFE|. Having arly joined the Groug in July
2021. integration of the technical teams 1s
largely campletz, and perfarmance is in line
with our expectatians.

Good underiying cash flow and receipts from
the sale of gur stake in Xaar 30 in November
2021 enabled the Group to close the year
with a robusl balance sheet. Net cash of
£25.1 millign prowides a platform lor fucther
1 and further compl y
atquisitions.

The Board has rot declared a d
TN 2w betiee i PRSI S
for continued svestment in the business
at this stage of cur rebuilding programme
will deliver more compelting returns far
shareholders in the medium term.

Environment

As a Board we consider our responsibility to
the environment .and sociely in general as an
Integral part of running a successful Business,
We are mindful o, and are committed to. the
need to be goog cuslodians of our natural
resources for futLre generations. The
business has estzblished an ESG Commitiee
with oversighl and input fram the Baard and

Further operational progress made i
Engneered Frioling Selut ons (EPS),
deinvering strong revenue yrowth
Relocation of Cambnidge office during 2021 will
resultin £0.7 million annualised cost saving
Acquisition of Megnajet to arovide
customers with 3 mare co plete package
of integralion tools

Successiulintegration of FFE! acqui
expanding business capab lity and ve
integrated product offering
Completion ol divestment of Xaar 30
investment

Launch of Sustainahility rozdmap with ctear
strategy (o reach ‘net zero” by 2030,

has commilted to a Sustainakility Roadmap
including ways in which we will strive to
provide solutions and product s for aur
customers that are cleaner ar d healthier,

We are in the process of defining and setting
meaningful E5G targets alangside plans of
haw wee will achieve 1hose targels in a specific
time frame. Qur goal is for the business to be
"Net Zero by 2030°

People

Far Xaar to be successful we need the energy,
comraitment and engagement ol all cur
employees Periods of lockdown’, remate
working and constrants on how people interact
have all presented challenges, Jut] have great
2dmiration fer the way inwhich our peaple
have overcome thase challenges and worked
tirelessly developing a strong ‘can-do culture.

We entered Lhe year wilh oplirrism and a
renewed sense of purpose but of course
shill uncertain as to the wider ezonomic
envirgnment and extent of the challenges
that would present Despite this backdrop we
have pushed on wilh the neces sary changes
ta the business and il 15 ta the creat credit
of the whale tearn at Xaar, in all businesses
and in the many countries around the world
where collzagues live and work, that they
have adapted, committed to and succeeded
in delivering both solid financiat resulls and
2 platform lor continued growtt. On behalf
of the Board, | thank them and congraiulale
thern on the progress made.

Summary

The Board is optimistic followi g our
progress this year and is conhdent In \he
future prospecis of the Group.

Andrew Herbert
Charman
29 March 2022

Our EPICC values

Everything with Passion
We care about our technology. our

products, our partners ans each olber.

Innovative

We always look for new,
better solutians

Integrity

We deliver on our promrses

Creative

We push the boundaries of whal's
possible

Collaborative

‘We work togelher as 2 leam
2nd with our clients.

Qur values are the driving force

of gur culture and are at the
heart of everything that we do.

We have a cross functional team that
has been working on ways to further
ernbed gur vatues throvghoul the
Company, and we have also rovted
the values out across ail the Group.
The t¢am put together o videa which

demagnslirates the part that our values

play in our lives, both at work and in
our home lives,

Read more about our Company
culture on page 9

Walch qur video at
hitps:/fyoutu bre/LrXmXMIEpgg
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Market opportunity

We focus an markets where we have a
competitie advanizge, where we zan offer a
number ol benehts over Incumuant lechaglogies
Far example. with Direct-lo-Shape prnting, Xaar
technology ofters unigue value thanks 1o the
rapability of cur printheads to print dynamically,
1n multiple onentations, This is particularty
relevant in a number of aress trom aerospace

1 bicycle manufacture

Irv addihion, Xaar continues 1o $ee 3 grawing
number of new opportunities within the 30
painting markets Our technology is urique m
115 capatlity for managing high viscosity luids
ang athe same tme aelivenng industral
levels ot "eliabdity across a range of additive
manulfaciunng apphcations and emerging
technologies

There are sigraticant apporfunibes in texile
printing. pa-ticularly in applications using
pigmented inks Xaar s technology 1s well
suited for the challenges o arinting highty
pignented inks, providing several USPs.

and when combmed with upcoming pragucts
from imagineX, will bring & significant value
proposition 16 that market

See Marketplace on page 10

Proven technology and
product roadmap with a
strong value proposition

We have a product roadmap hased on our new
generatian ImagineX technelogy platlorm that
will develap aur range o offer aduantages
pver Lhe competitiog and open new markets,
Our un.gue technelagies and producls are the
leading enabler for inngvation and creatmty.
and for driving produchon efficencies lar
many industrics

See more on pages 20 and 21

Experienced and focused
management team

As the poly leading ndependent printhead
manulacturer we are able to have 3 flexible,
coltabarative approach Qur expeniencey
management team is commilted to remaning
customer-centric with 3 focus on Xaar &
grawth stralegy of ifenng o more vertically
integrated soluton

See Board biographies on pages 60 and 61

Six reasons to invest

A clear strategic vision

We have & cuslomar-centng business model
that ptaces the OEM and U0! at the heart of
eyerything we do We are executing on our plan
10 became mare vertically ntegrated to drve
printhead sales Durabilty to supply #lectronics,
software, ink systems and print engines
alongside apphication support, combined with

a disruptive lechnology. sels us apart from

our Lompettion

See Our business model on page §

Roadmap to deliver
the opportunities

Our ImagineX printhead platferm flaunched
September 20201 is driving our progress,
enabling the business la increase s
addressable markets whilsl estabilshing
market leading products across all our
sectors ImagineX has already delivared
significant enhancements to the current
porlicbe; these include subsiantially
smproved speed and throughput as well as
igh throw distance and wscosities of over
100cp at jetuing lemperatyre We have already
launched two new printheads an L platform
[Xaar Nitrox and Xaar Inix), Future product
launches inctude agueous compatibiity,
ncreased robusiness to improve the ife of
ihe printhead and even higher resolutions
These fealures are helping ta strengthen our
position in markels where we are already well
represented and will drive improved adoption
10 several markels where we are currenlly
nat, such s Wide Farmal Graphics, Labols,
Fackaging and Textiley

Sas New opportunibies on page 3

Strong balance sheet
position

We have the resources necessary ta
implement our stralegy. a strong balance
sheel vath no debt and net cash of £25.1
railien This provides the platform for security
and a great faundation for future growth

See the Strategy update on page 12
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Our business model

Xaar's business is focused

on inkjet technotogy, which
together with our partners

and customers, we have been
transforming for over 30 years.

Xaar plcis structured
into business units: Xaar
Printhead, the largest

AU, fecuses on printhead
technology; our other two
business units concentrate
on product print systems
and digital imaging.

Qur printhead business sells our inkjat
technolagy 1in component form {the
printhead, branded Xaar] o OEMs who
preduce and seii the complete digital
prinling salution We aiso wark with
User Developer Integrators IUDIs| whe
are bullding ther own digilal system
We work collaboratively with leading
fluid manufacturers o fully optimise
the fluids beyond a lab setting to ensure
paumum pont performance n real world
applications. We alsp sell Xaar branded
fluids to UOIs [manufaciured by aur ink
partners] which helps to build a long-
term relationshup with our custorners,
In additein, we aclively partner with
hardware and sollvare inlegrators s
walt 95 subistrate supphiors 1o delver

a robust and atlractive total solution

1o eur customers

Our product printing busness. EPS,
designs and develops complete ingustrial
printing machines which are sold ta

end usars

Our digital imaging campany, FFEI Lid,
manulagtures gh perfarmance digital
imaging solubions - irgm digital inkjel
label presses to digital pathology
scanners Its inkjet produets {print
engines] use Xaar printheads.

in March 2022 we completed the
acquisitien of Megnajet, market leader in
the design and manufacivre of industrial
nk Managernent and supply systems loc
digital inkyet.

We have recently sold our remaining

mterest n Xaar 10 lwhich 1s developing
30 printing machines| to Stratasys,

Our business model

Xaar
designs

Xaar
manufactures

Xaar
markets

Xaar
sells
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We have RED facdities in Cambridge, Heme| Hempstead,
Stockholm, and Yerment

We inves| a substantial proporiion of aur revenue
in RE&Q to remnann 3 world feader n inkjet (cchnatogy
[2021 approxmately 10%)

We conbinually add to nur Intelleciual Properly V1P|
porllolio, and currently we have araund 340 patents
and paten( applications.

Qur R&D staff 1otals BE which 15 21% of the tatal workforce

Xaar rmanulaciures s printheads m Huntingdan, UK
Xaar's manufacturing is capial mtensive. The Group
has invested over £70 million 1n assels and production
facilities in Cambridgestire, UK since the glant
opened n 2007

EPS, our product printing business, manufactures
custamised and bespoke printing salulipns in
Yermont, USA

FFEIl gur digital imaging business, manufactures
wnaging solubions i Hertiorgshire, UK

Megnajet manulaetures ink management and supply
systems in Mocthamptonshire, UK

Xaar ofters a wide range af mdustrisl inkjet printheads
and prnt systems which are designed and produted
to meet the customer-dnven requirements. [or a range
of manulacturing applications

Primary markets inctude

+ 30 Printing + Glass Printing
« Ceramuc Tile Decoranian « Graphies
« Coding & Marking + Primary Labels
» Decoratwe Larninates » Packaging
& Direcl-to-Shape « Product Prinling
* Functional Fluid

Oeposition

%aar's printhead business sells direct 1n DEMs ang
UDIs around the world through its global sales leam
Xaar's highly skilled application engineers offer
lachnical support to assist DEMs and UDIs wn the
successlul design, build, commissigring, and angaing
mawmfenance of printing syslems We expart over 95%
of pur printheads to customers around the world, within
Europe. Azia and Nerth America regions

Xaar company EPS also sells product prinbing
equipment, services and consumatles The majonly
of sales are to US custamers

FFE! sells via three roules to markel asa full system o one
OEM, as a ready to ntegrate prinl engine via distribution, and
#%a Xaar branded print engine lor our UD| customers

Megnajer sells 115 products directly to cusiomers
and via Xaar



We crea-e value for all our stakeholders

Customers

OEMs, Usar Developer Integrators
and end users are able to nnovate

in their manufacturing metheds and
their products as well 35 benefit from
a shorter distribulion chain: they can
take products to market more quickly,
imptermnenc more precise and efficient

Shareholders

A key goal 3t Xaar is 10 maximise the
tang-term growth in value delivered to
shareholders via sustained, consistent
growth in earnings per share. This is
delivered tarough continued investment
in R&0 and producing a pipeline of
new proguzts which delwer 8 sustained
return on capital employad.

Qur employees

Qur success depends on the capability
and engag2ment af our people. We
want brigh: and driven pecple who
share our ~alues and passion for
developing and manufacturing world
leading technology, We are building

a culture where our ernployees are
passionate about what they do, and
where inteJaly, innovation, creativity
and collaboration are a way ol life.

We like to build long-term retationships
with all our employees by helping
them grow and develop - in 2021

we promot=d over 70 people - and

by making <aar an interesting place
towork as well as a great company

1o be involvad with.

Whilst this year we continued to
manage th2 impact ot COVID, we

were able to host a number of COVID
safe lunches for our employees lo
encourage collaboration and team
building, as well as to help new
employees meet the wider team, We
also focused en embedding our values
more deepy inte eur culture which has
wncluded laanching 2 new values awacg
across the whole Group.

We have also continued with ferums
where emp.oyees have the opportunily
to meat anc chat with all our Non-
Execulive Cirectors along with the
Exet Xchange where our employzes
get to meal members of the senior
management team in sroaller grovps
to ask questions and exchange ideas.

Environment

Digital print metheds are inherently
mare environmentally frierdly than
the analogue techniques we seek to
replace. Qur research shows that,

Digital printing compared to
analogue reduces consumption
of upto:

%

©d, emissions

Marketplace

Xaar's digital inkjet technologies

are transforming print processes

compared {o analogue alternatives,
digital has a huge impaclt in reducing

energy consumption [by up to 55%). m O\
water consumption [by up - o 60%| o
2nd CO, emissions [by up t> 95%l

but alse in reducing pollutizn and
waste materials. X3ar is commitied
to reducing its impact an lhe
environment wherever possible. Qur
acluataer lechnotogy consumes less
energy than competitor alternatives
and our industrial printheads can
remain 10 use for many years.

Ir agdition, we use & contimugus
improvement methodolegy and we
have adopted a manufacturing ethos
ol ‘reduce, reuse and recyc.e’

Energy consumption

0%

‘Water consumption

Source Xaar

Envirgnrnental best practica and

aur investinent in sustainatle
manufacturing and operalinnal
efficiencies remain key areas of
business locus. Notable cutcomes
during 2021 include a maove to 100%
certified renewsble energy :arills at
1hree of our UK facilities - a swilch
Ihat will make a valuable centribution
10 our net 2eco goals. We cempleled
this mave for two remaining

facilities in January 2022, One key
decarbomsation project that has
commented in 2021 is the installation
of EV charging infrastruciyre, Work on
moving to solar energy continues, with
ciher factory level energy e ficiency
improvernents engoing,

In the second hall of 2021 wz formed
an ESG Committee with govarnance
and accountability to the Board.
Reparting to the ESG Commitiee,

the Sustamnability team, formed with
representatives from across the
business, has developed a co-ordinated
Sustainability Roadmap that will push
Yaar towards Ils ‘Net Zero by 2030 goal.
The Roadmap has four key pillars -
Environmental, People, Innovation
and Community; its purpose is to drive
aur ESG goals beyond the Energy
Reduction scope te a Group wide
activity Once appraved at Brard level,
fihe Roadmap wilt provide am essentiat
backbone for much of Xaar's future
investment and aclivity,
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in a wide range of markets.

Industrial markets

Ceramic Tile Decaration

The majority of the tite decaration market
uses digital inkjet technology because,
compared o traditional analegue techniques,
it Is suparior in terms of image quality and

i lower in cost. in addition, il offers the
advantages of flexibility, inventory reduction
and larger tile size capability. This is a mature
rnarkel for Xaar with streng competition.
However, with an average useful lile of five

to sik years, several hundred new ceramics
printers are required each year for ihe
foreseeabte future Xaar's unrivelled 720

dpi print resatution is starting to attract the
attentian of tile manufacturers looking te print
Large slabs for kitcherwwsre [such as table taps).

Decorative Laminates .
Realistic wood finishes or creative design
are the key features which sell the board/
plank/finished iterm. The digital quality
that can be produced with Xaar printheads
maiches the quality produced by the
analogue process, theraby offering the
oppertunity for mere economic short run
work to be undertaken whilst reducing
inventories and improving sime-ta-market.

Funetignal Fluid Deposition

Xaar's facus on functional fluid promotes
our inkjet technology, which offers an
unrivatled methas of non-contact, fluid
deposition with incredible precision,

contrel and speed, Typically applications

are challenging, pushing cur technology

to and beyond known limils in markels
such s Flat Panel Display, Semiconductors,
Printed Electronics and Oplics.

30 Printing

30 Printing is a manufacturing melhodology
hat encampasses a range of processes

and applications, with 3 commen theme of
building parts up, usually Layer-upon-layer,
This additive approach ulimately erables
manufacturers to eliminate the need for
toaling. There are significam advantages,
including superior geometric freedom,
giving designers much mare capability,

and a substantal reduction in lead time
for products. In addition 3D Printing
pravides the kacitity to tailor unique products
to consumers, enabie de-centralised
manufaciuring and shrink spare part storage.

Glass Printing

Architectural glass is increasingly used

to complement cerammic tles in modern
comMmETtial tesigh, and 1s staring to be
used in residential projects alse Functional
glass, such as car windscreens or glass
tops used in induction hab cookers, s
predommnantly printed using analogue
screen techniques, but 1s :ncreasingly
maving ta digital to provide production
Hlexibility and mwentary reduction, This is
an emerging sector for digilal inxyet and
the Xzar 2002 15 the leading printhead far
this maricet due to technology advantages.

Packaging markets

Coding & Marking

Coding & Marking 15 gn application which
relates to printing product dentifization
codes such as batch numbers, use by dates
and barcodes Xaar's technolagy 1s used

10 print barcades and logos on ouler case/
secondary packaging of consumer goods.
This 15 an established and stable business,
and comnpetes with alternative technologies
including print and apply, and thermal inkjet.

Primary Labels

Labels are used for many different
applicaions, including product identification.
name tags. warning and hazard identification,
promotiens and as decals for praduct
decoralen. There is a large range of
substrates and inks in this application which
adds complexty to the conversion process
Xaar excels In bwo areas of label printing
calours [including whitel and varmish based
finishing effects using Xaar's High Laydown
Technology.

Direct-to-Shape

Direct-lo-Shape is the application where
botttes and containers have the image
printed directly anta their surface without
the need tor a label The solution 15 aimed at
reducng unit costs versus the application of
alabel, This approach can also be used as
part ol lhe identity of a brand, and provides
differentiation versus other products that
use paper or plast:c labels Xaar prinlheads
are the besl al printing 1n a vertreal

mode la frequent requirement for these
applications], thanks Lo TF Technology
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Other markets

Product Printing

Praduct Printing cavers grinting anto

all kinds of industAal obiects, including
consumer and promational items,
packaging, medical, aulomotive, apparel,
appliances, sparts equipment and loys,
Xaar's printheads are particularly suitable
10 these applications because the printhead
design enables the use of a wide range

of fluids a5 well 25 conliguratians options.
In addition, Xzar company Engineered -
Printing Solutions |EPS] 15 a leader in this
sector, providing best-fit custem pnnting
selutions for many differenl applications,
inclyding promational, packaging, medical,
automotive, 3pparel, appliances, sports
equipment and toys,

Grand- and Wide-Format Graphics

Grand- and Wide-Formal Graphics includes
both ingoor and outdoor signage and
advertising, including billboards, posters
and point of sale advertising. It is the most
mature industrial inkjet market, aclive far
over 15 years. Xaar’s early product range
was instrumental in the growth of 1he digital
graphics indusiry around the world.

New inkjet applications

Xaar's Ulira High Viscosity Technology
enabtes jetting of fluids around 100
centipoises |cP) at jetting temperature,
equaling to approximately 1000cP at
ambient temperature ~ going well beyond
average jetting capabilities of 10-12cF.
This opens up wnkjet to a wider range ef
applications inctuding printing adhesives
and solder masks.




Strategy at a glance

OEMs

Strategy at a glance

The principat focus of our strategy 1s selling
printheads We can do Ihis more e'fectively
by presiding an integrated serice o sul

U01 and OEM cuslamers Thair success
depends in part on a cosi eifective product
development process, gelling their products
successfully and quickly to market, and
maintaining pracuct stabibity throughout
the product lifetime

Printheads

Qesigned, developed and
manulactu-ed by Xaar

Sub Systems
Electromes, soltware,
ink system

Ink

Print Bar

Print Engine

Customers who have less experience of
inkjet davelopment projecls, such as the
User Developer Integrators, or OEMs moving
it a new application area, are looking

for & dedicated, experienced nkjet partner
for prntheads, sub systems (eleciromics,
soltware and ink supply systems| and in
as well as for print engines mght up 1o fully
customised solutrons.

UDIs

We are theretare focused on providing an
Integrated solution whereby our customers
can access more of the printing ecosystem
fthe supporting elerments such as Ink supply
systemns and the electronics required for
printing) - as well as the print technology
lthe printheadst This strategy will ultimately
ensure we sell maore printheads.
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Strategy update

Enhanci

ng our

integrated

product

Introduction

We are now two years into the
turnaround of Xaar and we are
extremely pleased with what
we have achieved. We have
implemented a new strateqy
across the business, with a
new commercial model whilst
investing in the business. Thi
has seen significant progress as
old customers have returmed and'

offering

We have also made great progress updating
our infrasliucture and lurther strengthening
the team, our products and the capabibities
la deliver growth in the business
Ogerationally we Mave strengthencd the
business, iImproved gur efliciency and
margins whilst continuing te build a
sustainable sahd alatfarm from which ta
grow the business further During the year
we successlully ntegrated FFEL which

will enhance our commercial elfering and
widens our product lechnology olfering.

We have also established an E5G
Zommittee and commiifed 1o our
bility Roadmap which will become

newc S are con gto
engage with us. The speed with
which this has been achieved is

further embedded in the business and be
wisible 1n everylhing we do as a business

¥aar has achieved much in the last two

impressive and we have proved years and this suzcess will help drve us
our strategy is working. further in the coming years
._ M ¥aar plc - Annual Repert and Financial Stalaments 2021
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Delivered good results

and finished the year well
The results tor the year ¢emansirata
sigoifica L progress for the business and we
are extremely pleased with the continued
strong performance which, despite
challenging market conditions, demonsirates
the positive momentum pur strategy is
drwing thraughout Xaar. Invesiment n
capability and capacity prowides us with
luriher oppariunities to sccelerate our
strategy and ulure growth This leaves the
business well placed Lo captalise on this
perfarmance and detver further growth and
aretura lo grofiatulity Deliver ng prohl on an
adjusted basis over the second half of 202115 3
key landmark achievemnent for the Group 1S
2 milestone which has been achieved quicker
than planned as part of the turna round

Reveanue growth

Revenue lor the year was £39 3 rillion,
representing an increase ol 23% relative
to 2020 Organic growth belore the effects
of the acquisition of FFEI was 12%

In the Prinihead business we have a clear
rustomer-focused commerciak model
strategy which 15 reaping rewards, delivering
revenue growth ot 16% This approach
wncludes removal ol dislabytion channels,

a clear pricing strategy. and a sales process
that 15 focused on selling the prnthead
based on s technical merits

The tocyus has been on markets where ous
technology has a competitive advanlage and
working with the customer, both Onginal
Equipment Manutacturers (0EMs] and
User Developer Integrators [UDIs), over

the enhire product litecycle 1o reduce therr
developmant times and, therefore time

to market, and la alvo provide \mproved
altersales support We continue to see
increased customer engagemenl both lrom
exisling as well as new customers
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These teatures w:ll help strengthen our
Position In Markats where we afe already
well represented and will drive impraved
agoplion in several markets where we

are currently not, such as Wde Format
Graphics Labets, Packaging and Textiles
The performance enhancerments in our
prodoct ragdimap gwe & chear path for DEMs
to upgrade their products and maintain their
produc! differentation

Development of our agqueaus product
remains on track, and we intend to retease
more detaits oo s later in the year, The
exciling agportunity this progduct provides s
significant 85 we wolld have an unrivalled
portlolio thal ¢ suld sabisly markel demands
which we are currenlly nol able to due 1o our
printhead architecture

We have made strategic dolt-on acquisions
tg the Group that enable us to strennthen
aur customer offering and we will continue
13 adopl this approach in the future as we
fook to continye increasing our capability
and becorme a fully integrated inkjet

product provider

The actions laken i Lhe last two years
leave us wilh a strang balance sheet The
strong operational geanng that exsts in
the Business, which has already delivered
qood margin growih, has greater capacity
to support further margin improvement
1t the megurn terin The business is well
placed 1o move 1nto the next phase ol its
transfermation and to delwer sustainable
profitable growlh in the medium term

Signiticant apportunity

Xaar s digtal inkjet technulogies are
translorming grint pracesses 0 a wide
range of markets, and the medium- and
lang-term apportumty for the business
remains signilicant

We have alrcody grown market share 1n Due to the actign taken ta secure supply
core, mature Markels such as Cecarics by investing in working capital duning 2021
& Glass and Coding & Marking There we Delieve we ara well placed to satisty
remains further growth opporfunity in customer demand for the year ahead
these arcas as our technalagy 1s best in and we have the supply chain resilience
class and we have a clear campelitive lo withstand most disruphion, We are
advantage over our competilars due ta continuing to Inves! in the business. adding
our core technolagies |TF Technolagy ink shills, capability and capacity.
reaireulation, High Laydown Technalogy. We e L " :
Ultra High Viscosity Technalogyl XeCl an Imaroved gross margin which
will tome from lhe continwed efficiency
Increased market opportunity ensts. gains we have i the business Whilst
n secrors that are looking for further that enhancement won't be 21 the same
digilisation of printing an which we can mergmental iIncrease as for 2021, we are
capialise We see opportunities typically confident o returning to 40% gross margins
in areas where flud appucations are N the medm term

challenging, such as Flat Panel Display.
Semiconductors, Printed Electromics and
Optics We are well placed to succeed in
these markets as Xaar technclogy offers
an unrwalled Mmethed of aon-caniact, fld
deposwean with wneredible precision. control

Whilst we are consoious of 1he conbnwing
ri5ks ansing from the economic
consequences of wider global 1ssues, and
COVID-19 continues to be a nisk 1o ecanomic
disruplion, particularty in Asia, we remain

on track to return the business {o profitahle
and speed
=P growth and took torward to the future
Other markets that already use digital wilh confidence.

printing such as architeclural glass printing
and 30 printing are tremendously exciting
as pur technalogy has unique benefits

that can give oyr cuslarners commercial
advantage In reducing costs and lead times. .
tor thew producis

‘We have the night strategy and reman
confident in our abibty to achieve aur targef
of 3 full year profit this year.

Outlook 3
The positive momeatum it the bus'ness
has continued 1n he lirst quarter of 2022

ang we remam opbimistic aboul the short- John Mitls 13 Tichias
lerm outlogk lor the business Custamer Chief Executive Civef financiat
engagement and sales orders have been Qfficer Othcer
maintained In quarter 1 and are in Line

with gur expectahions We Bhticpate 29 March 2022 29 March 2022

continued perfgrmance Improvemnents
during 2022 with further good argamic
revenue giowth

Xaar plc - Andial Ruport and Financial Stataments 2021 ‘_
Sirateguc Repart m

Our business units

Xaar plc has a nurmber of business units
within the Group, with the principal focus
being on inkjet technology.

d & u-:.:\-.,.!-;»-o:-.,.s_._.._.
Sirategts Aeper!



" Printhead

Our Printhead business

utit focuses on the design,
manufacture, marketing
and sales of printheads and
associated products which
are used in a variety of
applications such as Ceramic
Tile Decoration, Graphics,
Décor, Labels and Packaging
as well as 3D Printing and
Additive Manufacturing.

Revenue segment

£40.9m
Markets
Ingustrial 53%
Packaging 0%
Graphic Arls 15%
Royaltty %
3D Printing

We have recenily sold cur remaiming interestin Xoar 30 to
Stratasys (see Financial Slatements - nole 11, page 1371,
Xaar 3015 develnping, manufactunng and commercialiung

Product Print Systems

Product Print involves printing
all kinds of industrial and
promaotional ohjects such

as medical equipment,
automative parts, tools,
apparel, apptiances, sports
equipment and toys. Xaar
company EPS manufactures
and sells a range of highly
customised print systems for
these apptications, including
some using Xaar's inkjet
printheads.

Revenue segment

£139m
Markets
Digital 58%
Analague %
Diher In

10 printing machings wit a unique 30 printing technology

The sale to Stralasys will enable Xaar 30 to succeed with

their go-1a-marxel plans

In addition, we have developed a close relationship with Stralasys
for luture collaboration and ongoing supply of printheads

We continue t¢ work on other 3D printing projects which use
Xaar printheads to delwer allernatve 3D printing technalogy

Kaar plc - Annual Report and Fina

Digital Imaging

Our digital imaging company,
FFELLtd, facuses an high
performance digital imaging
solutions ~ from digital
inkjet label presses to digital
pathology scanners,

in March 2022 we acquired Megnajet,
market leader in the design and
manulacture of indusicial ink
management and supply systems

for digital inkjet. The acquisition is part
ol our strategy to olfer our customers
amore integrated inkjet solution.

Revenue segment
£5.3m
Markets
Inkpet 0%
Life Sciences 40%

£9.3m £17.9m

Cash proceeds raceivad

Gain on sale of investment

£10.9m (£246k]

Fair value of contingent
<onsideration an disposal

Transaction costs on disposal

St ents 2021
Siratagic Repor: ._ ﬂ

QOur business units continued
Printhead

DELIVERING
ON OUR
STRATEGY
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2021 summary

Product laufches

The Printhead business continues to
periorm well with 4 growing pipeling of
Agw produe! developients (oming fram
tne ImagineX printhead slatfarm.

i Al we Lunched the Xaar Nitrox 12
deliver greater prant speeds lup to 190
metres per minule] and uniformity for
unparaleled perlsrmance gcross 3 wide
var ety ot prnt applications By the end

uf 2021 we already had 23 projecls using
thir Xaar Nilrox in progress. Cowenng more
than seven different applicehon sectors.

e also launched the Xaar lrnxin
September This prnthead :s targeted

at our Cadrg & Mar'ang customers in
particular bul also olfers a good salutan
tor printing direct to products, printing
furchionat fusds and for 30 prating
applieations where a hghly accurate
delvery of ink drops and/or loager throw
distances are Important Interest frarm
our Coding & Martong customiers has
been positive with 5 x customers already
evaluating the printhead

New opportunities

The number of customers launching new
machines has increased year on year
with ten Custofrers launzhng with Xaar
technology during 202% The sectors into
which the machines have been launched
are varied and cover lzbels. ceramcs,
direet-to-shape, 30 pr nting and PCE
printing Faur gther plafined tauscnes
have bean pushet 1o 2022 due to gelays
caused by COVIO-19

In June we $igned a co-aperatian
agreement o establish a Jomt Drytat
Prnting Laboatory’ with the Beying
Natianal lnnovanan instiute of
Lightiweight Ltd 1BNH 10 Chino. We are
new collaberating on RE&D projects bur
un the innovative lechnolagies from beth
parties as well as therr experlise ininkjet
printing The Jaint Laboratery will develop
new apglications in digital iInkjet such

as prinhing glass, electronics. 30 and
autamplive spray painling

QOperational efliciencies

Scalamiity of the Huntingdon 'actary has
been i focusin 2021 We introduced some
standard efficigncy imtialves within the
produCian areg, restruclunng the team
nta smaller work units This makes
2asier tp tram pperators, casier ta
manage \he teams on 3 day to day basis
and easter 12 react 1o changing markel
dermands through scaling up production
quickly when necessary In addition, a
second imliative, the Xaar Excellence
Syslem, 15 now undeeway and covers
Company-wide standards and processes

Dur 1T Transformation Programme

ta eslablish a madern, secu-e and
supportadle 17T mifrastructure 15 dlse
underway, This will enable us to deliver
an optimised and consistent set of
&nd-1g-gnd 0peralional processes,

The relocatron of our corporate HQ from
the Cambnidge Science Park 1o the nearby
Cambrigge Research Fark took place m July
and will generate savings of £0 7 miition pe-
annum from the start of the second half of
2021 The new global hesdguaners heuses
Xaar's finance, HR, legal and marketing
funclions, a5 well as 3 new purpose-buill
RE&D laboratory. Specihically configured

te enhance the working environment

ter the team, the new offices embrace
Xaar's commitment fo flexible working for
employees Also. umpertantly the affices
provicle a sigmificantly reduced carban
footprnt tor Xaar

A move towards an integrated service
We apponted an Ink Business Director

a0 March 2021 1o develop and rotl aut

a new ink sirategy aimed 2l bulding
collaboratwe paninerships with leading
fluid manufacturers We are working with
these compamies Lo fully aptimise the flud,
nol just w1 the printhead in @ lab setung. but
4l50 thraughout the machine developrment
pregramme, énd user imitegration and
bayond This ensures aptimum print
perlormance In 1he aclual applicaton
environment, and ultimately delivers 3
bette~ end result for our customers and
their cuslomers. as well as shortening
rme ta markel for all partes For gur
VDI custammers we are setbng lluids,
manulactured by our flyid pactners under
Ing Xagr brang This helps to Te us nlo
along-term re(ationship with these
customers and will provide an ongmng
revenye stream

We made sigauiicant progress this

year towards oyr goal of providing an
integrated inkjel sclutan whereby ous
cuslomers ¢an access the prinfing
ecosystem as well as the print technolegy
fram Xaar In July we acguired FFLI,
wheh (s enabling us to widen aur praduct
oltering lof print enginegs using Xaar
technotogyl 10 gur UDI custosmers

The roadmap lar cur Ink Supply Systems,
developed Wi year, will ensure thal we
can help tuslomers evatuate and adopt
aur technology - and vilimatety reduce
their ime-to-market One locus in 2021
has been te upgrade the Hydra lnk Supply
System for use with dqueaus ks,

In March 2022 we scquired Megngjel,
market leader n lhe design and
manufacture of (ndustnal ink management
and supply systems fer digital inkyet

Xaur pk - &nnual Repert ard Finan:

The acquisttion is part of sur strategy 1o
affer our Prwihead business unit customers
2 more nlegrated nkyel solution

We have also developed our datapalh
roadmap. and are now werking on
delvermyg a rich portfols ot datapath
praducts to help our cuslomers develop
their systems and solutions and aiso to
ensure they £an take adyantage of the
technology advantages avadable from
our imagineX platform.

‘We are now buillding momentum walh
oud Customet-centnc busingss Model,

allracting new ones, Products launched
WS year are ganing good traction

123 projects wih the Xaar Nivrpx and si
tustorners atready evaluating the Xaar Irl,
and we already have ten new customer
Jaunches wilh Xaar printheads during 2021

Qur 720 dpi print resolistion 15 also
atlracting interest in our ceramics market
Xsar has the umgue abibty 1o print at Hhis.
fugh resplution This capatulity. which

we showcased at Uniceramics, China, n
June. has proven to be al interest to tile
manufaclurers taoking ta pnnt exteptionatly
large wles whieh are used for homeware
products [for example, table taps]

In August we announced the opening o*

a mew Customer Senvice Centre t6 better
support aur Chinese cuslpmers, delwering
lechnical support ana training and prowiing
a fast respanse to customer needs

The new marketing platform that we
implemented at the end of 2020 1s also
drving audience engagement Our
campaigns in 2021 generated a Lrigue
reach of over 478,000 people, over 350,000
video wews, sver 15,000 meamngful
engagements fikes, shares, comments)
and gained us gver 1,000 new tollowers
on Linkedln

Building & viable printhead business
with a stable future

We are making good progress with
delivering our product roadmap The
launch of the Xaar Nitrox in April delivered
our first high frequency printhead which
can reach speeds al 100 metres per
minule We delivered increased (hrow
distance via the Xaar lre 1n September,
and the agueous pregramme is gn

Irack wiih (he printhead now i s beta
testing phase A signifizant locus lor aur
marketing campaigns in H2 has been

0 prumate the advantages of our Wira
High Viscosity capatility, with the goal of
opening up new applicalions which nvolve
prinbing mghly wscous fuids to achieve
aew tunclionalty, such as increased
preduct loughness or material Hexbility

m—.—-.:.,cue: .ﬂ @
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Qur business units continued
Printhead continued

Our inkjet printhead range

Xaar Nitrox

With unparalieled praductivity and performance,
the Xaar Nitrox lets you create without limits

Xaar 2602 Xaar 1003 C

High ivity and aut-of-the-b
exceptional print quality

itity in cecame
tila decoration

Xaar 1103 AMp Xaar 501

Small drop deposilion on
an induslrisl scale

High praduction up-time and
industrial reliability

Xaar 5025 Xaar 128
Exceptional grint quafity for Adaptable printhead with
‘Wide-Format Graphics trouble-Iree integration

Our integrated solutions

Fluids Ink supply systems

Drive etectronics and datapath solutions

MD x.-w!_n-&..E_.__zw_.q:aimwgﬁ.s_mr.uiqz«uuﬁ.
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Xaar Irix

Exceptional print quality, simple to use,

robust, and highty reliable

Xaar 1002 U
Al round relisble high quaslity

printihg for indusirial applications
Xaar 5020

Industrial reliability and
mineral-sil free inks

Print engines

Support



Printhead - technologies
Xaar's core inkjet technologies

We have a number of unique technalegies which are incorporated
into our printheads, and which provide distinct advantages to our

customers.

TF Technolcgy

Xaar's TF Tec hnalogy is the eriginat

and shll the best ink recirculation
technolagy a~ailable. A printhead's
archileclure Jelermines how well

ink recicculat'on is implemented and
therglore infliences the degree to which
the method delivers benefils acqoss
today's wide range of prinling and jetting
applications. 2aar’s TF Technelogy,
togelher with the unique Hybrid Side
Shoater printiead architecture, enables
ink ar other fluids 1o llow directly past the
back of the nczzle during drop ejection at
very high flow rates,

This ensures he nozzles are continuously
primed. keeping the printhead operational
and the nozziss firing and - with the ink in
constant motion - prevents sedimentat:an
and nozzle blecking, particularly in hea
pigmented inks Any air bubbles and
unwanted paricles in the ink are alsa
carried away, improving reliability, even
in the harshest industrial environment.

This makes je ling significantly more
reliable compared lo allernative printhead
designs where convoluted ink flow paths
means that reZirculation is close to but
nat at the back of the nozzle.

The main benefits of TF Technelogy
are unrivalled etting reliability.
outstanding print quality and an
increased procuction up!

Uitra High Viscosity technology

¥aar's Ulira Hic h Viscasity technelogy
opens up a wid 2 range of new inkjet

capabilities anc applications for OEMs

and manufactu ers using Xaar technology.
Mast printheads can only jet materials with
viscasities of ug to 10-25 centipoise (P’
Thanks to Xaars unique TF Technalogy
and innovative High Laydown Technglogy,
flurds with significantly higher
up to 100 ¢P - can now be jettad.

Our business units continued

Product Print Systems

Introduction to the Product
Print Systems business unit
Engineered Printing Solutions

{'EPS')is a recognised leader

in the industrial product
marking machine industry,
manufacturing highly automated
machines and accessorigs. As
well a5 providing an industry-
leading service and suppart, EPS
occupies a hiche position as one

Where we excel

We are the only truly independent
inkjet tectinology company with
aver 3 years of experience. Qur
independence enables a flexible,
collaborative approach to ensure
we remain customer-centric and
focus on their goals

State-of-the-art UK of only a few bespake product
i Loyt Tochrlosy ottt marking macine companies
Xaar's High Laydown Technology enables in North America.

by scientists and engineers
with a wealth of inkjet industry
knowledge and expertise

a range ot new applications, thanks ta its

in a single pass for tactite embellishments
on labels, packaging and commergial print
Braitle and label warning trizngles are
also possible. High Laydown Technology
delivers unprecedented ink d scharge rates
for gloss and adhesive elfects on ceramic
tiles, so that elfects can be printad 2t high
line speeds.

A comprehensive portfelio of
produtis 10 cover awide range
of applications

Where we excel

Qur core strengths are designing,
building and integrating machines
which allow our customers to
product mark their paris in
ahighly automated manner,

Engineers with extensive
knowledge of inkjet andg s
application across many sectors

as well as considerable field enabling significant cost savings
experience. This means they and virtually unlimited print

arg able b assist our OEMsand ftexibility and personatisation,
C_u._m inthe m._._nnmw.w*:— design, We offer unparaileled service and
build, commissioning and past- support which in tur ensures we

installation suppaort of all Xaar- buitd long-~term relationships with
based inkjel systerns.

For additive manufacturing applicalions,
High Laydown Technology off ars increased
printing praductivity which significantly
accelerales build rate for par's and the
ability to print a broader rang2 of fluids.
including higher viscasity materials; this
ultimately results in tougher 0 printed
parts than these printed with standard
inkjel technology.

What we achieved in 2021
2021 has been a rebuilding year n EPS.

In April, we changed the leadership of EFS.
Additional changes were made in Finance,
Human Resources, and EHAS Management.
The sales group was re-organised into

two distinct groups. One group locuses on
selling pad print equipment and distributed
inkjet printers and their related consumable
items into the medical, ndustrial,
promotional products, and other markets

A separate group focuses on selling

the bespake inkjet systerns into

industrial accounts.

We achieved +9% growth in sales in 2021
and ended the year with a strong order book
for bespoke systeris as well as & plan for
continued strong growth for 2022,

Priorities for 2022

In 2022, we will cantinue our alforts

te standardise the base print engine
platiorms which became part of our
customised inkjel solulions. The benefits
of more standardisation wilt be lower
costs and improved lead times.

Al our core, EPS is an innavative graup
of very talentet
experts wha utilise their creativity and
experience to design, build, and deliver
specialised printing systems for our
customers.

our custemers
Ready-to-use development
kits and an extensive portfolio
of systems components ensures
that OEMs and UDIs can get up
andrunning q
Priorities for 2022
» Continuing to deliver on the vertical
el _:. AM tay aahg: ﬁ.:_n__m sﬂ:.. 3.%:3 integration stralegy ta suppart our
parhcie loading and partcle sizes alfers goal of driving printhead sales
advantages such as an mcreased calour
gamut, opacily and special eflzcts * Launch Versatex for aur LD
In addition, jetting higher malecular Customers
weight phatopolyrmers tor Adwanced + Launch of agueous printhead and
Manulacturing and 30 printing the ecosystem to support it [such
applications 1s rade possible 2s the datapath and ink detvery
systems)
» Launch Sustamabiity Roadmap
Xawr ple - Annual Report and Financial Siatements 2027 M .._ MM c - Annual Repart and Financial Statements 2021
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At the very end of 2021 we toak the largest
single orger in the Company’s hisiory [lor
mutiple units] which will be realised du
2022, and the first half of 2023 There were
continued challenges related to COVID-19
including na tradeshaw presence and diffically
with travel, as well as regular interruptions of
wark schedules and supply issues.

q

We also made many changas in our
internal procedures and business systems
10 allow a more focused approach to the
business and better use of our resources
1a achieve resulls.

Project focus

In 2021, EPS designed, built, and delivered a
bespoke single pass machine for a leading
playerin the promotional products industry.
Based on the XD-70 plaliorm, this machine
leatured a six-axis robotic arm controlled
by a wision system 10 load paris, inline
llarme pre-trealment, a five-calour, six-head
print engine, and serve-centrolled oltlgag
accurnulaters tor sorting of differant SKUs.

Stored recipes enable the robotic arm to
locate the part trom the load cell, spot theck
the part for correct arientation and place it
an a conveyor for pre-treatment. The part
then continues under the printheads lor
decoratign, Following inline UV curing, the
part is conveyed to a series of “gates” that
open and ¢tose accarding to the recipe In
this manner, parts are sorted automatically.
On average, this machine can mark 1,000
pants per hour, including changeovers,

This successtul implementation of single
pass printing technology to the promational
products industry is an impartant step
forward for EPS. The COVID-19 pandemic
affected this market segment greatly, as the
cancelistion of sporting events, weddings
and closure ol restaurants negatively
impacted sales for promational products.
As these events start to come back online,
EPS is poised to bring this disruptive
technology lo an established industry that
is seeking new efficiencies tor their product
decoralion services.



Digital imaging

Intreduction to FFE

Estabtished in 1947, FFE1 has

an impressive reputation for
devetoping innavative and award
winping digital inkjet and life
science solutions - from concept
vo delivery. Mostimportantly,
FFEI works closely with
customers to ensure their market
knowledge is transformed into
the digital imaging system they
need to meet their bespoke
requirements. The two care FFEl
application areas are digital
imaging solutions for label
presses and dig tal pathology
scanners.

FFE! Inkjet

The inkjet side af FFEl focuses on

the design and manufacture of inkjet
pruk argunes which it sells to OFMs ta
incorporate 1n their own systems and
prand as the owm.

Where we excel

Gver &5 years of know-how
in industrial digital imaging
technology The FFEI prinl engine includes an 1nk
system, a control umit 10 run 1t and mouated
Xaar printheads. The OEM will take these
elemants and maunt them inde their own
pressie avd 3 new print leature.

To date, FFEL has focused on the labels

and packaging market where the print
engine provides an elliciect way la add
digitat embelhshments 10 analague presses.
for example, var msh ernpeltishment, igh
laydown embelbshmen, high opacity white,
vanable data coding/masking jwhich s

very difficult without digital capability]

and spal colpurs

An extensive care technology
patent portfolio

A reputation far develeging
sophisticated sotutions from
concept to delivery

A culture of innovation and a
keen focus on customer needs,
underpinned with highly capable
and committed employees

FEEI will cantinue Lo sernce its Swn
customers as before but is developing

3 roadmap of products tor Xaar's U0!
custormers which s Lsunching in 2022
under 1he Xaar brand Versatex. This 15

a slripped back standard print engine
which, because ol the changes, |s more
warsative and gpen lo 3 range af dilferent
applcations. It offers a more comptete
solovion for the UDls who have less ket
experience and whe are loaking fora
standalane engine, helping them tokeep
development casts down and get 1o market
more quickly

FFE! Life Sciences

Digital pathology scanning technalagy
Qver ten years ago FFEl applied its digital
scanning expertise to 1he challenge of whale
sfide Irnaging [WSI1 for pathology. Today
\ts award-wonmng techaolody has been
successfully taken 1o market by a nurnber
of blye thip chients Central to the Success
of thase scanners 18 FFEI's patented
“dynarnic focus’ technology. which delivers
ynparalleled scanmng speed, 7-stack
functienality and :.c:.amq::.c: Maging.

\Whether customers are se#king 1o L
imaging capabilities to theif exisiing core
compelencies, or are planning 1o extend thair
axishing imaging portlolio, FFE) can help

DOptical imaging and deteclion technologies
developed by FFEI have been suctessiully
appled ta @ number of dfferent laboratory
formats and applications n partnership w
a number of blue chip companies.

Proguct partfolic development 1S ongeing
and there 15 now 2 pipeline of next generation
scanning technologies; same aré vary close
to riarket readiness, while others require
further development FFE(1s now looking for
new partners ta reap the rewards of these
nexl generation scanmng systams

Sierra slide calour calibration technology
FFEI's solutians include 1ts pateated

Sprra side and Ine unique capawiily 1o
imegrate with cloud-based ICC cotour
management profile generators. The Sierra
slide calibralian technotogy unwersally
slandardises WS! image quality 1o the
highest geound-truth fidelity across all
digital pathotagy $c3aning systems This
prsures the true and normalised colour

of stained hiasue biopsies are presented

1o patholagrsts. researchers and Al alfhe
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Business performance

Cantinuing operations -
revenue

Revenue for the Group of

£59.3 million is an excellent
performance for the year,
representing 2 year-an-year
increase of £11.3 million (2020:
£48.0 million] of which FFEI
represents £5.3 milkion in the
period since acquisition.

115 3 vary pleaging result awer! the ongong
cestpctions ansing from COVID-19, with
Pemthead favenue ncreasing 16% and EPS
9% Group revenues Increased from £2563
miton i the 75t hald of the year to €330
million in the second hall driven princpally
by a E17 milbgn increase in revenu® irom
the EPS business. This 1 a strong recovery
across ihe husiness demonstrating the
pasitive customer engagement and trusl
Ihat 15 being regainad aCross oue cuslomer
base and the continued Mamenturn we have
n (he busInass.

Revenue rom the Americas grew year-en-
year acress the Group. nsing £3.3 million
12021 €23 6 mullion, 2020 €203 millioal,
including £2 4 million from FFEl and despite
a smalt drop 1in Printhead revenue of (03
million The rise, drwven by (he recovery

\n EPS revenue, stems fram mcreases in
sates of dhgieh machnes end penpherals
demonsirating the new cammercial approach
15 being well recewed with cystomers

Partarinance in Asia, and China
particular, has been very successiul
202 This has been the key dree’ tor

the continued overall revenue growth in
Brinthead Group revenue grew £1.3 niion
i the Iirst hall ot the year to £5 8 million
H1 2070 £4 5 mulbion} and tontinued 10
grow n Lhe sgcond half ta £6.2 rillcn

{H2 2020 €5.1 rmillion] This growih has
largely heen driven by the re-engaqement
of Chinese Ceramic OEM customers

wihere our fEw produdt range 1S aravng
successiul Revenues in Printhead have
\ncreased year-an-year from £4.6 mAbon
1o €13 9 million a 24% increase.

Trus 15 a real proof paint far the change

10 sLrategy. the removal of distributien
channels, the implementation of aclear
priciny stralegy. and moré signiicantly a
change in how we imeract and Suppur our
customers have all helped wath the speed
of adoption of the Xaal 2002 together wilh
Xaar Nitrox and Irx in China

Revenue m EMEA has cantinued (o nise
year-on-year Excluding FFE. revenue was,
£20 9 million compared to £18 3 raillion, and
we Nave secn 3 promising conhinued upward
trend in revenve since H2 2019 Revenwe

wn the hirst hall of the year increased £21
mullian compared lo H1 2020 of £8.4 rillion
and by £0 7 emllion i the second hail
comnpared 1o €3 7 milien n w2700,

Printhead revenue for the year increased
£4.8 mullion (6 £40 1 mllvon (2020 €253
odignl Gravels o the birst hatf was 0%
and 10 the second hall was B% as we
Saw ContInuES MOMENIUT if eI
throughout the year

Printhead revenue growlh stems Irarn the
continued recavery o the key sectars of
Ceramics & Glass IC&G| with grawth of E5.2
o 28%1. Ingressing markel shase wth
our extended product portfelia and being
Sble 10 demonstate our CIeat 1echnology
advantages has proven syccessiulin the
GChinese Ceramics markel, where we have
regained trust with our customers We have
also established @ market laading pesition
n Glass with the Xaar 2002 and won several
accounts ir Lhe 5lass seclor in 2021, with
revenue m 2021 inceeasing 38% carapared
to 2020

Coding & Marlung {C &M} revenue has
rarmalaed largely llat year-on-yest. while
Dwect-to -Shape DTS revenue has dectined
ith the majonty of the declng 13wing place
1n the Amencas which we believe will be a
short-term ftarlening of demantd

Whlsl std! a relatwely small part of our
business, DTS wili prove 10 be an increasingly
nperiant sector for the business and an
area lar potential growth m the long rero
angitis encouraging that we are SrRwING
how gur unique technology advantages can
prove successiutin s area by winning new
accounts and coMMISSIONING NEw machins
Dy switching their produclion lines over fo

a digital selubon

Table A - Revenue by region — Continuing operations

wide Format Graphics [WFG! and Labels
revenue le1l sughlly i the yesr irom (2
million to €& 2 mitlien Thig s an area where
we have seent some dalays i arders, manly
COVID-19 relaled A pur CustOmErs are
more able to access their own customer
bases with  relaxation of travel restriclions,
we expect this reductien 10 be ane of timing
gnly and le recover N 2022

30 Printing 2nt Advantes Manytaciuring
{AVM] have stayed retatively (tat year-on-year
12021 E2 4 millon 020 £75 million] wath
gawns i 30 Pripting offset by o reduction

' revenues irom AVM, As wath the BTS
mackel. the AVM market lor printheads 1s
stil relatively small but growing. and we are
wery excited ahout aur praspects in this area
and expecting to see sigmificant grawth i
e COMING YRATS Roth A0 Prisking 2ed AN
are markets where we are well pasitoned o
take advanlage of growth oppofiunives, ok
develppment cycles can be long. therefare.
it can take several years far a cuslomer

to reach full preduct on and ulumately
significant dernand for printheads

Revenues from Packing & exules

remgin modest Our ability to 1arget this
sectar eflectively 15 somewnal umned

by our curvent product range. However,
advancements in the product porttolio drven
by the ImagmneX platharm should make s
1arge seclor more accessible in the tulure
Full year revenue of £08 mullian was down
year-on-year (2020 £0 9 midlion)

Qur royalty revebug stream was sold during
2019 and so we have a declining legacy
royally rate which wall continue lo dechne
1n 2021 and 2022 helore teastog altagether
shartly therealler

Revenue lrom the EPS business increased
y £12 eralbiars la €13 9 mitlion [2020- €127
millon] a3 Lhe new commercial approach hes
seen soime smbicant custemer qeder vans

£m 2021 H1 3023 H2 Fraun Y 2070

I £pS Totat PH £ps  FFEL Total PH €Ps  FFEL  Tetal PH  EPS Total
pmericas 10 54 100 34 78 24 138 73 139 24 236 76 127 FUE]
Asia 58 - 58 &1 - o1 42 "y - 0.y 120 L) - 6
EMEA s -9 we - s 132 0.3 - 24 227 181 - Wwa
Total w2 g1 263 139 78 53 330 (18] 13.% 531 593 353 127 B0

+ tpetudesole €37 roMon 10 serece fae allscatad to PH and EMEA Figures sublect la rounding
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This has beer drven particularly by digilal
inkjet machinz sales with growth of 11%,
which i particularly pleasing as this wall

be the cere fozus for the business in the
future. Pad pr nt machine revenue has

also increaset (8% albett wath 2 decline
year-on-year i the second half. The focus
on consumables and accessory sales has
contributed to-the grawth as a result of

the change in zommercial appraach, with
increased revenue fromink, plates and
parts. We see 3 strenglhening pipeline and
order boak and we are welt placed to deliver
furtner growth in 2027 a3 companies star o
invest in capital equipment again and those
markets alfectad by the pandemic, such as
Ad Speciality avd Promational Praducts,
start to recoved

Continuing operations -
gross profit

Gross proht for the year increased by £7.2
n {2020: £13.0 mitkon)
with an INciease in the gross inargin to
4% [2020: 27%). This was primarily the

from 27%. We increased utilisation of the
factory as throughput was increased during
the year resyltiag i better overhead cost
recavery, SUppaTling margin gains. We

have worked had on cost saving initiatives
during the year and as we increase volumes
there should be further scope for improved
overhead recoveries and accardingly
margin gains Ouring 2021 we proactively
worked 1o securz raw materials which
should reduce further supply chain risks,
Issues in supply chains globally are well
knawen 2nd documiented, particularly so

for semi-condugers and other technology
materials, with i creasing cost pressures.
Our actions in G- should insulate us fram
fyrther costs and mean we are able to meel
customer demar d thraughout 2022 We
have increased aur working capital with
nwventory nsing £9.1 million 12020: £4.8
million reduction in inventoryl, This higher
level of hoth raw materials and finished
goods is a delibe -ate, prudent approach
which we believe will see us well placed to
both manage customer requirernants and
further insulate t1e business from external
supply chein risks whitst vtitising the high
level of operational gearing to delver further
improvements in :he gross margin

Gross profit lor the £PS business daclined
£0.2 million in the year to £3 2 million 12020;
£3.4 million] with gross margin down year-
on-year [2021: 23%, 2020: 27%]. Actions
taken to refocus t1e business on lulure
growth epportunilies mean 2021 results
have been impaclzd by nan-cash write down
adjustrments total ing £0.7 millian. These are
largely related to rvenlory we now consider
to be slow moving or obsolete.

Table B - printhead revenue

m 200 W 021 H2 FY 2021 FY 20 Var Var %
Ceramucs & Glass %5 95 190 138 52 3%
C&M and 0TS 59 52 4t 15 04 3%
WFG & Labels A4 24 43 -0 -2%
30 Printing 8 AYM W 14 24 25 00 -a%
Packagwg & Tenles 02 06 08 0F 01 -11%
Royalias Commisaions & Fegs! 0.2 [ X s 04 02  +50%
Total 202 198 400 353 4B 1%

4 Rayaliies 10 -7 nzluges {0 7 mation relating 10 Xaar J Siraia
Figures [Frm] aid percentayes %] are subjeci to roinrig

Table C - EPS revenue

Sy8 servica fee sdminisiered by Group.

£mn 2021 WY 2021 W2 FY 2021 FY 2020 Var Var %
Digila, inkjer 14 4l Y] 72 08 1%
Pad printing 2.4 al 5.5 <1 04 +B%
othee Y 0e - -
Total &1 7.8 119 127 12 +7%

* Figures, IEml and percentages (%] art subpact 10 rounding.

£xciuding the nan-cash adjusiments
mainly relaling to slow moewnoy and chsolete
inventory. the underlying gross margin was
28%. largely due Lo the resetting of the
modular strategy by new management.
Excluding the E0L7 million ol adjustments
recorded by EPS in 2021, the cross prafit
for the Group would have improved o £20.%
million, with 2 gross margin ¢! 35%.

Continuing operations -
R&D

R&D spend ol £5.7 mitiion waz up £1.2
million on 2020 [2020: €4.5 mil.ionl. This
reflects the investrnent in the I magineX
platform which will be central s0 our leng-
term growth, with the added investment

in FFEl of £0 & mitlion. The tetel inciease
15 in propartion Lo our revenue Jrowth

and maintains a spend/revenue ratio of
approximately 10%. Sales and marketing
spend lor the year was £6.3 million [2020:
£6.0 million]. The increase in spend of £0 3
million year-or-year reflacts the fecus

on sales and business developrient in

the Printhead husiness unit fellowing the
restructuring of the business in Lhe second
hall of 2020. Savings were seen in both

the Printhead and EPS businesses due to
COVID- 1% which timited our abi ity to vi
customers and led to the cance latign of the
majorily of Iradeshows which one, or both,
businesses would have alttended,

Continuing operations -
expenses

General and administratie expenses
increased £2.1 millian trom £€8.0 millionin
262010 £10.1 millign in 2021, This increase
largely reiates to planned investment in key
areas ol the business and infrastructure,
including operations, {T and finance, offset
by £0.3 millien related to trading loreign
evchange gains in 2021, as a sesult of the
exchange raie volatility response to COVID-1%.

trnpairment reversals an financial assets
were £0.4 milbon 12020: €0.3 millan],

This reversal predominantly relates to a
distribution channel used by the Printhead
business and the collection of 3 cusiomer
debl previousty provided for.

{nher operating incame in: 2020 of £0.8 million
related to the PPP loan taken out by the EPS
business in the US which met all qualifying
criteria to be fargiven,

Restructuring and transactian costs of £1.4
million [202G: £0.8 million] predominantly
relale lo re-arganisation costs, scquisition
related prolessional tees and additional
costs relaling to the dilapidation and exit of
the office on the Cambridge Science Park,
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Business performance continued
Table D - Movement in net cash* lincluding 30}
£000 2001 020
.nmﬂ_mqwmm:J_ deposits - Centinuing operations 25,051 1817
Cash & treasury deposits - 30 gperations. - 2120
Cash & treacury deposite al the end of the year_ _ ___ 25,051 20237
Cash & treasury deposits al the beginning of the year 20,237 25.322
Tatal net cash inflow/{outilow] 4,814 15.085]
Elfect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash balances 110 57
Increase/|Decrease) in nat cash lor the Group 4924 15.028)
Consisting of:
Tetal cash | | Finflow from inuing operations 12,340 7073
Cash outflow from Xaar 3D business 12,109 17.0181
Xaar 3D = Proceads from share capital and share sale 9272 -
ot cash inflow loutflow] fram Thin Film aperation 103 15.083]

Increase/[Decrease] in net cash for the Group

4924 15,026

Continuing operations -
profit

The profit before tax from continuing
operations under |FRS was £1.0 million
in 2621 (2020; £4.3 million loss). Basic
earnings par share from continuing
aperations was 0.9p [2020: loss 5.7pl.

The perfarmance of the Printhead busmess
improved £6.5 mitlion from 2 £4.2 miklion
loss in 2020 to a £2.2 million profit befare tax
in 2021, driven by increased sales, a much
improved gross margin, and a reduttion in
oparating expenditure The EPS business
went from a £0.3 million profit in 2020t a
£0.9 miltian less in 2021 due to the impact
arising fram the write off and provisioning

of legacy invenlory. Excluning this one-off
impact, the EPS business made a small loss
which given the underlying performance of
1he business should see turn this into profit
during 2022,

FFE! contributed 2 poatit befoce tar of €0.6
million since acquisition on 11 July 2021,

In caloulating the adjusted loss before tax
we have adjusted for gains on derivative
financial liabilities of £2.9 million {2020:
EC.1 million} and fair value gains on hinancial
assets of £1.0 million (2020: nill alongside
restructuring costs of £1.4 million, foreign
exchange losses on intra-group loans of
€0.1 million, and share-based payments of
£0.7 million with an R&D expenditure credit
of £0.3 millian and amortisation of acquired
intangible assels ot £0.4 million |see
financial Statements - note 4 an page 1301

M O Haar plc - Al Reper
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The 2djusted loss befare tax from continuing
operalions was £0.6 million, compared te
E3.9 million loss in 2020. This is a signilicant
step forward for the business, emphasised
by the delivery of adjusted profit in the
secend hal of 2021, The adjusted EBITDA
far cantinuing operztions in the year was

£3 2 million [2020: £0.1 million]

Discontinued operations

Due |0 the dweslment of the remaining
investrment in Xaar 30, completed on 1
MNovernber 2021, the results are classilied a5
disconlinued operation. The business was
classified a5 an assel held for sale as at 31
December 2020,

AE13.5 million prefit was recorded in relation
ta discontinued aperatiens [2020: £10.3
million losst with cash oulftows far the period
of €19 million [2020. £12.1 million]. The

Thin Film business, which was classified as
disconlinued in 2019, recorded a loss of £9.2
rmulian {2026: £3.7 million| which related

to inventory commitments and supplies
Liabilities, Al liabihlies regarding the Thin
Film business have now been settled. The 30
Business recarded an operating loss of £4.2
miltion in 2021 (2020. £6.4 million loss).

The Group has recognised a gain on the

sale of the investment in subsidiary of

£17.9 milben, comprising net cash receved
ot £2.3 million, with contingent cansideration
at ik iransaction date of £10.9 miltian,

less transaction casts ol £0.2 millian

Basic ezrnings per share from discontinued
operations was Z0.0p TA0: toss ¥5p).

ind Fnanciat Statemants 2021

Profit for the year

The Group profit [ar the year was £14.2
million [2020- £14.7 mitlion lass| of which
£16.2 million 15 attributable 10 the owners
al the Company [2020. E11.7 milkon lossl,
with a £2.0 mitlion lass to non-controiling
interests [2020: £3.0 million loss). The total
basic earnings per share atlributable to
shareholders is 20.9p {2020: loss 15.2p].

Cash generation

The Group relained a healthy cash balance
of £25 1 million at the year end, representing
anincrease of £4.9 million during the year,
comprising 8 cash outflow fram continuing
operations of £2.3 million, with discontinued
Xaar 30 aperations utilising £2.1 millian,
being of(sel against cash proceeds received
for the sale of Xaar 3D of £9.3 millien,

Operaling cash inflow lor continuing

operations before working capital was £2.7

miliion dve to improved aEBITOA of £3.2

rnillion delivered principally in our -~
Printhead dwision.

As a resuylt of the managed investment in
inventory, werking capitat saw an outflow

af £3.4 million, with improverents in
receivables and payables helping to cffsat
sorme of the €9.1 millian increase in inventory.

The Group maintains a strong disciplined
focus on cash, and this will continue
througheut 2022, During 202}, invesling
activities saw a cash spend af £2.3 million,
mainly on infrastructure and IT projects

The business has a clear plan and sirategy
which the strang balance sheet and cash
position will support. There remain external
development apportunities which, if they can
expand our capabilities and expertise, we will
leok to potentially add to the Graup. We will
also conlinue 1o invest internally to ensure we
have the operational capacily and efficiency
to meet future demand, 2longside investrment
in our product roadmap development.

Strong balance sheet

Nen-current assets increased £22.7 million ©
in the year from £24.7 million to £47.4
million. This was driven by the increase

in goodwill {ollowing the acquisition of

FFEI Limited of £0.7 million. along with an
increase in intangible assets of £3.8 million.
The identification of linancial assets at fair
valye arising from the sale of 3D assets was
E10.% million plus revaluation through profit
and loss at year end of €£1.0 million [2020:
E£nill. Additionally, there wera increases in
right-of-use assets of £7.3 million, and 2

£0.9 million reduction in property, plant and
equipment as new purchases were controlled
In line wilh the Group's cash focus.



Curren assels, axcluding the disposal group
assets held for sale, Increased £18 & millign
rom £38 1 mitlion in 2625 (o £54 5 mdtion

A sigmhicant proportion of ths increasc is
attributable to the increase innventones
of £9." milbon to €18 8 m Won {2020

£9 7 millionl, asseciated with the managed
irvastment i our supply chan capabilily
Trade and other recewvables mcreased by
£25 millign to £12.1 million (2020 £9.4
mitiant and cash and ¢asn equivalents
(ncluding treasury depositsk increased by
£7 0 mitbion 12 £25 1 million 2020 €181
frullia i, wath current tax agsels increasmg
by £0 1 muluon to €0 5 miltion (2020 204
milliarl. Each of these were primanly driven
by the consolidalion ot FFEI

The 30 buswness was classilied as held
for sale wth €100 million of assets in 2720
and dispased of n 2021

Current lamilities, exciuding iadhitres
assacsated with Xaar 3D ineld for salel

1 2020 0i £1 4 mitlien, increased by T8 7
rmillion ta £23 O miltion (2020 E14.3 millionf
primarily dye to the Increase in trade and
arher payables of £11 & rulion to €215
millign 12020 £9 9 mithon), as a result of
the consalidation of FFEL A reduction in
the prowsion palance of £0 2 million Arose
from tne ut hisatan of the £0 3 mitlion
restruCIuring provision in the year, atfset
Oy an INCrease |11 warranly provision

6f L0V mitbon Curtent lease Labilities
increased by £0 1 mithon ta C1 2 millien
12020 €11 mulbonl, with the disposat af
¥aar 3D also ramowing the Uabilty ansing
from desvalwe hnancial instrument, of
£29 mittion

Mo rurrent liatibites increased by £10 7
milbon ta £12 2 million (2020 €7 § mllian],
which mainly relate Lo lease biabhilies.
recarded under IFRS 16 lor property, which
mereased oy £7 0 mibon ta £8 & millian 12020
£15 rmullion] 0 Lhe year, alongswde recogrussig
a dlapidation privision on (ezses of £0.3
raullion (2070 €nil) and long-Lerm Liabilty

¢t £3 & million for the delerred consideration
on the acquisiion ol FFEI Limited

Dividend

Mg dwidend has been declared lor 2021,
2¢ the Board delieves that priontising cash
for continued investment in 1he husiness
at this stage of our rebulding programme
vl delwer rore compelling redurns for
shareholders in the medjum term

Tabl¢ € - Cash flow table - Continuing operations fexcluding 30}

021 w2
aEBITDA 3,183 87
Rastructenng and transaclion expenses (1.404) 1754}
Depreciation of right-ot- use assets L Yal 1.167
Government grant IPPR loan) - a1v
Cther 20 144
Dperating cash Hows hefore movement in working capitat 2,740 1,378
Movement in working capital 13,383} 6,735
Cash [utilised] /generated by eperations ‘_:E 8113
Income laxes receved 288 351
Net cash used w invesling and other Linancing achwilies, [1.987 n3sn
Mel [decrease) / increase in tash and cash equivalents
from coalinuing operations (2,342) 7073
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Sustainable and responsible business
Werking in responsible ways

A strong belief
in responsibility

The Group strongly believes
that effective management

of the ESG agenda is integral
to business success. The Group
is not anty compliant with

all retevant requlation and
legislation but has increasingl
focused on enhancing the
working environment for our
empl and minimisi

Dignal prim methods are inhedently more
enviranmentally friendly than the analogue
techmgues we seek to replace

Our research shows that, compared

to analogue alternatives, digital has 3

signficant impact in reducing energy -
consumphian |by as much as 55%], waler

consumption Iby ug 1o 0% and CO,

£miss10ns {by up to ¥5%). in addinon

to reducing poliuhon and waste materials

Sustainability governance
structure

In the second halr af 2021 we estabtished
2 more formal ESG governanca structure
aid fermed 2 Sustamablity team with
accountatiily to the Board The team.
fermed Irprm representatives across the
business. has duveloped a co-ortinated

the enviranmental impact of

sur manufacturing processes.
There is internai reparting of
key metrics to ensure continuous
improvement throughout the

£56 p that will push Xaar lowards
its " Net Zero by 20307 goal The Roadmap
has four key pllars - Environmeni, Peaple,
Innovaton and na:.:_..::._s its purpose (s
1o drve our ESG goals bayond the Energy
Reduction scope 1g 3 broader Group wide
activity The Roadmap will provide an

any each b
of staff is expected to take
individual responsibility for their
contribution and to work tagether
to achieve shared goals.

Nw x-n_.w.nn::._._u_:-ou:-.:_—.s-_:_mg.sus-:__ﬁ
Sirategic Report

| backbone dar much of Xaar's
fulure invesiment and actwity

Xaac is cornmnted 1o reduging its impac)
an the eavironment wherever possible,
with Seniar Independent Director Alison
Littley hoving specific respansibikty for
ESG matters.



Board and Executive Management

Alison Littley, Senior independent Director

Define corparate stralegic visien lor ESG and sustanabibity,
approving Group goals

ESG Cammittee

Global Qps Director, Group HR Director, Corporate Finance Director
and Company Secretary, Head of Marketing, External
Sustainability Cemms Advisor
and Group Sustainability Lead

Review, assess and track. roadmap and established goals

Sustainability team

Selected cross tunche® \earn, Meelings 35 Fequired
todentily, develop and update rosd map, with external support

Carhon Net Zero team Energy Efficiency team

Cross lunctional team tasked
with look ng at opportunilies
and executing these

Facilites and EHS ste wam
which drives completion ol prajacts

Our ESG Roadmap - founded on four pillars

The ESG Roadmap aligns with the Xaar EPIICC values
Read mare about EPIICC on paye 32

Environment

Leading the way in
emvironmental sustainal
{ar the industrial ket
technology seztor

People

An emplayer of choice by
putting our people, their
petential and wellbeing at the
heait of all we do.

Innovation

product lfecyele

Read more on page 2% Read more an page 31

Resd mare on page 34

Environment

Emvironmental besl praclice, our investrment
in sustainable manwfacturing and improving
operational efficiencies remain key areas of
business focus. The Group fully complies with
local and national regulatery requirements in
respect of the environment relaling to ils use,
storage, handling and disposal of materials,
chemicals, and waste products.

Xaar maintains a Certified Environmental
Management System that meets the
requirements of S0 14001:2015, helping

us o Manage our erwironmental aspecis
and impacts, which complements our
commitment Lo contenual improverment. !t is
readily available to view for interested parties.
e carry oul environmERt Management
reviews and audit programmes designed

o measure gur progress i relation ta our
policy statement and abectives.

Climate change

We have escalated climate change from
an emerging risk to a principal risk as
part of our risk management process.

See Risk management on page &4

Our aspication is 10 lead our indusiry in
environment and sustainability, in order to
rminimise the impact we and our products
have on the world around us. We have set
the aspiration to he ‘Net Zero by 2030 and
to drive sustainable growth and innovation
for the zere carbon economy

See Innavation on page 34

tn 2622, we will assess the risks and
opportunities of climate change to deliver
aclivities that improve our resilience by
zither mitigating or adapting against physrcal
and transitional risks, This will include a
commitment to bath setting Science Based
Targets and avaluating the UN Sustainable
Development Goals to determine those of
primary importance lo the Group.

Community

Encouraging more sustainable Actvely engaging with our
approaches to gesign,

manufacture, technelogy and
collzboration across the whole support that benefils socrety

commurnlies to provide
pracucal, elfectve, lasting

Rexd more on prage 35
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Sustainable and responsible business continued

Carben / greenhause gas emissions

A key Group activity at Xaar has been to
idtentily opportunities, and drive cantinual
improvernant in enengy efficiencies. We
have seen reduCliohs in energy usage and
greenhouse gas emissions of the Company
recorded in Scope 1 2nd 2 since 2015,

See Greenhause gas emissions
statement on page 41

As part of the development 1a ensure
aftordable and clean energy, Xaar has
entered into a supply contract during 2021
for the supply of green electricity from a
renewable source in the UK. The target is
lo achieve 100% from renewable sources

in the UK and 1o investigate methods ta rell
this oul to other subsidiaries and locations
throughout the Group.

All Group UK manufacturing locations are now
supplied with certilied carbon free eleclrigity,
Qffices and laboratories will convert where
qreen anergy is avaitable in 7022,

Carbon offset

During 2021, Xzar offset alt 2020 Scope 1
and 2 carbon emissions 11,815 1Ce,el for the
Printhead business, We purchased trees

ta be planied in the UK, and Amazon tree
pratection [1,000 trees = 1,000 tonnes Cogel.
In addition we offsel 815 tCa.e purchasing
salar cookers as parl of the Heging Solar
Cooker Project for poor rural farmers in
remote areas of China to replace coal for
caoking and hot water needs.

In 2022 we wilt continue to offset our
residual Scape 1.and Scope Z carban
emissions, whilst we investigate and identify
the ull extent of the boundary in relation to
our Scope 3 emnissions which will be added
to the offsed in the future.

Waste

Xaar strives to reduce the amount of waste
we produce, ensuring lhat al{ waste is
disposed of ethically and legally through
responsible waste handlers,

In 2023, the Group set a recycling target of
zero waste to landfill, with any waste not
recycled being sent lo a waste to energy
Fecovery process.

+ Electronic waste: The Group is complant
with WEEE [Waste Electricat and
Electronic Equipment] directives as
required under UK and EU legrslatian,

Our waste handler Yeoli2 has prowided
conhirmation that zero waste went to landfill
in 2021

Okg

Landfilt

13.48Kkg

Waste divarted

9,692kg

Waste recycled

Plastits and packaging

introducing mew packaging for its printhead
products in 2020, This project to remove

plastic as a packaging matertal has reduced
aur plastic consumption by 1.2 tonnes per year.

prove sustainability,

Sigrificant improvements in the use of fully
recyclable and biodegradable cardboard
pachs during 2021 led to atl printheads being
shipped in boxes made from a mix of recycled
and new matenal - whereby at leasi 70% ol
the printhead box and B5% of the cardboard
inserts are from a recycled source.

In 2022 the Xaar Logislics team continues
ta facus on lhe remaining peripheral
packaging boxes, with aspirations to convert
all packing materials to be tully recyctable
by mid-2022.

diversity

the key ta healthy
ecgsystems, to provide us with the sgils,
nutrents, pollingtors [75% of the world's
crops are pollinated by insects}, food and
waler that we need ta survive,

As outlined in Carpon offset, to achieve
carbon neutrality we are supparting aclion
to protect treas in the Amazon, and have
planted 1,000 trees in the UK. In 2022,

we are looking ta support and promate
local employee carnpaigns, starting with
the intreduction of a beehive on sitein
Huntingdon, UK, and the distribution of
wild flower seeds to employees.

In the medium term we k bigdnersity
improvernents with the employee wellbaing
programme in developing outside spaces
and garden areas for employees to actively
promote physical and mental heatih,

Nyne of our sites are located in or adjacent
to protected areas.
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Water

We have determined that our operations,
are consigered as low water usage, and we
do mot have any operatians in any regions
with high water stress However, within our
Huntingdon factory location we need to

be cognisant of the risk of flooding in the
North of the Cambridgeshire region and
the Fens, as well as the stress on the chalk
streams and water aguifers in the South
Cambridgeshite region. Xear thereiore
considers water management throughout
all activities of the Company and that water
shauld be treated in a manner that will
protect it for future generations.

+ Usage: Water vsage in Huntingden

operations is limited to domeshic use,

We regularly moniter and recard water

usage, and ulilise water pfficient taps and

cistarns,

Emissions: Xaar has a permit to

discharge 1ssuad by Anglian Water; the

effiuent discharge 1s checked monthly by

exlerngl consultants to ensure conlorm

to site discharge kevels and content and

reports show discharges are below

permitied levels, There are no reported

dents in the last 12 months with
ragards ta amissang Lo watar,

Air

» Quality: Wa regularly monitor the air
gualily. temperalure and relative humidity
levels within the Huntingdon cleanroam
facility. All cleanroam gir supplies are
fitted with BVAC filters, Xaar also remains
consciaus of the need lor good indoor air
quality, werking hard to ensure adequate
air circulation and routine maintenance
of the systems,

There are smoking areas located away from
Huntingdor: building entrances.

+ Emissions: Xaar has a permit issued
by Huntingdon District Council due 1o
the business using more than 2 tennes
of solvent for surface clean down each
year To comply with the germit any
waste gases must ngt exceed total VOCs
per roam of 75mg/Nm?. This has been
audited and confirmned via an exlernal
UKAS accrediled company. There are no
reported incidents in the last 12 months.
with regards to emissions to air. There
are no significant air emissions in relation

10 NOx / 50
Printhead water usage 1021 200
Freshwater usage (m?) 5000 5087
tntensity ratio (m'/Em
turnover -~ excL royalties] 127 11y
Effluent and waste water
m* &562 4984




Hazardows materials

All substances handled and used by Xaar are
n accordance ta the CaSHH regulations and
mdustry best practice, by risk assessment
and evalyation in Lheir usage, storage and
disposal Care 15 taken to look for any less
tarrmful alternative substances where
possible Lo mimmise any potential Impscts
i their use befarehand

People

Human rights
The Group respects all human
rights and regards thase rights
relating to nan-discrimination,
fair treatment and respect
for privacy to be the mast
relevant and to have the
greatest potential impact en
its key stakeholder groups of
customers, emplayees and
suppliers.

Tha Graup undertskes extensive Monitoring
of the implementation of all of its palicies
and has rot hean made aware of any
incident In which the orgarisabion s actmites
have resulted in2n abuse ol human rights

Xaar 1s committed 1o only supplyng

product thal containg conflict free
matenals Supplierss of pans containing

ur, lantalum, lungster or gold to Xaar are
sent and required to complede an EICEC- GeS!
declaration providing gwdenc e that parts
supplied do not contain rinerals sourced from
areas of conihict - DRC or adjoiming arezs.

The Beard has averall responsibibity for
ensyring thal the Group uphotds and
pramotes respect for human rights The
Group seeks Lo anticipzie, prevent and
mitigate any patentral negative human
righis impacts as well as enhance positve
impacls thraugh 1s policies and pracedures,
i parhcular through its palicies cegarding
employment, equalily and diversily, treating
customners farly and inlarmation securely
Group polices seek bath 10 ensure thal
employees cornply with the relevant
legislation and regulations in place in the
UK and other operating (ocahans and to
pramote goad practice The Group's policies
are lormulated and kept up to date by the
relevant business area, authorsed by the
Board and communicated ko all employees

Code of Conduct

Allngw employees complete an induction
process that pullings Lhe expectations of
the Company, its employees, customers
and suppliers for the way in which business
15 conducted and helps to avoid situations
thaot might lead to adverse legal 1ssues or
damage to our reputatian

The Group's masl important carporale
policies are incorporated inla the X3ar
Code ot Conducl, and snould be comptied
with at all irmes,

« Anti-pribery and Corruplion Palicy
Cenfidential Information Policy

Corporale Crimmal Dfience Policy

Data Protection Policy

Erplayee Share Dealing Code

Email and Internet Policy

Gifts, Emtertatnment and Hospilality Policy
HS&E Policy Statements

Sanctwns Poley

» Whistle blowing Poliey

Each year tha Group requires all employees
ta read 273 conhm that they understang
and comply with these palicies

See Grawp policies autlined .z the Non-
linartial information statement an page 56

Whistleblowing

We have 2 Whistleblowing Policy that encaurages
open and hanest cornmunicahon where Inodents
of non-pompiiange ane seen in our busess
Whistieblowing issues are reported directty 10
managemment, and any significant issues. shoutd
they arise, are reported w the Audit Cammmittee
Ingath instance, cases are investgaled in detall
and apprepnate action token

There have been no whistleblowing incidents
of reperts by senior management 1o the
Audit Committee
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Sustainable and responsible business continued

Modern slavery

The Graup rs cammitted ta acting ethecally
and with integrity wn all cur business
dealings and relahionships, implementing
and enlarcing effective systems and ¢ontrols
10 ensure modern slavery in all its forms,
fincluding human trafficking. forced

Labpur and child labour] 15 not taking

place anywhere in our Group businesses

or 1n any of aur supply chaing The Group
has published a Group-wide Modern Slavery
Pelicy and a statement on the steps taken
ta prevent siavery, which s gvailabie on the
Group's webhsie

Health & satety and environment

Xaar has manufactyring sites in Hunhingdon,
Hemel Hempstead, and the USA, supported
by R&D laboratores in Cambridge and
Sweden, alangside head office bunctions
Cambridge, plus sales offices worldwide

It 15 always Xaar's mtention Lo canduct
business In a manner that protects the
public, the envronmant, andg employea
satety. Xavr's Envwonmental and Heallh
and Safety polises provide & lramework lor
the sethng and revewing of Deeupational
Health, Salety and Eawronmental
Objeclives This demanstrates Xaar's
conbnued commitmenl to the preveation
of injury ang l health and also the continual
improvement in our Environmental

ang Qccupatienal Health ang Safety
Performance. Xaar believes that the
combination of 2 sale place of work and
sale working practices, together with &
praductive and inncvalive emvronment,

are ertical 1o the continued success

aof the Comgany

UK Health & Safety reparts Lt w0

RIDDORs® a o
Accidents L ﬂ
Incidents 1 9
Near misses § ?

* Reporung of Inpyries, Disaases and Dangeroys
Oreurmnces 2egulatins.

The Group underlakes R&D actwities and
manulactures groducts in the UK and ihe
USA The Group comples with all local
and European teqisiation. The Group s
manufacturing facitity in Huntingdan is
both ISC 9001 2019 and 150 14001:2015
certibed and 35 @ minimum complies to
HSG6S ILis the Group's palicy to maintain
this level of certification for its Huntingdon
maqufactunng fatlilies and ta coMply at
3l times with ali relevant envirpnmental
and other legislation in the terniores

1 which the Group operales The Group
is compliant with REACH ['Registration,
Evaluation, Authonsaton and restriciion
of Chemicals'|, WEEE | Waste Electncal

WN u....-_njs...:.-s.un_..:._T._!.n.
Strategic Report

and Electranic Equipment’l and RoHS
{'Restnction of the Use of Certain Hazardous
Substances | direclives, as required

under UK and European legmlalion The
Groyp has a proactive Health and Safety
System modelled on DHSAS 18001/HSG45

in Cambridge, Hunlingdon and Hermel
Hempstead

Equality and diversity

The Group 1s commlied fo providing
working emaranment in which employees.
{eel valued and respected and are abie 10
contribyte {o the success of the business
Empleyees are requasted lo co-operate with
the Group’s e'farts te ensure that the paticy
14 fulty implemented

The Group s aim 1s that its employees
should be able 1o work i an environment
free Irom discrimunanon, harassment and
bullying, end that employees, job applicanls.
customers, retailers, business ntroducers.
and suppliers shauld be treated fairty
regardiess ol

race, colour, natianalily hincluding
tihizenship], ethrie or national eriging.
« gender, gender reassignment. sexJal
omemtalion, maritsl or cvil partnership
status,

relgious or poltical beliets or alflliations,

disability, impairment or age.

real or suspecled mlection with HIV/AIDS,
+ membership of 2 trade umion,

& pregnancy, maternity and patermidy,

and that they shauld nal be disadvantaged
by unyust or unfarr conditions ar
requirements

A value-led culture

Everything with Passion

We care about our technalogy. our
products, our partners and each other

Innovative

We always (ook Tor new, better
solubipns

Integrity

We detiver an our pramises

Creative

We push the boundaries of what s
possible

Collaborative

We work together as 3 team and
with our clients



The Group aims'to ensure that applications far
employment from peaple with disatilites. and
other under-repesented groups. are given fulk
and lair conside ation and that such people are
given the same training. development and job
apportunities as other employees Every efiortis
giso made to ret-ain and support employees whe
sulfer from disabilities during their emplayment,
including the prevision of lexible working 1o
assisl their re-ectry inlo Ihe workplace

The Broup ptaces considerable valye on

the invalvernent of its employees and has
continued lo keep them informed of Ihe
varigus kaclors 2 fecting the performance

of the Group. Ths is achieved through whiten
communications shared through the Company
Intranet and email, and formal and informal
meelings. All emplayees participale in a bonus
scheme based cn Individual performance and
Group business sargets and, in the UK. have
the opportunily & participate in an HMRC
approved Share >ave Scheme and Share
tngemiwe Plan.

Based an Ihe closing headcount al
31 Dacember thw split of stall by gender
was 2s follows:
020
011 lesaed)

ale/ Mate!

Femats Femate

AMlemployees 350105 37
rectars " 41
Sanior managers T s
Emplayees 79T 28071

The spiit berween seni-r managers zng amployees (g,
agency staff] has been edefined and 2020resizted.

CEQ pay gap ratio

The faltlowing table sels out the ratio of the
CEO’s total remuneration in ~espect of FY21
l1zken from the single figure tatle an page
92§ to the 25" percentile, 507 percentile

. the median) and the 75" percentile
tull-time equivalent IFTEl of the Group's
UK employees. In line with the applicable
regulations, the torresponding ratios for

2020 are alsc (reluded.

o2 iz
Methad Oplien A Option A
25™ perzentile 141 15:1
Median pay ratio 11:1 n:
75" percentile 7:1 8.1

Furthar information is provided in the
Remuneration Committee report
on page 58

Gender pay gap

Gender pay reporling i% required for
companies with cver 250 empteyees Xaar

is reporting as Xaar P, including all UK
subsidiaries. The snapshot date for Xaar's
data 15 5 April 2021. At that paind Xaar had 265
relevant employees: 213 male znd 52 female.

ILis fundamentaliy imporant lo understand
that a gender pay gap does not recessarily
mean men are paid More money {or doing

the same job. Al Xaar we 3re cormitted to
ensuring we pay basea on merit not gender

nd we regularty monitar Gur pay awarts to ensure
that we pay the same rate for simi ar roles.

Xaar's mean gender pay gap stands al 14.38%
(2020 22.96%I. As wilh many companies we
do have 2 gender pay gap, though our results
are consistent with olber campanies who

the technical, manufacturing
or engineering sector.

There has been 3 shifl acrass the quartiles
wilh more movement for fernate employees
from lower middle quartile to higher middie.
This is a reflection of more female employees
being premoted and appainted la senior roles.

We zppreciate that improving our diversity
will imprave our results, and we continue
to work on improvemenis over the longer
term. A lange pari of Xaar's gender balance
gap 15 due to the challenges of recruifing
women ime science and technology rales.
MNevertheless we are con| g to wark

on increasing our genger balance in the
following ways:

« Xaar operates in a male dominated industry
and we are working to ensure that our
hiring managers are traines to undersland
and recognise gender bias. We do, hawever,
receive significantly fewer applications fram
females for technical roles.

Our Tzlent Acquisition team assists hiring
managers by giving practical advice,
sepport and monitoring for gender bias,
we seek o have both femate and male
candigates as part of the hiring pogl
whenaver possible and we constanlly
review our processes to ensure we are
encouraging more female applicants.
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Sustainable and responsible business continued

» Xaar is supporting Cambridgeshire
Engineers of the Future by spansaring
locat schoois’ Imagineering Clulys, which
is designed to intmduce children to
engineering and hopes ta inspire young
peaple and especially girls to take up
STEM subjects. A nurnber of our women
frem Engineering participate in these
endeavours.

» We support all employees to achieve
their potential with a talent management
programme and we offer flexible working
arrangements to support working parenis.

Pension

The Group Personal Pension scheme is
adminisiered by Scoltish Widows,

The Company pension contribution for
Directors’ lor cash allawance equivalant]
does not exceed tha contribution avaitable
to the majority of the workforce, currentty
&% of base salary.

All the equity assets in the Pensicn Partiolio
Funds ngw track indices, which exclude
certain stocks on enviranmental, social and
governance [ESG] grounds.

The funds, managed by their strategic
partners State Street Global Advisors {SSgAl
and BlackRock, track new benchrmarks,
which reflect exclusions policies. aligned
with Scoltish Widows' own policy introduced
in 2020. The new benchmarks are amended
versions of existing FTSE indices. They
Incorporate all of the stacks in the original
indices, for example the FTSE All-Share,
minus the excluded stocks.

Companies axcluded from the indices
include those that are severely violaling
international standards in relation te human
nrights, tabour rights, the environment

and cosruption, known as the UN Global
Compact IUNGCI, controversiel weapons
manulacturers and those invatved in
thermal coal or oil sands.

Flexible benefits

In addition to the pension contributions,
employees are also offered a range of
flexitle benefits each year, against which
they can abtain individual and family
caver including incame protection and
lite assurance. Within the UK, thare are
a nurnber of salary sacrifice schemes for
empleyees including an eleciric vehicle
scheme for employees 1o lease a new
eteckric vehicle and a cycle to work
scheme where empleyees can obtain
nance and discounts on new bikes
including electric aphons.

Employee health and
wetlbeing

Employee health and wellbeing remains
a keen priority for the Growp.

In line with tHis approach, the businesses
within the Graup have p ised different
initialives that best refleci their worklarce,
such as volunteering and employee
wellbeing policies, regular wellbeing weeks,
step challenges, weekly Yoga sesgions,
qualified meptal health first-aiders and

5 to encourage and promote

a healthier worklorce.

As part af the Flexible Benefits programme,
employees have sccess to:

Mealth Shield, 2 health benefit solution
offering access to discounts and re-
imbursement of healthcare costs such as
dentists, opticians, physistherapists and
health checks.

Filness, ernployees can pay for gym
‘membership oF gain access to gym
discounts via 8 website, that also offers
discounts on items such as fitness trackers,
experience days and sports clothing,

+ Wellbeing via 2n Empl Assi:
pragramme, a positive prevenlative
programme of inlormation, advice and
services that can help individuals deal
with events in their everyday work and
persanal life, including bereavement
assistance, manager consultation

and coaching, and immediale crisis
intarvention, through telephone
counsgiling teams 24/7.

Training, develapment & retentien
Developing our talent is key to our on-
going success, and in 2022 we will recruit
a Learning & Devetopment Manager to
support the arganisational plans and

to dentify enablers that can drive the
attainment ol employzes aligned with

the business requirements,

» An updated suite of Learning and

Development tools is being develaped

lo ensure key skills are developed

and enhanced.

Internal courses are develoged in

zonjunction with the institute of Learning

and Management [ILM) to suppart key

manager development.

» Anew graduate and apprenticeship
programnie was baunched in 2021,

The Group gperates an online perfgrmance
managernent and appraisal system provi ng
oppartunity lor individual discussions on
training needs and career planning. This

is supported by 3 talent management and
succession planning process from which

the Executive Management Team assesses
the autcpmes, formutates action ptans and
reviews progress.
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The Board is kept informed ot the results.
The lass of key persannel is entified by the
Board a5 a key risk and is set oul in further
detailin the principal risks and unceriainties
table en page 44, Voluntary labour furnover
was 5.5% acr095 the Group in 2021 2020

3 6%)

Qur people response during tha pandemic
During the COVID pandemic the safety and
wellbeing of our employees has been and
tantinues 1o be Qur overriding priority,

Our executive and senior management
teams have monitored events closelyto
ensure that we have been able to react
quickly to an ever-changing situation

At the start of the pandemic we enabled
waorking from home at short notice fer
those who were able to do sa, and in the
workplace we took actions 1o introduce
enhanced hygiene and social distancing
measures, screens, temperature checks,
use of lace coverings and more recenlly
workplace laleral flow testing.

The Board recognises the commitment

ct the Group’s employees demonstrated
through the coronavirus pandemic as they
responded with great agility and dedication
10 the new ways of working required.

Innovation

Xaar recognises that innovation
is key to achiaving many of the
sustainability goals across all
four pillars that support our
Sustainability Roadmap. For
30years, we've been reinventing
inkjet and reimagining what's
possible for printheads.

Sustainable praduct develapment
Encouraging more suslainable approaches
to design, manulacture, technology

and collaboration across the whole
product lifecycle

In 2021 we relaunched the Producl Lifecycle
Managerment process used 1o develap new
and innovative printhead products; this
now includes Design for Environment as
part ol the development cansiderations.
Eco-design is the systematic application

of eowirenmental lifecycle considerations
at the product design stage. The aim of
eco-design is to avoid ar minmise
significant environmental impacts at all
stages of the lifecycle of 2 product, Irom
sourcing of raw materials and purchased
components, design and manufacture, to
Aribution, use and end-cl-lite dispasal.

Precautionary principle

The Company supports the precautionary
principle by avoiding materials and produclion
methods that pese envipmental and bealth
risks when suitable altematives are avaitable.



¥aar continues to review changes in Lhe
Restriction of Hazardeus Substances
Directive [2011/65/EU] As aresultwe are
working hard to eliminate Subslances

of Very Hgh Concern [SYHC| trom the
manufactuning process

Rescurce efficiency

The Company products and processes are
designed 1n such a way thal energy and raw
materials are used efhiciently ang waste and
residual products are mnimised over the
products bfecycles

As the COVID impact on {he electranics
supply chain became clear in 2021, Xaar
implemanted & circular and resource
efliient appoach to the recovery of key
electrame and prece parts from grintheads
tnat do not meet our high standards This
wnovative approach, along with considerable
seurcing effarts, has allowed us to conlinue
production despie global shortages

Envirenmental performance

The Cempany routinely audits, follows

Jp and reparls on s environmental
nerformance, with particular emphasis

gn evaluating the potential risks qf present
and tuture products and eperations

Praduct quality

We 15sued a number of Technical
Bulletins th-ougheut the course of 2021,
advising custamers on product updales,
syslemn wnpravements and product end

of Lfe announcements No praguct recall
was Initiated i 2021, however we d'd
complete a recall iwirated 1n 2020

18 XPMs were recalled from the feld to
enaole replacement ol a defective chip
nslalled in errgr by 3 supplier that had
tha potential 1o unespectedly halt the XBM
operalion Advanced replacements were
made avanable to atl custormers affected
to mranimise the impact on their areduclion
or research

Community
Xaar is proud to play an active
role in the communities in
which it operates. As part of our
commitment ta social value and
community we have an active
pragramme of spensorship for
projects and initiatives that are
aligned to our business values.

¥aar sponsors an imagineering Clubs within

a lacat primacy schools Imagineening

Clubs are designed to miroduce ctuldren
1o engineering through fun activiies

The sponsorship is part of Xaar's role in
nelping to creata the ‘engineers of the
future’ and drve mierest in STEM subjecls
[ Science, Technolagy, Engineening and
Mathematics’] amangst schoal studenls
During 20202t the impact of COVID meant
the ctubs were held less frequently than
previous years, Xaar 15 delighled that the
clubs, and our supporl have restarted with
the onset of the 2021/22 acadermc year

For our own employees, the social club
which 1s aimed al encouraging sialf o have
iun and get to knaw each ather socially was
paused during 202C a5 3 consequence of
COVID restrichions Activilies have restarted
as COVID restrictions attowed Irom H2 2021

Yotunteering

The Campany recognises the benehts

10 Xaar, our employees and to 1he wider
community af a framewprt within which
volunteering can take place, Managed well,
volunteering can raise our profile within
the camrmundy and support ou” 50¢ial
responsibility plane

Xaar supparts employees’ voluntary work/
actvities by prowidng ‘holiday matching ol
up lo two 2nd a halt days a year, We helieve
this will help them get 1volved in thesr
community, suppart emplayee menial health
and welloeing through posilve actiites and
addinonally assist them in gevelaping new
shills and hone existing ooes

0Ot the 1,600 trees purchased 25 part

of the carkon offsel Isee environment
section page 30), Xaar employees
volunteered to assist with the planting of
100 trees al two local schools, agsisting
Year 2 children to plant 90 hedging plants
at ane of these schoals

.

Xaar has donaled and grant matched
tme off to an emalayee in 2022 to travel
overseas and support construction ol a
school / facilities build:ng in Africa

Charities

Xaar conlribules annually to chariable
causes through three funds

« Achosen charities fund these should

be chanties Lhat prowide benehts locally,

or charities with specific connechion

tn Xaar steff:

— Xaar employees usyally raise money
duning the year for a number of charities,
previously taking part in varous actrahes
Tor Comic Reliel on Red Nose Day,
coliee mormings for Macmillan Cancer
Suppart and Chnstmas Jumper Day for
Save the Children Unforturately due
10 the coronavirus pandermc 1n 2021
we were unable to parucipate w charity
tundraisers this year Charity nominations
took place with Hinchingbrooke Special
Care Baby Unit recenang a donalion
of £2,000 1n Janvary 2021

« ASpansorship fund for statf and their
tamulies engag.ng in chanity events or
team actritres, Xaar will provide up
to £100 towards an evenl e.g. chanty
golf days, sporting events, donations
te community foadbanks| ar team
sponsorship Wherever possible the Xaar
logo shauld be incorporated le.g.ina
tearn sports kitl There is a fixed annual
budgel Lo cover all sites

» ACentral lund Xaar will donate
monies as appropriate to disasters and
emergencsas or other local causes ot
covered by the other funds. This will be
at the discretion of the Executve team

» Intotal, the Group made chantable
contributions to local and national
charities during the year tolalling
£5.060 (2020 €3.1501

Charitable sponsorship

« In 2021, Xaar became an offitial
supporier and sponsor ko the ‘Cows
about Cambndge’ event fwwsw
cowsaboutcarnbridge.co ukl. becoming a
headline sponsar of the Farewell Weekend
1262 £4,000, 2020. Nill A tearn af Xaar
employees also volunteerzd to assislin
preparations for and also at the event The
event was organised to rarse lunds for the
East Anglian children's charty ‘Break’
to hetp change the Lves of vulnerable
yaung peaple on the edge of care, m care
3nd leaving care [wwnw break-charityarg/
charityfl.

Political donations

= The Company has & longstanding glebat
policy against making cantributions 1o
golimical parties, political cammittees or
candidates using Company resources

nctuding manetary ano in-iind servcesl,

even where permitied by law

+ Ng pohtical domations were made in
the current ar previous year

Taxation

We aim to manage our lax affairs in
accordance with national legisiative
prowsions and wathin the guidelines st
down by the Orgarisation lor Econamic
Cocperation and Development [QECDI

Our objective 15 to slructure our operalions
tax efficiently and take advantage of
available incentives and exemplions
pravided by governments for elgiole capital
investments, R&D and similar expenditure

We do not enter inta any artificial tax
arrangements

We have not receved any fines or penalties
trem any government tax agencies

See Finantial Statements - note 12
on page 137
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Sustainable and responsible business continued

The initial core recommendations
Progress against nitial actons in 2021,

Initial action from 2020

Offsat all of the UK regulatary Scoge 1.and 2 carbon impact that
we made and reporied in 2020

Ifenity targets and metrics applicable to Xaar, to measure across
the organisation

Preparation and identification of Scope 3 emissions wathin the
supply chain - Identify tier 1| suppliers and their disclosures
around climate change and GHG ermssions

Review producl return policy, to identify possimlities for
improvements in responsibie ceasumplion n production and
remanufacturing of products, reduction in plastic use. reclaiming
raw matenals, recavery al any heavy metals, copper, lead elc

Set, measure and disclase 3 zere waste to landhll target, any
waste not recycled being senl lo 3 waste to energy recovery
process

Green energy grojects to identity additional energy and GHG savings:

|dentrty actions to remove natural gas as an energy and heat
source. or replace with a renéwable gas supplier e.g biogas

Electric vemicle chargers mstallation an UK sites and vehicte afer
1o employees.

LED light instaliztons la further reduce the uliisalion of
electricity

Investigate solar panelinstallation at Huntingdan location
lo generate a proportien ol electricily ourseives

Achieved  Work angoing

Progress in 2021

See Carbon offset Based on our carbon lootprinl reported in
2020 this makes Xaar a carbon neutral nkjet manufaclurer
Carbon oltset to continue in 2022 with an investigation 1o
entify the inclusion of Scope 3 emissions for future offset

Work ongoing - as part of TOFD requirements to dentty
Science Based Targets

Work ongaing - 1o address with tier 1 suppuiers Initel Scope 3
emissians bor travelsn 2021 Wentiied lor offseln 2622,

Idenlified as parl of Sustainable Roadmap activilies by
committes actions to take place as parl ol sustainable product
development and circular econamy - actions to bie defined

See Waste UK operations certihed zero waste to landhill by
Veolia, with non-recycled waste being sent to wasle to energy
recavery

Work angaing - Limited pxpesure with gas a5 a heat source
but working with landlord to wentfy and replace with electric
alterpative

Project scope finalised lor nslallation in 2022 21 KO &
Huntingdon offices Electric vehicle oplions being offered io
employees

Indwidual projects by localion to replace ighling with _.,ma
alternatives New H( comprises LED lights only

Actwities on solar continue with landlerd discussion around
instaliation with a contractual supply of energy to Xaar These
discussions are not complele so we do not expect any solar
installation in 2022

The ongoing styect ves will be incorporated mto the £5G roadmap lor delivery in 2022/23

w& x-unvx-ESS;-__-_._S._r;_:.nv-,.m_-..aa.s.nan_
Stealegic Report



Sustainability Roadmap

We all need to play our part to reach our goals

2030

Cartior
Instigale tang-term msettng aptons for Xaar {i vable!

2030 et zero [Group Scope 1,2 831

2028
Launch printhead with bhiadegradable structural parts.
Carbon
Launch Xaar Take Back Scheme where feasible
2026
Reduce waste 1n ALL manutacturing operations by 10% S0% reduction in Lozt Time Acaident Frequency Rate®
[separate goal for each BUI*
Taskiorre to estabiish path to manufacture 100% recytlable prnthead Estahtish supply hubs in Eurgpe lor Far Eastern suppbers with
@ call gff from there, ini Ireighd for
oo 2024
Water
Derive Sustainzbility  Drive reduction o Deliver awaraness- Achieve 2erc i Focus aConlinuous  Creata palley
Reeviews for ALL " Maing waler use, raising campalgn Landfill for all Xaar improvement for donating
minimising waste, to educate all Group sites. team on cosis af al{ electranic
driving reusa /recycle  employees about and systainable equipment that
ant reparr leakage® our suppori policies Improvements on cannot ke
Genurate mdustry new and established  re-deployed
‘product, across all defactogtandard for  products within the business
Xaar Group SUStainable Hroducts
Comglete reviow Establish Xaar Suppori STEM Establish local Generate charity Carbon affsel alt stafl
of product and sub- Apprentice / Craduate  ectivties with pur ‘Wellbeing Committee  policy for all business  travel
<compenent trarspart  /Work Experience toeal communities atall Xaar Grogpsites  divisions
programmes
R Covert ALL elecincity implement Supplier  Appoint deparimental
contracts la green Sustanahility Policy Charity Champlons.
energy where with tzrgets, Xzario
avaiatile match tunds roised
2022
Team 100% Carbon 100%
Establish ESG Gevernance Convertall Group Manutactunng Maintain low turnover rate
structure and forn site Electrit ity contvacts versus stondard rates
a Sustamability b arm 1o Green Energy
Carben 10% Carben 100%
Gngaing carbon cifset to achieve et zern Canvert Huntingdon plant eteciricity CoRtracts t green enangy
2020
* Group largels vs 201¢ busekne will Ui canfirrned by eno ol 2022
Our Sustairability Pillars
Environment People Innovation Community
Leading 1he wayir anemployer of noice by pulting  Encourazing more sustainadle Actively engaging with aur
emvironmental sustainabilily our peaple, their potential appraaches to design, cammunitigs to provide
for the industrial inkjet and wellneing at the heart manufacture, technology and practical, Lasting support
technology sector: of alk we do collaboranon acinss the whole that benelits sociaty.

product Wecycle.

Naar pts
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)}

tn meeting the requirements of Listing Rule %.8.6 R, the Board has con¢luded that:

* We comply with recommended disclosures - Governance, Risk Management
+ We partially comply with recommended disclosures - Strategy (B5), Metrics (D10)

* We do hot comply with recommended disclosures - nfa

Disclosures Recommended disclosures
A. GOYERNANCE
Disclose the organisation’s 1 Describe the board's oversight
governance around of cimate-relaled risks and
climate-related risks and opportunitias.
opportunities.

2. Describe management's role in

assessing and managing chimale-
related nsks and apportuniies

B. STRATEGY

Distlose the actual and 3. Describe Ihe climate-related risks
potential impacts of ond opportumities the organisation
climate-relaled risks has identified over the short, medum,
and opportunities or the and long lerm

organisation’s businesses,
strategy, and financial
planning where such
information is material.

w m x.._.x....;._u_a.!.z.._._w_..._.%_nssa:.nnou
Sirategue Report

Response

The Xaar plc Board reviews key climate-relaled risks and
cpportunities and overseas Mitigatien sirategies as part
of the bi-annual review at principal and emerging risks

Alison Littley, Seniar Independent Director, has specilic
responsibility for ESG malters, including climate change
and sustainabiity.

Execulve management recewves reports from an ESG Commitiee
whose members consist of sentor managers across the Group

The ESG Commitiee meets on a guarterty basis to assess
the opportunities and proposals developad by
the Sustainability Working Group

The Sustanability Werking Group meets regularty and 1s
developing a roadmap whilst also recewing informabion from
both the Carbon Net Zern tesm and Energy EHiciency team

See governance siriycture on page 2%

Shart term [2021-2025): We da not anticipate any
significanl physical risk changes over the short term.
Implementation of transitionary regulatary controls le
carbon pricingl cauld potentially commence, and could
aflect raw material pricing, that would need to be passed
onto customers,

Medium term |2025-2035): Miligating the physical
impadi of climate change is critical because we depend
on raw materials sourced from countries that are
particutarly vulnerable o rising seas and temperatures.
from changing weather patterns. We have performed
high-level assessments on our business in respect of
2°C and 4°C global warming scenarias which show
that without action, hoth scenarios represent increased
financial risks oy 2030, with increased risk of property
damage and business disruption from e.qg. floading.
Under the 2°C scenario, trensition risks and mitigation
actions lead to carbon pricing being introduced in

ey countries and hence there are increases in both
manufactyring costs and the costs of raw malerials e.g.
plastics and the metals used in products. Change in
customer expactations as more companies commilted
to becoming net zero and set Science Based Targels,
assessing the supply chain and Scope 3 emissions.

Longer term {2035-2050): Under the 4°C scenario. there
are liely to be sigmficant risks arising from failure to
transition. leading to signilicant increase in physical and
adaptation risks. With significantly hotter summers [+4°C
to +7.6°C), leading to increased flocding and sterm losses
and an expactation af significant uninsurable losses
affecting financial markets and giobatl ecanemic growth.




Disclosures

B. STRATEGY continued

C. RISK MANAGEMENT

Disclose how the
organisation identifies,
a55e55€5, and Manages
chimate-retated risks,

Recommended disclosures

-

b

-

o

Describe the impact of climaie-
related risks and epportunit.es on Lhe
organisauon’s businesses, strategy.
and hnantial planning

Describe the resilience af the
arganisation s steategy, taking e
conssderalion different cimate-related
scemaries, ngluding a 2°C or lower
scenario

Oescribe the organisation’s nrocesses
for wenfifying ond assessing clhimate-
related risks

Describe the 0ganiSation § processes
for managing climate- related risks

Describe how precesses for identilying,
5%€5510G, and Managing climate-
related risks ane integrated inta the
organisation's overall fisk management

Rasponse

fn managing these firancrat climale-relaled nsks our
business madel would not require matenal change,
except for sncreasing nventory levels of compenents to
accaunt lor fransport delays anising fram exceplional
weather evenls, and to consider ritigation for potentizt
business gisruption, € §. flood delences

Opportufities exist in the transttion to a low tarbon
manulacturar, by reduong bolh energy usage and
utilising renewable energy sources 10 delwver lower Costs.
10 the business Product development will Incorparale
sustainability as a central objective, 10 transition
manuiacturing from 2 linear to a circular process

and 1o bemg a process fo reduce. re-use and recycle
matenals all to be undertaken 35 part of Xaar's overail
Sustainabslity Roadmap

See Risk Managemant on page 45

We have undertaken a high level review of the likely
smpact of 2°C and 4*C globat warming scenaros [see
abovel as outlined by the IPCC report issued 1n 2021

As part of the suslanability strategy to delwer Saience
Based Targets 10 achieve 1.5°C, an independent external
climate related scenario review will be researched

1n 2022 te identify physical and transdion risks and
apportunities i delivering carbon nevtral manefactunng
lead:ng to "Net Zere by 2030°

The Group has processes in place for identifying,
evalualing and managing the principal rsks, which ceutd
have an irnpact upon the Graup's financial peHormance.
Chmate change has been disclosed as an emerging risk
n recent years. and ras been escalaled to a principal risk
talegory n 2621

The Board has considered the potential impacy of

requiaiery change thal could orcur in the short to
medium term.

Ser Risk Management on pages 45 and 4%

See above - A Governance - Xaar has introduced a new
shiucture todentily climate-related rizks (o be reported
fe the Board bi-annually including making deisions ta
mitigate, transfer. accept, or cantrol those risks.

As part of the Group’s risk management, within Lhe
detailed nisk register, climate-related risks are determined
alongside other principal nisk areas eg manutactunng
facility, inventory and supply chain nisks. The assessment
15 quantified via a Likelihood / Magniude matrx to
determine the overall net nisk after mitgation

plg - Annua| Report and Finsnclat Statements 2034 wnw
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Disclosures
D. METRICS & TARGETS

Disclose the melrics ang
targets used to assess.
and manage relevant
climate-rotated cisks and
oppartunities where such
information is material,

Sarategic Report

Recommended disclosures

L

Disclose the metrics used by ine
organisation o assess chmate-related
risks and gpporturshies in (ine wilh

As sirategy and nsk management
process

10 Drsclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, il

appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse gas
IGHG) emissions. and the related risks

11, Uescribe the targels used by the

organisation ta manage clmale-
related nsks and appartunies and
performance aganst 1argets

rtand Finantlal Statements 2021

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Bisclosures [TCFD) continued

Response

Initial metrics as outlned 10 2020

« Investigate metrics and largets to be defined as part
of Sienee Based Targel initiatwe

« Continuing improvernent £ requction in Scope 1 & 2
emissions along with intensily measurement

* Scope T & 2 ermissions tg be oifse! 1 become
carbon neutral’

» Scope 3 ernissions recogmtion

Inilial targets as outlined in 2020

» Set, measure and disclose a zero waste to landhill
target, any waste not recycled being sent 1a a waste
ta energy recovery process

+ Generation ot a Sustanability Readmap

See page 37 for Susiginability Readmap

GHEG emissions are disclosed as ger the SECR
requirements for Scope 1 and Scope 2

An imtial assessment has commenced far Scope 3
emissions, and a boundary developed

We have recognised Stape 3 eMissions ansing from
emplayee travel and commuting, the diffculty remaihs in
delerrmiing the Supply and qualily of data wia upstream
and downstream value chain langomgl

See GHG/SECR

closura on page &1

Xar has cammidted shact-term 1argels

« To achieve a nel 22ro targed by 2030
« 100% renawable Igreen) elecirncity at UK fagilities
» Zerg waste to landhll
~ Difset cf all Scope 1 & 2 Group emissions as
we canlinue ta drive reduchons in energy bse

See page 34 for progress summary



Greenhouse gas emissions statement

%aar ple has calewlated its global greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
statement using an operational control consolidation approach.

Scope 1 emissions

Scope T ernissions occur fram sources that
are owned or where Xaar plc has operatianal
control. This includes direct ecmssions

Irom gas comb sstion in our buildings and
fuel used in leased Company vehicles,
Actval and estimated gas consumplion

data has been collected from each of the
leased properties under the control of the
Xaar Group, trom data sources including
direct meter readings, meter readings

fram suppliers included an invoices

ns where reguired based

en available infermatian from property
management s.ppliers and nther saurces.
Actyal mileage dala has been collected from
the leased Company vehicle lleet.

Assessment parameters
Baseline year

Cansolidaled approach
Boundary summary Al

Caonsistency wilh the
financial statements

Matariality threshald
Assessmenl methodulogy

Intensity ratio

Scope 2 emissions

Scope 2 refers to indirect emissions fram
the consumption of purchased electricity
lalso including any purchased heat, steam
or coolingl Irom facitities owned or uader
the operalional centrol of Xazr plc. Aclual
and estimated data has been collected from
each of the leased praperties under the
control of the Xaar Group, from data sources
including direct meter readinys, meter
readings frorm suppliers included on invoices
and estimations where reguirzd based

on available infermation from. progerty
management suppliers and o her sources.

1 Janvary 2013 te 3} Decemuer 2013

Operatonal control

Materialidy has been set al Group level a1 5%
Greenhouse Gas Protecal and 150 14064 -1 |20C4)

Ermssions per £ 000 turnover exc royalhies [2021 €58 9 millionk

" Thalotal ol amy exciuded PSS SOUrCES 1S wslialed 10 DE 1655 (han 5% 0l Xadr ple 5 10lal réponer @mussicns

Greenhouse gas emissions

Scope 3 amissions

Scope 3 emissians are all indirect emissions
- ot included in Scope 2 - that occur in
the value chain of the reporting company,
including both upstream and downstream
emissions. Scope 3 CO, emissians currently
represent estimated CO, emissions from
travel and estimates from emptoyee
commuting. As the Group's sustainability
programmes. develop we will caphure

more of our Scope 3 emissions and aim to
collshorate with the supply chain to reduce
them and will disclose progress in our
Annual Repert, Please refer to page 30 for
actions that Xaar is undertaking to offset its
carbon emissions,

es and 3ll faziities unaer uperational control included subject to the malenalty threshold applied

The only variaban 1s that leased propertses dee med 1o be under gperational control have been included
n Scepe 1 and 2 emissiens

2024 202t
Renewshle” Non-conewsbis Totsl Renewable  Won.renewabie Toual
Glabat energy use KWh 10,810,065 752,331 11,342,400 2.351.508 7764206 10,115,714
% R1.4% 8.6% 232% 16.7%
Uk Ki¥h 10,205,768 472855 10,878,820 2.351.508 7.313,782 9.667 290
Non-UK KWh 404,303 279,477 483,780 - 448,424 448424
Absolute values
Scope | 100 - ki kL] - ] %
Scope Z tC0e - 1 e - 1743 1,741
Scope 3 tChe - 15€ 150 - s 341
Total 100 - 364 kLT3 - 1m 2177
- Scope 1 & 2ermissions of wich UK (CO,e - 194 198 - 1,704 1,706
Normalised values
Seope 1 ﬁomm\m,:gc - 145 145 - 157 157
Seope 2 tea, JE'000 - 198 198 - 3.435 3.655
Scope 3 tC0e/E'000 - 254 154 - 418 518
Total tC0efE 000 - 517 817 - £.430 4.430
* UK energy eriilied by EON. in 1he foem of Guaraniees of Origin Iram renswable wind sourtes US emergy IGreen Mouniainl 100% carbon fre 48% renewable |balance being ruclese)

Histaric greenhouse gas emissions

20k 018

2037 a0 ms 014

Global energy use KWh
Seope 1 - 1C0,e
Scope 2 - 10,8

10573.689 11270047 11506598 12474406 14,187.311 14058436

1083 124 B
26228 31281 4

1437 1670 162.2 120

,088.0 4410 44752 6.2630

Total - (Cle

27211 32529 4

,235.7 4.599.0 46374 64250
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Key performance indicators

Our progress in numbers

We monitor progress against
the delivery of our strategic goals
using financial key performance
indicators ('KPIs'}.

The Company uses a number of alternative
performance measures [ APMs')in addition
to those reported in accordance with 1FRS.
The Directors believe that these APMs,
shown, are important when assessing

the underlying financial and operating
performance of the Graup and its divisions,
praviding management with key insights
and metrics in support of tha ongoing
management of the Greup's perfarmance
and cash flow. A number of these align
with KPls and other key metrics used in
the business and therefore are considered
useful 1o also diselose to the users of the
finaneial staternents.

The following APMs do not have
standardised meaning prescrined by
IFRS and therefore may not be directly
camparable with similar measures
presented by other companias.

See nole & of the Group“s Consolidated
Financial $tatements, for reconcilialion
between adjirsted and statutery items
on page 130 -

201 figures and 2020 comparative figures
are based an coantinuing aperations lwhere
relevant], and are subject to rounding.

Revenue

Statutory

£59.3m

Continuing operations

Total revenue for the Group was £92.3 million. anincrease of £11 2 rnidlion
year-on-year (2020 £48.0 millien). Revenue increased 23% year-on-year

Revenus by sector £m

Industrial

o1 €40.6m
2020 £20.%m

Packaging

021 £11.9m
2020 £12.4m

Industrial sector growthincorporates
the acquisition of FFE) (£5.3 millian),
combined with Ceramics and Glass
segment increasing throughaul the year
with full year revenue up 38%.

Revenua by region £m

EMEA

2021 £23.7m
2020 £18.9m

Asia

2024 £120m
2020 {9ém

Americas
2021 £23.8m
2020 €20.3m

N— N Xaar plc - Annusi Repart and Financisl Statements 2021
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Graphic Arts

202t £4.2m
2020 £6.3m
Royalties

20 £0.4m
2020 £0.4m

Royalties from the single remaining
icensee declined and will continue to
decline in both 2021/22 before ceasing
Rovyatiies in 2021 include a one off service
fee payable by Stratasys.

The increase of revenue in Americas is
orimarily due to the sales turnaround in
the EPS business, Performance in Asia,
and Chingin particular, was successful
with growth of £2.4 million in Printheads
driven by re-engagement of Chinese
Ceramic customers who began to adapt
1he Xaar 2001 and have now transitioned
1o the newly launched Xaar 2002 for their
new printer builds. EMEA was slightly
higher, and we have seen a promising
upward trend.




Profit

Statutory

Gress margin - Contipuing
operations

2021 W%
2020 %

£1.0m

Profit {Loss| betere tax £m
- Cantinuing operalipns

2041 £140m
2020 1£4.3m]

20.9p

Basic earnings per share [Total)

2021 20.9p
2020 15.2p)

Net cash

Statutory

£25.1m

Cagh & treasury deposits £m

2021 £25.1m
02 £18.1m

£5.2m

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents £m

21 fh52m
2020 1€4.7m)

The increase in the gross
profit for the Graup can be
attributed ta the performance
of the Pnnthead business
This was driven by the
operationsl leverage m Ihe
busmess with mcreased
product throughpu! absorbing
greater costs in 2021

{2020- 27%!

Protu before tax represents
opefating prafit after investiment
income and finance costs (2020
€4 3 rillian lossl, and before the
gan anising on sale of Xaar 30

The calcutavon of hasic EPS 15
based on the weighted average
numger oF grdinary shares
quistanding during the penod.
12020- 15 29 lossY see Financial
Stalements - note 14 for
further information.

Cash and cash equivaleats
comprise cash at bank of £25.1
ullion 2020 17 9 sullion)

and short-term highly Louid
Investments with an ariginal
maluriy of three monlhs e
less. Net cashincl treasury
deposits of ENil (2020, €02
llion!

Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents was €52
roullion following a reduction in
cash consumed by operaling
actvilies and after adjusing
for cash movernents 1 bath
nvesting and financing
activities duning the year

12020 (€4 7Y mittian)

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs]

£3.2m

Adjusted EBITDA
- Continuing operations

an €3.2m
2020 £0.1m

(£0.6m])

Adjusted Loss before tax £m
—Continuing operatians

021 1€¢.6m)
2920 (€3 9m}

(1.0p)

Adiusted basic earnings f {loss|

Adjusted EBITOA is defined a5
operating prolit before separaiely
reported tems 1Lis one of the
Group s KPIs and s used 1o
assess the frading peffarmance
of Group businesees 1t s also
used as one of the tangets
against which [he annual
bonuses of certain employees
are measured.

Adgusted loss befare 1ax

from conlinuing operations
represents the oss before

tax adjusted or recurring

and nen-recurring téms.
Reconcivation ot adjusted
financial meagures s provided
wn nate & lpage 130112020. loss
£3.9 mulbon)

Earnings per share adjusted
for the impacts of adjysting
items pnd share-based
payment expense This
measures the growth and

per share - O g op pr y of the Group
2021 .op operations
2020 5.2p)

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

£5.7m

Gross RED investment £m

62t £5.7m
2020 €4.5m

(€£2.3m)

Cash putflow from continuing
operations €m

an (£2.3m]
2028 £7.1m

Gross R&D nvestment
Leontinuing aperations)
reflects the investment in

the kmagneX platform 1£5 7
million) 2020 nvestment
excludes amorbisation of Xaar
30 development costs and
imparment of Than Film (2020
restated. £4.5 milbon)

Net cash outfiow lincl treasury
deposils] trom continuing
operations was £2.3 million

as & consequente ol incrpases
In working capital and nel
cash used for investing
actvihes before procaeds
from the dispasal of Xaar 30
{2020 £7.1 million)

Xpar ple ~ Annusl Rapert and Finencitt Statements 2021
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Risk management

Managing our risks

Key risk areas

The risks arcund our business are sét cut in more detait
on pages 47 to §5, but the Key risk areas can be identitied
as being associated with the following:

Market

1. Competition
Monitoring and adjusting
to compelitive dynamics
such as pricing/promotion,
nnovation, resource
investrnents and market
share changes

Operational

&, Climate change

fdentfying risks and
scenanio planning of physical
and transtion impact upon
operations and developing
mitigating actians
Organisational capability
Hawag the nght peaple in
the night roles

=

T

12.1T systems and
cohlrol #nvironmant
Strengthen [T inlrastruclure
and key T sysiems
Enhance and bulld
resilience by Investing in
and waplementing new T
infrastruciure or [T systems

Financial

1£. Ability to access
sufficient capital
Ality to access sullicient

Rrsk awner CEQ John Mills

2. identilicatian of market
requirements
Successfully developing
products with the
charactenstics that meet
market requirements within
the necessary timescale

Risk awner. CED John Mills

B. Corohavirus {'CGVID-1%
and variants) -
Internal / Company
Tracking the potential Local
wnpact and response ta
pandernic and ogerational
wternal risks on employees
or arganisation

Risk owner CFQlan Ty

14. [T transformatian
Delays o aur 1T
1ranzformation objectives
due to poor priontisation,
ineffective change management
and 4 failure to understand
ard delier the IT inlrasiruciure,
IT systems, and business
pracess changes required

Risk owner, CFO lan Tichias

17.Customer credit axposurs
Oftering credit terms
ensuring recoverabinly 1s

capital tolund grawth reasonably assured.
opportunies.
.» Nﬁ Xaar pic - Annual Regart and Finsncizt Statemants 2021
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3. Commercialising and
maintaining products with
cutting edge technology
Creating value by generating
Innovative progucts that
delwer significant custorner
benefit,

4. Marger and dcquisition
opportunities
Seek appartuptnies {1y
expant, create synergies
and generate greater
shareholder vatue

9. Braxit
Tracking & adjustng to
the impact of the Trade &
Co-operation agreement
between UK & EU

10. Manufacturing facitity
Oplumising mix of products,
locatrons and manufacturing
partners to drive
pertormance and mimmise
Bperational issues

as & Group )T Qirectar Graeme Smith

15.Cyber securlty risk
Loss ol systems or
confidential data due to
a mabicious cyber-attack.
{eadmy to disruption to
business operations and
loss of data

13, Inventory

5. Coronavirus {'COYID-1¥
and variants) - External
Tracking ana adjusting o
the potential global impact
and external fisks arising
Irom pandemic response
and impat! on customers /
=upply chain

11. Partnerships and alliances
Working with the nght
companies, at the right Lime
an the right terms to delwer
long -term value

12, Supply chain
Optimising sayreing and
supply cham relatanships
1o drve periarmance aad
minmise operational 1ssues

1%, Exchi rates

Holding excess inveniory
levels when comparad

ta demand, that leads

to increased risk of
obsolescence and write-ofi
before cansumptan

Monitoning global aconomic
evenls gnd ouligaling any
resulting significant
exchange rate \mpacls



Risk rnanagement

Effective risk m? nagament is

ey to our SUCCeSS againstthe
dynarmics of the industry thatwe
operatein and the characleristics
of pur chosen business model.

Background

Qeraiithe printing indwstry 15 gecliing inierm®
ohwtat DUt ’s an:ma.a. Bu.:wzsm:wzm,._w
Sl to react tochange and is resistant te the
adoption of new +achnology Analogué printing
procesges BN dectining pidty vuén:ﬁ% i

g and digiat printing processes 8
pacoring MO widesgread. In areds such

as Pagkagng and Tevtles, whee analague
prucesses are still dorninant. the catwersian 12
digiat a%%caﬂ.ﬁmﬁlﬁu;

The dighal printing market in which we
aperale cantues Lo grove with the macket
gxpected 10 grow from USD $24.8 billin in
2023 o usn $30.3 b son in 2026, 982 CAGR
of 5. 7%, GTowing dermend for susiamaohe
prnting and developments in @mnrmam:m
‘and textila indust fes are key factars drving
(e grawth ol (e digital printing roarkats.
[Source: WA markatsandsnarkels caml

The firsl approach 12 nanaging these TiSHS
is 10 have tugh quality leaders and tearms
within The business fynctins thal proaciively
movitar 2ad adjust 1q risks that coutd mgact
afectiveness. Ciber axamiples of the effecive
day-te-tey management o (hese rishs
inctude operaling rrul-funclional eams 10
chare knawledge zcross the pusiness. having
reqular slagé gates inthe managemedtal
development uSmﬂqu:mm.m:n the regular
assesament of ranislerturing capatity
against lulwie potential needs.

In addition to day- -4y Processes e
Growg s wisk regisier 'S Tormally reviewed

ot senior management and Board level.
sctuding e atsessment of the performante
gl risk managernent during he prececing
period. The Board will continue to develop
Ihe macagament tramewark acss these
speniic rysks g0 that L aperates eltectuely
alongside the charging oaws_mn:u:m_
syrutiafe, onD witl inform an aasessment of
e Group's princieat Trsks tnrovghout W

Climate thange

Dusing 2021, the emiar managennent and
Brard re-paiuated Ve existing principal neks.
and approved the accalation of climate ¢hange
from an emerging 19 2 prncipal risk. Tne
Baard considecs that clinate change has the
patentialta alfech gur Business i various ways
‘and whilg these may not be severe inthe shorl
yerrn, we DEbEve cirmate Q,azmm._m_m»mn TisKS
areVikety 1o have medwm and long-erm
anpact onaul husiness.

gnmhatending the spportundias and theeats
limate change presents. the Directors have
assessed hal currenily ciimate risks present
no potential malerizl adverse impact tethe
fingneial perfarmance ar pasian of the Group.

0 W21 we vl condch 2 forroal assessREnt
of cimate-related seenarios 17 \dentify risks
and opporturities and the potenlial impact of
Toth ghysical ard trangition fsks o0 the Group's
apefations, rategy and financial panning.

Supphy chain

Inthe pastyean xaar has navgated the
rovi0-retated supply <haic daruglions

fairly well. However, {hefe continue lo be
significant @653;%6 chair risks that
Coutd warsen due LD ard warianis,

tight |ebour markes, _,3_833:3" nwuwﬁz
and uBm::up nfatnienary dynarmics. B new

separate principal rigk has basn igeatlied

Emerging risks

The Boart prriotically eviews emETRINg
risks, to consider anth evaluat he porentiat
impact of :miw.aﬁ:_._xma rigks against current
u:ocvw_ ficks, and manitac denelaping iSSES:
A repart ia 44 2623 from Bastier highlighted
the Top 5 emengng risks, and these were
apped againgt ATy prineicat sk,

The Directors views on each ol he shove and
on BO0erginG righsin gerieral were integrated
intothe managerrent dncussions and atuans

being taken o wxisling principa risks

Cyber seuuTity

Cyber risks cqntinue to ie d sirnificant area
of focus for the Group fotlowin the cyber
erurity incident i October 2070, OQuring
20 we congucted Turne? work untier e
IT translormation progeam io s rengthen
our T secUrity. focused oh M rigating rigks
e aperational \echnolagy in response ta
Ihe chenging GYRRTHES ard extarnelcybe’
threats of new 13 nspMWare madets. Work
on TREIMENNY and, where appropriate,
\mproving the integrity of our system
securily femains At arga of lacus.

Emerging risks

1. New qﬂ?mﬂ:iﬁ-.ﬂ motels

2 Post-pandemic talen¥

3, Endentic COoVID-1T and va¥ ants

¢ Supply tham distuptions

5 Hytwid wotktorce gisparities

Xaot phe ~

Internal controls

|n campliance with provisian 28 of the 2048
UK Corparate Governance Cade. the Board
vequtacf ceviews the elfectiveness ot the
Group's Syatem of interrval coniroh

The Boany s manitenng covers all cantrals.
ncluding financial, aperatisnal and
compliance controls, risk _‘_._u:mnm:_m:n
syslems ant internal comiToh Sysiemns. v
i baset princCipally 00 reviewing repoits
Fram management L cansider whether
significant nisks are igentified. evalvated,
anaged ard cantraiies wd wiheihel
any significant pEknEoSES ATE promptly
remedied and indicate a need for mare
eRgnSIE Monnonng:

Follgwing 1he identification of internal
copkeol wedkness in EPS during 2320,

o BGiibi plan was initiated in 2021 to
\dentity 2nd strengthen the intarnal

and management controls. Headcoun
rastoycturind and nan-cash mnfm.,.:naﬁ
celating Lo slow cnaving and obsotete
inventony were recogrised in 7071, Exerndl
2CViBOTS WETE engaged 1o support the newy
appointed senior management team of EPS
in remediation of the gaps ident ed and
establist @ praper carical ensiranment. "
addition, tee exiernal advisers #lsS pssisted
rmanagement in gevelopment and exaculion
of audit readiness \o suppart the year and

preparztion of accuratg fnanciat stgtements

and supperling documentation.

The Board has atse pertormed 2 spetilic
assessmen for the purpose af this Annual
Repert. This assessment consifers ait

significant aspacts et \aternel cantral 3rENg

during the peciod caverad by the repert.
The Audit Commitiee assists the Board in
disghprying its reasw responsibilities.

principat risk response

A4, IF cyber Tishs - rerngite wor king securly
ks

7. Qrganisation capability - recentian &
crerutanett

4. Intermal COVID- 19 risks & 5. External
cOvID-19 risks - further varants

5, External COWD-19 risks ¥ 12. Supply chaim

7. Organisation cupabitity - engagement,
develnproent & conduct

horrasst Report anv Fnamria SARRMRINS o Nr m
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Risk management continued

Compliance

The Board has apptied princigle 0 at the
%018 UK Corporale Governance Code by

astablishing @ corkinuaus proces
g, &nd managing he

5 which has

idenbiying. evaluatin
sig

ficant risks the Groug face:

Approach 10 risks

The first approach o managing
5 for these fisks s to have nigh
yoality teaders and 1eams
within the business functions

ympact raving
Thie imnpach of
tarms of human 5

an incident am bE measured in
\lfering, damage to aysels,
imerruplion1o oum_.mﬂ.a:m or business, eftect
on custamers, impact ae aﬂz_m..,aluaaa
acizl loss, The catculavion of the

n_vm_.man throughout the qmmam:a uglo : N impact rating should be taken 25 he worst
the date Al s report. The intacnzl contsol Mﬂmwwnﬂwwﬁ_u—“ﬂuﬂ Ms.wnh. a_man respect of tnese ategories.
and nisk ranagement sysiem \s designed ‘ L " cou The fipancial element ot the bmpact rating
1o manage rather than eliminate the nsk impact effectiveness. is the amaunt of monef that s AL rigK
ot gilyre 1o acnieve business objectves .. o ry e I
and can only provide ceasonable and aat Probability Tating Thig "at risk’ means inatitrs giher revenue
absaluts aeairance Sith respect ta the The probabiicy cating is the Litibuoed at risk, or the cost of rebuilding @ system-
preparation of financial lormation 8nd of an event occurring pased an previous or repiagetnent costof hargware. This must
Ihe sateguarding of assEs againsk materish axperiences, historicat infgrmation an be token in e cankext hat (e ace limited
erissstement oF iy 1 wilh TeEpett 10 ..wnmf.‘mé nma”u.—_..cmw and :wa‘ revanue at

] T , the inci ritary or industry. rigk is not a daily amnount, but the amount
This alse complies witth FRC quidance a0 Prabatility can be su wnn_._mzm and is not of revenue that would be 1pst uniit the

iSeptember 201 6.

Type of risk
Markel Fisk

Frnanciak TSk

Certan

Likely

Probatie

Probability

Unliely

ARematg

‘ery \ow

rigk management. internal contral aed

related finantial and business reparting

y rating, T

an exact ecianze. The prabatility afan
{ncident agouFring can e estirnate o Qe 3

his gives ar overa view

o the TiSK EXPOSUTE tacet by the Dusiness.

fperatonal righ Increase

17 risk Cegrease

Law

b& Raar pic = annutl Report ant m..:-...,.-ﬁ_._.-a.!ﬁ F 1]
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13
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proCess, $YSiem Hr business function
can be relnstated.
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Risk and link
to husiness unit

Market

1. Competition

2. Failure to
entity market
reguirements

3. Commercialising
and maintaining
products with
culting edge
lechnology

impact

We compete on the basis of cur
technolagy, innovation, price, quatily,
rebabilily brand repulation and
custormer relabonships

Failure to continually mprove in
these areas may fmean |hat we [osc
markel share or have to reduce prices
Since there are hixed lactony coss,
reductions in sales volymes may
substantially lower piofit margang

We are ihe only true independent
printhead company in the wond and
we are Competing with vertically
integrated large Scale Mulunational
COMpanies.

Products need o meet Ihe changing
demands gl the arket, including
regulatory changes

Failure 10 meel futune market
requirements/spesihcatans could
impact on long-term revanue and pratit

We aim ta produce quality end
produc!s Failure to meet the required
quality standargs coutd have an wmpsct
on products that have been sold or
that are held in wnventory

This could tead to

Unerpected costs assnciated with
resolving the 1ssues

Possible warranty costs cusiomer
compensation or write- down in
rveniony values

Potentially longer term revenue
inss If custamiers mave ta
competitors and damage

Lo reputalion

We eperate in an ncreasingly dynamic
and ¢changing environment To counter
the risks associates with this ang.
most Importantly, 1o explait the
opporluraties it presants, we myst
emprace innovation, rotect owr
Intellectual Property and capitalise on
technofogy advancements to ensure
WE grow our Markel possdion

Key of changa
Increase
Ne change
Decrease
NEW

Likelinood
Magnitude
Mitigation Change

Competitive pricing policies are employed and produc) Probable
partfolios and pricing are constantly monitored The Very high
re-alig of our go-t ket capabilties aliows us

ta fogus More an our custamers and (a delver requested

progucts inta the OEM marketplace

Froductiaa efficiency :rplovement programmes are
established to ensyre that cosl Dases reMmain CoMpetitive
within the markatpiace

Regular commumcanon and sharing of informalion
with customers and partners te enhance peer-to-peer’
relationships #arhet reparts and other relable sources
are rewiewed le impreve dermand forecasiing

Continged investmenl 1n iNnouatwe fechnical solutans far
develop of new 15 from existing
and launch new technologies

Reqular. spealic and detailed reviews are held o assess Likely
current 3nd anticpated markel requirements. Inciuding Yery high
expected regulatory changes

These reviews include regylar customner wisits between
senior executives, technical experts and RA0 team
members 1o develop 3 culture of Innovation thal facuses.
&n delivering techmicat soletions o onginal equipment
ma { BEMs] ceq

Pruduct developments aré selecled on approphiate criterta
Product development activty 1s properly managed with
reqular remews of progress against project plans, and
gated milesione reviews We have 2 ngorous product
Ufecycle management progess which ensyres

we deliver aganst pur custpmers’ requirgments.

Tha quality of supglies i constantly monitored Guality Prabable
peHormange 15 regulsrly reviewed by seniar management High
whg apply appropriale resources to systematically address

recurrent problems, New products are thoroughly lesteo

bekgre launch

Xaar s manufactuning ‘acilities are 150 9001 aceredited
Customer re(ums are resewed guchly using a (orsisient
aNnd herough Iveshigalion process

Warranly tosts, RMA and customer return costs are
reviewed and compared against forecast to bughlight
unexpecied costs, and wdentify roat cause for corrective
achon, We will continue 10 Ipcus en preduct iInnovation

This 1s evidenced by our Conbinued tocus on R&D spend and
the number of new products braught & markel

Xaat plt - Annual ReRort and Financeat Statements 2021 4 ﬂ
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Risk management continued

Risk and link
1o bysiness unit  Impact

Market
&. Merger and Our strateqy s predicated primanly on
acquisition arganic Gronvih

appartunities Fallure to realise the expectad betiefits

of an acquistion or post acguisition
perlarmance of the acouwred business
nol meeting the expected financiat
perormante at the time acqursibon
terms were agreed could adversely
attect the sirategic developrient (uture
financial results and prospects.

of the Group

Diwestrmients alsa carcy risk We may
sell an assét at the wrong ime. or may
not realise appropriate value lor the
asset. Separation may be Complex
and, if paorly execuled, may impact
fhe wider business

5. Coronavirus in the uncertan environment of a global

COVID-1%] - pandemc, the impact gf COVID-IS ran

External be felt within the entire customer basa
and supply chan

We operale in a glabal enviranenent with
sigrilicant exposure 35 part of the new
business model Lo DEM custemers in
Chuna, Eurppe and USA

Any slowdown in the global econarny
cauld lead 1o delays in capiral
Invesiment for new equipment thay
ufilises Xaar printheads.

Temperary disrupltion to the supply chain
and further warkplace restrclions may
threaten ta slow dawn produchien

r\’m xan_.w_auEs,:_.;.-5!&1.3:35.5.3-:.-S»_
Slyategic Report

Mitigation

d

Full hnancial and other due dilgence 15 condu
to the extent reasonably actuevable in the Context
of gach oppartumty anising brom acquisition or divestment,

Integration risk and planming would be reviewed
and underaken 35 fiart of every acquisition

A detailed business case including farecasts 1 reviewed
by the Board lar each apportunity lar acqwsiiien or
divesiment

Use of externai adwisors

WilsL it 1s difficult lor o company indwidually ta mitgale
aganst a global economic slowdewn, Laking a portigho
approach on nsk lactors engbles Xaar to spread the nisk
hroyghout s custamer base, rather than previously relying
vpon disinbution as a busingss madel

We are carefully monitaring aur own supply chain and are
in regular contact with our suppliers, We hold a sulhcient
buffer stock of criical components and at present we do
nat foresee any supply 1ssues,

Xaar has improved its cuslomer relationshups and remaing
close to its custemers o be able te respand quickly to any
slowelown, the opemng of the China sutsiary will enable
an agile response specilically in this marke!

Qrder books and manwfatlunng processes are closely
aligned with geods manulactured to customer arder

Newly developed pnntheads will enable Xaar to dwersify
1nlo 3 broader customer base and Aew vertical markels

Scenarto planning 2longside stress testing and raverse
stress teshng to demify and develop alternaive sotuniens, s
gudance and requirements change Guring an evohang event

Likelihaod
Magnitude
Change

Certain
High



Risk and link
to business unit

Gperational

4. Climate change

Impact

Climate change is not enly a future
chalienge. The IFCC repert in 2021
was teclaret a “code red lor humanity™.

The IPCC. IEA & COPZ6 have re-enforced
the changes Ihal are required Lo

re-wire the economy te a low carbon
manufzcluring ore - and the climate
impacts that are expecled in a range

of scenarios.

The impact of Climate change can be
specified as.

a) the physical risks that may impact
the assels of 1he business, and cause
business disreption le.g. floodingl.
and extreme weather evenls that may
neqatively impact the supply chain,
the increases in lemperalure that wall
impact human aciivity and the global
supply chain, at an extreme Level this
could negatively impact the global
economy and cause mass emigration
from emerging economies

b1 the transition rsks in managing ihe
shift te 2 low carben econgmy, and
invastment / expenditure to manage
the transition and remain viable -
the potential for reputation damage
chould tha transition be poorly
executed or risk of "greenwashing”
il anneuncements are not supporied
by actions that are measurable

Mitigatian

recommen Jelions, such as those published by the Financial
Stability Board's Tagk Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCED).

The assessaient of the risks associaled with climale change
can also igentify cpportunities that arise to help potemtisl
customers “educe their emissions and increase efficiencies
by using digilal printhead solutions.

Physical risks:

» Major incidenl glans ara in glace with specific provisians
for areas most 2xposed Lo poteniial risks (flood, fires,
hurricanes etcl

s Geagraphic spread of the business limils the impact
to our custormers

a Qur squrcing strategy ta%es Mo actoum risks assotiated
with our key suppliers,

Undertake s<enaric planning acrass twe climate scenarias

le.g RCP2.6, RCP 8.5 to identify recommendations for

key mitigatio” measures and resilience consideration,

including:

+ Flood mocelling

« Full 2ssessment of key climate perils,

Transition risks:

= Develap Sustainability Raadmap 1o delver "Nel Zero
by 2030

= Outline mEtrics and targets in support of reducing
greenhaus? §as emsssions and developing Science
Bused Targets 1o 1.9°C across Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions

Continue reducing carbon use to minmise wmpact, and
1o become 3 low carben manufacturer

Identfy wpand to save” prerects that are cash generative

Cortinue GG mitigation actions 1a maintain a carbon
neutral pesbion

Oevelgp transJarency and credibility «n net zera
commitments with venifalile plans and pragress in hoth
near-term anc medium-term action plans.

Key of change
fncrease
No change
Decrease
NEW

Liketihood
Magnitude
Change

Probable
Very High

NEW

Xaar ple - Annyal Report and Financia! Statemants 2021 N_.O
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Risk management continued

Risk and link
tobusinessunit  Impact

Operational

7. Organisational Qur people remain key Lo aur business.

capability Ensuring the right people are in the right
rolesis critical to our future success and
growth.

Dperstiens in remote Locations or highty

cornpetitive markets make attracting

and relaining skilled employees
challenging.

We need to altract and retain the right ’

talent to enable achievement af our

sirategic aims. Failure to do this nsks
delivery and growth as follows:

+ Lack of staff to meet a specil
business need or contract
requirement

« Loss ot project specidisms

» Single peint of failure

« Loss of key skills.

8. Corenavirus Imgact across all business operalions
['covID-19) and locations;
m_a.omﬂ_»:. Reduction in slaff availability
perations and devetopment of commercial
opportunities.

With the continued uncertainty

associated with the virus it is loo early

to assess the impact on the Group's
financial performance.

1T infrastructure - see 13, IT systems.

m_u Xaar plc - Annusl Report and Financial Statemants 2021
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Mitigation

Qur tocus 15 10 Minimise the veluntary turnover of
employees. threugh better hiring for fit, .mproved induction
procedures and employee engagemnent instiatrves

Launched in 2021, new corporate values (EPICC]-
+ Everything with Passicn

+ Innovative

= Integnty

» Creauve

+ Collaborative

The Group reviews remuneration to ensure Inat the

oppropnale reward packages accompany 2 fulhilling
walk enviranment,

Annual performance managerment reviews for the majordy
of employees Lo dently talent and develop key employees.

tnvestment te build g learning arganisation with focus
on culture, reward and recognition,

An updaled suite of Learning and Developmant tools is
being progressed Lo ensure key skills are developed and
enhanced. Internal courses are developed in conjunction
with the Institute of Learning and Management [ILM] to
support key manager development.

A naw grzduate and apprenticeship prugramme was
laynched in 2021,

Campaigns to increase performance and development
of communication between rmanagers and employees
to enswre alignmenl to Campany abjeclives.

We had stopped 2l international travet and remote access
and business continyity testing has been performed.

As we enter 3 'post-COVID" wawld, intemnational travel will be
evzluated in conjunction with a risk assessment by location.

Employees where possible are working frorm home, and we
have communicated sick and self-guarantine policies
ta all gur siaff.

Employees who work from home have effective digital
collaboration tools 1 enable continued effective
communication with their colleagues, custamers and
suppliers; we raise employee awareness to cyber security
risks and implement additional security measures ralated
1o remote working.

There has been minimalimpact upan the manufacturing
operations in Huntingdon, with work being performed to
new shift patterns to reduce the number cof staff on site
at any one time. COMD sacure working practices have
been introduced across all siles with handwashing, face
coverings and sale working spaces being mandatory

for all emptoyees.

The Group is debt free with sulficient cash reserves and
liquidity to be able to continue aperations "as-is™ in the
short term. The business has a praven track record for
disciplined cost cantrol, which witi continue to be vital
in the current trading enviranment.

In 2021 no elarms for lurlough or job support were
requesiad from the UK Government,



Risk and link
to husiness unit

Operational

9. Brexil

10. Loss of
manufacturing
facility

11. Partnerships
and alliances

impact

The Unned Kingdam's decision 1o leave
the European Umian presents both fishs
and opportundies to the Company

The turmal trade negotiatiens
cancluded at the end of 2020 ana are
now qoverned by the Trate and Co-
operalion agreement reached between
the UK and the Eurgpean Union

Achallenge continues to be free trade
nto the €L Argund one third of pur
revanues are generated rom EU
CouNtrias ang soO any sciual or peremved
barfiers to Iree trade are an obvibus
area of concern

The tree mavernent ef ecnployees and
recruilmens of potental employecs
ara key lorue argag under the naw
drfSnRgarments

‘We remain exposed o currency
fluctuanars st could result from
the United Kingdom 5 decision to
leave the [V

Wie have manulacturing lacilitigs in
the UK and the US, and we rely an our
strategic Partners for key producrs
&nd components

tfour manufacturing sites or our
partniers manufathuning sites were 16
expenience an ncident s could have
operational ang supply Cham Esues
for the pusiness

Cornpanies with whorm we have
aliances in certain areas e
mapylaciunnglresearchl may already
be or may becoma gur competitors in
other areas In addition, companies
with whom we have parinerships may
also atquire of form atliances with our
competiiars, which could reduce ther
busniess with us [1we are unable to
effecvely manage these compicated
relationships with alliance pariners, our
bustvess and results of operations could
be adversely aliected

Mitigation

Key managers a¢ross Ihe busingss are conbinuously
mantonng the latest political developments and patling
mitigaling sthions 1n place where there may be a potenlial
impact an Xagr or ils stakeholders

A review of import and export tanifs dentifred mimmym
elfect on the raw matenials and fimshed goods

Non-taril barriers 11,g. 1mporifexport documents] are being
reviewed with aur freight forwarders ang courers (o ensure
pro-agtve compliance with ducumentation requirements.
from 1 Sanugry 2022

Idenufy and support EL. EEA or Swiss employees requinng
advice in compielian of appticatsn to the EU Setllement
Scheme

Xaagrwall become a Licensed spansor for recruttiment of EU
nationals This does rat apply \o Irish citizens or those whose:
eligble status 15 covered by the EU seltierent scheme

Identity 1alent thal will meer wsa requiremants under
eusting Tier 2 conditiens ano/or minimum threshold critena
for skilled wocker generalwsa

The Groug transacts in four main cusrencies - Sterling,
US Dollars and Euro for sales and purchases. wilh some
addibonal exposurt Lo purchases in Japanese Ve - and
adopts nalural hedging where possble to mitigate against
ex¢hange rate Movernents

The Group has sufficient cash resources ta protect agasnst
any shorl-term volalibty

The Bpard will assess Ine removal of Brexn” as a grincipal
riskin 2022, as the transilion perieds end, and are replaced
By rorma! kegislaiive acivines that would be categorsed
under other principal nsks

Formigi disagier reCovery plans dre marhtaunst ang rewewsd
App-opriaie precastions are taken in all Faclories and
warehouses to categuard against theft, fre and Hoad.

Business contmuity plan implemented, site access
restricted. secury enhanced, daity bulding and IT checks
lor security and performance

Given the spetialised nature of the manutacturing equipmerit
and processes there would be shon-term disrupier

We are also able 10 use manufaciunng partners to atlewate
some operational issues.

2021 updatee: Reduction versus intefim report, as supply
chan nsk Iransferred to separale prncipal risk cateqory.

The IF and Legal team loguses on the extensive review ol
legal agreements and i particutar IF with such partners

Pactherships are £onstanily reviewed bothanternally and

with those partaers at the most senor tevel to develop long-

term partnerships and supply 2greemants 1o the benefit of
both parties.

Wherp significant investrment and research 13 underiaken
there wilt be contractual arrangements ta engure
appropnate governance and Board structure to support
the business and product development

Xanr pic - Annyst Regart and Findncl;
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Key of change
Increase
No change
Decrease
NEW

Likelihood
Magnitude

Change Risk and link

10 business ynit
Operational

Likety 12. Supply chain

IT

1317 systems
and controi
enviranmant

Unlikely
Very high

Probable
Wedium

14,17
transfarmation
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Risk management continued

impact

The Graup 15 dependent on retaiming

its key supphiers and ensurng that
delwgnes ang g leme an6d the matenals
supplied are of appropriate quality,

There nas been a shift from a fineshed
goods risk to a component malarials
sk particularly where COMPanents
have a single source of supply

There are challenges with the supply of
sorme key components Lhal are used in
producbon and global {ogrstics rovtes
have experenced some gisrugtion

COVID-19 IT nexwork reaiience and
2cCe$S 10 informanon wa hardware
and sottware capabilities,

Inability to gperate etfectvely ar loss
of aperaiing capability

Lost of warmaton, incurring linancial
or regulatory penaities

Dalays in transformation project ta
delwer the key elements of the IT
Strategy and achieve the Yision for IT

Inatility ta progress sulficienthy quickiy
1o avpid digproportionate increases

n the operanonal cost base as the
business grows.

Lack of alignment belween business.
precesses and IT sysiems,

Xuar ple - Annusl Regart and Financial Statgmuanis 2021
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Likelihood
Magnitude

Mitigation Change

Focuged an monttormy aad securmng conbinuly of supply
of components necessary lo mawntain production and the
supply of printheads into 2022

Likety
Vary high
We conduct reqular audits ol our key suppliers and in NEW
addibon keep larpe amounts ol salety inventory of key
cornpanents, which we also requiarly revew

we also duat saurce our components where possible
to mirimise dependency on any single suppler -

Werking capital mvestment was undertaken in 2021 10
secure the raw component materials required Lo Meel
expected 2022 praduction plans

We will design new praducls with mullsple sources of
compienents where pessible, and identify alternative
materials 16 buid resilience inlo manutacturing

We will continue to dwers ly and localise our supply chains,
and investgale develaping 3 circular manulactunng
appreach by recovery of matenials Irorn inished gopds

to be re-utilised in praduction

Appropriate testing af the network enwronment, new software
access [MS Teams) and allocation of laplops. manitors ele 1o
enable work from heme 2nd inslant communication

Probable
Medium

Developed and communicated a new IT Vision statement
and 1T Strategy which are clearty aligned to bur overall
business pyecives

Developed & three-year (T Teansformauon Programme to
detwr the necessary enhancements to owr (T indrastructure
and [T systerns Yius includes wwestment in mowng

10 a hybrid cloud model, slrengihening the resiience

ang secunty ol aur |Tinfrastructure, raionabising and
rpdernising our business systems, and re-aligning systems
with wnproved operalional business processes

Cansglafalmg more of sur crical manufacturing and
fnance processes inta our Epicor ERP sysiem and
delvering improved engagement with our ensiing and
potential new custorners through our Saiestorce hased
CRM platform,

Placing intreased focus pn gnsuning Lhal cantinuity plans
lor eribeab IT syslemns are lested and current as the IT
intrasiruciure and systems are changed

Oeveloprg the IT Service Delivary maturity and Increasing
capacity in the Group IT luncton

Designed the i1 Transformaion Progrsmme ta delwer
Ihe three yaar plan for IT which has been generated
from the 1T Vision and Strategy and has teen alignid with
Ihrea-year plans from all the key operational functions. —
withie the busingss

Unlikely
High

Established executive-level governance and gversight

for he IT Transformation actities (0 ensure thal the
programme is adequately rescurced, milestones achieveq
and 1g approve key rollout decisions

Urderialung real-lme project delivery management and
actmlies g the Tr o ne




Risk and link
to business unit  Impact

T

1447
trahstormation
conbnued

15. Cyber threat nability te operate ellectively or
and information significant loss of operating capability
security and business disruption.

Unauthorised access to daia, breach of
infarmation security and dala proleclion
regulatians incurring knancial penalties
from requlators

Reputational impact. business disruption
and patential deterforation in customer
relaiionships.

Potential loss of intellectval Property
orexposure of commercially sensitive
w:_oqam:o. .

Exlensive respurces expended in
responding 1o security incidents and
recovering from them. IT security
breaches or disruption [loss of networkl,
unauthorised access or mistaken
disclosure of infprmalion.

Key of change
Increase
Ne change

Decrease

NEW

Likelihood
Magnitude

Mitigaticn

Change

2021 update: Overali risk level reduced as 3 result of Unlikely
probability keing lowered. Good groject delivery performance  High

in 2021 witk all planned prajects in the IT infrastructure

and [T secy ity work sireams delivered I¢ plan. Major

achievemertn Lhe ERP work stream successtully delivered

she highest arievity project fo upgrade ¥aar's ERP system

{o the latest supported release of the softwara.

Implemented a Multi-Facter Authentication solution Protratle
lar VPN 1o reduce the bikelihood of remote atfacks, Medium
MEFA rolled cul across ali key systems in 2021, including

CRM and HR systems.

Established ncident response and busingss contingency
plans were in place and have been strenglhened fatlowing
the cyber breach in Ceiober 2020

Strengthene aur Enterprise Backup Solution by
incarporating a third immutable eopy of alt system data
w1 2 secure public cloud eavirenment.

Prioritisation of infrastruciure and systems rationalisation .
to reguce the available attack surface for malicious cyber
antackers,

Irmpementad a risk-based security testing approach
across T infrastruciure and systems to identily ongoing
vulnerabilities ang prioritise remediation.

Inclusion of a security work stream in the IT Transformation
Pragrarnma, with an in-depth externalty conducied IT Security
Assessment.

IT Service mazrity and increased capacity in the Greup IT
function will gnable us to enhance our securily aperations
capability.

Emplayers are trained on the risks of phishing and best
practices lor 17, 3 new training and education programme
for informaton security will be introduced in 2022,

Access toinfarmation is only provided an a “need-to-know™
ang “least priviege” basis consislent with the user's role and
requires the appropriale authonisation.

2021 update: Gverall risk level reduced as a result of
probability beirg lowered.

Whilsl the general prevalence of cyber-allacks has increased
during the last 12 moniths, we have made good progress in
strengthemng Zaar s 1T security and reducing the number of
wulnerabilities Frat malicious attackers could exploit

External IT secornity consutiants [Claranet] were engaged

1n 2021 10 perlem penelration tests to assist m Lhe
wentilication ard resotution of any remaining vulnerabibbes
m the network

A review will e undertaken in 2022 as to the benafus of 1SO
27007 cernficaton as part of the 1T security strearn

The Board receres reqular updates on the IT Transformation
Programme anc cyber secunty nsks The Boarg will coniinye
to 355055 progress in the IT secunty stream in 2022

The Board has assessed the iT security rsk based on
the above and de erred introducing specific cyber securty
wsyrance 1n 2027 tis s subject to annual review by the Board
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Risk and link
to business unit

Finantial
16. Ability to

aceess sufficient
capital

17. Custamer
credit exposure

19, Inventery
obsolescance

Risk management continued

capital/liquidity may restrict growth
cpporturities for our erganisatian,
as well as the strategic plan and

Sigralicant investivent is required
" bring new products to market and ramp
up to meaningful valumes,

The Group ray offer credit tarms to
fts custamers which at imes could be
extented beyand whal 15 consideced
normal terms for products in earty
stages of their lifecycle, The Group s at
. rigk to the extent that a customer may
be unable to pay the debt on time, thus
impacting working capital,

Helding tao much inventory increases
the risk of obsolescence, Lhe!l

and other costs of holding stack.
Furthermore, working capital
restriclions created by excess
inventaries could affect Xaar's liquuity
or prevent investment in new praducts
or identified future acquisitions.

Conwersely, tos little inventory risks
stock outs. missed sales opportunities

and ultimately damage to Xaar's
" reputavion,

Insufficient buffers in raw materials
increase Xaar's exposure 10 supply
chain issues - particularly during times.
of econamic uncertainty Isee Srexitl or
health emargencies [see COVIDI.

mm_. u-._._.n-na__.-_n-__..::.mi._n__m.-a-;.-unm_
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ikelihood
Magnitude
Mitigation Change
Tte Group has sufficient cash available for execution Probable
and delivery of the strategy within agreed limescalas. High
The Group has implemerted cost reduction actions ta focus
resources on key initiatives and 1a achieve break even under
CUFTENnt YDlLUME TRGUIreTNENES,
In arder to conlinue te lund our research and development .
activties 2nd to realise the full potential value of our —
product pertfolio we are seeking strategic investment
partners,
This risk is mitigated by strong engoing customer Probable

relalionships, close monitering of product launches by the Medium
customerin the marketplace and by credit insurance in
certain jurisdictions,

Monitor overdue receivables and manage credit limits
prudently. Clese management of overdue debtors and yse
of credit holds to encaurege payment.

The busingss modei has moved away from a distribution
model, to being a direct supplier to CEM manufaclurers,
which reduces the luture risk being contained in 3 limited
nurmber of lange transactions to a wider breadih of supply
across a consistenl sales order pipaline,

New OEM customers are being onbaarded with favourable
payment terms depending upon credit assessment and
review of credit histary. Where there is exposure o Chinese
manufacturers payments in advance may be raquesied.

Put in place appropriste stock holding policies. ensuring ely
these are reviewed frequently and change dynamically in Madium
line wilh market/business conditions.

Identify and write off ohsclete or slow moving stock items,
review wark In progress to determine profitability of
cantracts and revenue recognition far EPS.

In 2021 a review of invertory recarded in EPS wase
undertaken as part of the improvements (o internal

and management controls, teading to the non-cash
adjustments for writing off historic fnventory values,
lenpravaments have heen made to Managaran comrols
relating lo the costing of projects and physical stack counts.

Enforcing lead times for customer orders ta ensure we have
the most accurate faracast in place as far out s possible,

Conlinually develap forecasting techniques so that stack
requirements can be predicled with great accuracy.

Ongoing supplier negoliatien to reduce minimum order
quantities Lo prevent obsolescence and inflated inventory

To minimise the potential impac) af supply chain gisruption
arising from econamie uncertainty, inventary levels for
campanents have baan increased to provide sufficient
availability for production ptans in 2022.



Risk and link
to business unit

Financial

19. Valatility
exchange rates

Impact

Global economic events and uncertainty
may tause currencies lo fluchate

variabons In our sales of produets and
senaces n IMpacted Junsdicions,

The Group 1s exposed 1n currency
transzctional nsk relating lo day-1o-day
sales and purchases azross GEP. Us0,
and EUR

Reporied results ol overseas
subsitianes are subject to transkal onai
1% which may cause volatitity irv
earnings and the halance sheet

The risk «5 that there coLld be
signilicant advarse movements

n cuffeacias which ¢ause a foreign
exchange lass, radueing prolt

Key of change
Ingrease

Na change

Oecrease

NEW

Likelihood
Magnitude

Mitigation Change

We ake a balanced view ol this risk as the risk arises Likety

a5 a direc! result of pur global presence, but sur Low
geographic spread means we are not wholly dependent
on any ane gurrenty

There 1s a partial natural hedge for toreign currency
movernents with Sales companies and manulacturing
spread across the globe

Considerauon of exchange rale movemenls in
the manulacturing operalions

Cash [lows ara conatanily feviewed and achion 15 laken
when apprapriate

We may enter (orward Cover contracts in hne with
the Group Treasury Palicy gn hedging fareign currency
exchange movemels

See Breal risk above for further disclosure
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Non-financial information statement

This Annual Report contains the information required to comply with the Companies, Partnerships and

Groups {and Noni-Financial Reparting) R

lations 20186, as ¢

d in sections 414CA and 414CB of

the Companies Act 2004, The table below provides key references to information that, taken tegether,
comprises the Mon-Financial Information Statement for 2021.*

Reparting

requirement  Group policies that guide our approach

Emvironmental = Environmental Palicy Statament
matters £ <, Bil

- o a
» Health & Safety Pelicy stalement
Quality Policy stalerent

Employeas Absence Policy

Alcohol & Subslance Abuse Policy
« Annyal Leave Policy

Bullying & Marassment Palicy
Capabuliny Policy

= Code of Conduct

« Cowd- 19 Policy statement
Disciplinary Pelicy

Equal Dpportuniies Policy

Farmuly Leave Polcy

.

IT, eyber
security & data
protection

Confideniial intarmatian Palicy
Oata Protection Palicy

Email and Internel Policy

» Mohile Phone Policy

Social mattars

Hurnaa Reghts Soliey

Charitable Denations Policy
Employee Voiunteering Palicy

Respactinr
human rights

Hurnan Rights Poicy
Sancuons Policy
Modern Slavary Policy

Mogern Slavery Act Complisnce
Statament

.

Anbi-corruption = 2nti-Bribery & Corruption Policy
and anti-
bribery manters

Anti- money Laundéring Policy
Confhet Materiais Palicy
Corporate Criminal Offence Policy
« Employee Share Dealing code

inn of the business model

Description of the prineipgl risks i redatiyn to the ybave

campany manages the risks

Hon-financial key performance indicators

* The policies bisted slidee 82 Srdable 10 CMpliyces via dur iniranet along:

N

.

Flewibie Working Policy
Gender pay gap report

Gilts & Emerlainment Pelicy
Grievance Policy

Health & Safety Policy
Perlermance Planmng Pelicy
Relerral & Reward Policy
Retiremeat Policy
Whistteblowing Policy
Working tme regulalions.

Gilts & Enferiamment Polrcy
Whistleblawing Policy

allers, including business
relationships, praducts and services likety to sifect those aneas of risk, and how the

side Corporate pahitws by &
| cornphance sl

Compliance vath our policics 15 monnered thraugh the

m@ x-!.v,.y)._._:-_anl«,-.inm._..a_-_m.-_»s-::uun_
Saratege Report

ailable on vur mebsits |
Uhsough aur ntemal audh funcuon, and locally by aur Gencrnl Managera

Information and risk management,
with page references

Risk Managenient & pridveipal Auks,
PAGES 4é 10 55

Sustainabla and responsible busness,
pages i o X7

Section 172 statement, page 49
Company Purpeae, page 71
Qur busnesa mndal. pagea 810

Risk managemant & principal risks.,
poges i te 58

Susiainabla and Responsibia business,
pagei 2Bt 37

Sechon 172 slalement, page 49
Company Purposa, page 71

Qur business model, pages Aito ¥

Risk manageman & principal tisks,
pages 6410 55

Sustzinable and responsibie business,
pages 28 tn 37

Fisk managemant & princiy 13ka, pages bb 1o 55
Sustainatle snd responsible business, pages 761027
Section 172 statement, age 47

Company Purptss, page 71

Rizk management & principal risks, gages 44 ta §5
Sustmnabie 3nd responsibie business, pages 28t 37
Qur buscnens Medel, pages B 1o %

Saction 177 statement, pay
Company Purpuse, page 71

Qur businass model, pagesB10 ¥

Rigk managamant & principal rivks, pages &b 1o 55
Sustainable ard responsibie busingss, pages 20 s 37
Climatg change, pages 29

Systainable and responsible business, pages 28 to 3T
Greanhouse gax report, page 41
Key Performance Indicatars, pages 42 to 43

b A aw won Ferfaboulioun ey puficesd



Board approval of the Strategic and Annual Reports
Board approval

The section 172 statement forms part of this Strategic Report - please see page 69.

The Strategic Report, Annuat Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders ta assess the Company’s
pasition, performance, business model and strategy.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 29 March 2022 and is signed on its behalf by:

Andrew Herbert Alison Littley John Mills

Chairman Senior Independent Direclor Chief Executwe Dfficer
Chris Margan lan Tichias

Non-Executwe Director Chiet Financial Ofhcer

Xaar plc - Anfwdl Report and Financial Statsmants 2071
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Governance at a glance
An experienced leadership team

Governance framework
Board of Directors.

The Board's responsibility for leading the Group

towards achievernent of its purpose is supperted

by a robust governance framework.

The Board has established a corperate governance Riographies Corporate Bovernance
structure with clearly defined respensibilities, designed

to saleguard and enhance the long-term sustainzble

success of Xaar, creating value and benefit for ils Read more abgut the Board Read more about Carporate
shareholders and other stakeholders on pages &0 and &1 Governance on pages 71 to 74

The Board delegates certain matters to its Principal Committees.

Audit Committes Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee

The Audit Committe is respansible for The Nomination Commitlee is The Remuneration Committee is
monitaring and reviewing the inteqrity of responsible lor reviewing the size, responsible for the developrment

the financial reporting process, including structure and composition of the Board and implementation of the Group's
the appropriateness and effectivenass and providing advice 1o the Board remuneration [ramework and policies
of the Internal Centrols and Risk on Board and senior management for Dirgctors including all incentwes
Management procedures of the Group. appointrents and succession planning, and bonuses

menitoring of the compesitian af the
Board and its Committees.

Chris Morgan Chair Andrew Herbert Chair Alison Littley Chair
Appointed 1 April 2020 Appainted 1 April 2020 Appointed 1 July 2020
Read more on page 41 Read more on page §0 Read more on page &1

Board composition in 2021

Compo: Diversity Tenure
Executwe Director 2 Mate & D-3years 3
Mon-Execulive Direcior 2 Fernale 1 3-éyears 1
Char 1 b-%years 1

mm Xaar glc - Annual Repert and Financial Statements 2021
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Dhvision of responsibilities

Directors

Andrew Herdert

Chairman

John Mills
Cheef Execotive
Olticer

Jan Tichias
Chiet Financiat
Ofheer

ireciar

Alison Littley
Seruor Ingependen
Diractar

.

B

Brmary resgonsibility 15 to ead the Board to
ensuce the Board funclions properly o meelits.
abligatiens and responsibilities, by facltating
cfficrent Beard discussion, challenge ang debate
Nomination Committee Char

Leads the Executive Commttee responsible for
proposing and implementing Group strategy,
and manaming the operational and hinancial
perfarmance of the Group

Engages with various stakeholders of tne Group,
providing feedback 9 the Board

Evaluates the financia! parformance of the
business mline with sirategy wnplementation,
aperational abjectives, forecasts and suogets
Ensures integrity of reported hinancial
niormalion. and mamtaining robust aceounting
systems and iniernal controls

As anngependent Non-Execitve Director,
provides conslrucive challenge ang slrategic
gurdance io the Boarg, monitars achievernent ol
objeclives and Execulve Director perfsrmance

Audit Commitiee Chai-

As the Seruor Independent Directaor, acts as

a sounding board dar the Chawmas and an
wtermediary for other Divectors, and Is availoble
to discuss any cancerns with shareholders thal
cannaat be resolved ihrough communication with
the Chairman or Exetutive Directars

Remuneraton Commuttee Chair

Board meeting attendance

The Board held Tl schadyted Board mestings n 2021, wih thiee additional
unscheduled meehngs neld to cover specihc tems

Chairman, Non-Executive and c Board J Board
Independent Directors i i

Andrew Herbert - Chaieman 100% e%
Chris Margan - Non-Execulve Director 100% 100%
Alisan Litttey - Sener Independem

Director 100% 100%
Executive Directars .

John Mills - Chief Execulwve Olficer 100% 100%
lan Tichias - Chief Fipancial Dfficer 100% 100%

Xaar pic - Annudl Aeport ana Finkny

Highlights

Key governance activities
During 2021, the Board undertack the
loligwing key governance actraties:

Furiher devetoped Baard meahing
structure, Jormat, agends and
matenal

Ensured compliance with the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code,
ageraeing actons 1o address any
non-compliance

Read more on pages 71 10 76

Reviewed and updated the
Committee Terms of Reference
Conducted annternal review

ol Board nd Committee
effectweness and performance
during the year

Reviewed progress of the action
plar addressing 1he remediation of
sighihicant deticencres m internal
controk at EPS dunng the year

Board focus areas

During 2021, the Board focused on
the ollowing key oparattanal and
stategic activities

Printhead imagmeX praduct
roagmap progress and custamer
engagemen(

Mitigatian ot supply chain
constraints

Strategy progress and operational
improvements at EPS
(Tnfrasieucture inprovements,
ineluding the ERP upgrade
Capital and equity stralegy
Development ot the Sustanabiity
Roadmanp

Read more about the Sustainability
Roagmap on page 37

FEEN acquisitien gnd inlegrabion
implementation

Complelion of the dwesiment

of e Xaar 30 imvestrment

| Shatements 2021 w @

Gowernznce

Board of Directors

Andrew Herbert

Chawmin
N R

Appointed to the Board
2014

Qualifications
+ FCMA Chartered Management
Accountant

« BA (Honsi 1 Busiftess Studies.

Skills and experignce

» Exiensive experience in the glabial digital
printing ngustry foliowing a 20-year
career with Domino Printing Seiences ple,
working both in the UK and the US

« Group Finance Diector/Chief Financial
Otiicer ol Domina Pranting Sciences
ple from 1998 to 2815 dyrang which
ume he played an instrumental role in
expanding the business geographically
through acquismon pnd creation of sales
channels, ard 10 broademng the product
range w3 acquisition of technology
based businesses

Previously held a number of ine direclor
roles in Finance, Operations, Planning
and Business Developrent

Extarnal appointments
+ Non-Executive Charman
of Midwich Groyp plc

John Mills

Chief Executive Dificer

inted to the Boary

Qualifications
+ Ph D Physics

Skills and experience

+ Fie years as CED at Inca Dugital

» Previously CEQ at Qatalase ard COO
at Plasti Logie

+ Wealth of expenence in nkjet, having
stasted career at Bomuno Priating
Sciences a5 Development Scientst nsing
to Thrector of Development aftar four
years in vanous lechnical roles

External appointments
» None

QD Aaar plt - Annual Repori wnd Fnancial Siatements 2021
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fan Tichias

Chuef Fmanciat Otrcer

Appointed to the Bosrd
2026

Qualifications

« ACA Insuitute of Chartered Accountants
inEnglang & Wales

+ BSc [Hons! Econamics & Maths,
Untreersity of Leets

Skills and experisnce

+ Ower 15 years' experience in sgnior
financial roles

 Previously, Ibstock ple Group Finance
Direcier and Deputy CFQ, with direcl
responsibility lor ihe Group's Clay division
busmess

« Qther pasl roles incfude Senior Cirector,
Finance & Global Pricing Lead - Europe,
Africa and Middle Eas1 lor Zoens and
tefore that. Head af Finance lar Phaer
Dwersilied Businesses 1 PDB ) UK

» Proven track record of delverng business
focused hnance operutions thal dive
elhency and commercial performante
beyond linance

Externat appointments
s None



Chris Morgan

Non-Executive Director
A N R

Appointed to the Board '
2016

Skills and experiente

» Wealth of expariice in managding complex
fnternational rechnology businesses,
having spent 25 years at HP Inc.

Strong background in global marketing,
sales and general management

senior execulive roles inctuding global
accountability for HP's multibillion daltar
graphics/industrial portfolio of digital
2D and 3D printing businesses

from 2009-2012

Extensive experience in Asia and Japan
having spent more than a decade in
sentor APJ leadership roles

Led strategic iavestments in key growth
markels and has been involved in a
number of mergers and acquisitions at
both the strategic and operational levels
Chief Marketing Dfficer for Stratasysin
2014-2015 and recenlly served as Senior
Vige President of Americas and Asia for
3D Systems, Inz, until January 2018

-

.

External appeintments

+ Men-Executive Director lor San Diego
based addilve manufacturing company,
fntrepid Automation.

Committee key

A Audit

N Nomination

R Remuneration
Chair

Member

Alison Littley

Semer Independent Director
A N R

Appointed to the Board
2020

Skills and experience

= Quer 18 yeard experiance within
international blue chip orgznisations,
inctuding multinational manufaciuring.
supply chain and marketing services roles
Strong international leadership
background of building effe«tive
managemant teams and third -party
relationships gained throug a variety
of senior managemant posi ions in
Diageo ple, Mars Inc and an Agency

to HM Treasury, where she was Chief
Executive Officer

For the past ten years Alison has bean
a Non-Executive Director INZD of beth
internatianal PLCs and privziely owned
businasses.

xternal appeintments
Non-Execulive Director and “he
Remunergtion Committee Chair
al Norcras plc

» Senior independent Direcior and
Remuneration Committze Chair

2t musicMagpie ple.
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Directors’ report
Report an the affairs of the Group

The Directors present their Annual Report together with the financial statements and auditor’s repol
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has chosen, n accardance with section 414C(11] ol the Companies Act 2004, to include matters of strategic importance in the
Strategic Report which otherwise would be required to be disclosed in the Directlars’ report, An indication of likely future develepments in the
business of the Campany and delalls of rasearch and development activities and impartant events since the financial year-ead are includad
in the Strategic Report The following cross-referenced material 1s incorporated into this Directors’ regart

Non-financial information statement - Subject Matter  Section/Page

Principal risks and uncertainlies Risk management on pages &4 te 55

Business model Strategic Report on page §

Employee engagement Strategic Regort gn page 3
Stakeholder engagement on pages 6% to 70

Diectors’ Remunerabion reporl on page 85

Equaiity, diversity, inclusion and human rights Sustainable and responsible bysiness on pages 31 (o 32

Thsabled employees Sustainable and responsible business on pages 32 1o 33

Suppler engagemen Stakeholder engagement on page 70

Engagement with customers and other pusiness relahonships
linclyding community engagement)

Stakehalder engagement an page 70
Sustainable and responsible business on page 35

Greenhovse gas emissions and environmentat palicies Sustainable and responsible business [TCFD) on pages 38 ta 40

GHG statement on page 41

Political donations Sustainable and responsible business oo page 35

Elhics and governance, including Code of Conduct,

Sustanabte and respoasible business on page 31
anti-bribery and corruphon policies

Corporate Governance section on page 79

Branches

In addition to the subsidiaries disclosed in note 11 of the Company s separate financial statemenlts on pages 135 1o 137, there s a branch
10 Stockholm, Sweden through which research and development aclivities are conducted

Dividends

Na intenim or final divwidend was proposed or paid lo¢ the year ended 31 Decermber 2021,

Details on dividends are set aut in nate 13 on page 138

Capital structure

Detarls of the 1ssued share capital, together with details of the mavements in the Company's issued share cagital during the year, are shown
mnnote 26 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carres no nght to fixed income Each share carries the night to one vote
at general meetings of the Company, except for shares held in 1he Xaar Share Incentive Plan trust, which hoid no voting nghts

There are no specihe restrictions on Lhe si2e of a holding nor on the iranster of shares, which are bolh governed by the general prowisions
of 1he Artictes of Association and prevailing legislation. The Directors are not aware of any agreements belween holders of the Company's
shares that may result n restrictions an the transker ol securities or on voting rghts
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There are a number of emptoyee share schemes, namely, Employee Share Dptian Schemes [ ESOP'L, Long-Term Incentive Pians ['LTIPS),
Share Incentive Plans |'SIF'), and Share Save Schemes "SAYE | There 1s a Jeferred Bonus Plar far the Execulve Directors, as introduced
n 2020

- Details of the shareholding held in trust by Xaer Trustee Lid and held by the Xaa- plc ESQP trust are prowded in note 28 These have voling
rights exercised by the Truslees

+ tietails of ather share-based paymenl schemes are sct oul in nole 32, Shares held n Xaar ple SIP do not hotd votrng rights.

Mo persan has any special nghts of control aver the Company's share capital and ail issued shares are fully paid

The butiness of the Company s managed by the Board, which may exercise all he powers of the Company subject ta the Articles and the
Comparies Act

The powers of Directars are described in the Main Board terms of reférence, eofies of which are avalable on request, and the Corporate
Governance divigion of respongibilities on page 59

Capitat allocation policy

The Company is commitled ta investing in the growth stralegy of Lhe business This investment includes both capital investments withrn
ewishing operations as well s pursuing INacganic growth apparlundties that align with the Eompany's sirategy. investing m capatulity and
capacity o acceterate our strategy and future growth, The Company's abjective 15 to maximise Wong-term shareholder returns through

2 distaphined deployment of captal and resources, and |l has adopted the following capital allocation policy in support of this:

Organic growth: The Company invests in capital projects and R&D relating te ongoing 3nd new lechnolagy development to suppert

demand in our chasen and target markels and pradurct nnovatian,

Inargamc grawth: The Campany Lantinues to explore complementary insrganic growlh and acquisition appartunit'es consislent with

the growth strategy and supplementary to our existing niovation and praduct mpeline, and

+ Trealment of excess capital and shareholder distributions: The Board keeps under rewew the Company's balance sheet and cash
posdion 0 lng with this policy and medwm -term nvestment requirernents The Campany returns excess capital to sharehaiders if and
wahien the Board considers 1l appropriate by means of a dwidend or » share repurchase. The Company assesses the underlymg profitabitity
and the future cash requirements af the business at {east annually, as welt as the distrrbutable reserves available, to delermine the
appropnateness of paying a dwvidend o shareholders, and ta review the appropriate palicy to adopt

AL Lfus current fime, capdal resaurces are focused on and deployed to supportng acganic growth and 1narganic growth The Board keep the

Company s captal structure under regular review

.

Treasury

The Group's palicy enables it to use inancigl instrements to hedge foreign corrency exposures The main trading currency of the Group
15 GBP Sterbing The Group's use of hnancizl instruments and (he retated nsks are discussed Jurther wn notes 21 and 22

At the 2021 AGM held on 16 June 2021, the Company's shareholders granted the Company authenity to make gne or more markel purchases
(within the meaning of secton 93141 of the Camparies Act 2004) of ordinary shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company

The Company did not purchase ony shares far cancellatian or to be held a5 treasury shaces in 2021 or 20320

Directors and their interests

The Dire tars who served durning the year, and subsequent 1o the year-end, unless olhervwise stated, were as lollows

Andrew Herbart
Chairman

4ehn Mills
Chief Execufive Gtficer

lan Tichias
Chief Financeat Dlheer

Chris Morgan
Non-Executive Director

Alison Littlay .
Senmier Ingependent Qirector

Brief bicgraphical descripticns of the Directors are set ot on pages 601 and 81
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Directors’ report continued

Shareholdings in the Company

The interests of the Directars 0 the shares of the Company and ils subsidiares lall of which are beneficiall as at 31 December 2071 are
as follows,

Humber Humbes ol
srinary sharesaf  onbivary snares of

10p vacn 10p wuch

21 December 3 Decemtar

1021 2070

Andrew Herbert 100,000 100.000
John Mitls 125,000 125.000

1an Tichias 50,000 50,000
Lhris Morgan R

Alison Littley

There have been no changes i the Directors’ 1terests in shares ol the Company between 31 December 2021 and 29 Marth 2022 Directors
nterests in aptions i the Company and in deferred bohuses lin shares) are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration repart The Execuive
Directors are required to receive a partion of thewr bonus in deferced shares.

Directors’ liabilities

Xaar plc. the ulimate parent company, and iis subsidiaries have granted an indemnity 10 31l af the Direclors of Xaar pic and of us
subsidiaries against bability in respect of any potential proceetings that may be brought by third parties, subjec! to the condiions set oul
n the Cornpanies Act 2006 Such qualifying third party indemnity prowsion was in place during the year and remains in force as al the date
of approving Ihe Directors’ report

Share capital

As at 31 Gecember 2021 the Company had been natiled in accorgance walh Chapler S ol the Financial Conduct Authonily = | FCA ]
Disclosure and Transparenty Rules of the lallowing matenal interests in its share camital:

Humbar Frrceniage
+t ordinary of rssuen
T 10 4naeholders [y holdwyl - 5131 Dacember 202° hares held ahare cu
Schroder Investment Mgt 22,791,860 29.05%
Aberlorth Partnecrs 7,075,287 702%
Odyssean Capttal 4,380,000 813%
Culumbia Threadneedie Inveslments 4,819,139 5.89%
Invesca |OppenheimerFunds 4,068,105 5.19%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Mgt 3,832,282 4 631%
Interactive investor 3,160,815 4 03%
Chelvertan Asset Mgt 2,300,000 293%
Barclays Wealth 1,789,424 278%
J0 Hambro Capial Mgt 1,743,209 2%
Total 57,560,011 71 38%

Quring the periad 31 December 2021 to 29 March 2022 the Company had becn noliied 1n accordance with Chapler 5 of the Financial
Londuct Authority's | FCA'S| Disclasure and Transparency Rules of the following material interests in its share capital

weniage

at ardi of 1stuen
Changessn matenial shacshotdngs since 31 Qecemter 2021 shaseshold snare capual
Sthroder Investment Mgl 22,549,368 26 T%

Annual General Meeting
The nolice convening the Annual Gensral Mesting is sel out on pages 17310 176

Resolutions | ta ¥ sel out in the notice af the meeling deal with the ordinary business to be transacted at the meeting The special business.
to be transacted at the meeling 15 sel out In Resolutions 101013
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Re-electian of Directors
Resolutions 4to B

The Campany’s Articles of Assacialion require the Directors to retre by rotatian al leasl once every three years, with the number ta retire
by rolation at each Anrual General Meeting being the number nzarest to but not exceading one third of the Board. Howaver, the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code provides that all Directars should be subjact to ra-glection by their shareholders every year. In accordance
with this provision of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and in keeping with Lhe Board's 2im ol lollawing best corparate governance
practice, all Dirzctors retire al each Annual General Meeting and ofter lhems zlves for re-electio

Directors’ Remuneration report
Resolution ¥ -
This Resalution seeks shareholder 2pproval tor the Directors’ Remuneration report,

The Directers’ Remuneratian repert can be found on pages 83 to 191 linclusive] of the Annuat Report and Financial Statements

In accordance with regulations which came into force on 1 Dctober 2013, Resclution 9 olfers shareholders an advisory vole on the
implementation of the Company’s existing Remuneration Policy.

Power to issue securities
Resolutions 10, 11 and 12

Under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 [the ‘Act'), the Directors may only allot shares or grant rights ta subscribe for or convert
any securities inig shares if authorised by the sharehalders 1o da se.

Resolution 10, wnich complies with guidance issued by the Investment Asseciation, will, if passed, authgrise the Qireclors Lo aliot ordinary
shares or grant nghts Le subscribe for er convert any securities into ordinary snares, up to an aggregate naminal value of £2,614,874
Icerresponding 13 approximalely one third of the issued share capital at 2% March 2022) and up to an additional aggregate nominal value
of £5,229,749 lco-responding lo approximately two thirds of the issued share czpital at 29 March 2022] in the case of slloiments only

in cannection with a fully pre-emptive rignts issue. The Directers have no present intention to exercise the autharity sought under this
Resolution. Hawever, the Directors may consider doing so if they believe il would be appropriate in respecl of business opportu
may arise consis-enl with the Company’s strategic objectives.

This authorily wilt expire no later than 15 months afier the passing of the Resolution. It is the Board's curnent intention to seek rengwal
of such authority at each future Annual General Meeting of the Company,

Disapplication ef pre rights Resnlutions 11 and 12

Under section S6111) oF the Act, il Lhe Directors wish to allot equity securities (a5 deflined in section 550 of the Act] they must in the first
instance ofier them to ewsting shareholders in propartion to their heldings. In addition, there may be sccasions when the Directors will
need the llexibilits to finance business appertunities by tha issue of shares withaut a pre-emptive offer to existing shareholders. This cannot
be done under thi Act unless the shareholders have first waived their pre-emplion rights.

In accordance wit~ institulional guidebnes, under Resolution 11, 10 be proposedias a Special Resolution, autherity is soughl to atlot shares:

lil in relation to a sre-emptive rights issue only, up to an sggregate nominal amount of £5.229,249 [being the nominal value of approximately
two thards of tre 155ued share capral of the Companyl, and

lel 1y any other case. up ¢ an aggregate nominal amount of £392,231 lzepresenting 5% of the issued share capital of the Company]
The Direclors do rol currendly hgve an intenlicn to execcise the authonty

In addition, ResolLuign 12, which s also lo be proposed as a Specisl Resolution, 3sks the shareholders Lo waive their pre-emplion righls in
relation to the allozment of equity securilies or sale of treasury shares up 1o a fu-ther aggregate nominal amount of £392,231 irepresenting
5% of the ssued sare capital of the Cempanyl. with such authority ta be used oy for the purpose of hnancing [or refinancing, if the
authority 15 to be 1sed in the six months after the origmal transaction] a Iransaction which the Direclars of the Company determine to be
an acquisition or o:her capital investment of a kind contemplated by the Pre-emption Group s Staiement of Principles on Disapplying
Pre-Emptian Righ-s

The Divectors will also have regard la the guidance in the Statement of Principles concerning cumulative usage of authorities wathin
a three-year penoc Accordingly, the Board conlrms that it does nol intend to 1ssue shares for cash representing more than 7,5% of
the Company sssi:ed ordmary share capital in any rolling three-year period other than ta emshng shareholders. save as peconitled in
connection with 20 acquisition or specified capital investment as descrbed above, withoul prior consultation with shareholders

Resoluhions 11 aed 12 are passed. the authorities will expire al the conclusion ¢f the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, or,
H earlier, the dote which is 15 months alter Lhe gate of passing of the Resolubionz it 1s the Board's curcent 1ntention to seek renewal of
such authorilies at gech lulure Annual General Meetmy of the Company

Xaar plc = Anvual Ropert and Financial Statemanis 2021 @ m
Gawernance

Directors’ report continued

Authority to purchase own shares
Resolution 11

Itis proposed by Resolution 13, by Special Resolution, to autharise the Company generally and unconditionally to purchase its own shares
at a price of nol less than the par value of the shares and not more than the fugher of-

li) 5% above the average ol the middle markel quatations of the shares as derived Irom the Landon Stazk Exchange Daiy Official List for
the five dealing days immediately preceding the day on which the purchase is made; and

] ?m higher of Lhe price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid on the trading venue where the purchase
is carried oul lin each case axclusive ol any expenses payable by the Company)

The autherty will be for a maximum of 14.9% of the Company's 1ssued share capital and will axpire at Ihe earler of the next Annual General
Meening of the Company er within 15 manths from the date of the gassing of this Resolution The Directars currently have no intentian
ta exercise the suthonity and will only purchase shares if it 15 in the best interests of shareholders as a whole

The totét number of ordinary shares under aption, which remain unexercised and outstanding as ar 29 March 2022 Iinctuding apticns
awarded under LTIP which may be satislied by subscription for new sharesl was 4,711,777 This represents é 0% of the issued ardunary
share capital at that date. H the Company was to buy back the maximum number of ordinary shares permtied pursuant te the passing of

this Resolution, then the total number of ordinary shares under option which femain unesercised ang outstandh ng as at 31 Decernber 2021
would represent 7 1% of the reduced 1ssued erdinary share capital.

Additional information for shareholders
The fallowing pro

les the additional information required for sharehalders as a result of the implernentation of the Takegvers Directive i UK law
The structure of the Company's 1ssued share capital 1s shown in note 24

Oetails of ordinary shares held i trust owned by the Company can be found in note 28

The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may result In restrictions on the taanster of securities and/or vonng rghts

The Directers are autherised to issue and allal shares and lo underlake purchases of the Commpany’s shares Appropriate resolutions
to renew these authorties are proposed to be passed at the Annual General Meeting as detailed abeve and notice of which 15 an
pages 17310 174,

The notice of the Annual General Mee

gis an pages 1731 174

Ordinary shares

0On a show of hands at a general meeting of the Company every holder of ordinary shares present in person and entitled to vote shall have
one vole for every ordinary share held and, en a poll. every member present in person or by proay and entitled o vote shall have one vote
lor every ondinary share held The nolice of the Annual General Meeting on pages 173 ta 176 specifies deadlines for exercising voling rights
ither by proxy notice or present in person or by progy ' relation to resolulions to be passed at the Annual General Meeling

All proxy votes are counted and the numbers for. agalnst or withheld m relahion to each resolulion are made available al the Annuzl General

Meeting and are published on the Campany’s website after the meeting No person holds securities carrying special rights with regard
to control of the Company.

Restrictions
There are no restrichions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the Company other than,

» certain festrichions may from time to ime be imposed by taws and regulations [for example, insider trading laws and market
requirements relating Lo close periodsl; and

* pursuant to the Listing Rules of the FCA whereby all employees of the Company require the approval of the Company to deal in the
Company's securities.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Assocsation may only be amended by a Special Resolution at a general meeting of the sharehalders Directors are
reappoinied by Qrdinary Resolution at a general meeting of the sharehalders

Action to be taken

As detalled in the notes to the notice convening the Annual General Meeting. yau will ot recewe a Form of Proxy for the Annual General
Meeting in the post Instead, you can vate onling at www.signalshares com. To register, you will need your Investor Gage, which can be found
on your share certificate; once logged on. click an the "Vate Online Now' bulton to vale Prosy voles should be submutted 35 early as possible
and in any event, no tater than 48 hours before the start of the meeting lexcluding weekends and public holidaysl Shareholders attempting
ta atlend the meeting will be refused admission

You may request a hard copy proxy form directly from the registrars, Link Asset Seraces on 0871 664 D300 iCalls cost 12 pence per minute
plus your phone company’s actess charge. Hf you are oulside the United Kingdom, please call +44 371 664 0300 Calls outside the United
Kingdom will be charged at the applicable international rate ] Lines are open batwaen % 00a.m. to 5 30p m , Monday to Friday, excluding
public holidays 1n England and Wales
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Appointment and replacement of Directors

with regard 1o the appointment and reptacement of Directors, the Company 15 governed by its Articles of Assooation, the UK Corporale
Governsnce Code, the Companies Act and prevailing legislation

‘The Boarg can appent a Director but anyone 50 appointed must be elected by an Ordinary Resolubion 3l the next general meeting
All Drrectors are reguired to submil themselves for reappoimment evary year at the AGM [see Re-elechion of Directars, abovel i line
witn the UK Carporate Governance Code

A Director may be removed by the Company in certain circumslances sel gt m the Articles of Assaciation or by an Ordinary Resolution
of the Campany
Significant interests

Directors’ interests in the share capitat of the Company are shown i Lhe table on page k11

Major interests li.e. those greater han 3% of which the Company has been net  are shown an page &4

Company share schemes

The Xaar plc ESOP Trust holds 0 9% 12020 8 9% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company i \rust for the beneful of emplayees of the
Group and their dependants The voting nghts in relaton to these shaves ace exercised by the Trustees

Change of control
The Company is not party to any agreements wheeh 1ake etiect, allar of terminate upon a change of contral of the Company followang 2
\akeover tnd There are no agreements between the Company and its Directars or pl providing for comp wan tor loss of office

or ampioyment bwhether through resignation. purported redundancy or otherw £] that accurs because of a takeover bid Depeading on
1he achieve ment of perlormance condilions, shzre-based payment arcangements may vest on ¢hange of control but this 1s subject to the
approval and exercise of the discretion of the Remungration Commiltee

Going cancern

The Group's busingss activilies, together with the factors Likely 1o affect its tuture devalapment, performance and po:
Strategic Repart on pages 12to 23 and Business performance on pages U027

ition, are set autin the

The Greup's business actmties, Logether with the factors likely to abtect its fulure developmenl, performance and position, are setautin

the Strategic Report on pages 12 to 23 The Group reported a profit aller fax for tha year ended 31 December 2021 of £1£.2 milbon, which
\ncludes a profit after tax ot €135 matlion rololed fo drsconlinued operalions, being (he costs relating to Thin Filpn and Xaar 30 (E4.4 mitlisn
\o55]. 35 well as the gain on drsposal [£17.9 m \on! Notes 21 and 22 include 2 description of the Group's pbyectves, pobicies and processes
tor managing its capitat, ts financial f15k management objectives. details of 1ts financiat instruments and hedging actwities; and ns
exposura to credit sk and guidhly risk The Group’s day-1o-day working caprial requirements are expectad to be met through the current
cash and cash equiatent resources fincluding treasury depositsk at Ihe balance sheel dale of 3 December 2021 of £25 1 million. The Graup
was gebl free a5 at 31 December 2021

To date the impact of COVIL-19 on the Group’s trading has paen minimal, however we did experience some COVID-19 retated supply
constrats in 2021, lor which actions have beean laken te mitigate Lheir impact and therefore the Board conlinues to be gptinistic on the
future wating emaronmeat

The gring Loncern réviewi has been completad by considering the perlormance ol the diflerent businesses across the Group and each o
their lunding requirements pefare pertforing a number of stress lests The base going concern case s consistent with the cucrent Board
approved torecasts and. 1o reflect judgement over Lrning of conbingent consigeralion payments. has been adjusied to exclude thesen the
going concern period A second case which includes the cansideration payable on the acquisiion of Megnajet Lid fas set out in note a1,
hewever excluges the revenue compared to forecas! across the entire Geoup required to prevent the business continuing 95 a going concern
15 rore than 30% which 15 considered remole gwen the nature and size ot the order book and the irading expenence of the Printhesd and
£PS seqgments during COVID- 19 condimans to date

Motwitnstanding this, the Group has further optians (& mihgate a cash shortfall which have nal been factored nto Ihe above lorecasts, such
as statfing reduclions, further delaying/stopping capital and research and development expenditure and aligming performance relaled pay to
actual results

The Dwectars have 2 reasonable expeciation that 1he Group has adequate resnurces to continue i aperstional existence for the penad fo
30 June 2023, taking accaunt of reasenably possible changes in trading performance For Wis reason we continue ko adopt Lhe going
concern basis i preparing the financial staternents

Xaar pit - Annud| Reper! snd Flnan|al Statements 2021 &.N
Governance

Directors’ report continued

Viability Statement
The long-term viability &* the Group 15 assessad by the Direclars as part of the risk management process and regular stiategic reviews
The Company has undartaken thorough steategic planning at all Ihree business units which has cesulled in a three-year plan which lakes

\nto consideration the principal risks, product portfolios and R&D readmaps, 1ha market opportunilies, our competitive posiion, core
capahilities, and the cosl structure. efleciweness and elficiency of the organisation.

Delails of which are sutlined in thu CEQ report and in the strategic review on pages 1216 23
The plan forms the basis lor sirategic actions to be taken acrass the Company and the key objectives for each business These objectives.
and the key performance metrics associated wath these. are regularly reviewed by the Directors
‘The Company Is aware that it operates in an unceriain envirenment ang faces risks boih internally and ester nally 1hal could polentially
impact on the Company's atility ta achieve its stratagy

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company are indiuded an pages 4T tc 55

As part of the process of rewewing these risks, and other potential risks. the Board assigns responsibility for these lo mermders ol the -
Executive Committee. ILis the responsibility af the Executive Committee members 1o manage the risk and the mitigating achens. Mhs
ensures that the Company manages the risks it laces appropriately and that these are considered m all of the financiat models

The Board has assessed the veability of the Group over a three-year \imeframe based on the development cycles ol our competitors and
thase of our custamers and the probabilty Lhis could lead 1o technological advancements that discupt the markets Lhat Xaar operates in

The Board has considered plausible prinaipal risks and the financial nvpact that these could have over a three-year period The printipal
r15ks that were combmed ang madelled to create a ‘severe but plausible scenaro are- 2 jdemtification of markel requirernents, & Merger
and acquisilion opporiunities and 12 Supply chain The results of this scenana \ed to an 8% reduction In base case revenue over the
three-year period

Taking account of the Company S currenl financial posilion. operaling performance, and the principal risks and uncertainties. the Derectars
have assessed he prospects of the Comgpany, and confirtm that they have a reasanable expectatian that the Company wili be able 1o continue
in operalton and meet its Libilities as they fall due for the next three years to December 2024

Auditor

st & Young LLP were re-agpoinied 1n 2021 and have expressed ther willingness to continue 1n olfice as auditor and a resolution
ta reappoint thern will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditor
The Directors who wers members of the Baard at the lime of approving the Directors’ report are Listed on pages 60 and 41
Having made engquinies of fellow Direclers, each of these Directors conhirm that:

+ Tothe best of each Mirector s knowledge and belial, there 1s nosnlarmation relevant 1o the preparalion ol their repart of which the Growp s
autitor 15 unaware

« Each Director has taken al{ the steps a Dwector rrughl reasonably be expected to have laken to be aware of retevant aud b nfermatian and
to establish that the Group’s auditer 1s aware of that information

« H any independent Director does not agree to support this statemenl this musl be disclosed,
Tris conlirmation s gven and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowsions af section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Approval )

—
The Directors report was approved by the Baard on 29 March 2022 and 1s signed ori its behall by

John Mills '
Chief Executive Officer
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Section 172 statement

The Comanies Act 2006 [the ‘Act’], as amended by the Companies |Miscellaneous Reportingl Regulations 2018,
requires -ompanies to include a "Section 172(1) Statement’ in the Strategic Report describing how directors
have had regard to the matters set out in Section 172 {1] {a) to If} af the Act when performing their duties.
Section 172 of the Act requires directors of a company to act In a way they consider, 10 good I3ith, would most be most likely to promote the
success of the company fur the benefit of ils members as a whole, and in doi1g 50 have B@ua lamongst other matters] to
1 Likely conszquences of any Jecision in the tong term,
2 Interests of the company's employees,
3 Need 10 loser the company's business relabionships with suppliers, custcmers and athers,
a:ﬂnmﬁ_D:wmnn:._vmawmovma__c:mu:.Jmnn:::::_Qmi.Jmmasqoijm:r
m

Qeswrability of the company mantai a repulation tor high standards ol business conduct, and

& Need lo act farrly as between members of the company

The Directors’ culies under Section 172 are embedded n all of the geceions that the Baard and s Comnitlees make, togelher with 2 range
of gther fagtars ncluding slgnment with our strategy and aur values. Accordwgly, nkormation on how 5172 matters hawe been considered
during the year are detailed throughout this Annual Report

The Board unde rstands the imporiance of efleclively engagig with the Company's key stakeholde-s, in order to peiter understand the
wviews and interests, and the potenbial impact of the Directars deasicns on them

;mmaw_d,mmcm_.m:.E_:_m.:.wwnm_mu_mﬁw_am:o_amﬁm.sm«:aEs»ﬁ&.m:g_:mw;E:m;;u_:m;:..mq:Qm.iEmgnamm_zm-quszam
a posilive outco e far all stakeholders from a given decision . -

Ihe Board strives to follow best corporate governance practice and has a governance framewark in place thal allows it to make reasoned
and informed decisions Furlher mformation on how the Board and its Comrmltees operate can be found in the Corporate Governance
Report an pages 73 to 74 of this Annual Report

The identificaiio and assessment of riskog an integral part of the Board's decision making process, particularly when it comes lo
considering the .onger term consequences and the sustainahility of the Company’s business model and strategy The Group maintains
a risk register, which the semior leadershg tleam maintain, which 1s presented ta the Board on 30 annual bas s.

Mare details of our approach to risk maragement are set out in pages 4é o 55

Stakehold2r engagement

The Directors have ongoing engagement with all of aur key staeholders

* Qur lnwestors

= our Peaple

+ our Commu-i tes and,

e our Partners

Tne Directors coatinually review Ihe impact |hat any decisions will have on these key stakehalders

The Board ~equl: rty reviews the Company's principal stakeholders and how it engages with them. This 1s achieved through information
provided by matagement and by direct engagement with the stakeholders themselves,

Shareholders

Alt Board derisios are made 19 promote the leng-term success of the Group tor the benefit of our shareholders.

We maintan strog relalionshigs with shareholders ensuning they understand our strategy, the pragress and pertermance against key
milestones and that we understand how they view our business We engage witt our shareholdars through Investor Roadshaws and webinar
presentations fec by the Chief Executive Ofhcer and Chief Financial O'ficer, in addition ta wnitlen communicat:on from and meetings as
reglared wath the Chavman, Commiltee Chairs and Executive Direglors

The Group's brok 2rs provide independent feedback 1o the Board on shareholder apinions and therr views on our meetings with nvestors
Reqular Irading updates are prowided as well as the Annugl Report and Interi Report

Intormanion proviced at analysts’ meehings and hinancial press releases are made avallable on the Group's website We engage with investors ta
gaw and mantain suppent for our strategy, and feedback received has wnformed the Board's discusstons and decisions on Group stralegy

Mgre details of our engagement with our sharehalders and the results of thase engagements are set sut in the Corporate Governance
Srapemerhan g 12w Dreaars Baouorraling RApAF o pages Tlke W2
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Section 172 statement continued

Employees

Our people are a highly skilled, techmral, and valued workforce They are essential 1o the Group's ability fo stay shead in
a fast-moving world

Qur people play acrucial rote in helping us pursue our strategic goals and are core to the success of the business We engage and supporl
them to achieve their tull potential. There are regular internal communications from the management team and feedback from employee
warking and represeniaiive groups, such as the Sustainability team, Exec Exchange and Meet the NEDs Regular engagement wilh
employees improves open dialogue channels, collaboratian, visibility of achievements and progress acress the business, as well

as transparency.

._.so:3_5-.&wn.&cqe:_.-...___u‘unamuo_z_n:.m:omn_Enonn..nn:._._«.zninsum_hg:::n:nunn.:-::-..:.o:::_!&.-ausn

the results of those engag: are set out in and on page 32 and Directors’ Remuneration report
on page 85

Community

As a Group, we have 2 wide-reaching indwatLimngact on the communties and Brvronments we rtersct with 2ng ore Committed
ta making sure that this impact rs as positive as possible

Xaar ss a responsible citizen wilhin our communities, oflerirg local recruitment, supparting educatronal institutions and the local economy
¥aar offers a range of employment epportunities for apprentices and we wark closely with educational eslablishments We ook to minmise
our impact an the envirsnment We are investing lo reduce greenhouse gas emissians and have translerred electrical supply over to 100%
renewable saurce, iwested in electric vehicle charges and Installed LED bghting

Mors detaits of our with aur ¢
business on page 35

and the results of these angagements are set aut in Sustainadility and responsible

Customers

Our customers depend on ys to supply high quatity producls in a inely manner We atso support them in the development of thesr next
generation preducts. They expect us 1o Operate in a respansible manner maintaining the highest standard of business ethics

The Board 1s regutarly updaled on Lhe limeliness and quatity of product deliveries to our customers a5 well as developments with largeted
customess, new cusiomer wins and a sales pipeline, including how the product readmap aligns. Our sales and engineering teams engage
with our customers and solicit feedback which 15 used to inform our technalogy readmaps.

The key account management struciure across the business encourages meaninglul, cansistent and ongoing engagement wilth QEM
and UDI custormers, There are regular exchanges wilh our customers on their new programmes especially through engineer to engineer
nteractions so that we can hetter understand their emerging needs

We worked hard 1o ensure our factores could continue to opérate and supply our customers even at the heighi of the pandemac

We invested £5 7 million in R&D during 2021, fecusing on these areas where we see the opporiunity to support our customers' next
generation product developments.

More details of our engagement with our customers and the results of thoss gngagements are Set out in the Strategic Report on page 31,
Qur business model on page ¥ and individual business unit updales on pages 14 1 23

Suppliers

Qur relationships with our suppliers and partners are integral ta the delivery of quality products to our customers. and the operational
success of our business.

The supply of goods and services to our aperations :s critical to our overall success. We regularly review Lhe performance of our suppliers
and work with them ta implement iImprovement programmes

The Graup has established a comprehensive set of policies covering the areas of business ethics We require our suppliers to operate to
the same high standards and these are set out in our Supplier Code of Conduct which they are required to adhere to. Thus ensuring high
standards throughout gur Trer 1 supply chain. by measuring and auditing cur key suppliers againat specific criteria, ncluding human nghts
fhurnan trafficking. anti-slavery. prohibition of child labourt and conilict munerals pelicies.
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Corporate Governance statement

The Board's primary objective remains ensuring long-term, sustainable growth for the benefit of the
Company’s sharehotders and wider stakeholders. This includes an angoing itment to the highest
standards of corporate governance as set out in the Financial Reporting Council {'FRC') 2018 UK Carporate
Governance Code {"the Code’l.

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code i5 a set of principles and provisions that emphasise the value
of good corporate governance to long-term sustainable success and achievement of wider objectives.
The Code can be feund on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk.

Application of the main principles of the Code
The Board has considered and implemented the provisions of the Code ellecuve 1 January 2019
We are pleased 1o conlirm that throughout Lhe year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has Iollowed the prnciples and provisions of the

2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, which applies to all companies with a premium Yisting on the Landen Stock Exchange, and has either
comolied vath the prowision or explained why the prowsian has net been followed

The terms of referance for the Audit. Normnztion and Reruneration Commultees were reviewad during 2021 10 address the requirements
of the Gode, and updated as of | January 022

The gowernance réport GIves.

+ Disclosure of Board discussions and the resulling actions

+ Aclear and honest view ol progress throughout the year

« The outcame ol our Baard evaluation

» Qur approach to easuring long-term viatility of the husiness
» Qur approach te nsk and mihgation

Statement of compliance with the Code

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 the Company has followed the provisions sel oul in \he Cade, ang has either compled with
the prawsions of the Code or caplained way the provision has not aeen followed. as oullined below The FRC expecls comgpanies to prownde
a clear and meaninglul explanation for any depastures from the Code

A copy of the Code can be found on the FRC webste al www trc org uk

Provision 34: The current pelicy on post-employment sharehaldings do nat comaly fully with the Code, as il doesn't 1clude a minimum
two-year post-employment helding This s partsally mitigated through applying the leaver provisions under the Company's share plans. We
\nlend o ntroduce g posl-employment sharehalding for tuture LTIP grants Irom 2023 orwards and w Il update the guideline when a new
remuneration pelicy 1s introduced

The dise lnsures 1n respect of the Takeovers Directive las implemented 1n the UK] are included n the Directors’ report and form part of this
report

1. Board Leadership and Company Purpose

The Board 1s responaible for leading the Group, locusing primarily upon strategic 2nd policy Ssues, and is responsible for ensuring the
1ong-term sustainable success at the Group. It 15 responsible for elfecuve nisk assessment and management In performance af these
duties. the Boarg has regard to the interests of the Group’s key stakeholders, genarating value for the sharehalders and cantributing
tc the benefit ol wider society

In order 1o achieve this the Board has established 2 clear vision: "4 warld where you can pnint anything you ¢an imagine’, with gur mission
teing we help companies and industries be more colaurful, creative and productive through our world-class technology and printheads
The Board has updated the core values which shape our culture and contribute to gur suceass, which are EPIICC

« We do Everyihing wilh Passion

o We are [nrovative

» We have Inlegrily

+ We are Creatve

« We are Collaborative
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Corporate Governance statement continued

The Board 1s respansible for estabhishing, assessing and monitering the Company s purpose, values, strategy, and cutture In daing so,
the Board ensures the alignment af the Company’s culture and the transtermation progeamme Other than their normal attendance and
participation In discussions at Board meetings, the Execulwe Directors are respansivic lor the day to-day runming ol the Group and the
implementation of the agreed strategy.

Refer to page S for the Strategy review and page 32 for Campany values

The Graup has four main locations. 1he head office funclians, RE0, marketing, fwman resources, legal and (inance are based in Cambrdye,
UK The Group has three manufactuaing facilities with offices. one n Hunbingden, UK, one in Hemel Hempstead. UK and the elher in
Verment, USA The Group also has reprasentatives 1 other giobal locations including Naly. Spawn, Ghina, Hong Keng. and Sweden

Reler 1o page B for the Xaar business madel

In accordance with the Directars dulies in Saction 172 of the Companies Act 2006. the Board congiders the likely consequences of any
decision in the tang-term. The Board ncorporates the basis on which Lhe Comgany generales and preserves value in formation of 1he
strategy and strategic decision -rhaking

Refer to page 89 for the s.172 disclosure

The key focus this year was Lo mantain the progress made by the business in recenl years while aavigating the unpredictable impacls
of a global pandemic, The Beard has facused on ensuring \he fingocial posibion of the Gompany is secured whilsl also looking forward
1o the longer-term strategic aptions for he Group, including dentifying potential turther acquisiions that would bring additional value
In paricutar. |he main Board decisions during the year were

« Cantinuing o invest in R&D and the product roadmap. Leading to two further product launches from Lhe ImagineX platlorm

- April 2021 - launch of the Xaar Nilrox printhead altracting new customers ang increased opgoniunities

- September 2021 - launch of the Xaar Irix printhead. strengthening our product atfering 1n the Ceding & Marking sector
Concluded the dvestment of the remanning shareholding of Xaar 3D 14 Siratasys generating 3 positive cash inflow of £9 3 rnilion
|before transaction costs of £0.3 mitlion) 1o ¢nable Xaar 1o focus on s core business

Completed the acquisiion of FFEL, a leading integrator and rnanufacturer of industrial dignalink|et systers and digial Wfe science

technology, as part of the vertical integration strategy ta grow Xaar's capability and help accelerate custerner adoption of our grinthead
technalogy.

Initiated ogerational changes within the EPS business unil le strengthen management and internal controls. to take advantage af the
compelling growth oppartunity in the marhet

Relocated the corporate headquarters in Cambridge, UK which s expecied to deliver E0 7 mitlion of annual cost sawings
Opened a new Customer Service Centre in Sheazhen, China
Established an ESG Cammittee ta develop a Sustainabilily Roadrnap 1o 2030.

Presented a pandemic response during 2021 to ensure the satety and wellhenng of our peopte, security of supply cham and prowsion
of finished goods to OUT Cuslomers

-

The Board worked clusely with executive management 1o redeling the Group's mission. vision and values which will underpin the Group's
evolving cullure under the executive leadership team Further intgrmation is in Lhe Direclors Remuneration report on page 83 and
Suslainable and responsible business on page 32

Engagement with shareholders

The Board and Direclors s¢ek to build on a mutual understanding of abjecties between the Group and its nstitulwnal shareholders
by providing the opportunity lo meat al leasl lwice per year, lollowing interim and annual resulls, to provide an update on trading and
ablain feedback

See Shareholder communications as part of the Directers’ Remunaration report on page 85
The Board uses the AGM Lo communicate wilh investars and to encourage ther pachcipation

Following a general meeting, votng results are published on the Company's website |l the votes against a resalutian exceeged 20%,
an explanation would alse be published on the websile At Ihe ost recent AGM in 2021, the majonty ol resotutions had less than 1%
of votes cast agawnst the Board's recommendation The exceplions beng resolytions 4, 5 & 18 with c 8% ol voles casl agamst

the Board's recommendatio

The Company engaged with shareholders both throughout the year and specihically in respect of resolulions where notoworthy votes were
against the Board's recommendation, in order Lo better understand shareholders’ thoughls and align resolutions with the members views.
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4. Audit and Risk and Internal Controls

The role and of the Audit ittee are set

t in the Audit Committee section an pages 77 to 80

« The Aulil Commiltee review of the &ffectweness of 1he external audit 5 set out on page 80

+ The auditors Ernst and Young LLP were appointed rallowing a tender pracess it July 2017, and provide no non-gudit services, the
Audit Comemitlee assessment of the guditar's independence 1< dsclosed on page 80,

The Directors' assessment of the Group's internal control environment as required under the UK Corporale Governance Code is sel oyl on
page 79 ynder ‘Internal controls and eompliance”

The Audit Commiltee, Ird by Chris Morgan, plays a key role in manitarng and evalugting our compliance and 11sk management processes,
prowding independent oversight of sur extenal audit and internal centrol programmes, accaunling palicies and business transfarmatien
projects, and n assisting the Board in establishing arcangements ta ensure that we are reporting in a fair, balanced and understandable
manner to our shareholders The Board has satishied itsedf that Chns Morgan has recant and relevant inancial experience and that the
Audit Commutlee as @ whole has competence relevant to the seclars in which the Company operales.

The signifi accounting ji and un ies that the Audit Commitiee has considered in relation to the Financiat
slatements are set aut in the Audit Committee séction on page 76 and in note 2 to the sccaunts on pages 119 and 120

Al of the Audil Committes members are independent Man-Executive Directars and have finanzial andfor related business experience due
ta the Senior posiions they hold or have held in other Listed or publicly traded campanies and/or similar large erganisalions,

Tre Board has estabbshed arrangements 1o ensure that reports and other snformation pubtished by the Group are fair, talanced and
understandable The Strategic Repoart, sel out on pages 2 to 57, prowdes information abaut the perlormance of the Group, the business
model, the Group s strategy and the MNisks and uncertanties relating to the Group's lulure prospects

Principal and emerging risks

The Board has corfinmed on page 44 ol the Annval Report that it has carred out a robusl assessment ol the principal and emerging risks
facing the Company during the year, including Lhose thal could threalen 1ls values, reputatisn, business morel, fulure performance. solvency
ar liquidity

As 3 ronsequence ol Lhe risk assessment review

+ Cumale change, was escalated from an emerging to a princpal risk

» 1T and Cyber risks, lollowing the progress of the transfermation programme has seen the risk probability reduced.
Descriptions of principal and emerying risks and haw they are mitigated and any changes are set aut on pages 44 to 55

The Group’s polities relating ta risk management and internal cantrol can be found in the 'Risk managemenl’ seclion of the Sirategic Report
on pages 4k to 4é

The Board explains an pages 67 and 6B of the Annual Report how It has assessed the prospects of the Company aver the langer term and
why It considers a three-year period 1o be appropniale lar the pusposes of this assessment. The Board confirms that it has 4 reasonable
expeciation that the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabiltties as they 1all due over this penod

Tae Cameittee has formally the Chiet utive Officer as r

responsible for nsk assessment

pongible for healih and sately and the Chief Financial Officer as

5. Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee sets levels ol remuneration which are gesigned to premote the long-term success of the Group and
structures remunerabion s 2s 10 bkl o both corporate and ndividual performance, thereby aigming managemenl’s interests with thase
of shareholders

The Remuneration Comaitiee’s primary role is o recommend to the Board the senior remuneration stralegy and Iramework. gwing due
regard 10 the hinancial and commercial health of the Campany and 1o ensure the Executive Directors and senior management are fairly
rewardeg for their individual eonlrbutions to the Company's overall performance The remit of the Committee also includes considering
the approprateness of the senr remuneralion kamework when reviewed ag2inst arrangements 1 hroughout the rest of the orgamsation,
detarminung the terms of employment and remuneration for Executive Dicectors and senior managers, including recruitment and
terinmation arrangemenls, approving the design, fargets and paymenls for atf annual incentive schemes that inclode Executive Directors
and senior managers and agreeng the design, largets and annual awards made lor all share mcenlive plans requiring sharehalder
apgraval, During 2022 the Remuneration Policy will be reviewed ahead of being put to a shareholder vote 1n 2023, and as part of this review
we will Consider how our £5G prionties should be reflected in the reward fra rk. The R ahon £ has not exercised any
discrelian in relabion to remuneration outcomes in 2021

Oetails af the activities of the Remuneraton Cammitiee can be faund in the Remuneration Committee section on page B3 and in the
Directors’ Remuneratian raporl on pages 84 lo 101
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= The alignment of executive remuneration vith Company purposes and values is sct out an page B6
« The award of long-term incaatives angd heir performance conditions are set oul on page 88

« How the Remuneratron Committee addresses the principles sel aut 10 the UK Corporate Governance Code respecl of the Direclors.
Remuneration Palicy is sel oul on page 91

- The discretionary powers of the Remuneration Commiliee are on page B8

» The alignmenl ol executive pensions wilh thase of the worklorce are on page 87

« Recovery and withdrawal prowsions imalusfciawback), and the cacumstances under which the provisions may apply. are on page 89
Summary of Board meeting attendance in 2021

Eleven Board meetings were held in 2021, with three addironal unscheduled meetings for specific tems:

Scheduted Adqitienal
Hame Soard mEsting mystings
Andrew Herbert Mmi EJK
Alisan Liitley nn 313l
Chris Margan fian 313
John Mills LANINY] 113
lan Tichias LAl 3nl
Board Committees.
Summary el Committee memberstip

lemunacailon Mamingtien
Name Audit Cammitien Camimitier Cammitier
Andrew Herbert No Yes Chawr
Alison Littley Yos Thair Yes
Chris Morgan Chair Yes Yes
John Mills ha Ne Yes
lan Tichias Mo No No
Summary of Comnittee meeting member attendance in 2021
Remuneration

Name Autl Committes Committae’ Cammuteat
Andrew Herbert nfa stel il
Alisan Litliey 7Mm 5[5 10l
Chris Morgan T slal ol
John Mills nfa nia 1

1 The Commilaes may fwite Board Diveglars who are nol Commuice members 1o anend Commitize meetings whan th subject maller deems their presence appropriate

ures in bra ckets denate the maximurm number of meelings that could have been sttended

Approval
The Board contirms the 2021 Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable. and provides
the informatien necessary for sharehioldecs (o assess the posdian, perlorinance. strategy, and business model of the Company.

The Corporale Governance statement was approved by the Board on 29 March 2022 and 15 signed on its behalf by

n Mills
Chief Executive Officer
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee [the ‘Committee’] is appointed by the Board from the Non-Executive Directors
of the Company. The Chair of the Committee is Chris Morgan.

Audit Committee composition and meetings

Chris Morgan's prawous roles have given him senior execytive and financial experience working across a number of lechnology and digital
arinting sectars and across a number of junsdicuons Alison Littley, Audit Committee member, also brings a breadth of expenence including
execubive exper ence In comptex, international business aperatians Additional information on our skills and experience can be lound in the
Board mograph es set out on pages 60 and 61

The Audit Comrutiee met formally on seven occasions during the year and details of the atlendance at meetings by members of the Audit
Commitles are set out an page 76 Ptease see the tables on page 76 for details of the Comimittee members in the year and the number of
Cominittee meetings altended Al the Commitlee s request. other members cl the Board and senior management may be innted to aliend
the Audet Comut ittee’s meetings based on the meeting agenda

Repart from the Committee Chairman

{am pleased lo nresent the Audit Committee’s report describang our werk during the past year, Ernst & Young LLF |EY) was reappointed
a5 the Group external auditor at the Anaual Generat Meeting and Adrian Bennett 15 the engagement partner.

The Audit Cornmittee’s primary responsibitities are the foltowing

s To approve and monitar key hnancial and accounting policies and practices

.

T manitor the integrity of the finanzial statements, announcements and review sigmificant financial reparting judgements contained therein
To keep under review Lhe adequacy and effectiveness of internal cantrols
To review procedures, Systems and controls for whistleblowing. fraud detection and bribery prevention

To review, app-ove and monitor internal audit activibies

+ Ta monitor and review the Group's external auddor s independence, objectvty and eflectiveness

o moritar and apprave any nan-audi senvices pravided by the external auditor

.

To conduct any lender pracess and make recommendation tz the Board on the appoiniment, remuneration and terms of engagement
of the externa. auditer

The Committee 15 not responsible for the wenUfication of key risks or the review of the adequacy of arrangemenis to mitigate these risks,
which remains the respons.bitity of the Board

The Committee 1s required ta reportits indings ta the Board at least annually, identifying any matters on which il considers that actian

or improvernent 1s needed, to make recommendalions on the 516ps to be taken, and to ensure that the required achons ere mplemented.
The Comruttee shall review 1ts berms of reference annually and may recornmed to Lhe Board any amendments The Committea’s tarms

of reference include all matters indicated by Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7.1 and the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code The terms
of reference of the Cormmittee are available o witten request from the Compzny Secretary.

Significant issues considered by the Committee

Tne Cermmittee has a work plan that 1s designed to ensure its respansibililies are fully discharged over the annual reporting cycle. Spearfic
lemns are added (o the agenda lor mdmidual meetngs as required There were 3 number of significant accounting matters considered
during the year ircluding-

s Revenue recogninion

valuahon of Xaar 0 disposal contingent considerztion
FFEl acquisitian

Irnpairment ot goodwill, Intangible assets and PPE

Inventoy vaiua ion and obsolescence, ncluding EPS' H1 2021 non-cash agpusiments relating to slow moving and obsolete rvenlory

+

Consrderation znd treatmend as a prior year adjusiment of the remediabion of the significant deficiencies in internal cantrol dentified
within EPS o5 part of the 2020 year end sudit process, as described on page 79

Xaar plc - Annual Report and Financial 5t

Audit Committee continued

Key areas of management judgement

The Committee has reviewed, discussed with and challenged management in respert ol the approaches taken for the {ollowing areas
of key accounting judgement and estimation:

Actounting judgements
Capitalisation of developmenl casts - note 14
The Audit Committee considers managemenl's assessments when the criteria far capitalisation are met. The development of the High

Speed Sintering in 30 was cormpleted in ecember 2020, the cost and sccumulated depreciation was reclass fied as part of an assel group
held lor sale as at 31 December 2020. and subsequently dispased of in 2021

Discontinued aperations - note 11

The 30 business met the criteriz of a discontmued operation in December 2020 and the disposal was farmally completed on 1 Navember
2021 The accounting treatment ol the disposal of the Xaar 3D business reclassiied as discontinued operalions has been presented ta,
considered and agreed by the Audit Cornritiee and the external auditors,

Estimation uncertainty
Climate-related risks - Risk management
Climate change 15 a global challenge and an emerging risk te businesses, peasle and the enviranment across the world In manggement’s

view and the Audit Committee’s review, cimate change does not currently create any further key sources of estimalion uncertanty for the
Group.

Contingent consideration - note 22

The contingent consideration is  financial asset measured at fair value, which is calculated using the Monte Carlo Simulation modet,

the model uses a number of inpuls thal require estimation. farecast revenues, ime until expiration, expected valatilily and discount rates.
Third party experts are used e provide these inputs, but the estimates remain uncertain. The valuations are considered by the Audit
Committee on review of the accounting treatment of the dispesal of the Xaar 30 business

Inventary prowision - note 20

A policy 1s used by management to calculate the nventery prowsions based upen use and ageing of Inventory, a significant propoiction
of the inventory prowision relates ta discantinued operations

Credit provision 1or the allowance of doubltul debts - nate 21
A review has been undertaken to consider Lhe requirements of IFRS # and the expecled credit lass provision requirements based
on hustoncal default and loss experience by management.

Impairment of capitalised development costs - note 14
The Group determines whether capilatrsed development costs, and all other non-cyrrent assets, are impaired at least on an annual bass
The carrying amount of capilabised development costs at 31 Oecember 2021 was Enil.

Impairment of goodwill in relation to EPS - note 15

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment 4 budget has been prepared lor EPS and a cash flow lorecast denved to determine
avalue in use calculation The recoverable amount 1s estrmated and discounted with regards Lo a discount rate applicable to EPS, this
reflects external third party advice and inpul estimales of the risk free rate, equity beta and market premum calculated 3t the year end
Sensitwity anatysis 15 undertaken, but the eshmates remain uncertain and rely upon forward guidance. Management 5 assessment has been
reviewed by the Audit Commuttee, which 1s satishizd Lhat there 15 no impairment denlihed

Revenue recognition - note §

The Audit Commitlee reviews the assessment af the application of IFRS 15, as presented 1o 1k, with reqards to the stage of comaletion

lor relevant cuslomer contracts.

Additional disclosure in relation ko key sources of estimatian uncertainty and criticat accounting judgements is provided in the Group
financial statements - note 2 on pages 119 and 120

Key activities

In discharging its responsibilities, the Commitiee has completed the following activities-

Financial statements and reports

+ Reviewed the Annual Reporl, financial statements and the half-yearly financial report including disclosures made therein, and confirms
that laken as & whole, they are fai. balanced and understandable, and prowde Lhe intormabion necessary far shaceholders to 3ssess
the position. performance, strategy. and business model of the Campany

+ Reviewed Gaing Concern and Viability Statements and supporting assessmenls
+ Reviewed reports from the external auditor on their wark and findings
« Reviewed the effectiveness of the Broup’s internal control emironment

.Nm xnﬁ__.-.»._.__..;-_.u:.im.z._x:_m_-.-.:.._:uaz
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is appointed by the Board from the Non-Executive Directors of the Company
and the Chief Executive Officer. The Chair of the Committee is Andrew Herbert,

The terms of reference of the Committee state that it shall meet typically twize per year. When specific issues or changes need to be
addressed, such as the appointment af a new Board member, the Commilter may meet on additional accasions on the request of any
member of the Committee Please see the 1ables an page 76 lor delails of th2 Commitiee members in the year and the number of
Commilier meetings atiznded

Responsijilities

The Nominatia Committea’s main respansitulities, as outlined inits lerms cf reference, ace

Reviewing the size, struclure, composiion and indepenaence ol the Board and s Commitiees

[dent fyng aad nerunatng candidates to fill Board vacancies as the need erises

Ensunng adequate succession plonning 15 1 place for Executwe Directars, Nan-Fxrecotve Directars and members of the semor
managernen; team

.

Making recommendations 10 the Boarg on the appeimment of new Executiz and Non-Executive Directors and their reappointment
following re1 rement by rotation

Reviewng th results ot Lhe annual Board performance evalualion process

The Commltee Chair wili not chair the Comnmittee when il deals with the appointment of a successer to that role The Committee shall
review s term s ot refercnce annually and may recommend ta the Boacd any amendments The 1erms of reference of the Committee are
available on wr-tten request from the Company Secretary.

The Nominalier Committee’s role in the comnposition, succession and evaluation of the Board 15 disctosed in the Corporale Governance statement.

Boardroom diversity

The Commiltee is commitied ta ensuring that recruitment and promelion af i 1dividuals throughout the Group, including those 2t Board and
senigr manage.menl lavel, always cansider relevant sidlls, experience, knowledge and ability without gender or ethnicity bias. Succession
planning is performed and all appointments are made on merit and suilzbilily against objective selection criteria with due consideration of,
amongst other -hings, the benelits ol diversity, including gender and ethnicity.

The Board has aat established a specilic diversity policy in respect of its membership but is cognisant of the benefits of a rich mix of
backgrounds, e:perience and skills. The present Board is 20% lemale versus 30% male lone female and four males). The Board has net set
any measurabte objectives In respect of 2 diversity quota but appointments made 1o the Board in the past four years have demanstrated cur
inclusive approsch, which Lhe Nemination Committee expects to mantain for any and all future appointments.

Further disclos are of infarmation in respect of diversity and equal opportunities policies for the Group is in 1he Sustainable and respansible
business report on pages 32 and 33.

Key issues and activities

In 2020 and follewing significant losses in the business and as part of a move 0 control costs, a decision was made to reduce the Board size
to five comprising three independent Non-Execulive Directors and two Execut've Directars. This position was retained in 2021 during which
there were no ¢ 1anges to the Board. The matier has, however, been kept under constant review,

Following implementation of a new strategy and Lhe good progress made on Eullding an execulive managerment team during the past

two years, the komination Committee has recommended that during 2022 the Board be strengthened and that the number ef independent
Non-Executive Directors be increased to four including the Chair. This meve will allew the balance of skitls of Board members to be
enhanced, witl facititate same reassignment of responsibilities among the Non-Executive team and will ensure continuation of strong
governance. In making any future appaintment the Nominatien Committee will consider both diversity and succession as a matler

of course as we seek to further equip the Board in its role of overseaing fulure business growth and expansion.

The Commitlee nas considered organisational development and successien planning, an inductisn prograrnme for Non-Executive Directors,
and, in associatian with the Remuneration Commitiee, has worked aiongside execulive management in reviewing seniar management
development. A ~umber of seniar ppointments have been made during 2021 :0 strengthen Lhe executive team across the business units as

the Company resuilds campetencies appropriate to its strategy and structure -ollowing the acquisition of FFEI Limited and divesiment of Lhe

30 business in be year.

The Committze "as facilitated the review of the annual performance evalualions of the Board and its Committees. For further information
with regards to the evaluation, see the Corporate Governance statement. As tre Company is not a FTSE 350 company, itis not required by

the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code to have regular externally facilitaled 3oard evaluatinns, however the Commiltee will consider the
use of an external evaluatar for future annual performance evalualions,

Xaar pl
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Nomination Committee centinued

Board appointments

The process adopted by the Committe in respect of any appointrent to the Board 15, firsily, to ientfy the specific skills ang experience

sought and then, secondly, to conduct a search to determine whether any external indwiduals known 10 the Commutice or internal

candidales would be suitable for the role f no compelling candidates can be entiied through this process then an external search ST
consultancy 1s engaged Evenif a suitable internal canddate exists, an external mapping process may be used

Members of the Committee and other Executive and Non-Executive Directors interview shorthisted candidates. as the Committee deems
appropriate. Upon identitying a suitable candidate, the Chair of the Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board that the Company
makes a formal ofler of employment to the candidate.

As part of the recruitment process the Committee ensures appropriate disclosure of olher derands on Direclors time The Board of
Directors’ profiles disclose any external appeintments en pages 40 and é1. Na Executive Directors have a non-executive rale, or other
significant appeintment All Direciors are required to submil themselves for reappantment every year at the AGM

Review of the Nomination Committee’s effectiveness

The Committee has reviewed and considered the effectiveness of its performance during the year The review included the views of
members of the Commuttee and of regular attendees at the various meetings lincluding the Executive Directors|.

I 2m satishied that the degree of rigour and challenge applied in performing the Committee's responsit

€5 15 aparopriate and effectve

Andrew Herbert
Charr of the Nomination Commultee

2% March 2022
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Retirement benefits

Objective

Qperation

Opportunity

Perfarmance measures.

Annual bonus

Objective

Operation

Opportunity

Performance measures.

Directors’ Remunetration report continued

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Provide an approgriate level of retirement benefit lor cash allowance equwvalent] as part
of a market-compelitive total remuneration patkage

Qbjective

Executive Oweclors are elgible lo pariicipate 0 the defined contnibulian pension scheme [or such other
pension 5lan as rmay be deemed appropriate|

In apprapriale crcumstances. Executive Directors may take a salary supplerment nstead of cantriiutions
into a pension plan Operation
Company pansion contribution [or cash allowance equivalent] not exceeding the contribution available

to Ihe majonty of the worklorce |currently % of base salary

Not applicable

Rewards performarce aga nst annual targets which sLpport the strategic direchion of the Company
The majority of stalf participate in the same scheme

“argels are set annually and any pay-out s determined by the Remuneration Commuttee after the penod-
end, based on performance against those largets The Remuneration Commiltee bas discretion 1o vary the
bonus pay-out should any formulaic outpul nol produce @ fair result for either the Executive Direclor or the
Company, taking account of the Remuneratian Committes’'s assessment of overall business performance

30% of any bonus will be deferred in shares and subject 16 a two-year deferral period The halance 15
delwered in cash

Additienally, Directors may opt 1o wwvest in the Company SIP [refer 1o note 32 for details]

Overall maximum annual banus 1§ 125% of salary tor Chief Execulive Officer and 100% for Chief Finanaial
Oticer and Chief Operations Bificer 56% of the maximum bonus can be earned for on-larget performance

The annual banus 1s assessed against financial and/or strateqic targets which are determinet by \he
Remuneration Commuttee Strelching performance targets are set each year reilecting the business
priorities that undergin Group strategy

Maximum opportunity

The proposed oerfarmance measures for the 2022 annual benus are adjusted prohit before tax [70%]
and cash flaw (30%).

The Camnittee may vary the weighting of these measures and could add allernate measures
n future years

Performance measures
Xaar pic - Annual Répart and Financial Statements 2021 Xaar p
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Drve and reward the achievement el longer-lecm objectives abgred closely 10 sharehalders interests
Suppert the turnaround of the business towards longer-lerm, susiamable profitabilny
Pravide alignment with sharetiolders interesls

Support relention and promote share ownership

An sward of performance shares |zero priced share options] may be granted on an annual basis and witl
ves! after three years subjecl to ihe achievemeal of ihe applicable performance condilions There will be a
fturther lwa-year holding period

Vested LTIP options must be exercised within ten years of the date of grant Under the rules of the LTIP, the
Remuneration Committee has discretion to satisty vested LTIP awards in cash

On the vesting/ezercrse of an LTIP award, the Remuneration Committee has the discretion 1o decide thal
Execulives can receive an amaunt [in cash or shares) equal to the divigends paid or payable between

the date of grant and the vesting of an award an the numbec of shares which have vested. However, the
Committee would oaly setile dvidend equivalents for an Executive Director in cash where the particular
circumstances made thal appropriate - far example i the event of a regulatory restnction on the delivery
of shares. or in respect of the tax arising on Ihe vesting or release of the award

Awards may vest early on a change of controf [or other relevant event] subject to the satisfaction ol the
perfarmance conditions las determined by the Remuneration Com miltee] and pro-rating for the LTIP was
previously approved by shareholders rn April 2007

The Remunerat.on Committee may at its discretion structure awards as Approved Long-Term Incantive
Plan [ALTIP| awards ALTIP awards enable the participant and Company to benelit from HMRC approved
oplion tax treatment i respect of part of the award, without increasing \he pre-tax velue delweied ta
partcipants ALTIP awards may be structured ether as an approved oplion for the part of the award up ta
the HMRC limut leurrently £30.0001 with an unapproved option for the balance and 8 linked award’ to fund
the exercise price of Ihe approved oplion, or 85 an approved ophion and 20 LTIP award, with the vesling ot
the LTIF award scaled back ta take account of any gain made on the exercise of Lhe approved option Other
than to enable Ihe grant of ALTIP awards. the Company will not grant awards to Executive Directors under
the Execulive Share Uption Plan

The maximum award in respect el any year will be:

» as regards the Chief Executive Olficer, an sward over 365,000 shares, and
» as regards any other Execulive Direclor, an award over 170,000 shares,

subject to an overriding limit in respect ol any year ot 150% of satary for the Chief Executive Officer and
100% of salary for any other Executve Director

Far threshold performance, 25% of award will vest
Straight-line vesting applies between threshold and maximum veshing,

These limits da not include the value of shares subject 1o any appraved option granted as part ol oo
LTIP award.

Stretching pertormance targels are set each year rellecting the business prionties that underpin longer-term

Group strategy

The 2022 LTIP award will be measured based on-

 Cumolatwe Asjrstad £S5 - 50%

» The Company's relatve TSR performance against Ihe companies in the FTSE SmallCap All-Share Index - 40%

» Cumulalve Adysted EPS and relalive TSR performance will be measured gver a Lhree .year performance
period la 31 Decernber 2024

The Remuneration Committee retains Lhe discrelion to alter the weighting of measures and 1o apply

alternative or additional measures in future years.




Sharehelding guideline

Tu align the interests of Executive Directars with those of shareholders, the Remuneralion Commiltee has adopted formal sharehalding
guigelines in aczordance with which Executive Divectars are required to build and maintain a shareholding with a value of at least 200%
salary Executva Direclors are required Lz retain half of the after tax number of shares they acquire pursuant to the LTIP or delerred bonus
unhl this level cf holding i1s achieved

The Remunerat on Commttee § palcy on post-ermplayment shareholdings 1s to apply the ‘leaver” prowisians under the Company's share
plans as regards both unvested awards and awards which are vested bul subjzct to a holding perred

Matus, clawback and underpin provisions
The Remunerat an Commuttee has the righl to:

Reduce ary LTIP awards wheh have not yet vested e s malus prowsion] il an act ar omission contribules 1o a malerial misstalement of
the Group's financial statements or resulls in materal loss or repuiahenal Jamage tor the Cormpany

Recover cash or shares which have been paid or transferred li e a clawback provision) in the event of a corporate failure, serious
miscanduct o~ an acl or amission contribuies o 3 matenal misstatement o the Group's financial statements or results 1n malenal loss or
reputational camage for the Company, lor a perod up lo two years following deterrmination of the vesting cutcome

.

Appiy an unde rpin te LTIP vestng and bonus achievernent and to flex the weighting of performance measure in the event of early vesting
25 a result of “hange of control

Operation of share plans

The Remuneration Committee may amend the terms of awards and options uader ds share plans i accordance with the plan rules in the
evant of a varrat on af the Company s share capital or a demerger special dwdend or other similar event or otherwise in accordance with
the rules of those plans Awards may be settled. in whole or in part. in cash, although the Remuneration Committee would anly settle an
Execuhve Directars award in cashin exceptional circumstances, such as where there 1s 3 regulatory restriction on the delivery of shares,

Awards under the Company's share pians may vestin the event of a change af control [or other relevant evenl) as fallows

Unvested awards under the LTIP will be relzased to the extent deternined by the Remuneration Commalee taking inta account the
relevant performance conditions 2nd the Remuneratien Comimitlge may va y the weightings of the applicable perfermance measures|
and. untess the Remuneration Commitiee determines otherwsse, the extent of vesting so determined shail be reduced 1o reflact Lhe
praporhion of “he veshng period that has elapsed,

» Yesled awards under 1ne LTHP which remain sumect to a holding period witl 2 reieased ta the extent they vested,

Deferred bonus awards will vest 1 tull, and

SAYE and SIP awards will vest ta the extent determined in accordance with te rules of the relevant plan, to the same extent as for all
other parhicipants

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The tatle belaw sets oul an averview of the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors,

Approach of the Company

Alignment with strategy/purpaose '
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees The remuneration &l the Chairman of the Board is set by the Remuneration
Provide an appropnale reward (o attract and retain Commitiee and the Chiel Executive Officer. Fees are set at a tevel which reflects
Divectors of the calibre required for Lhe business. the skills, knowledee, and experience of the indvidual, whilst taking into 3ccount

appropriate market data.

The fee 1s sel as a f xed annual fee and may be paid wheolly or partly in cash or
Company shares,

The Chairman and he Chief Execulive Dfficer are responsible for deciding
Non-Executive Diretors fees. Fees are set laking into account several lactors,
including the size 314 complexity of the business, fees paid to non-execulive
directors of UK listed comgpanies of a similar size and camplenty. and the
expected lime cammilment and cantribution for the role.

The fees are set as s fixed annual fee and may be paid wholly or partly in cash or
Company shares. Overall fees paid o Directors will remain within the limit slaled
of €300,000 in our Articles of Association

Non-Executive Dire 2tors do not participale in any incenlive scheme.

Directors may be el gible to benefits such as the use of secrefarial support, travel
costs or other bene its lhat may be appropriate,

Naar plc - Annual Report and Financial Statemanis 2021 m0
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Pay policy for other employees

The Company values its wider workfarce and aims ta provide a remuneration package that s market campetitive, complies with any
statutery requirements, and is apphied tairly and equitably across the wider employee population, Where rerauneration is nat determined
by statulory regulation. the key principles aof the campensation philasophy are as fallows

+ We remunerate peaple i a manner that allows far s1ability of the business and the opportunity far sustamable long-term growth

+ We seek to remunerate tairty and consistently for each rale wih due regard to the marketplace, internal consistency and the Company's
ability to pay

+ The Campany aoerates an HMRC approved SAYE and invites all employees Lo participate, therefore encauraging wid er workorce share
ownership,

Service contracts

Executive Directors

Itis the Group’s policy that Execulive Directors should have contracts with an indefinite Llerm, prowding fer one year's natice.

Data of contract Date of appaintmant  Mstic from the Company  Notice frem the Director
Johin Mil(s 31 May 2019 1 August 2019 12 months 12 months
lan Tichias 26 Novernber 201% 1 March 2020 12 monihs 2 manths

Nan-Executiva Directors

All Non-Executive Directors are agponted for an mitial three-year term,
satisfactory performance,

th provisian for two turtl

r three-year terms, subject to

Rernaining term

Cate of levter of ot maximum

Oate of on 31 Dacembiar 2021

Andrew Herbert 15 Aprid 2016 1 June 2014 41 months
Alison Littley 22 April 2020 1 May 2020 88 months
Chris Morgan 7 December 2015 & January 2014 36 months

All Dinectors offer themselves for annual re-election at each AGM in accordance with the UK Corporste Gavernance Code Lelters of
appantment ace avaitable for inspection at the registe~ed office address of Ihe Campany

@ D n-_-_.__.n|>.=Eu_?!:.31_22_:22.55782
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The table below details haw the Remuneration Committee addresses the principtes sel out in the UK Corperate Governance Code in respect

of the Drrectors’ Remuneration Policy

Provision

Clarity

Remuneration arrangements should be fransparent
and premote effective engagement with
sha-ehelders and the worklorce

Simplicity

Remuntration structure should avod comalexty
ang -1s rationale and operation should be easy
ta ungerstand

Risk

Remunerahon structures should dentify and
rmitigate against reputalional and other riks from
excessive rewargs, as waell as behawioural risks that
can arise from target-based incentwe plans

Predictability

The rangje of possibla values of rewards to
indradual Dhrectors and any other lmits o
discretions should be identified and explained
al Lhe Ume of approwng the Policy

Proportionality

The lirk between indiwdual awards, the delivery
of strategy and the song-lerm performance of the
Group should de clear and oulcomes should not
rewdrd poor performance

Alignment with culture

incentive schemes should drive behawours
zonsistent with the Company s purpose, valves
and strategy

Approach

The Committec engages directly with major shareholders and ther
representatve bodies where it considers there to be material changes to the
Palicy or aur executive remuneration framework ta ensure there 1s transparency
sn our Palicy 2nd its implerentation

Emplayees have a forum where they can raise questions and give feedback
aboul the Remuneration Policy directly to the Non-Executives.

A core reward principle of eur Policy 1s to operate a simple and Iransparent
framewars which can be readily cascaded

The remuneration framework 15 made up of three key elemenis lixed pay
lincluding base salary, retrement and benefiisl; anauat bonus, and 2 separate
lafig-term wncenbive

The structure 1s simple to understand for both participants and shareholders,
and 15 aligned to the strategic prioribes far the business

Annual bonys and LTIP largets are set at levels which reward high performance,
but which do not encourage inappropriate business risk

Both the annual benus and LTIP are subject Lo matus and clawback provisions
This allows the Committee lo have appropriate regard to risk considerations

Annual borus deferral and the applicalion of the bwo-year holding pened
to awards under the LTIP provide longer-lerm al gamant with
sharehalders intarests

The Cammittee also has discretion to avernide formulaic autcomes, which ray
not accarately reflec! the underlying performance of the Group

The range of possible pay awards aveilable to Exccutwe Directors under the
current Policy were clearly sel out in the 2020 Direclors’ Remuneration report
prios ko the Policy being voted on

We believe lotal remuneration should taily reflect performance of the Executive
Dhrectors ang the Group as 2 whole, taking into account underlying performance
and sharehalder experence

The Commilteg considers the approarh ta wider werkiorce pay and policies
when oetermiming the Direclors’ Remuneratian Palicy to ensure that itis
appropriate in this cantext

The Board is focused on ensurmg 3 healthy culture exists across the entire Group
which supports our locus on delivery ol cornmitments. innavation, conlinuous
imarovemenl and beng open and transparent We benave Lhat the Execulive
Oiwrecrors and wider management team set the standards for behawiour and
conduct across the Group.

Dur incentive schemes are aligned with our slrategy to return to sustainable
lang-term growth and praiitability.

Xaar pls - Anhual Repart and Finanzial Slalemsals 2021 @ A
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration

This part af the report sels out the actual payments made by the Company 10 115 Directors with respect 10 the year ended 31 Decemnber 2021

The Remuneration Committee's policy is to altract and retam indmwiduals of the highest calibre by offering remuneration competitive with
comparable publicly hsted companies, and ta drive Company performance by providing arrangements which fairly and responsibly reward
ingraduals lor 1heir contnbution Lo the success of the Group Perlormance relaled bonuses aad equity-based remuneratian re present

a substanuial proportion of Executive Directors’ potential cemuneralion

The informalion provided in this part of the Directors Remunesation repart 1s subject o audit

Single figure table

The aggregate remuneration provided to Dwreclors who have served as Directors in the year ended 31 December 20215 set gut below, along

wath the aggregate remuneration prowded 1o such Directors for Ihe tinancial year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended 31 December 2021

Perfarmance Toual  Towlluad  Totsl varuble
Salary/lees Beneiits™ bonust® Banuz®  Reduction™ Dihers®
€00 €000 £000 (3 €000 (1] (1] £008 [ (1)
Executive
John Mills 315 28 103 - I - " 454 362 92
lan Tichias. 22 23 58 - 15) 7 13 m 257 80
Non-Executive
Andrew 92 - - - - - - 97 92 -
Herbert
(Chairman)
Alisan Liltley 50 - - - - - - 50 S0 -
Chris Morgan 50 - - - - - - 50 50 -
Year ended 31 December 2020
Parformance Tolall  Tatalfied  Tolstvaniabis
Salaryfteas=t Benelits™ Bonug™ Bonus™  Reductisn® Others™ Pemtisn®
a0 €000 C'0on 000 €000 o0 €009 000 [0 €000
Executive
John Mills e} ry 162 - - 4 18 an 385 146
lan Tichias 175 3 78 b8 - 4 " 368 288 80
Hon=Executive
Andrew 80 - - - - - - 80 8C -
Herbert
{Chawman]?
Alson Littley’ 32 - - - - - - krd kH -
Chris Morgan 8 - - - - - - 48 8 -
Robin 2 - - - - - - 2 23 -
Willams*
Margaret Rice-
Jones? 25 - - - - . 25 25 -
1 13n Tichias jained the Board on 1 March 2020
2 Andrew Herbert became Chawmin oo 1 apnl 2020

3 Alson Littley pimed the Saard on | May 2020
4 Robin Whllams stepord down 3s Chairman an 31 March 2020
5 Margare! Rwce - Jones siepped down rom Ihe Board on 30 June 2020
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The hgures in the single figure table on page 72 are derved from the foliowing.

lal Salary/iees The amounl of base salary/iees receved In the year

Ib] Benehts This 15 the lazable value of benelits and the llenble benefits allowance recened in the year This includes

any relocation allowance clawrned in 2021

Ic} Performancs bonus The value of the bonus earned in respect of Lhe year 0% of the benus earned will be deferred in shares

and subject to a twa-year deferral period with the balance delwered mn eash

ldl Bonus The value of any other bonus, for lan Tichias, Ivs 15 a boaus payment in 2020 of £65,420 to compensate
him far remuneration forfeited when he joine i Xaar as CFQ
{el Redur ion In the single figure table in the 2020 Directare’ Remuneration report, the perfarmance donus value for

2020 reflected the lull banus earned by each Zxeculive Qirector by reference to Ihe applicable performance
candibions As noted i Lhat reporl. the delerrzd elemenl of bonus earned based on the 3D strateqic

goals was ta be forfeited in the event that the transaction did not complete by 30 June 2027, The reievant
transaction dd not complete and the shares over which the deferred element was granteg on 14 October
2021 |as reterred to on page B3) were redutec accordingly by a value of £11,250 in1ne case of John Mills and
£5.2501n the case of tan Tichias 11 Line with the reporting regulations, the reduction is included in the 2021
singte hgure table

Others The valye of SAYE gplions granleo based on the tair value ol the oplions/shares at grant.

lgl Pengion

The value of the emplayer Lantobution te the defined contanbubon pansan planwn the UK lor the value
ot a salary supplement pawd 1n lieu of a contriution 1o this pension plan]

Individual elements of remuneration
Base salary ard fees
The CEQ's salary was increased ta £315,000 from 1 Jaauary 2021 and the CFC's salary was increased to £220.500 rom 1 Janwary 2021,

Benefits

UK benet 1s pra cipally comprrse o car allowance, prvate medical insurance and basic levels of othe insurances [such as income prateclion
cover] In addibhcn, UK Executive Directors are prowided with an allowsnce of 5% of base salary which they ean apply to a range of benefits
such as bfe insurance and critcal Riness msurance

Pension

The Company oaerates 2 seli-administered, defined contnbution, HMRC approved pensian scheme UK Executive Direclors participate in

tn's scheme In appropriate circumstances, Execotive Directors may lake a sa ary supplement instead of contributions into a pension plan
Th.s salary supplement does not form part of salary for the purpeses of calculating any other entitlement under the pobicy Non-Execulive
Directars do not recewe pension contributions

Annual Benus

Forthe financia yeai ended 31 December 2021, the CEO and CFO were eligiblz for & maxmum annwal bonus of up to 125% of base sslary
and 100% of base salary respectvely Anrual bonus targets were set based onperfarmance aganst adjusted Group profit before tax (70%]
and cash ilow improvement (30%)

Threshaid Targer
1o% ot (50% st Mazimum % of maimum
Weighting maximum vests] maximum veau) 1100% vestingl Actusl wasting
Adjusted Group 2BT* 0% 13,971 learskl £2.023k 11,291k} 3751%
Cash {low fram eperalions® 0% 1€£382k) 1,234k 3117k 1E999%) 000%
Querall qut-turn 26 26%

* The Afjus'ed Grour PBY 1argel 1s the adjusted lcss before tax lrom ceriinuing operations as defined in nole 4 Targets and actual exclude ke impact of FFELresuits
The bonus put-turns far 2021 are detailed in the table belaw

% ol maximum.

opportunity
vestmg % of satary Total Cash
John Mills 26.26% 32.81% £102.39¢ £72.37% £31,020
jan Tichias 26.26% 26 26% £57.903 £40.532 £17.371

e mew Remunegral

n Pelicy approved i 2020, 30% of the bonus earped will be delerredtn shares. snd subject lo 2 two-year deferral perod with the batance delvered

Xaar gic - Annual Repert and Financial Statements 2021 @ w
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Long-term incentives and deferred bonuses awarded during the financial year

The table below outlines awards made under the LTIP to Executve Directors in 2021

Fate valus

Pectormance Number af the award' Vesting Parformance
Award bi condition of sharas €800 atthresheld period  Vesting date
44 Dcraber 2021 JohnMidls  Performance  EFS & TSR 293,478 Fyl 29% of 1 January 2021 March
Share Plan award  to3) December 2024 [2022
awards . 2022 Results)
Deterred - 23,249 37 NfA March
Bonus Plan 2022 12022
Results]
14 Detaber 2021 Performance  EPS B TSR 136,957 pral 5% of 1 January 2021 March
Share Plan award  to 31 December 202612023
o awards. o 2023 Resulis|
Delerred - 10847 17 NfA March
Bonus Plan 2023 12022
Results]

1 The share prce vsed 1a calculate Ihe face value of the Perfarmance Share awsrd and

- market price during the Ive days priae 16 award date

Deterred Banus share award grantad on 14 Ociober 2028 was £1.41 bewg the average

The 2021 LTIP grants were based on Cumulstive Adjusted EPS performance for the three-year perfermance period commencing with the
2021 financial year 160% of the award) and relatwe TSR performance against the companies in the FTSE SmaliCap Index [40% of the award)
measured aver a three-year performance period commencing with the 2021 hinancial year In line with the UK Corporate Governance nnnm

there s & further two-year hotding periad following the end of the perfarmance period.

The Deferred Bonus plan award is a grant calculated as 30% of Ihe 2020 banus earned, the element of bonus earned based on the
30 strareme gasls wos forlerted ac tho transaction did not complete by 30 Juna 3021

Gven the turnaround pasition of the Company. the Coard considers the CNS performance targets for the LTIP awards granted in 2021
to be commerciatly sensitive information at this ume but. as in past years, will fully disclose Ihe exact measurements retrospeclively

The portion of Lhe awards based an TSR wiil vest subject to the satisfaction of the foltowing performance conditions.

Campany's TSR performance relative to the comparator group

Portion af the TSR element that vests

Median

25%

etween median and upper quartile

Pro-rala between 25% and 100%

Upper quartile 100%
0# Kaar pic - Annuil Report and Financial Statements 2021
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Shareholding guidelines and total shareholdings of Directors

0On 16 May 2017, the Remuneration Commultee introduced a sharehalding guidebne of 200% salary Executve Divectors are required to retain
half of the after tax number of shares they acquice pursuanl to the LTIP or deferred Bianus unti thes level of halding 1s schieved The exient to
which ezch Executive Director has met the shareholding guideline s shown in the table below-

Urvested
Cusrent Subjeci 1e Not subje<t te Tatal as 2t
Shareholding  shareholdings performance  peclormance 3 Detembar
Name quidebnes 1% a* salaryl Type  Owned guinght vested candrinns condions 2024
Executive
John Mills. 700% of 7% Shares 125.000 992,249
salary . o
LTIP gptions 438,804
D8P and 28,543
SAYE eptians B
1an Trzhas 200% o) 41% Shares 50.000 426,681
salary o
LTIP apuans 356,957
DBP and 2172
SAYE eprions
Non-Executive Directers
Andrew He-bert Shares 100,000
Alison Littley Shares .
Chris Morgan Shares

Shares that count towards the guideline are thase owned outright and the net at tax shares subject to DBP awards {the vesting of which is
not subject 1a the satisfactian of any lurther periormance condition} The shares are valued al closing price on 31 December 2021 (€1 821
wilh the percentage of salary determined by relerence (o salones al 31 Decernber 2021 [CEO £315,000 and CFO £220,5001

Tnere have been 0o changes in the Dwrectors’ holdings in the share capital of the Company. as set out in the table above. between
31 December 2021 and 29 March 2022 Chais Morgan and Alison Littiey hold no shares or options in Xaar plc

Aaur plc - Annuat Repart snd Financeal Statemants 2021 @ m
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Outstanding Directors’ share awards
The awards held by Executive Directars ol 1he Company under the LTIP are shown below

LTIP

The outstanding awards granted ta each Executwe Director of the Carmpany under Ihe Xaar plc 2017 LTIP are as lollows Afl ophions under
the LTIP are 1il-¢osl aptions such thal no exercise price |s payable.

As at Granted  Exercised Lapsed As o Share price
1 January dunng durng during 31 Dacamber Bt daie Carlest date
Name 07 the year (he year w0 Grant date of grant ol euproise Eupiry date
John Mills 180,328 - - - 180,228 & Qctober 2019 E0452 4 October 2022 4 October 2029
245,000 385,000 4 June 2020 £0 59 4 June 2025 & June 2000
793478 - - 293,478 14 Cctober 2021 £1 8 March 2028* 14 October 2031
545,328 93478 - -
lan Tichias 50,000 - - - 50,000 19 Apnit 2020 €04l 29 Aprd 2023 2% April 2030
170.000 - - - 170,000 4 June 2020 £0.59 4 June 2025 4 June 2000
134,957 - - 138,957 T4 Qciober 2021 ET a1 March 2026 14 October 2001
228.000 134,957 - - 356,957
* Toe aptians vest on he dzaling day hoilowang the annauncement By the Company of i1s annual results of of (atar the o nike Committee whether
the perinrmance eonditin and sny other condilian has been salishied I witle o 10 part] dnd are eaerCrsatle twa yeurs aiar L dale

DBP

The cutstanding awards granted to each Executve Dwector of the Company under the Xaar 2020 Deferred Bonus Plan are as follows
All options under the OBP zre nil-zost options such that no exercise price 1s payable

hs at Granted  Exercsed Lapsed Asat Shara price
1 January durng  duengthe  dorngihe  Decombar Avawol  Earbest daie ol
Name WH  the year rear rear 2031 Grant dute rani exercise Expary date
John Mills - 23.24% - - 23,269 14 Oclober 2021 £181 March 2023* 14 October 2031
lan Tichias, - 10,84 - - 10,84% 14 October 2021 181 March 2023 14 Dctober 7031
* The opitons vest on Ihe deeling day foflewing 1he annauncement by e Comgany of s nnual results ot i laer e date v which the Remunerston Commuttss catermines whethar

the performance condinian and any other candition has bieen salishied lin whole ar n gart)

All employee share plan

The Execylive Direclors may participate in the Company's all employee share pian. the Xaar ple SAYE Scheme [SAYE Schemel, on the
same basis as other emplayees The SAYE Scheme provides an opportunity to save a sel monthly armouni [up to £500] over three years
tawards the exercise of a discounted share oplion, wiuch 15 granted at the slart of the three years, Oations and awards are not subject lo
performance conditions

The cutstanding awards granted to each Executive Director under the SAYE Scheme at 31 December are as follows.

Asar Granied Lapsed  Exerosed .
1 Jaracy during during during Exercise Earliest date
Name 021 the year the year the year 7001 Grant datz price of sarmise Exqury date
John Mills 5,294 - - - 5,294 2 November 2020 €102 2Novernber 2021 2 May 2024
5294 - - - 5,294
lan Tichias 5.294 - - - 5,294 2 November 2020 €102 2 November 2021 ? May 2024
5,581 - - 5,581 4 November 2021 €129 4 Navember 2024 4 May 2025
§.2%94 2,581 - - 10,875
@@ Xaar ple - Annuat Rapart and Financlal Statements 2021
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Payments for loss of office and payments to past Directors made during the year

Mo payments fcr lass of office or payments 1o past Directors were made in 2021

The informatior provided 1n ths part of the Directors’ Remuneratian repost is not subject to audit,

Performance graph and tabte

The graph on tFis sage shaws the Company’s performance measured by tota sharehotder return [TSR), compared with the performance

of the FTSE TecMARK All Share Index and FTSE SmaliCap Index lof which Xaar is now a mermber), which the Remuneration Commitiee
cansiders to be the mast appropriale ingices lor comparison because they illustrate the Company's TSR performance against a broad equity
markel index of similar UK companes

Total sharehatder return

Valve (£} rebasedt

Dec-'1 Dec-12  Dec-13  Dec-'4  Dec15 Dec-16  Dec-17  Dec-'8  Dece19  Dec-20  Dec-21
@ Xoor @ FTE TechmaRK &l Shace @ FTSE SmaliCap

Source Oatasiream Thomson Reutersh

This graph shows the vatue, by 31 December 2021, of £10C ivested in Xaar or 31 Decernber 2011, compaced with the value of £100 invested
In the FTSE Tec IMARK All Share and FTSE SmallCap Indices on the same date an a yearly sasis The other poinls plotted are the values at
ntervening hna cial year-ends

The table betow shows details of the terar remuneralion, annual bonus [as a percentage of maximum opportunityl and LTIP vesting
percentage for the Chief Executwe Ofhcer over the last ten hnancial years,

Annual bonus
asa% LTiPasa’%

Tatal of maximum o manimum
Year ended 31 Cecemper 2021 54 26 26% nfa
Year ended 31 Cecember 2020 s 4327% a
Year ¢nded 31 Cecernber 2019 - Jans Mills’ 122 0% 0%
Year ended 31 Cecember 2019 - Doug Edwards? 357 0% 0%
Year ended 31 Cecamber 2018 502 12% 0%
Year pnded 31 Cecember 2017 584 0% 50%
Year ended 31 Cecember 2016 429 125% 0%
Year ended 31 Cecember 2015 a7 W% %
Year ended 31 December 2014 562 0% 100%
Year ended 31 December 2013 1.37% 83% 100%
Year ended 31 Decernber 2017 449 3% 100%
1 John Mils did Rot E2rn a perlormance onus in respect of 2019, He receved a uy-oul bonus te L0 pensale him or loss af incame to jain Xaar
2 Douy Edwards was CEO Irom 1 January until 10 Geiober 2019 and John Sils was CEDrom 11 Octe her 1o 31 Decernber 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Percentage change in Directors’ remuneration

The lable below shows the percentage change in each Directar’s salary/fees, benefits and bonus and average remuneration of futl-time
employees on a full-time equivalent basis between the year ended 31 December 2020 and the year ended 31 December 2021, and the
average percentage change n the same remuneralion over the same period in respect ol Lhe emplayees of the Company on 2 full-time
equwalent basis.

For the purposes of the table below, the average employee has been defined as being within the UK employees of the Group. This
comparator group was chosen because it 15 the most relevant sub-set of emplayees and can be used consistently.

SusryfFees Benehis® Bous
2020-2021  2019-2020 W020-2021  2N9-H20 2020 2031 019 2020
- 202 2010 %increase % incréase 2021 0 Wuncrease % ncrease 03 020 Bncresse % increass
Jahn Mills J15000 300,000 5% - 34,650  23.000 % - W33 162171 (38%]| (21%]
lan Tichias' 220,560 210,000 5% - 24,255 23.100 5% - 52,903 7572 [24%) -

Andraw Herbert? 92,250 80,000 15% 70% - - - -
Alison Littley* 60,125 48,250 39% - - - -
Chris Morgan 50125 48,250 3.9% 10% - - - -

Comparatar
employee group’ #0000 53975 11.2% 25% 5,400 4857 112% 2.5% £,143 393 5 8% nfa

! lan Tichias joined in March 7020 His 2020 salary has been anmualised to provide companson

2 Andrew Heebert became Chairman on 1 Aprl 2020 and recened 2n anaual iee of £90,908 from this data

3 Ahson Litey oies the Board an | May 2020 Her 2020 fees have been snaualised 1o provide companisan

& Averags employee - Full -tk equvalent median employet of Xaar ple

5 Benefits catculatzd a5 11% lor Esecutive Oirectars I5% fles 6% penson) and #% far emplovee graup 1% fles, % pensiar]

CEO pay ratio
The following table sets oul the ratio of the CEO s total remuneration in respect of FY21 [taken from the single hqure tabie on page 92] 1o the

25th percentile, 50th percentile (1 e the median] and the 75th percentile full-time equivatent (FTE| of the Graup's UK employees In line waln
the applicable regulations, the corresponding ratios for 2020 are also included.

fear Methad  Z5thpeccentile  Medianpeyrate  T5th percentle
200 Option A& 16.1 11 "
2020 Option A 151 1ni B
2019 Option A 171 121 81

The median and quartile figures have been determined based on Option A as this was staled in government guidance as the most
statistically accurate methad Remuneration for other employees for the putposes of the calcolations was a5 at 31 December in each year

In line with the applicable requlations, we have set out below for the seme employee percentiles fand far the CEOJ their total cemuneration
in respect of 2020 and 2021 and the salary carnponent of that remuneration

2510 perrentde 75ih percentile

CEQ tolal emgloyee tolal  Median employee tatal employee Latal

remunerslion [salary  remuneration |salary  remuneration lsalary  remuperation |salacy

componaal ol tolal of lolat P ol 1otal p of taral

Year remuneraiant remunerahon] remuineration] TAMuNEration)
2021 454k E2Bk E43% 62k
1€315k! (E24k] [E£34k} 1£55k]

2020 £571k E33k E4bk fadk
1£300K0 1£29K¢ 1C344) |£50K)

0y £475K E28k £3%k L57%
(£338K] [£26k] 1E33K! [E52%)

The Committee believes the median pay ratio 1s consistent with the gay, reward and progression policies for the UK employees leken
as a whola.

@m xbﬁn—a.):::u..-.ﬁ.}.:.m:‘....lm.u.o.:n..sn_._nd
Bovernance



Spend on pay

The table below sets gut the Group’s distributions o shareholders by way ol divdends and total Group-wide expendrture an pay for ail
employees incluting emaloyer secial secunty. pension conlnbutions and share-based payments], as reparted in the audited financial
statemnents for the timancia| year ended 31 December 2021

2021 020
o0 £000 Change %
Owidends pand 1o shareholders - - 0%
Group-wide cxpendilure on pay for all employees [nate ?) 24,660 21,629 16%
Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the financial year commencing
1 January 2022
Information on how the Company intends to impiement the Policy for the financial year commencing 1 January 2022 1s sel aut in the
statement from the Charrman of the Remuneration Committee and is summarised below
Basic salary and fees
The base salary ncreases for the Executive Directors are shown below
2071
letteciwe
071 1 January 2072 % mcrease
John Mifls £315,000 360,000 4%
lan Tichias £220.500 £240,000 5%

As explaned 1n the statement trom the Chairman of the Remunaration Commitlee, while markel data provides a valuable insight inte:

pay levels and structures, the Commultee recogarses thal benchmarking shauld not be the sole determinant woen considertng Execulive
Director remuneration In Linewith Xaar's general approach 1o setting pay. the Commiltee therefare considered a range of factors alangside
benchmarking when reviewing proposed thanges to remuneration packages

The 1acreases rellect

= The CEQ s and CFQ's current base salaries are below the lower decite compared to companies of 2 similar market capitalisation la Xaar
The Commitiee reviewed a peer group of companies with 12 manth average markel capitalssations of between £50 milbion - £175 million
tor Ihese purposes Xaar s mackel camlalisalon s circa £146 millian to 31 Decembar 2021

= The Comrmuttee s belief that It is 2ppropriate 1o recognise aur continued strong performance and ambitions in the future, ncluding our

return to sustained profitable growth with base salary increases for the CED and CFQ thal are higher than the general rises for eémployees

The propased ncreases also 1ake Into account the putstanding contr bution of our CED and CFO to he development and successful

implementalion of our new strategy

Fees for Mon-Exacutwe Directars will be increased with effect from 1 January 2022 as shown batow

e

lettective

2021 1 January 2221

Chairman £92.250 £120.000
Nan-Execulive Drrector - base fee €44,128 £47.500
Fee for holding the position of Chair of a Board Cammittee £3,000 £7.500
Fez for holding lhe position ol Senior Independen! Directar £1.000 £3.600

As explained in the sraterment from the Chaicman of the Rermnuneration Committee. the lee for the Chairman was increased by the
Remunesation Committee to reflect the tme cammitment zngd contribution of the Chairman The changes to the fees for the Non- Executive
Directors iincluding fees fo- addihonal duties) were approved by the Executive Directors and the Chairman with the base fee increase bemg
1 ine with the increase for the wiger workloree lor 2027 and the lees for additional duties bringng them closer to the mid-point of the
market compelitive range in the case of the Committee Chair tee and the lower end of the markelin the case of the Senrar Independent
Direclor fee

Xaar pl¢ = Atnual Report and Financial Statetents 2021 O nw
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Annual bonus

The maximum opportunity for the CED and CFO will be unchanged al 125% and 106% of base salary respectively for 2072 The performance
metrics for Lhe bonus for 2022 are adjusted Group proht betore tax (70%)] and cash generated Iram operations 130%)

30% of any bonus earned will be deferred in shares and subject to a two-year delerral period. The Commultee has discrelion ta amend
forrnulaic outpuls such that in addition 1o overall business pedormance, circumstances that were unexpected or unlereseen for any oiher
reasons at the discretion ot the Committee) will be cansidered

The Board considers the Group preht and cash largets lor 2022 le be matters Lhat are commercially sensitwe and should therelore remain
cantidential lo the Campany 1t provides eur competriors with nsight into our business plans, expectations and our stralegic actions
However, lhe Rermuneralion Committee will disclase on a retraspechive basis haw Ihe Campany s performance relates 1o any annual bonus
paymaents made.

Long-term incentives

The maximum LTIP award in 2022 wilt be capped at 130% of base salary lor the CED and 100% ol salary lar the CFQ 2022 LTIP awards wall
be based on —

1. Curnulative Adjusted EPS performance 160% ol the award]. and
2. Ralatrve TSR performance against the companies in the FTSE SmallCap Index [40% af the award].

Cumulative Adjusted EPS and relative TSR performance will be measured over a three-year perfermance perod to 31 December 2024
with 3 further two-year holding period fallowang the end af the performance period.

As for 2021, given the turnaround pesition of the Company, the Board considers Ihe EPS perfarmance targels lor the LTIP awards to be
granted in 2021 to be commercially sensitve informalicn al Lhis ime but, as in past years, will lully disclose the exact measurements
retrospectively. We will revert to publishing any measurement targets n advance as we have done in the past as soon 2s possible

The TSR performance condition will be the same as for the award's granted in 2021, as set aut on page 94

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

Membership

The Company has established a Remuneralion Commiltee which is constituled in accordance with the recommendalions ol the UK
Corporate Governance Code, The terms of relerence of the Remuneration Committze can be oblained by contacting the Company Secrelary
Please see the tables on page 74 for details of the Commuttee members in the yeas and the number of Commitlee meetings attended.

The Remuneratien Commitles 1s currently chaired by Alison Laltley The ather members during Lthe year ended 31 December 2021 were
Andrew Rerberl and Chris Morgan_ Ail members of the Remuneration Co are considered P o wilhin the meaning of (he UK
Gorporate Governance Code

Role and r ibilities of the R ation € itt

The Reimuneration Commuittee s pnimary responsibilities are

+ Tomake recommendations to the Board on 1he Group's policy (or executive remuneration, and review [he ongoing appropriateness and
relevance of the palicy taking into account worklorce related pay and policies and the alignment ol Incenhives and rewards with culture

+ Todetermine, on behalf of the Board, the specific remuneration and other benefits of Executive Directors, senior managemenl anis the
Company Secretary including pensson contribubians, banus arrangements, long-lerm incentives and service contracts|

+ To review the design ol all share incentive plans and oversee any major changes n employee benelit structures

»+ Toensure appropriate stakeholder Inpul into the work of the Commuttee with specific focus on ernployees through reqular emplayee
engagement

The fees pad to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Chiel Executive Othcer 3nd the Chairman the fees paid to the Chairman

are deterrmned by the Chiel Executive Olfficer and the Non-Executive Directors.

The members of 1the Remuneration Comrmittee have no persanal hnancial interest, other than as shareholders, in the matters to be deciied,
no actual or potential conflicls of interest arising Irom olher directorships and no day-to-day operational responsibilily within the Compary
Executive Qirectors are not entitled 1o accept more than one noa-execulive dinectarship outside the Group

a O D z-wu,.n-.o::_.-_zonu)-._uﬂ-an—m.-.!:!:nmam_
Governance




Key issues and activities
The key aCMIUES pine Ramuneration Committee auning 2027 are shown balew

fAemuneT alion nesamznm.m wey activities in 2021

Exacutwe Drec 00% and assess 2020 waaws and TP auttoones
senal management getthe remuneration tor the Executive Hiecters, SRS management and the Company Gecretary
remunaralion Finaiiee and 3pRTOYE 2021 bonus 209 2021 AP targels

Qe updaie o rharkel pracute ane ¢orporEle anzi:w:nm

Review of £ xeculive Directar gnarenatdings aganst cnareholding guidelings

Rewew the iengach ol the launch ot the new stratedy and conauder hOW | paeioromatce goats set 3 the start
of 2021 should be assessed

opare ingEnLEE plars Revrew shignmbity 107 317 awards
approve gran of \TIF swards

Appruve gt am o onfE awards

Gavarnance raosdar 20 approe the ancual Regart af Remunecaliot
Canender \ne nac kgraund ot COW01Y and s impRCt 80 rermunecaien
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Directors’ ..omvoam._u:.__._mm statement

The Directors are _‘amuaga:._n for praparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance
with applicable Law ant regulations.
Company 2w caguicesthe Qirecters to prepare financizt statements for each financial yeat \under that i th¥ hreciors € required
(o prepace the Group financial aaternents in secordance with UK, aopted Interpatioral Actounting s1anaerds and have also chosen ta
prepase e parert Company inen ol shatements in Secorpance win United Yingdor Generally Accepted Accounting Practice U nited

HKingdom Accounting grandards ang applicable yawd, inctudingd Firancial Raporting Graadard 101 Reduced Qisclosur? Frapniwors IFRS 1YY
{inder company Law the Directars oS Aol ApRrove \he Linancial gtatements unless they 2¢¢ satisfied that \hey give 21108 ant fair view of
the state of atlairs ol the Group and the tompany and ol the prufit o \gss of the Group far thet period.

i preparing the parent Company financiat sranements. the Directors 312 required 12

» Gelagt suitable accounting palicles and then apnly them consistently

- thaRe ,_:namam:ﬁ and wnna::::u estimales thal are raasonable and prodent )

o State whether FRS 101 has been {ollowed, subject 10 &N¥ material departuies disclosed and eﬁ_um:a inthe sinancial stalements

. mauwa \he financial eratgments on the gog congeTn Dasis wntess IS \napproprizie it u_.am:ﬁ:ﬁs% \ne Company witl continue
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+ Gelet1and appy accounting policies in aceordance with 145 8
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the irhpatt of vunﬁc,»q ransatlion®. other eveTAS ant condition’ on {he eniny'S financiat positien ant financial gertarance
2 Make 30 assessraent ghthe Group's 20U 1o continue a3 3 geing concem
The Directars 2 casponsible for keaping adequate acgounking ecards thet B¢ sufficient to $ha and gxplain tne Group's ahd Company'$
(rangactions and discios® with ceasanzble accuracy wh a0y Hmethe fimanitiat position of the Grout ang the Company and pnabie tem to

apgure thet ihe Gmancint shatemnants comnply wilh \he Companies Act 900k, They 3T aiso respensiole tor sateguarding \ne assets of the
Groop ond e Cornpany and hence o7 1aking reascabie SIEES for e prevention and detection of fraud and othes icragularities.

Under u_mi.“ﬁ»ag Law and regulatens fhe Diicectors are also ..mmpu:mcog for prepaning @ arategic reperh Qirectors TEpOTL wsau.:mnﬁnﬁ.

cemuneration ¢epart that carmplywith that \aw B0d \hase reguletions:

Website _Ewsau:o:

The Directors are cespansiole ter the maintenance and integrity of the corperate and financial intormation inchaded on the Company’s
wehsile, Legelanan \a the Uoited Kingdam qaverning the preparatiat and dissetmnation o fvancial skgtenmEnly MEY giffar from legrsianen
1t Rl JarISHEHOnS.

nmmﬁoammc.._..q statement
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Xaar plc

Opinion

I our opinan

» Xaar plc's Group financial statements and parent company financial statements lthe ‘inancial staternents’] gwe a true and fair wiew of the
stale of the Group's and of the parent company's altairs as at 31 December 2021 and ot the Group's profil lor the year then ended.

» the Group financial stataments have been propecly prepared in accordance wath UK adopted Internaltional Accounting Standards,

= Ihe parent company financial stalements have been property prepared in accordance wilh United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practce, and

« the financial statements have been prepared irr accordarce with Ihe requiements of the Companies Act 2008

We have audited the inancial statements of Xaar plc [the parent company'| and its subsidiaries (the Group’) for the year ended
31 December 2021 which comprise

Group Parent company

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December Balance sheet as al 31 December 2021

201

Consal.dated ncome stalement fos Lhe year Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

then ended

Cansolidated statement of camprehensive incame Retated notes 1 1o 11 1o the financial statements including a summary
far the year then ended of sigilicanl accounting policies

Cansolidated statement o* changes in equity for
the year then ended

Consolidaled staterment of cash lows for the year
then ended

Retated nates ) to 3% tu the hnancial stalements,
includirg a summary of sigiicant acccunhing
policies.

The financiat reparuiag lramework that has been apphied in the preparahion of the Group fnancial slatements 15 applicable law and UK
adopted mtarnalional account ng standards The hinancial reporling framework thal has been appbied in the preparation of the parent
company hnancial statements 15 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framewoik' {United Kingdom Generally Accepled ACcounting Prachice|

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accardance with (nternational Standards on Auditing [UK] (1S4As IUK]] and applicable law Qur responsibdities.
under thase slandards are further described in the Augilor's responsibibities for the audit of the financial sletements section of our repart
Wa believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and apgropriate to provide a basis far our opiion

Independence

We are independent of the Group and parenl i accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the hnancial
statemenls in the UK, including the FRC's Ettucal Standard as applied o Lisled public interest entities. and we have fulfilied our other elhicat
responsibilities In accordance with Ihese requicaments.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided 1o the Group or the parent company and we reman
independent of the Group and the parent company in conducting the audit
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Canclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the hnancial statemenis, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the gong concern basis ol accounting in the preparation of
the financiak statements is appropniate Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group and parent campany § abilily (0 Contnue to
adopt the going cancern basis of accounting included.

-Em::“_mquﬂann.zmu_dnmmm:;um:urmsf:dw:mumagﬂSnmla_.:._.:nma.:mna:nmq:ummmmm:..m:r__..n_cnsm_:mmcm..cmca:a_:..m
ongoing impact of COVID-19 on the Group and the Group's access to available sources of hquidity,

.

We oblained management's going concern assessment, inctuding the cash llow forecasts lor the gaing concern period to 30 June 2023
The Group has modelled 3 base case uses the same board approved lorecasts as used in the Group s iImpairment assessmenls lagjusted
tn exclude the cantingent consideration expected 10 be recewen on the 30 disposall, a second scenarno which tacters in the consideraion
payable to acquire Megnajet Lid and Technomation Ltd but not the farecast trading cash inflows, and a reverse stress test based on
liquidity in order to delermine how much additiznal downside in traging cauld be absorbed befare the cash and cash equivalents run out
Mo debt facilities are n place, noc required in any of these scenarios

s We evaluated the key assumptions underpinning the Group's forecasts, in particular, we compared the trading projections iy

management’s two $cenanos to the Group's performance ncluding in respect of EPS Lhe contracted order book, pipeline and margin
performance since Lhe onsel of the COVIO-19 pandemic,

» YWe considered the results nf m wenl's reverse stress test scenario and ndependently calculated what changes to key assumplions
wauld result in the Group having insufficient cash and cash equivalents We also censidered miigating acbions such as reducing nan-
essential capital expenditure, assessing whether they were within management's control and whether they were supported by the actual
roitigation achieved n respanse to COVID-19, to date We considered whether the combination of changes ta key assumplions that wauld
lead to the Greup's liguidity being eliminated within the perrod assessed were plausible,

+ We tested the clerical accuracy of the madels used to prepare the Group 5 going concern assessment: ang

We assessed the appropriateness of the Group's disclosures concerning the going cancern basis of preparalion

We observed that the Group reported a profit after tax lor Ihe year ended 31 Decernber 2021 of £14 2m 12020 €14 7m lossl This inctuded

a proft trom continu.ng operalions alter tax of €1 ?m (7020 £4 4m loss), reflecting the progress made in the printhead and product pront
segments, acquisition of FFE| Limited and no longer incurnng development casts for the disposed 30 business unit The discontinued result
was due to the gan on disposal of the 30 business. Al the Balance Sheel date, Lhe Group was debl Iree and had cash and cash equivalenls
of €£25.0m (2020, £20 1mI The reverse stress festing performed by management demonstrates revenue would need Lo reduce by mare than
0% compared te the base case for the cash and cash equivalents to be fully consumed over the geing cencern periad This 1s considered
remate given 1he nature and size of the order book and the trading expenience of the printhead and EPS segments during COVID-19
condrtions to date

Based on the wark we have perlormed, we have not identitied any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, indwvidually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and parent company's ability 1o continue as a going concern for the period to 30 June 2023

In relation 1o the Group and parenl company’s reporting on how they have applied The UK Corporate Governance Cade, we have nothing
matenizl to add or draw attennion to in relation to the directors staterment in the financral statemenls about whether Ihe directors
consdered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting

Qur respansibilities and the respansibililies of the directors wiih respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicied, this slalement is ot 3 guaranlee 3s to the Group's ability to
continue 3s a geing concern

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope + We performed an aud it of the cemptete finanzial infarmation ot 3 componenls and audit procedures on
specilic balances far o further 5 components
« The components where we performed full or spectic audit procedures accounted for 100% of Revenue
B9% of Adjusted Profit Belore Tax and 100% cf Tolal assets.

Key audil manters = Revenue recogniticn

Impatirment ot non-current assels [EPS|
Centingent consideration 130}

Irventory provisicrng [EPSI

Acquisttion accaunting IFFEN

Materiality

Overall Group materiality of £300k which represents 0.5% of revenue

‘_ DB. !-:-_nl.-:::-.?‘ol=n1_=:n.-—m.
Financial Stalements



An overview of the scope of the parent company and Group audits

Tailering the scops

Our assessmert of audil risk, our evaluation of maleriality and aur allocation of performance maieriality determine gur audit scope for each
carmpany within the Group. Takea tagether, this enahbles us ta form an apinian oo the € 3 hinancial st Wa take inte account
size, risk proble. the organisation of the Group and effectiveness of Group-wice contrals, changes in the business envirenment and other
factors when agsessing the level of work to be performed at each company.

In assessing the risk of material misstatement le the Group linancial stalements, and Lo ensure we had adequate quantitslive coverage of
significant accounts in the financial statements. of the 13 reparting companents of the Group, we selected 8 entibes within the UK and US,
which represen. the principal business units within the Group,

Gl the B companents selected, we performed an audit of the tomplete financial information of 3 components ["fult scope components'|
which were selected based on their size or risk characleristics. For the remaining 5 components ["specitic scope componants™], we
performed audi. procedures on specific accounts within thal cermponeant that ae censidered had the potential for the greatest impact on the
significanl accounts in the hnancial statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.

The reporting components where we perfarmed audit procedures accounted :or 100% [2020. 100%) of the Group’s Revenue, 89% [2020:
100%) of the Greup's Adjusted Profit Before Tax and 100% 12020: 100%] of the Group's Totat assets. For the current year, the full scope
companents co.tributed 62% [2020: 93%I of the Group's Revenue, 73% 12020: 99% lossl of the Group's Adjusted Profit Belore Tax and 78%
12020: 97%) of the Group's Total assets. The specilic scope companent contrituted 18% [2020: 7% of the Group's Revenue, 1% {2020: 5%
loss| of the Group’s Adjusled Profit Before Tax and 22% [2020: 3%l of the Group's Tolat assets. The audit scope of these compenents may not
have included testing of all signiticant accounts of the campanent but will hava contributed to the coverage of significant accounts 1ested for
the Group

The remaining f ve campenents were noi revenue generating For these components, we pertormed other procedures, including analytical
review, testing ¢f consolidation journals and intercompany eliminations and fcreign currency translation recalculations to respond to any
potential risks cf material misstatement to the Group financial slatements,

Changes from the prior year

As a result of tha disposal of the 30 business in the year, we parformed specilic scope procedures over the resylt from discontinued
operations {rom 1 January 2021 thraugh to the dale of disposal. Given the disposal, there were no Balance Sheet audit requirements as at
31 December 20 21. In the prior year, this was a [ull scope component.

Following the acquisition of FFEI Limited during the year, this was included a< a specific scope component.

Involvement with component teams
All audit work prrigrreed for the purposes of the audit was underlaken by Lhe Group audit team

Key audit natters

Hey audit matte s are those matters that, in pur professional judegment, were of most significance 1n our awdit of tne linancial statements
af the current p2niod and nclude the most sigrificant assessed risks of material misstatement [whether or not due 10 fraud) that we
dentified These malters included those which had the greatest effecl on- the overall audit strategy, the allocahion of resources in Lhe aug
and directing th2 efforts of 1he engagement team These ratlers were addres sed i the cantext of gur audit of Lhe hnancial statements as 2
whole, and in oL opirian therean, and we do not orovide a separate opnion a1 these matlers,
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Independent auditor’s report continued

n |£59.3 million ~
continuing operations, 2020: £48.0
illien = continving operations)

Reler to the Audit Commitlee Reporl
Ipage 78l; Accounting policies (page 122|;
and Note 5 of the Cansolidated Financiat
Statements [page 131]

Given the dilficuit trading environment and
investar focus on the Group's revenue, we
consider there to be a risk in relation to the
manipulation by central manageament of
the amount of revenye recerded through
manual journal entries. Menagement
reward and incentive schemes are based
on achieving profit targets which may

alsa place pressure on management to
manipulate revenue recognition

As pact of the financial statament close
process, certan manual adjustments are
required te account for contracts with
cuslomers. There is risk that the manual
adjustments are incorcectly recorded in
the period,

In the Product Print segment (EPS| and
Digital imaging [FFE('s] R&D revenue,
judgement is required to determine whether
revenue shauld be recognised aver time

or 3t a paint in trme, Where revenue is
recognised over time, estimation is required
t& estabiish how much of the perfarmance
obligation has been satisfied and how
much is recordad as a contract kiabitity

A significant deficiency in the control
envirgnment was identified with respect

to revenue recagnition at EPS in the

priar year, which represents an increased
risk if not appropriately remedialed

.ﬂ D Xpar pic - Annuat e,
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Our response to the risk

We understood the Group's revenue
recognition policies and how they are
applied, including the relevant controls,
and performed a walkthrough to validate
our yndersianding.

in respect of the main UK trading entity,
which comprised 48% of the Group’s
revenye, we used data analytics 1o analyse
the whole population of transactions

from invoicing to cash journals, including
adjustments to arrive al revenue recognised
in the year.

Where the journal postings did not follow
our expeciation, we investigaled and
assessed the integrity al these entries and
lested a sample ta 255ess their vatidity by
agreeing the transachiens back to scurce
decurnentation.

We performed tests of detall for a sample
of revenue transacticns to confirm the
transaclions had been appropriately
recorded in the intame statement in
accordance with IFRS 15 and corrobarated
that control af 1he products had been
transferred ta the customer by:

» anatysing the cantract and/or terms of
the sale ta determine that the Group had
fulfilled the requirements of the cenlract:

» confirming revenue could be reliably
measured by reference to underlying
documentation; and

s confirming collectability of the revenue
Was 1 bly assured by idering
recent collection history and the ageing
ol receivables.

We performed cui-off testing by tracing

a sample of revenue items recosded

cither side of year-end to delivery note

ta determine whether revenue was

recogrrsed in the same period in which the

performance obligations have been fulfilled.

We selected a sample of post year-end
credil notes to assess whether, where the
credit note relates 1o the audit period, these
credit notes were appropriately provided

for in the financial statements.

We tested journal entries posted to

revenue accounis, applying parameters
designed 1o idenlify entries that were not

in accordance with our expectations. This
included analysing and selecling journals
for testing which appeared unusualin
nature either due to size, preparer or being
sty pched Vo bysens thei wlinity, we
venfied the journals to validate originating
documentation.

tand Financial Slatements 2021

Key observations communicated
to the Audit Commiltee

Revenue was recognised in accordance
with the Group's accounling policies and
we identified ng evidence of managemen
override in respect of inappropriate
manual journals recorded in revenue,

In respect of the revenue recognised over
time we identified the IFRS 15 criteria
were fulfilled for each item selected and
the stage of completion was appropriately
reflected within the accounting entries.



Risk

Revenue recognilion [€59.3 million -
contituing operations - of cisk, 2020: £48.0
g operations) continued

Key observations communicated
Qur response to the risk to the Audit Committee
We performed full and speaific scape
audit procedures over 1his risk area in 3
components which covered 100% of the
revenue from continuing operations

Revetiue recognised over time

Far 4 sample of tems, we reviewsd the
respective sales contract to determme
whether the contract met the criteria for
being revenue recognised over e,

Where any of these crteria are fuifilled.
reveve should be recognised over hme

in accordance with IFRS 13 For Ihese
iterns, we evaluated judgernenis made by
manzgerment regardmng the expected costs
o complete and the timing and recognition
of vamatian orders, by obtaining and
reviewing the variatian arder and comparnng
the cost assumptions to simidar projects,
We also verhed a sample of aclual costs
incurred to nate through to purchase invoice
ar timesheet records

Ta further assess the slage of completion
at year end we also physieally inspected

a sample of work in progress projects

and reviewed the impact of post year-end
changes on labour hour and cost estimates

Where the criteria for over ime recogmitio
were not met we confrrmed managerent
has recognised revenue at 2 pointin time,
when the relevant performance obligation
has been satished

we perfarmed full scope audit procedures
over this figk area m 2 locations which
covered 100% ol lhe nisk amount
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Risk

Impairment of nen-current assets - EPS
1€2.4 million, 2020: £7.6 miltion]

Refer 1o the Audit Committes Report [page
781, Accounting policies [page 125); and
Nole 15 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements [page +41)

IFRS requires itnpairment testing to e
undertaken when there are indicatars thal
an imparrment may extst, and in the case
of goodwill at leas! annually Gven the
significant balances in respect of goodwill
and recent trading losses, there 15 3 risk
that the Group’s cash generating umts
I'CGUs | may nat achieve the anticipated
business performance ta support their
respective carrying values._In particular
the Group has goodwill of £5 2 mullien 1n
relaten to EPS, which we have designaled
as a signibcant risk given the limited
headroom in management’s impairment
lesting rmedel in prior year

Key ohservations communicated
Our response ta the risk to the Audit Committee
We examined management s impairment We agree with managerment s conclusian
assessment meathodelogy and model that na impairment ot goodwill 1s required
to understand the composition of 1 tha current year
managemenl's future cash How lorecasts,
and the process and related controls
undertaken to prepare them. This included methodoiegy applied is reasanable,
canlirming the underlyng cash Hows were 't the forecast perod s appropriate
cansistent with the Board approved budget 2" thal managemenl’s models are
and strategic plan, and did not include mathemahically accurate
rearganisahions and enhancemments not The additional sensitvty aisclosures
commitied at the balance sheet date We i1 note 15 of the Group financial
atso assessed the identihed CGUs tor slalements adequately reflect thal a
appropriateness We also re-performed reasonadly possible change in cerlain
the calculations in Ihe model to lesl Lha key assumptions could lead lo a different
mathematical integrity conclusion in respect of Ihe recoverability
ol goadwill

We have conciuded that the

We assessed the cash llow farecasting
madels, including consistency with

the strateqc plans for the Group and
assessment of historical forecast accuracy
and impact of COVID-19 ta date and gwer the
forecasl perod

We tested the key inputs to management's
impairment models by

= analysing the historical accuracy of
budgets lo actual results lo delermine
whether tarecast cash flows are reliable
based on past experience,

+ assessing the discount rate used by

obtaining the underlying data used in the

calculation and benchmarking it against

an EY range derwved from comparable

arganisations and market data. involving

EY inlernal specialists to assisl us with

this agsessment, and

comparing the forecast growth rates

10 the order backlog/pipeling using

abservable market data to validate the

addressable market and challenging

whether Lhe lorecasl growth rates have

been appropriately adjusted to rellect the

changes in the Group s strategy.

We calcylaled the degree to which the

key inputs and assurnplions would need

to fluctuate before an mpairment was

triggered and considered the Likelihood

ol this occurning We perfarmed our own

sensitreities on the EPS forecasts and

determined whether adequate headroom

remained

We assessed whether (here were any ather
indicators of impawrment, which would

give rise to the impairment of an iIndmdual
assel

We audited ibe related disclosures with
reterence to Lhe requirements of 1AS 36 and
canfirmed their consiste nty wath the sudited
impairment models.
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Risk

Contingent consideration (30)
1£11.9 million, 2020: £aill

Refer ta the Audil Commitiee Report (page
78); Accounting policies {page 127); and
Note 11 of the Consolidaled Financial
Slaternents [page 133)

Stratasys Solutigns Limited acquired

the remaining 55% equity stake held by
Xaar 30 Holdings Lirmiled in Xaar 3D on &
Oclober 2021, The consideration included
£9.3m paid in cash and  further amount
of up 10 $15 Sm which 1s contingent on the
achievement af certain milestones and

& 3% eacn-out conaideralion in respect

of the future revenues of Xaar 30.

The Group recorded a financial asset of
£10.9m on the date of the ransaclion
{remeasured to £11.9m at 31 Decemnber
2021) in respect of the contingent earni-out
consideration. Estimation of the fair value
considzralion is camptex and relies
on significant ungbsarvasle inputs. The
Group engaged an external specialist to
estimate the fair value of the contingent
consideration.

For Ihis valuation, management’s
external specialist used a Mente Carle
Simulation model given the complex
conditions as3ociated with the contingent
consideration

Key observations communicated

Our response to the risk to the Audit Committea

We have used €Y internal valuation The methodology used by management
specialists lo review the mzthodology to ish the [air valye of the cantingent
and reasonableness of key assumptions censideration is appropriate and the

used within managerment's Monte Carlo resulting valyalion based upon key inputs is
Sirmulation. within our independently established range.

We have engaged a separate EY internal
specialisl ko assess the discaunt cates.
assumed within the Mante Carlo Simulation,
by obtaining the underlyinc data used in the
«alculation and benchmarking il against

an EY range derived from comparable
organisations and market data,

We have assessed the cansistency of
the forecasts with the strategic plans kor
Xaar 30 and impaci of COVID-19 through
validating the lorecast with Stratasys
rmanagernant.

Given Lhe contingent consideration is held
at fair value, we have performed these
procedures at bath the dat2 of dispesal
and at year end and recalc 2ated the fair
value movement recorded n the incormne
statemenl.

We have sudited the relate J disclosures

with reference to the requicemenis af IFRS
and conlirmed they are consistent with the
specialis!’s vatug
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Risk

Inventory provisioning [EPS] {£2.0 mitlion
including provisian of £0.9 million, 2020: €£2.4
million including provision of £1.4 miltion]

Refer to the Audit Committee Repart
tpage 781, Accounting policies [page 1241;
and Nate 20 of the Consolidated Finan
Statements [page 145}

L

in the pricr year Annual Report and
Accounts, Management reported a
significant deficiency in the control
environment in relaticn to inventory
T entat the EPS b

During the period management took steps
1o rerediate the significant deficiencies
identfied in the prior year. The steps taken
are described on page 79 and included a
Tull review of existing inventory provisions
and provisioning methodology. As a result
of these steps. a signilicant write-off of
EPS inventory was recorded. As a result of
our subsequent chaltenge this wnte off of
E0.6m has bean reconded as a prior year
adjustment.

Given the signficance of these two malters,
we have upgraded this to a significant risk
in the current year [specilic ta the EPS
segrmentl, reflecting the overall risk Ihat the
provision recorded by managernent does nat
accurately reflect the level of exposure and
that inventory is incorrectly valued.

Qur response to the risk

We have obtamned an understanding of the
Group's policies on irverony provisions and
how they are applied. including the retevant
controls, and performed a walkthrough to
validate our understanding. We have assessed
the remediation of cantrols previcusly reported
as deficient at EP5 anud found them to be
appropriately remediated,

We perfarmed procedures on the standarg
costs calculations to assess whether only
normal production variances have been
capilalised in the year-end invenlony balance
and material abnormal nefficiencies have
been appropriately expensed. We have
checked hat irvenlory was apgrapriately
revglued to an estimate of actual cost.

We have performed tests of clerical accuracy
on management's inventory provision
talculations.

We have performed procedures to validate
the appropriateness of any management
judgements applied in calculsling the
inventory prowision.

Fora sample of inventory lines, we have
reviewed post year-end selling prices in
comparison t¢ the values assumed in the
baok values recorded. Where Lhe book

value exceeds realisable value, we have
confirmed that management has recorded an
appropriate provision.

We have discussed the latest sales and
marketing strategies including implicatians
for the tevel of provision recorded, This
included comparing forecast product usage
10 customer orders, considenng historical
usage, historical accuracy of provisioning and
understanding management’s future plans lo
ulilise the invenlory,

We attended managament’s year-end wall

1o wall inventory caunt 2t EPS and also for
eachof the ather key lecations [Printhead ang
This comprised 100% of all stocks

of the Group

We have audited the related disclosures with
reference to the requirements of IFRS.

._ .A_ Kaar plc - Annual Report and Financial Statwments 2021
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Key observations communicated
to the Audit Cammittee

Follawing the pasting of the prior year
residiement Isee note 37, the provisions
reflect the adjustment required to ensure
that inventary baiances reflect the lower of
cost or NRV.



Risk

Acquisition accounting [FFE!}

Refer to the Audit Committee Report [page
771; Accounting policies [page 122), and
Note 34 of the Conscldated Financial
Stalements [page 161)

FFEI Limited was acquired in July 2621 for
E% 1m [[3 ¥ milian cash consideration with
the remaming £3 2m to be paif out as a
deferreq consideration over three years|
Management have up ta |2 months from
the date al acquisilion ta finalise the
3Cquisingn accoynting in accerdatice with
IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, Qur nisk
locus 1s around

Clazgification and measurenent of
deferred consideration and cond
attached

Fair value estimation lor acquired
intanyibles

ns

Openmng balance shest testing
» Trangtion from FRS 102 1o IFRS
Result:ng updales to tax balances

Key observatiens communicated

Our response to the risk to the Audit Committee

We have reviewed the sale and purchase We concluded that the transaction
agreemenl and due dilgence report was properly accounted lor in accordance
Lo determine the compleleness of the with IFRS 3, and the fair value adpstoments
dentified acauired assets and liabibilies. and Purchase Price Aliacation

were approprigte The relevant tax
considerations have been recorded
and disclosed appropriately i the
finangial staternenis.

We have revawed the jgurnals posted (o
rransition the opening balances from FRS
102 to IFRS We have also perfarmed a
walkthrough of the sigrificant processes to
deterrtine any further areas thal require
consideration in terms of IFRS transition
agjustments that were not previously
cansidered by managemenl

We have reviewed management's
accounting paper and reparting received
Irom manggement's specialistin relalionto
the farr value of Intangible assels and useful
economic lile assigned and engaged our EY
mternal valuation specialists 1o review the
methgdalogy and key assumptions,

We have engaged our EY nlernal tax
specialists 1o assess the tax methodology
and ratcs apphed by managernent when
calculating the associated delerred tax
adjustrments ansing from the acguisiion
aceounting, and

Wa have audited the disclosures within
Ihe annual reporl and accounts i relation
12 Ihe business combination and resulting
<anges

In the prior year, our auditar § report included a key audil malter 1 relation to recaverabrity of recewables, cansolidation of Xaar 30 and the

EPS business In the current year:

» Reggverabdily of recevabiles no longer represents a key audil matter {ollowing improvements i the ageing prolile af receivables,
resolution of legacy matlers and reduced exposure of the customer base to the econgmic impact of COVID-19,

« Consolidation ol Xaar 30 na longer represents a key audit malter given Ihe business was disposed of duning the year: and

» The EPS business no langer represents a key audit matler given the sleps management have taken to remediate the previously reported
signilicant deficiencies and the angoing risk Factors are sncorporated within other Key Audit Matters, namely revenue recagmitien,
impairment of non-currenl assets and 1ventory provisioning
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of matenality in planning and performing the audiL, in evaluating the effect of identified missialements on the aurit
and in forming our audit opinion

Materiality

The magniiude of an omission or musstatement that, indwdualiy or in the oggregale. could bly be expected to mffuence the econormic
decrsions of the users of the financial statements Materalty prowdes a basts Jor determining the rature and extent of aur audit procedurcs

We deterrmined malerialily for the Group to ba E300k 12020 (2401, wivch 1s 0 5% (2020 0 5%) of revenue We believe thal revenue prowndes
us with the mast approprate basis gven it s the main KP) for the Group. whilst the Group reports an adjusted loss betore tax

We determined materiality far Ibe Parenl Company to be £300k (2020 £240k), which we capped at the Group materiality
During the course ol aur audit, we reassessed ibial mateniabity and updated far the final result for the year
ity

The application of matenality at the ndividual sccount or balance level It is set 2t an amounl to reduce 10 an appropriately low level the prababilily
that the aggregale of uncorrected and undetected musstatements exceeds materiality

Performance mate

On the basis of our risk assessments, tngether with our assessment ol the Group's owerall coatrgl environment, our Judgement was thal
pertormance mzleriality was 50% 12020, 50%] of our planming matenality, namely €150k (2020 £12Ck] We have maintained performance
malersalily at this percentage reflecting our observations of the Group's syslems and processes, susceptibility of the inancial statements to
manageme nt averride and histanical audt indings

Audit work at companenl locations for the purpose af oblaining audit coverage aver significant financial statement accounts 15 underiaken
based on a percentage of total parformance matenalty The perlormance materiality set far each component s based on Lhe relative scale
and nsk of the companent 1o the Group a5 3 whole and our assessment of the fisk of misslalement al that campangant 1 the current year,
the range of performance materizlity allocated to companents was £30k to 0112k 12020 £24k to £91%]

Reparting threshald
An amount betow which identified rsstatements are considered as being clearty trveat

We agreed with the Audit Comemitiee that we would repert Lo themn all uncorrecied avehl differences in excess of £15% {2020 £12%], whih 1s
set at 5% of planning materiality, as well 35 differences below that thresheld that, 1N our wew. warranled reporting on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatemenlts against beth the quantitative measures of materiality discusaed above and in Light of other
relevant qualilalive cansideralions in farming aur spinion.

Other information

The other inlormation comprises the information sncluded in the annual repart, other than the hnancial statements and our audiler s report
therean The directors are respansible for the other nformation contained wilthin the annual report

Our cpinian on the financial statements daes not cover the other informaton and, except to the extent otherwise expliotly stated in this
report, we do aot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our respansibility 1s to read the ather information and. 1 daing so, consider whether the ather information 1s materially iInconsistent with
the financ izl statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the 2udit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated [ we wentify
such material inconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives r1s¢ 1o a material

r in the financial thernselves. I, based on the work we have performed, wa conclude that there 1s 3 matenal
3.3.».«335:32:2:.Eamgo:.s‘mmﬁin_:_wmn:c_mca:Sw:mn,,

We have nething to report in this regard

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

In aur opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be aud ted has been properly orepared in accordance wilh the Companies
Act 2006

In aur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

the infarmation gven sn the strategic report and the directors’ repart for the financial year lar which the linanciat slatements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements and those reports have been prepared in accordance with applicable leqal requirements,

the infarmation about internal control ane risk management syslems in relation to inancial reporiing processes and abaut share

capital structures. given in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2 & in the Oisclosure Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook made by

the Financial Conduct Authority [the FCA Rules), 15 consistent with the hinancial statements and has been prepared 1n accordance with
applicable legal requirements, and

Inforfnalion about the company's carparale governance statement and practices and about its adrunistralive, management and
supervisery badwes and their commitiees complies with rules 7.2 2, 7 2.3 and 7 2.7 of the FCA Rules

ﬂ 4 M x..qv_n,_._;_..;.u.:..am_,._.._._._m...ua..__-zx
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the Iight ot th2 knawledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and its environment ebtained in the course of the
audit, we have not wentified material misstatements

+ the strateqic report oc the directars’ report. or

= 1ng informatc n about Imernal zenlrol and risk management systems in relalion to hinancial reporting processes and about share capilal
structures, gren in comphance with rules 72 S and 7 2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nathine Lo report in respect at the following malters in relatan 1o whizh the Companies Act 2006 requires us to repart lo you

our apirom

« adequate accounling recards have nol been kept by the parent company. ar ‘elurns adequate for our audst have not been receved fram
branches not sisited by us, or

 the parent company tinancial stalements and the parl ol the Directors’ Remaneration Report to be audited are not 1n agreement with Lhe
accounting rezords and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specihied by law are not made, or
« we have not recewved all the informatien and explanalions we requira far our sudit, or
+ 3 Corparate Gover nance Statement has not been prepared by the company

Corporate Governance Statement

We have reviewed the direciors statement i relatan 1o qoing concern, longer-term wiahilily and that part ol the Cerperate Gavernance
Statement relating to the Group and company’s compliance with the prowisions of the UK Corporate Gevernance Code specified lor our
¢ eview by the Listing Rules.

Based on the work underlzken as part of our 2udit, we have concluded thal eah of the lollowing etements of the Corporate Governance
Statement 1s mztenally consistent with the financial statements o our knowledge obtained during the augit

Directors statament wath ragards te Lhe approprialeness ol adopting the gamg concern basis of accounting and any matenal uncertainbes
weattied set out on page &7,

Directors exp analion as to their 2ssessment al 1he company s praspects, the peaod this assessment covers and why the penod is
appropriate set out on page 48,

Direclors slatement on whether they have a reasanable expectation Lhat the Group will be abte to continue 1n operation and meets s
liabitnies set cut on page 68;

.

Directors statzment on fa, balanced ang understandable set cut on page 6,

.

Board 5 confirnation that it has carned out a robust assessment ol the emerging and principal nsks set out on page 65,

The secuian of the annual repart that describes the rewew of effectiveness o aisk management and internal conlrol systems set oul on
page 45, and

The section de scribing the work of the audit commiltee set oul on page 77

Responsibilities of directors

As explained mare tully in the directors responsibilites statement set oyt on page 102, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the hinancial stakements and for being satished thal they give a Irue and fair view, and far such internzal control as the directors determine s
necessary to enz ble the preparation ol hnancial statements that are frag from matersal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financiar stalemenis, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group and parent corpany’s ability te continue as
2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going cancern ard using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
direciors either intend Lo liquidate the Group or the parent company or Lo ceas2 operalions, or have no reabistic alternative bul {3 do so.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the inancial statements as a whole are Iree from material risstatement,
whether due 10 fraud or arror, and to 15sue an aud-tor's repart thal includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 3 high level ot assurance.
but is nat a guarantee that an audit <onducted n accordance with 1545 {UK) will always detect a matenial misstatement when it exists.
Misstalements can anse trom fraud or error and are considered material if, ingwidualty or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be
expecled to influence the economic decisians of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

Explanation a5 to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irreguiartties, inctuding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures -n Line with our
responsitililies, outlined above, to detect wregutanities, including fraud, The nisi of not detecting a material msstatement due tofraud
is higher than the nsk of not detecting one resulting trom errar, as fraud may ivlve debiberate conceatment by, for example, forgery or

imentional misrepresentalions, ar through collusian The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inctuding
Iraud is detailed below

However, the primary respensibility far the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the company
and management,

We obtaned an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and determined that the mest
signiicant are thase that relate to the reporting [ramewark [IFRS, FRS 101, the Companies Act 2004 and the UK Carporate Governance
Code) and the relevant tax compliance regulations in the jurisdichons in which the Group operates In addition, we concluded that there
are certam significant laws and regulations which may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosiures in the hnancial
stotements being the Listing Rules of Lhe UK Listing Authority, and thoco regulations ralating to health and s faty and employee matters,

We understood how Xaar ple is complying with those framewarks by making enquiries of management, the Company Secrelary, and thase
bl

Tesp tor legal and compliance procedures We corroborated our enguines through our rewiew of hoard minutes, papers provided 1o
ﬂzmbcq_ﬂnoas_:mm,n,mn,.mm_o:i:::a.»..a..n.a.j:.__:mmmanuzwnoawmuojnmznmEnm_ﬁa_aa anc_mﬁoecon_mm

-

We assessed the susceptibiity of the Group's finaneial statements to material misstaternent, including haw fraud might eccur by audit
We also considered perlormance targets and thew inftuence on efforts made by managemenl 1o manage earmngs oc inflyence the
perceplions of analysts We considered the pragrammes and conirols thal the Group has established to address risks identified. or that
otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud and how senior management monitors those pragrammes and controls, Where the risk was
considered to be higher. we performed avait pracedures 1o address each identified fraud nsk ncluding revenue recognition as discussed
above These procedures included testing manual journals and were designed to provide reasanable assurance that the Iinanceal
stetements were free from fraud or errer

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures ta identify non-campliance with such Laws ang regulations., Qur
procedures involved journal entry testing, with a focus on manual consolidation journals and journals indicating large of unusual
transactions hased on gur understanding of the business: enquiries of the Company Secretary, head of legal, avdit commitiee,
management, and focussed lesling, as referred to in the key audit matters section abave. In addition, we completed procedures to
conclude on the compliance of the disclasures in the Annual Report and Accounts with the reguirements of the relevant accounting
standards, UK legislation and the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Aturther description of eur responsibilities for the auoil of the financial staterments is located en Lthe Financial Reporting Counal's website
at hitps:fwwwelrcorg uk/auditorsrespansibilities This description forms part of our auditor s repor]

QOther matters we are required to address

» Following the recommendation from the audit commilies we were appointed Ly the company on 14 June 2021 to audii the financial
slatements lor the year ending 31 Decermber 2021 and subsequent financial periods

» The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments ts 3 years, covering the years ending 2019
to 2021

+ The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee

Use of cur report

This report 15 made salely to the company's members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Cur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matlers we are required ta state (o them i an
auditar's repart and for no other purpose Te the fullest extent permilted by Law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company's members as a body. far our audit work, far this report, or for the apinions we have formed

Adrian Bennett - ﬂ a.ﬂ n\—b
Senior statutory auditor nxvﬁmvmﬂ h\
for and on behall of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Cambridge

79 March 2022
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Hates £000 £1000
Revenye B 59,254 47,984
Cost of sales [39,084} 134 974)
Gross profit 20,190 13010
Researcn ard cevelopment expenses 15,704) [4,5351
Research and cevelopment expendiure credit 270 142
Sales and markeling expenses 18,342) 15,8701
General and admunistrative expenses {10,070 I8.0221
Impairment reversals on firancial assets 388 46
Restructuring and transaclion expenses (1,404) 1754)
Diher operating ipcome 7 - a9
Fair value gam o0 financial assets at FVPL 2 87 -
Gain an dervat ve financial Liabililies 22 2,99 7
Operating profit/{lass) 1,212 16.287]
Investmeni income 10 4 o
Finanee costs t242) 1871
Profit/{loss) betore tax 95 14,322}
Incore tax credit/lexpensel 12 (299] 152
Proht/lloss| for the year from ¢anunuing operations &95 14,374]
Proht/llessh Iram discontinued operations after 12x n 13,531 110 295)
Pralit/[loss]| tor tha year 14,220 114.549)
Attributable to:
QOwners of the Company 18,219 11,685
Men-contrething intesest a5 11,9913 12,984
ProfitfIloss) for the year 14,228 14,669
Earnings/lless) per share - Total
Basic 14 20.9p 15 2al
Diluted 14 20.8p 5.2p)
Earnings/lloss| per share = Cantinuing operations
Basic 14 09p 57pl
Diluted 14 2.9 15 7pl
There were no dividends paid during the current and preceding year
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2021
Restated
N 2020
Notes. £'000 £000
Profit/(loss! for the year 14,228 (14.46%)
Items that may be reclass/ied subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange d fferences on retransiation of net nvestmenl 143 282
Tax - 15
Other comprehensivi income for the year 143 57
Total comprehensive income/§loss) for the year 14,371 116,412
Tolal compranensive loss attributable b
Owiners of the Company 15,3484 111 4d4|
Non-contrelling interests 35 11,995) 12 968)
16,31 1144121
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Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2021

Restatuct
2031 200
Nates. £ogp £000
Non-current assets
Coodwill 15 5894 5152
Intangible assets 15 4,043 207
Proparty, plant 3nd equipment 17 16,226 17,147
Righl-of-use asset 18 9,388 2078
Financial assel al fair value 1hvough profit ar loss 2 11,850 -
Deferred tax assel 23 - 139
47381 26720
Current assets
Invenlonigs 20 18,839 9750
Trade and other recewables n 12,138 4,440
Current tax asset 21 531 425
Treasury deposits 2 - 151
Cash and cash equivalents 21 25,051 17.9%
Derwalve financial instruments 2 - 160
Agsels held tor sale 17 - 43
56,559 38.135
Disposal group assets held for sale 1 - 9.948
. 56,559 48103
Total assets 103,920 72.826
Current liabilities
Trade and ather payabtes U [21,489) 19 9401
Prowigions 5 (264) (3571
Decivative financral nstruments 22 - 2919
Lease liabilives 18 .2311 (10641
(22.984) 114.280)
Liabilities a550¢ialed with the disposal group 1 - 11589)
122,984) 115,865
Nel current assets 11575 37 204
Mon-current babitities
Delerred tax liabilities 23 al -
Lease Liatnlities 18 18,4991 11,5151
Prowisions 5 (300} -
Other financial lratlities 2 (3,354 -
Tolal non-current 112.154) 11.515¢
Total Liabi . 135.138) [17.384]
Netassets 48,802 55442
Equity
Share cap.tal 26 7,844 7833
Share pramium 27 29.427 79.328
Own shares 8 f1.923) 11,957
Transtatan reserve al 1.0 Bés
Olher reserves a0 21,830 N7
Retained earnings. 36 10,623 15,564
Equity attribulable to owners al the Company 48,802 51.671
Non-controlling inlerest 35 - 377
Total equity 43,902 9% 4d?

The financial slatements of Xaar ple, registered number 3320972, were approved by the Board of Divectors and authansad 1o 1ssue

m@&nr 2072 They were signe behalf by
{ Aansy

ahn Mills lad Tichias

Chiet Execute Officer Chief Financial Qllicer

.ﬂ -_ D hu-qv_nl-:::-Sov-:-_n1:_.-_:_-_.9-.3-_-!._3
Financaal Starements



Consolidated statement of changes in equity Consclidated cash flow statement
as at 31 December 2021 or the year ended 31 December 2021

Non- 2021 219
Shars Share Teanslaten Other  Retained conlrolung Noles £'088 oo
cagilal  gremium reserVaS  TREOTVES  GATRIA4S Tolal intwreat
Noles E£000 (L 111 £000 (1] £:000 €000 £o00 Net cash used in operating activities kil {2,054} {2.807|
Balance at 1 Jaruary 2020 las reported] 7833 29328 594 w5 7598 £3,59% 6739 Investing activities
Carrection of errar 37 - - - 2% - 17¢4] 17421 - Investment income 0 17 84
Batance at 1 Jaruary 2020 las resiated] 1833 29328 (26780 418 20921 4832 8285 679 69.595 Treasury depesils withdrawn 4l 181 1
N1e85 13R85 (298] 1148890 Purchase of derivative financial instrurment - nagl
Loss lor the year - - - - - : 5 : 51 . : i5) Purchases of praperty, plani and equipment 11,874) 11.098]
me onilems takzn directly ”Dmm:ow—mﬂg.o: aivet - - - mmM - 4 .,M. 2 Proceeds on dispasal of property, plant and equipment 209 157
mndwﬂﬂh)nmﬂm_—qmam:nmm on retr L - = ) Expenditure on software (381 -
) Proceeds from disposal of invastrent in subsidiary 1 9,272 -
[V tian ol 37 - - - 22 - 4 - b33 g
orrection of ermr Cash altributable to subsidiary sold t9sl R
Total comprehensiva Loss Acquisition of subsidiary, net cash acquired -
far the year as rzported - - - 2%k - D188l 11.640) (2968 [14.408] 4 it il 36 184
Own shares sold'in the period . 28 - - 71§ - - - 719 - ne Net cash provided byf{used in) investing aclivities 7.812 1638)
Share oplion exe-cises - - - - - 17101 {70 - [710] Financing activities
Credit to equity for aquity-settled shara- Proceeds from mm:.m um o_..____:mJ. share nu._u__u_ 150 -
based payments 9 . . - - b _ b _ 248 Payrment of lease liabilities and related interest 1B824) 12241
Balance at 31 December 2020 las restated] 7RI 29328 f19sn B&4 21167 15.564) 5147 am 55.442 Net cash used in financing activities [874) 1,224}
Profit lor the yea- - - - - - 6% 1BN% 1991 V4228 Netincrease / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,085 6 A&TI
Tax on items taken diractly 10 equily - - - - - - - - - Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash balances (1900 571
Exchange differeces en Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 20,078 74,806
retfanslation of retinvesiment - - - 147 - - 147 tl 143 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 25,051 20078
Total comprehersive income for the year - - - 147 - 1219 18.3s4 119931 143N -
Dwn shares sold i the period 28 - - 34 - - - 3% - kN Cash and cash equivalents attributabte to subsidiary soid 1" - 2120
Share option exescises 1 99 - - - 132) 8 - B Cash and cash equivatents 21 25,051 17956
Credit to equity fer equity-settled sha
based paymenis g - - - - 633 - L - 653 Cash and cash equivalents lwhich are presented as a single class of assel on the face of the cansolidated statement of inzncial position)
Derecagnition of “en-cantrolling interest 35 - - - - - - - {1778 11,7781 comprise ash at bank and other shori-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months of less The carrying amaunt of these
Batance at 31 December 2021 7804 29477 (1823 1010 21,820 10,423 68,802 - sz assets is approximately equal to their fair value.

The nature of retained earnings and other reserves in equity 1s gescribed n noe 30
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. General information

Xaar ple | the Group'lis incorporated 1n England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered oflsce s
gwven on the inside boack cover The nature of the Group s aperations and its prinzipal actwity are set out in the Strategic Report on
pages & to 57

The Strategic Report <an he found on pages 4 Yo 57

2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

The key assumptions concerning Ine future and other sources of estimation uncertamty at the date of the statement of iinancial posiien
that have a significant risk of causing @ material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Liabikities within the next financial year
are as follows

Accounting judgements — The Greup apphes pudgement in how iLapples its accounting policies, whech dn not iovolve estimation, which
coutd materally 2fisct the numbers aisclesed in these financial statements The key judgements, wathout estmalion, that could have the
mast sigrificant effect on the amounts recognised m these hinancial statements are as follows,

Capitalisation of development costs [accounting judgement] - nate 14

As deseribed i note 3, the Group capitalises development expenditure as an intangible asset where the criteria under 1A5 38 ‘Inlangible
Assets 15 met This requires management to make judgement on when all of the critena for capitalisation are met and when lo cease
capitaliszlion and slart amertising the asset There were no capitabsed development costs for the current and prior year as there are no
projects that have met the capitalisat-on criteria as the techaical feasibility e« ter i3 15 only lymcally achieved at the end of a project and given
the capitalisation ceased on Xaar 30 0 201% and s subsequent sale this year.

Discontinued op ions laccounting j ] -note 11

Fallowang the Boarg decision in Decernber 2020 to amend the terms of the call aption 1n relation to Xaar 30 the Group considered the
application of IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Descontinued Operations’ The 3D business meets the critena of 3 discontinued
operation per IFRS 5 gven it has been previously been reported as a major 1ine of busiaess and the disposal was formally compteled on

I Noverber 2021 Tre accounting udgemert relating to the conseligation of Xaar 30 1n the 2020 linancial statements 1S no lenger applicable n
the 2023 financial statements following the dispasal of Xaar 30 on 1 November 2021 in accordance with UK-adopted Intermativnal Accounting
Standards The business was repomted as held for sale at 31 Decernber 2020

Significant estimates - “he preparauon of firancial statements in accordance with UK-adopted internahional aceounting standards
{IFRS] requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ol assels and liabihtias at the date of the hnancial
Statements ant Lhe reported amounts of revenues and expenses duning the reparbing year Although these estimates are based on
manzagement’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, actual resulls ulimalely may ditfer rom those esbmates The estmales
and underly:ng assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis The estimales and assaciated 2ssumplions are based on historical
expenence and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Revraions 1o accounting estimates are
recogmised 1n the penad in which the esimate is revised If the revision aflects only that period, or in the paricd of the revision and future
periods i the rewsion affects buth current and future pericds

The Directors consider the fallowing to be the key estirnates applicable to the financ al statements, which have a significant nisk of resulling
in 3 malerial adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next linancial year ar in the Longer term:

Climate-related risks [estimation uncertainty)

Chimate change s a global challenge and an emerging nisk to businesses. peogle and the environment access the world We have a role
ta play v lrting global warming by imgroving our energy management reducing aur carbon emissions and by helping our custamers
do the same Growing awareness of chmate change and custormer suslainability largels will previde Impetus for business growth as we
provide producls, services and solutions that increase efficiency and reduce customers energy use and carbon emissians As 8 resull,

11 our view climate change does ol create any further key sources of estimation uncertainty For jurther detail see the Risk management
and Sustamability sections of the Strategic Report

Contingent consideration [estimation uncertainty) - note 11, 22

In Movernber 2021, Stratasys Salutions Limited acquired the remanning 55% of Xaar 30 Limited lor an inial consideration of US$13.5 million or
£99 millisn 1n cash and a milestone conswderation and 3% earn-out conswderation which are contingent on the achievement of certan rulestones
1n respect of the future rovenue stream of Xaar 30 and should be estimated using @ statistical simutanion model This conbingent consideration is
“neasured at fair value using a Monte Carlo Simulation modet The Group considers this model to be approprate. given the camplex conditions
associated with the milestone consideration and 3% earn-out consideralion The Monte Cario Simulation moded uses a number of inputs that
require esimation ang the key ones are the nisk-adjsted discount rate and revenue volatilty. Whilst the Group uses thind party experts lo provide
these nputs and is dependent on receipt of duta or hnanesal infarmation {rom Lthe purchaser, the estimates remain uncerlam.

y provision [ tion uncertainty| - note 20
The Groug 5 inventory provisian at 31 December 2021 of £9,571,000 (2020 €24.621 L0001 includes £6,289,000 relating to discontinued
operztions 2020 £21.296,000) and £3,282.000 from continuing operations {2020 £3,365.0001. The reducton in Graup's inventory provision
15 mannly due to clear down of previgusly provided inventory amounting 10 £16.239.000 All assets, including inventory, that relate to the
Giscontinued operations have been valued at the lower of the carrying amaunt and fair value less cost 1o sell Previsions in relation to
continuing operations have been made based on management’s assessment of customer sell Through, market condions, current and
potential competitars, and the ageing profile and quantity of the invantory on hand Furthermore, management has assessed Lhe likely ime
periad Lo sell the nventary and the ability to decrease prices to dive sales
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2027

2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements continued
Credit provision for the all of debls [estimation uncertaintyl - nate 21

The Group's prowision for doubtiul debts of £144,000 (2020 £622.000] relates te management’s assessment of 1he ageing profile of
recewables and the risk of collecting unpaid overdue balances In making the eshmate, managemenl has taken sleps to assess the ongoing
wiabilty of the customers, the probabilily and iming of repayment, extesnal lactars which may alffect the custorners ability to pay and
mstorical data relating to seltlerment ol aged dehts

impairment of capitalised develapment costs [estimation unceriainty] - note 16

The Group determines whether capilalised developmenl costs, and all olher non-current assets, are impaired at east on an annual basis
This requires an estunation of the value-1n-use of the cash generating umits te which the capilalised develapment costs are allocated
Estimaling 2 value-in-use amount requires management lo make an estimate of Lhe expected future cash flows from the cash-generaling
unit and also to cheose a surtable discount rate in order |o calculate the present value of those cash flows, The carrying amount ol
capitatised development costs at 31 Decenber 2021 was €1.000 [2020: €7¢,000

Impairment of goodwitl [estimation uncertainty) - note 15

The Group tests goadwitl annvally for smpairment or more frequently if there are indicatians that goodwill might be impaired, Having
perfarmed impairment testing, no impairment has been wentified and therefare na impairment loss has heen recogmsed in 2021 (2020
£ml) Management has performed sensitivity analysis on its reasonably worst case scenario for EPS ang FFE| and it has been completed
an each key assumplion 1n 1soiation. With regard Lo EPS, reasonably possible change sensitvhies are included in note 15

R recopnition (estimation uncertainty) - note 5

Engineered Printing Solutions and FFEI recagnise revenue on Lhe stage of completion for some of the cuslomer contract and perlormance
obligalions in Ihe manulacture al bespoke machinery and equipment as well as sorre of the research and development services lor delivery
to the customer

Each monih an assessment s undertake " of the werk in progress and stage of completion «n both supply ol indmdual components and
labour haurs aliocaled tg the project against the expected prosect manufacture costs The revenue delermined 1s recogmised upon the
propartion and stage of completion ol the performance obligations Thns assessment enables an estmate to ba undertaken for 1he expecied
profitability of the custorner contract, costs incurred to date, and costs to camplate, but 1s subject ta 8 level of uncertainty until the work in
progress is finalised and the complated machinery and services are available for fnal delivery and acceplance by the customer

The transaction price aliocated to parually salishied and unsatisfied obligations at 31 Decernber 2021 15 set out in note 5

3. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted Internatianal Accounting Standards IAS] The financial
intormatian has been prepared on Ine basis of all applicable IFRS, including all Intarnational Accounting Standards lIAS]. Sla~ding
Interpretations Commuttee [SIC] interpretations and Lnlernational Financel Reporting Inlerpretations Committee IIFRICY imerpretalions
wssued by the International Accounting Standards Board IASBS that are applicable to the financial perod

The linancial statements have been prepared on the hislorical cost basis, except lar the revaluatian of finantial mstruments. The Group
financial stalemants are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded ta Ihe nearest thousand pounds [€'000] except when olherwise
indicated The principal accounting policies adopted are sel out below

Basis of consolidation

The cansalidated financial statements incarporate the hnancial statements ol the Company and entibes controlled by the Company

I'its subsidianes | made up to 31 December each year Control 15 achieved where the Company has the power to govern Ihe financeal and
operating palicies ol an investea entily o as to ablain benehts frum s actwities Aninvestor cantrols another entity, an investee, it and only
it the investor has all of the following. il has power over the inveslee, exposure or nights to vanable relurns from its involvement with the
investee, and the abitity To use 115 power over the investee to affect the amount of the nvester's relurns. To have power, an investor must
have existing substantive rights that gwe it the current ability 16 direct the relevant actwities The investor reassesses whether it controls

an entity Il Iacts ang circumslances indicale changes to one er more af the elements of control

The results of subsidiares acquired ar disposed of during the year are included 1n the consolidated income statemenl Irom the date of
acquisition ar up to the date ol disposal, as appropriate Where necessary, adjustments are made to the hinancial statements of subsidanies
1o bring the accounting policies used in Une wilh Those used by the Group

All ntra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on conselidation, Foreign exchange gains and losses ansing on
the retranslation of rading balances with subsidiaries wilh different funchional currencies are reporied in the income statement

Nan-controlling interests 1n subsidiacies are identhiad separately from the Group s equity therein Thase interests of non-contreling
shareholders that are present ownership inlerests enbthing Iheir holders ta 3 propartionale share of net assels upon kiquidation may ntially
he measures at fair value or at the non-controlling interests proporticnate share ol the fair value of Ihe acquiree’s identihable nel assels
The choice of measurement ;s Made on an acquisition -by-acquisikion basis

Proht o loss and each component of other comprehenswe income are atinbuted o the owners of the Company and to the non-controiling
nterests. Total comprehensive income of subsidianies 1s attnibuled Lo the owners of the Company and to the non-centrotling interests even
il this results in the non-controlling nterests having a deficit balance
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition continued

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recognised in accordance with IFRS 15 when cantrol has been lranslerred to the customer. For product sales, revenue is
recognised at 8 poinlin ime. unless specific conditions have been satistied allowing revenue to be recogrised over a period of lme as
wentified m the live-step process [abovel; this can anse in the Product Print Systems and Digitat Imaging segments for example where the
asset produced doesn't have an allernative use and the Group has an enforceable right Lo payment for performance completed teo date. An
nput methodalogy (based on estimated labaur haurs or costs) 1S used as this depicls the performance conditions when recegnising revenue
ouer time Where this 1s the case, ihe performance obligations are typically nol distinct as set out above Payments for revenue recognised
aver ime are tymcally in instalments whereas pontin ime revenue 1s typically invoiced in arrears. Cammissions and services revenue 1s
recognised over ime where the customer simultaneously recewves and consusnes the benchits of the Group's performance a5 the Group
perform Where this 1sn'l Lhe case, revenue 1s recagnised al a paint in time, Payments fer this revenue stream are typically in arrears

Royalties are recogmised on an accruals basis, based on quarterly stalements recewed from each ligensee. The royalties arise bram
the hicensee s use of their prntheads and aur relaled intelleclual property nstatled 1 equipment developed by original equipment
manufacrurers [ OEMSs |

Practical expedients
Use has been made ol the practical expedient not to recogrise a significant inancing component where the period between transfer of the
good or service and payment 1s one year or less.

Recelvables

A recavable i recognised when the perfarmance obligatiens are satisticd e g ypen shipment for praduct sales, upen delivery a5 services
are rendered or upan completion of serwcel a8 this is the paint in ime that the cansideration i1s uncondilional because only the passage

of ume 15 required before the payment is due. there will be a reservatien of tile vntil payment has been recewed, but conlrel has been
transterred

Contract assel/contract Liability

A cantract asset 1s recognised when revenue recognised in respect of a cuslomer contract exceeds amounts received or recewable from

the customer This situation arises when the recogmiion of revenue over time to date 15 grealer than amounts invaiced to the customer and
1nv0icing 1§ conditional on further perfarmance The carmung amount 1s reduced by allowances for expected credit lasses under IFRS 9

When there 13 3n unconditional enhtlement, generally when mnvoices ace raised, the contract asset values are reclassilied to trade recewables

Contract habilitios comprise the Group's obligotion to transfer gaods ar ceraces to 3 cusiomer for which the Group has reconved payment
iram the cuslamer in advance af revenue recoghiton. This situation anses when the custamer 15 iInvaiced in advance and the revenue
recogrised over ime 15 lower than the amounts iwoiced to the cuslomer

Custemer acquisilion cosls

Where sales commissien is Linked directly ta an indimdual sale and 1s therefore an incremental cest of acquiring that conleact, the
cammission s recogmised as an asset on the batance sheed eferred customer acquisition costs are amortised over the period that the
related goods or services transfer to the customer Gwen the majority of revenue 1 recognised at 3 point in ime, this doesn’t qive rise to
ralenal 355ets on the balance sheet

Investment income
Investment Incame 15 accrued on a tme 9a%i5, by reference to the principal auisianding and at the effective interest rate applicable. which is.
the rate that disceums estimated future cash receipts through the expectad Lle of the linancial asset lo that assel’s nel carrying amounl,

Interest expense
Interest expense on lease Liabilives s 2 component of finance casls which is required to be presented separately i the incoma statement

Foreign currencies

The indwidual financial statements of each Graup company are presented in the currency of the primary ecanomic envirenment in which it
aperates lils funchional currencyl, For the purpose of the consolidaled financial statements, the results and financial positian ol each Group
company are expressed in Sterling. which 1s the tunctional currency ot the Company and the presentation currency for the consoldated
hnanciat slatemenls

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary assets and habilives. and oq Lhe retranstation of monetary assets and liabities,
are included in the incame statement for the pened

In order to hedge its expasure to ceriain foreign exchange risks, the Growg may enler into lorward contracts [see page 147 lor details of the
Group s accounting policies in respect of such denvatwe financial instruments|

Further infarmation can be found on page 147
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
Foreign currencies continued

For the purposcs of prezenting consolidated financiol statements, the assels and habilitics of the Greup s lercign operations are translated
al the exchange rates previnling on the dote of the statement of inancial pesitun Income and expense Hems are transloted ot Ihe overoge
exchange raltes for the perod.

Exchange diflerences arising an the teanslation al the netinvestment in fareign operations are recognised in olher comprehensive Income
and taken g the transtation reserve

When the Oroup s foreign operations are liquidated or disposed, eachonge differences previcusly fecoyiaed thigugh ulher wmprel
income and the tranclation resorve will be recycled ond recognised through the income slatement

Gordwill and lir volue adpustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated 25 assets and Labiblies of the forcign entily and
translated ai the tlosing rate

Government and EU grants.

Government and EU granls are nol recogrised untd there 1s reasanable assurance ihat the Group will comply with Lhe conditions attached
10 them and that the grant will be recerved Government and EU grants relating to reseanch and development are treated as income over
the pariods necessary ta match them with the related costs, orin Lhe case af the Payment Pratection Pragram [PPP] for COVIO-19 support
prowided by the US Gavernment, that it meets the criteria tor the laan to be warvet and recogrised 25 grant ncome

QOperating profit/lloss]
Nperating profitfiloss) is statad alter charging rastructuring costs but before investrnent ncame and finance costs

Restructuring costs

Restructuring cost refers to the one-bme expenses of infrequent expenses which are incueced by the Group in the process of reorganising
15 business aperatons with the motive al the overallimproverent ol the lang-term profilabibity and wacking efliciency of the Group
Retirement benefit costs

Payments 1o defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an enpence as they falt due Mayments made ta ctote managed
retirement benelt schemes are dealt wath 35 payments to defined contribytion schemes where the Broup's obiigalns under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benelit scheme

Taxaticn

The lax expense represents (he sy ob e lax coently payable and delerred Lax, ocluding UK corporation 1ax and foreigh tax

The tax curvently payable 1s based on taxable profil for the year Taxable prehit differs fram net profil as reported in the income statement
beeause it excludes tems of Incame or crpense that are taxahle or deductible in ather years and it further excludes demathot are nover

taxable or deguciible The Group's Lakility for current Lax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the date cof lhe stalement of financial position

Deferred tax 12 the lax expected to be payable or recoverable an differences belween the canying amounts af asvels and babibties o the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used inthe computation of tavable prolit and 1s accounted lor using the statement
of inancial postion fiability method Deferred tax liahilties are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deterred tax

cools are recegrised to Lhe oxtent that 1€ probable that taxable profts will be Jvailoble againct which deduetible lemporary differences
can be utilised Such 2ssets and liabilies are not recogmised Wl the temporary difference arises lrom the imtial recognmon ol gaodwill
laxable temporary diflerences onlyl or fram the rmutial recognaition [other than n 2 business combmation| of other assets and hatalinies
11 3 transackan that affects neher the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred ta. liabilities are recognised for tazable temporary differances arising an rwvestmeants in subsheries, cacepl wheve (e Growp
18 able to cantrol 1he reversal of the temparary diference and 1t is probable that the temporary difference will uul rever se i Uie lueseeabile
future

The carrying amount of deferred lax assets 1s revewed at the date of each statement of nancial posilion and reduced ta the extent that itis
na longer probable that sulficient taxable profits will be avoilable to atlow all or part of the assel te be recovercd

Deferred tox ic charged or credited in the incorne clatement, except when il relatec 10 iterns charged ar eredited (n other comprehensive
incorme or directly 1n equity, i which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt wath in other comprehensive income or direcily in equily respectively

Ta the extent that 1he Group recewcs 3 1ax deduction relating le share baced payment transachions, o deferrad tax nsset 19 rccognised at the
appropriate tax rate on tha differonce in value between the market piice of the underiying cquity o4 at the dute of the Lnanaial slatements
and the cxercise price of Lhe putslanding share optone. multiplied by the expired pertion ot the vesting periog. Az a result, Ihe deferred tox
potl ol sltare upbions sall 1ot be Jenved Unectly liom the epense tepurled in the conselated niconie slaternest Where the deducoble
difference exceeds Lhe cumitativo charge 1o the concolidated income statement the exeess of the assoated ta benelil v recorded direelly
1o equity rather than in profit or loss.

Delerred tax assets and liabiblies are measured on an undiscounted basis and are offsel when there 15 a legally eniorceable nght 1o set oll
current tax assels against currenl tax biabilities and when they relate to incame taxes levied by the same taxatien authonty and the Group
ntends to settle its curcent tax assels and ligbilities on 3 net basis,
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3. Significant accounting policies cuntinued
Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant ano equipment 15 shown at original historcal cast less accunulated depreciation and any recagrised wmpairment loss.

Assels in the carrse of construction fer produclion oF administrative purposes are carned at cost, less any recagmised Impairment loss
Depreciatian of these assets, on the $arne 93515 as ather assels in the same class, commences when the assels are ready for their
miended use

Freencld land s not depreciated

Depreciation 1s charged 5o as ta write ofl the cost or valuabon of assets, less ther residual values, other than assets i the course of
constructan, over Iher eshmated useful Iives, using the siraight-une methed, ¢n the lollowing bases.

Leasehald property improvements Shorler of the lease term and 20 years
Plant and machiqery Three ta 20 years

Furniture, ithings and equipment Three to 20 years

Buildings Up to 4 years

The gan or less anising on the disposal of an asset s determined as the difference between the sales proceads and the carnyng amount
of the asset and 3 recogimsed inncome

Spare parts are capialisen within property, plant and equipment where it 1s expected that {uture economic benefils will flow 1o the entrty and
the cosl can be measured rehably This typically relates to cntcal spares. which muslt be maintained for business continuty

Internally gene -ated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Espenditure on research activiies 15 7eCognised as an expense In the period in which tis incurred

inaccerdance wirh 1AS 3B, an internally generated intangible asset arising from the Group's development 1s recogmised only if all ot the
fallowing conaiticns are met

» 30 assetis crested that can be denlilied |such 2s software ang new processes|,

= it 15 prabable that the asset crealed wil generate future economic benetils,

the developme it cost of Lhe asset can be measured reliably,

the prajechs technically and commercially feasible,

the Groep inter ds to and has sufficient resources to complete the project, and
the Graup has he abilly Lo use or sell the sernces and product developed

imernally genera ed intangible 255815 are amortised on a straight-1 ne basis over three to 20 years Where no internally generated intangible
2sset can be recognised, cevelopment expendilure s recagmised as an expense in the periog in which it 1s incurred

Dther intangible assets
Costs incurred inmantaning the patant ana trademark portfalio are writien off to the income stalement as imcurred,

Acguired intangib e assets as a result of bosiness combimation aie copitalised and amormised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
uselul bwes

Payments in respzcl of software, and ligence nghls acquired are capitalised at cost and amortised on & sieaignt-line basis over Thew
eshimated uselul ves

Licence Sharter of the licence lerm and 20 years
Software Three 1o 15 years

Patents Six ypears

Customer relalioi ships Six years

Imgairment of tzngibie and intangible assets excluding goadwill

Althe date of each statement of financial pasition, Lhe Group reviews the carsyirg armounts of s tangible and intang ble assets to determine
whether ihere 15 any indicabion that those assels have suflered an impairment less If any such indicalion exists, the recoverable amount af
1he asset s estimated 17 order to determine the extent ol Lhe smpairmeni loss if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows thal
are independent liom ather assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amoun: of the cash-generating unil to which the assel betongs

Recaverable amount s the higher of fair valye less cosls of disposal and valve-in-use in assessing value-in-yse, the estimated fulure cash
flows are discauntzd to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that ref ects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the ris<s specilic to the asset lor which the eslimates of future cash lows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset |or cash-generating urit] is estimated to b= less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset lcash-generaung unil] 1s reduced Lo 25 recoverable amount. An Impairment loss 1s recognised as an expense immedialely
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021

3. Significant accounting policies continued

Impairment of tangible and intangible assats excluding goodwill continved

Where an impairment loss s subsequently reversed, the carrying amourt af the ssset lor cash-generating vnithis increased to the revised
estimate of i1s recoverable amount, but so thal the increased carrying amount does not exceed the Carrying armount that would have been
delermined had no impairment loss been recogrised for the asset [or cash-generating unitl in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immedately

Leases

The Group assesses whather a contract is or contains a lease, al nception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-af-use asset and a
corresponding lease latlity with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases [defaed 35 leases
with 2 lease term of 12 months er tess] and leases of low-value assets For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an

operaling expense on & straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic bass 1§ more representative of the hime
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assels are consumed

The lease bability is imbially measured al the present value of the lease payrments that are not paid at the commencement dale, discounted
by ustng the rate implici in the lease.  tius rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses ils incremental borrowing rate Generelly an
incremental barrowing rate approach s applied.

Lease payments mcluded 1n the measurement of the lease Lability compnise-

e lixed lease payments linctuding n substance fixed payments], less any lease incentives,

» vanable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, imtiatly measured using the index or rate at the commencement date.
+ the amount expected Lo be payable by the lessee under residuat value guarantee:
+ the exercise price af purchase options 1l the lessee 1s reasonably certan to exercise the options,

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an optian to terminale the lease.
The lease lisbility 1s presented as a separate Line 1n the consolidated statement of inancial positign,

The lease liability is subsequently measured by Increasing the carrying amount ta reflect inlerest on the lease Liabi iy fusing the effective
interest methad) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made

The Group re-measures the tease lability land makes a corresponding adjustment to the related night-ol-use asse1] whenaver
« thelease term has changed or there 15 a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase oplion, in which case the lease liability 1s
re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discaunl rate,

« the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or & change in expected payment under a guaranteed resiguat value, in
which cases the lease liabilily 15 re-measured by discounling the revised lease payments using the initiat discount rate [unless the lease
payments change is due to a change In a floating interest rate, In which case a revised discount rate is used;

* alease contract ;s modified and Lhe lease modification 1s not accounted for a5 a separate lease, 1n which case the lease labil ty 15
re-measured by discounting the revised lease paymenls using an incremental borrowsng rate at the elfective date of the modification

The Group did not make any such adjustrents during the periods presented

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement ol the corresponding tease Yability, lease payments made at or befare the

cammencement day and any initial direct costs They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulaled depreciabian and impairment
losses

Whenever the Group incurs an abligation for casts Lo dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the sile on which L s located o reslore
lhe underlying 2sset 10 Lhe condilion required by the terms and conditions ol the lease, @ prowision 1S recognised and measured under 1AS 37,

The casls are included in the related nghl-of-use assel, unless Lhose costs are incurred to produce nvenlanes.

Right-ol-use assels are depreciated over the shorter period of tease term and usefut Life of the undertying asset If a lease transfers
ownership gt the undertying asset or the cost of the nght-ol-use asset rellects that the Group expects ta exercise a purchase option, the
refated right-of use asset 15 depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset The depreciation starts at the commencemen! date of
the lease. The Group does nol have any leases that transter ownership of the vadertying asset. The Group does not have any leases with a
purchase oplion where there is a reasonable expectation that the aption will be exercised.

For short-term leases llease term of 12 maonths or less| and leases of low-value assets lsuch as personal computers and office furmiturel,
the Broup has opted Lo recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permutied by IFRS 16 This expense 1S presented within the
consglidated income statement

Inventories

{nventonies are stated a1 the lower al cost and net realisable value. Cost (s calculated using the hrstin, first out ['FIFQ) cost formula,

by applying the standard cost methodotogy, with costs including direct malerials, direct labour costs and an altributable propartion of
manufactunng overheads based on normal Levels of actwity that have been incurred in bringing the nventories Lo thewr present tocation and
condition. Net realisable value represents the estmated selling price less all esumated <osts of completion and casts to be incurred

n marketing, selling and distribution Provision 1s made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective iterns where applicable
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial babililes are recognised in the Group's statement of financial posmion when the Group becomes a party

1o the contractual prowisians of the instrument

Financial assets and hnancizl Latiliies are Intially measured al fair value Transaction costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition
ar 1ssue of financial assets and financial habil ties are added to ar deducted tram the fair value of the inancial assets or financigl Liatulities,
25 approprate, on il recognilion Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial Liabstties at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised -mmediately n pro‘it or loss

Financial assets

All regulac way purchases or sales ol hnancial assets are recognised and derecagresed on a trade date basis Regula- way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery ot assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace

All recognised linancial assets are measured subsequently in thewr entirety at either amorbised cosl or far value, depending on the
classficaton of the financial assels

In order far 2 inancial asset la be classdied and measured at amartised cost or fair value through QCI. it needs to give rise o cash flows
that are 'salely payments of principal and interest ['SPPI'Y on the pnncipal amount outstanding This assessment « relerred to as the Sppt
test and & perfarmed at an instrument level Financial assets with Cagh flows 1hat are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through prolit or lass, rrespective of the business model

Effective interest methad

The effective mterest method is 2 method of calculating the amactised cast of a debl instrument and of allocating interest income aves
\he relevant periad The eflective interest rate is the rate that exaclly g1scounts estimated future cash receipts threugh the tife of the debt
nstrument. or. where appropriate, a shorter persed. ta the net carrying amount on imbal recogrition

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allawance for expected crodit losses | ECLe] for all debt instruments nat meld at faw value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation ol the anginat effective interest rate The expecled cash flows will nctude cash
flows fram the sate of collateral neld or other credit enhancements that are integrat ta he contractual terms

ECLs are recogrused in two slages For credit exposures for which there has rot been & sigmficant increase In credit risk since in 1al
recogrtion, ECLS are provided lor credit losses that result from delautt events that are possible within the next 17 manths [a 12-menth
ECLI For those creait expasures for which thera has heen a sigrificant increase i credit risk since imtial recogrutian, a loss allawance 1s
required for ¢redd Insses expected aver the remaining Ufe ol the exposure, irrespeclive af the timing of the detault la Wletnme ECLI Trade
recenvables are recognised using a iletime ECL approach

For finareial assets carried at amortised cost, the amaunt of the impanrnent s the diflerence between the asset’s carrying arnounl and the
present value of the estimated luture cash flows, discounted at the financial esset’s original efteclve interest rate

Cerecognition of financial assets

The Group derecagnises a fnancial assel only when the confraclual rights to the cash flaws from Lhe asset expire, or when It transfers the
financial assel and substanhially all the risks and rewsrds of ownership of tha asset to anpther entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains sutstantially all the risks and rewards of pwnership and continues ta cantrol the transterred asset, the Group recogrises its retained
intereslm the assel and an associated liabiliy for amounts it ray have to pay. i the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards

ot awnership of a transferred financial asset. the Group continkies 16 recognise the hnancial asset and also recogmises

2 collateralised borrowing lar the proceeds receved

On gerecognition of a financial assel, the dilference belween the assel s carrying amount and the sum ol the cansideration receved
and recenvable and the cumulative gain o 1055 that had been recogmised In other comprehensive incame and accurnulated wr equity
15 recognised in profit of loss

Finan¢ial tiabilities and equity
Debl and eguity instruments are classihied as ether inancal iabitities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement

Financial liabilities

all hnancial Labilties are measured subsequently al amortised cost using the eflective interest method or at faie value theaugh prafit
or lass [FVTPL)

However, inancial Liabilities that arise when a transfer ot a financial assel does not qualify for derecognition or when the contrnuing
nvolverment approach applies, and hnancial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, are measured in accordance with the speaific
accounting policies sel out below

Financial habilies are classihed al FYTPL when the inanciat babibity s [) contingent consideralion of an acquirer in a business
combination, I hetd for trading or | 15 designaled as at FVTPL
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Financial liabilities continued

Financial Labilities at FYTPL are measured al fair value, with any gains or losses ansing on changes in tair value recognised in protit or loss
to the cutent that they are not part of a designated hadging ralatwnchip. Tha net gain or less recngmisad in prafit ar Inge intorparalas any
interest paid an the financial Liaihly and s included within “ather gains and losses’ in profit or loss

The elfectwe interest mathod 1 a methad of calculating the amortised cost of a financial badility and of allocating interest expense over the
relevont period The effective iterest rate . the rate that eractly discounts estimated Tuture cach payments Imciuding alt ises and pointe
paid or recewved that form an integral part of Lhe effective interest rale, fransaction costs and olher precuums or discounis| through the
expected Wife of the knancial hability, or lwhere appropriatel a sharter penod. to the amortised cos! al & financial habiity

Derecognition of ial Liabilite
The Group derecognises financial liabilties when, and only when, the Group's obligatians are discharged. cancelied of have expired

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial Liability derecogaised and the consideralion paid and payable s recognised
n prolt and loss

Derivative financial instruments
The Group's aclivities expose it primarily to the hnancil risks ol changes in foreign currency exchange fates and interest rates and
uquidity risk

The Group uses denvatwe financial instruments [pritnanly foreign currency forward contracts] to hedge i1s risks associaled with taregn
currency Nuctuations relating to cerfain firm cammitments and ferecast transactions

Derwvates are recognises indially at fair value al the date a derwative contract s entered into and are subsequently remeasured to ther fair
value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recagrised in profit or lass immediately unless the dervalwe «s designated and
ellective a5 a hedging instrurment, in which event the liming of the recognilion In prolit or loss depends an Lhe nature of Lhe hedge relationship

The wrilten calt opuon that Xaar 30 Moldings granted Stratasys 1o acquire fts remaining 55% sharenolding in Xaar 30 1 2019 was 2 hnanciz|
babity measured subsequently 2t fair value at |_evel 3 tair value measuremenl The valualion techmgue used was the Black-Scholes model
Further detailis included in nole 22 - Financigl inslruments This was derecogmsed lollowing the disposal of Xaar 30

A dervate with a positive fair value 15 recogrised as a financial asset whereas a dervalive wilh a negative fair value 1s recognised
as a hnancial lability Derivatives are nol afisel in the fnancial statements unless the Group has both legal right and intention 1o offset

A derwative 15 presented as 3 non-curcent asset or @ nan-current Liability if the remaining maturily of the instrurnent 1s more than
12 manths and it 1 not expected to be realised or satiled within 12 months Other derivatives are presented as currenl assets of
current labilities

Cash and cash aquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash an hand and dermand deposils and olher short-term tughly Liquid nvestrents that are readily
canvertible to a known amount of cash with a0 original malurity of three months or less and are subject to an insignilicant risk of changes
10 value

Treasury deposits

Treasury deposits compnce demand deposits that are convertible to a known ameunt al cach wath an onginal aturily of Botwasn throe
monihs and 12 months and are subjecl fo an insignihcant sk of changes in value.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Intcrest hearing laans and bank overdrofts are meazured wlally 3t fair value, netal diroct iLsue cocts Finance chargee. including
premiums payable on setilement or redemption and direct 1ssue <osts, are accaunted far on an accrual basis in the income staternent using
the eftective iterest rale method and are added Lo the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent Lhal they are not settled in the peried
nwhich they anse

Equity instruments
Equity nstruments rssued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds receved. nel of direct ssue costs

Provisions

Prowisions are recagnised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past evenl and it 1s probable thal 1he Groyp will be
required 10 settle that oblgation. Prowisions are measured at the Directors' besl estimale of the expenditure required to seltle the obligation
3t the dale of Ihe statement of financial pesiien and are discounted where the eflect of the time value of money 1s malerial

Arestructuring provision 1s recegnised when the Graup has developed a detailed farmal plan for the restructuring and has raised a vald
expectation w (hose allected that it will carry out the resiructuring by starting lo implement the plan or annauncing its mam features 1o
Ihoac affected by it and the plan hac reached 3 £1age whero the decision i€ unbikely to bo roverced. The measurement of 2 rectrutiuring
provision includes only the direct expenditures anising from the restruttunng. which are thase ameounts that are both necessarily entailed
by the restruciuring and not assactated with (he ongoing actities of the entity.

Prowisions tor the expected cosl of warranty sbligatons under contracts wilh customers and local sale ¢l goods legislation are recognised
\n the month of sale of the relevant products, al the Dwrectors best estimate of the expenditure required ta settle the Group s obligation.

Provisions for leased property dilapidation are recognised 2t the commencement of the leaso veing the Group € bect ochimate t seltle the
ohbligation al the end ol the lease term
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Share-based payments

The Graup ssue 5 equily-settied share-based payments te certain employees ~hese paymenls are measured al fair vatue [excluding the
eftect of nan-ma-ket based vesting conditions] at the date of grant The fair vale determined 31 the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments s expensed on a straight-line basis aver the vesuing period, based on the Group's estimate of the shares that will eventually
vest based an the satisfaction of non-market based vesting and service conditiuns,

The fair value of plions 1ssued under the Group's Long-Term Incenlive Plan 15 measured using a stochastic IMonte Carlo binomiall model
for granis made #ith market based vesting conditions since 2007 The lair valuz of all other equity-settled share-based paymenis is
measured using the Black-Scholes prcing model The expected Ide used in these models has been 2djusted, based on management's best
eslimate, tor the eftects of non transferability, exeraise restrichions and behavigural consideratiens

SAYE share optiens granted to employees are trealed as cancelled when empicyees cease to contribute to the scheme This results in
accelerated reco milion of the expenses thal would have ansen over ihe remainder of the onginal vesting period

Own shares
Own shares are ceducted brom equily Na gain or loss ts recogrised in the income slalement an the purchase, sale, 1ssue or cancellation
of the Broup s own shares

Non-current assets lor disposal groups] held for sale

Man-current assets [ar disposal groups) are classified as held for sale ol their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaciion rathe- than through continuing use and a sale 1s considered hughly Jrobable They are measured at the lower of their Carmpng
arnount and fair value less costs to sell, except lor assets such as deferred tax 4ssets, assets ansing from employee berelils, financial
assels and investTient aroperty that are carried at far vatue and contractual nchls under insurance conlracts, which are specifically exernpt
feom this requirement

Animpa rment Loss 15 “ccognised lar any imhial or subsequent witte-tawn of th2 asset [or drspesal groupl to fair value less costs to sell.

A gawn is recognised for any subsequent increases in fan value less costs to sel of an asset lor disposal groupl, but not in excess of any
cumulalive mpaiment loss previously recogmsed. A gain or loss nat previously recognised by the dale of the sale of the nan-current assel
{or disposal groupl s recogrised at the date of darecognition

Non-current asseis kncluding those that are pari ol a disposal group] are not d zprec.ated or amortised while they are classified as held for
sale Interest and other expenses attributable to the habalies of 3 cisposal group classdied 35 held for sale continue 10 be recognised

MNan-current assels classihied as held for sate and the assets of a disposal grou > classified as held for sale are presented separately from
the other 2ssets v the balance sheet. The hiabilities ol 8 disposal group classitied as held for sale are presented separately from other
babihiies in the bilance sneet

continued op2rations

A discontinued operation 15 a component of the Group thal has been disposed o and that represents a separale major line of business and
15 parl of a single zo-ordinared plan 1o dispese of such a line of business The results ol discontinued operabions are presented separalely
in the income statement and are shown net of tax

Where an aperatien s classihied as discontinued, Lhe post-tax cesults of that operation will be presented as a singte bine tam on the lace
5l the income slatement and the cash flows lram the discontinued operations will be split belween continuing snd discontinued operalions
on the kace of the —ash flow staterment Cormparatives are restated 1o distinguish between continuing and discontinued operations

New and amend *d standards and interpretations

The Group applec for the first-time certain standards and amendmenls, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021 lu itess atherwise stated|] The Group has not early adopted any cther standard, mtecpretation or amendment that has been
1ssued but 15 a0l y21 elfeciive

Interest Rate Bewchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS & and IFRS 16

The amendments prowde certan practical expedients including a practical expedient to require contraclual changes, or changes to cash
flows that are dire:tly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a float ng interest rate. equivalent 1o a movernent i a market rate
of interest and certain reliels relating 1o hedge accounting.

Xaar daes not have floating rale borrowings or leases that relerence IBOR and daes not apply hedge sccounting. Therefore, these
amendments have no Impact on the consolidsled hinancial statements of the Group

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 Amend ments ta IFRS 16

Cn 28 May 2020 thz IASB issued COVID-19-Relalad Rent Concessions - amendment ta IFRS 14 Leases lwhich was amended on 31 March
20211 to g-owde a sractical expement in accounting far any change in lease payrents resulting fram the COVID-19 related rent concessigns
receved before 30 June 2021 Since the Group has not receved COVID-19 related rent concessians, there 1s na impact from this,
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4. Reconciliation of adjusted financial measures

20 2020
Nole 000 £000

Praflit / [loss| before tax Irom continuing operations 9L 14.322] T
Share-based payment charges 9 758 348
Exchange differances on intra-group transactions L] 347
Gain on derivauive financial liakbbies e 12,919] 1721
Restructuring and transaction experses 1,404 754
Research and development expenditure credit (2201 [142)
Other operating income 7 - 1819
Fair value gain o4 hnancial assets at fair value through profit ar loss " 19871 -
Amaortisation of acquired intangible assets 1% as5¢ -
Adjusted less before tax from continuing aperations s571) 13,911)
Interest Income 10 (4] 147
Finance costs 242 82
Depreciation ol property, plant and equipment 17 3318 3,400
Amartisation of intangible assels {other than acquired intangibies| 15 121 B2
Loss on asset disposal 7 9
imparment of assets - 3N
Other smmatenial movemenis in property, plant and equipment - 34)
Adjusted EBITOA from conlinuing operations 3,783 £2

EBITOA is calculaled as statutary operating prafit before depreciation, amortisation and imparment of property, plant and equiprent,
intangible assets and goodwill. Adjusted EBITDA 15 calculaled as EBITDA excluding ather adjusting tems as defined

Adjusted financiat measures are atternative perfarmance measures, which adjust lor recurring and non-recurring items that management
<onsider are not reflective of the underlying performance of the Group. Recurring ilems are adjusted each year irrespective of materiality
le ensure consistent treatment. Nan-recyrring items are identilied and adjusted for by virtue of their size or nalure. See note 3 lor further
detail.

Share-based payment charges include the IFRS 2 charge for the penod of £453,000 [2020: £242.000) and the debit relating to National
Insurance on the outstanding potential share oplion gains of £105.000 [2020: charge £106,000}. These costs were included in the general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement and exclude the Xaar 3D charge of £440 [2020: £5,0001,

Exchange differences relating to the operations in 1he United States represent exchange gains or losses recorded in the consolidated
income stalement 2s a resull of intragroup transachions in the United States These costs were included in general and administrative
expenses in the consatidated income statemenl.

Gain on derivative financial instruments relates 1o gains made an call option contracts. The option was exercised in 2021, These amounts
are included on the consolidated income statement under Bain on derivative financial fiabilities.

Restrutturing and transaction expenses oi €1,404,000 [2020; £754,000) relate 10 costs incurred and provisions made in relation te scquisition

transaction costs incurred of £961,000 and re-organisation costs. In the prior year. it is related predaminantly te re-erganisation costs and

$ome transaction expenses. The calculated impact of the restructuring and transaction expenses at the corporation tax rate of 19% would

be £52.000 based on the expenses included that would be treated as deductible 12020: £143,000), The cash paid related ta restructuring and —
transaction expenses is £972,000 |2020: £518,0001.

The research and development expenditure credit relates te lhe corporation tax relief receivable relating to quatitying research and
development expenditure. Thus item is shawn an the face ol the consolidated income statement. Cash receipts of £219,000 were received
during the year in relation to the FFEI RDEC and R&D claim which related to their financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, The
£1,650,000 recewved in 2020 was in relation te the 2018 and 2019 submitted ADEC claims.

Other operating income of Enil [2020: £819,000) relates to a forgivable $1 million loan between Engineered Print Sotulions [EPS| ang TO
bank and is backed by the US Federal Government [Small Business Admunistration); further details are provided under note 7 The loan was
taken cut as part of the government backed scheme. The Company met the requirements of the waiver, and therefore the loan was waived,
and has therefore been treated as a gevernment grant under |AS 20. A cash receipt of the same amaount was received.

The Iair value gain on financial assets a1 fair value thraugh profit and loss relates to the sale of Xaar 3D Limited. The net consideratian
includas contingent consideratian that is valued and reported at tair value. The fair valug movernent is recognised in the income statement
as fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. Further details are included in notes 11 and 22

The amortisation of acquired intangible assets relates to the acquisition of FFEI Limited. These include software, palents and customer
relatinaships and are being amortised over six years. These costs were included I general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
income slatement.
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4. Reconciliation of adjusted tinancial measures continuved

na 00

Nete  Pente par chare Pance per share

Basic earnungs/lless] per share from continuing eperations, 14 0.9p 15 7p1
Share-based payment charges 14p nsp
Zxchange diflerences on intra-group transactians 0.1 05p
Gain an denvative fiinancial Liabilities 13.8p) 10 1pl
Restructuring and transachion expenses 1.80 1.0p
Other aperating incame - .p)
Fair walue gain on finanoial assets at FYPL £1.3p] -
Amortisatioa ol acquired inlangible assets. 0.5p -
Tax e'tect of agjust ng 1tems. 10.2p) 10 3pl
Adjusted basic and diluled loss per share Irom continuing operations 1% (1.0lp i5 2pt

This recanciliation 1s prowded to align with haw the Board measures and monitors the busness at an underipng |evel, and 1S a measure
used In estabiishing remuneration

5. Revenue

The Group derives s ravenue fram contracts with customers for the transter al qoods and services ovar ime and 4t 3 poinl1n Lime in the
tollowang major segments This is consistent with the revenue information thatis disclosed lor each reportable segment under IFRS 8
Operating Segments in nate &

Revenye from goods and sernces is recagnised in accordance with IFRS 15 when contrgl has been transferred to the customer For sate of
goads and services revenue is recognised 2t a pont 1 time, unless specific conditions have been satisfied allowing revenue to be recognised
over a penod of tme as «entified «n the fve-step process (above). e.g. whare the asset produced doesn 't have an alternative use and the
Group has an enlorceable mght ty payment lor perfarmance completed to date An nput methodology (based an estimated labour hours or
costslhis used a3 this depicts the perlarmance condilions when recognising revenue over ime

Commissia.

) Pradud sales services  Licensee repallies Tatal

Centinulng speralions o0 (1] o 90D

Printheac %186 478 260 40,104

Product Print Systems 13.487 613 - 13,700

Digtal Imaging 3,773 1L&77 - 5,250
56.446 2,568 240 59,254

Preoudt aates Tont

o0 u0n oo

Printhead 36,268 663 370 15283
Produgt Print Systems 12347 254 - 12,701
Digttal Imaging ] - ‘ - -
44,813 e 370 47,984

Product Print Systems and Digital Imaging have Lontracts with cuslomers where Lhe performance oblgations are parlially unsatsfied at
31 Decemnber 2021 The transaction price allocated to partally sgished and unsatislied performance obligations al 31 December 2021 15
as set out below The transaclion pnce allocated to partially sanshed performance obligations has been recagmsed m the year while the
transgction price allucated g parhially . hshed performance obligations has not been recogmsed

21 00
Tentinuing operations 2T £ 00
Tranzacion price atlocated (0 partally salrsied perfarmance oblgations 4,569 950
Transachon pace allocated to parually unsahisiied performance obligations 4,040 54
Total transaction price for partialiy completed contracts 10,429 1,906

Manigement expecis that 100% ol the transaction price 2llocated to the unsatisfed contracts as &t 3t December 2021 tatalling £5,050,000
will be recogniset {rom 2022 te lulure pencds (2020 £936,000 recogrised in 20201

Yaar plc - Andusl Repart and Financial Statements 2021 .ﬂ nw ._
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

6. Business and geographical segments

For management reperting purposes. the Group's operations are analysed according to Lhe three operaling segments ot 'Printhead’,
Proguct Print Systems’, and ‘Digits! Imagqing’ These three aperating segments are the basis oh which the Group reperts ils primary
segment nformation and on which decisions are made by the Group s Chiel Execylwe Otheer and Board ol Directars, and resources
allocated Each business uni 15 run independently of the olhers and headed by 3 general manager The Group s chiel operating decision
roaker is the Chiet Exaculive Officer There 1s no aggragation of segments lo¢ disclosure purposes

The Xaar 30 business which was classifieg as assets held for sale In the prior year has now divested on ¥ Novernber 2021 The result lor (he
ten-month pered 1s classified as discentinued oparations and is presenled separately in note 11

Segmentinformation tor continuing operatons 1S presented below

Praduct Print

Priothead Digitat Imaging Unaliecated  Consslidpted
¥ear ended 21 Dacamber 2021 3] L0 f'eoe 00
Revenue
Tatal segmeng revernue 40,104 13,700 5,250 - 59,264
Result
Adjusted [loss| / gamn from continuing eperations befere tax 15241 [7448] ™ - {571)
Share-based payment charges - - - l758) i758)
Exchange differences relating (o inlra-groyp transactons - - - {981
Restructuring and transaction expenses 1118) - - 11,4041
Gain on dervative finanzizl 1izhi - - - 2,919
Research and devalopment expenditure credit - i3 - 27
Fair valae dam ant fmancial assets at FYPL - - - 787
Amartisation of acquired mianginle assets - - (354} - 1354)
Prefit / {lass] befors tax fram continuing operationt 2,224 (882 410 {758] 995

Share-based payment charges include the (FRS 2 charge for the year and the charge relating ta Mataaat insyraace or the gulstanding
patential share ogtians. excluding the charge attributable to Xaar 30 as discantinged operations £440 (2020 £5.000)

Printhead Unatlocated Cansety
Year ended 31 Dccember 2020 Cot0 (3]
Revenve
Tatai segmenl revanue 35281 47 984
Rezult
Adjusted (oss from continuing operations befare tax 13,4311 1801 - iz91)
Share-based payment charges - - (348} 1328]
Exchange diflarences relating to intra-group transactions 13471 - (37
Restructuning and transaction expenses 17541 - {7541
Gain on derwatve financiat latsiries 77 - - 77
Research and development expenditure credil 142 - - 142
Cther gperating ncome - ae - B19
Pralit { [loas) before tax from continuing operations 18,313 ki 1348) 14,3220
Segment agsets - Continuing operations
Resined
2021 200
£o0e L ooo
Printnead 73,247 £8.781
Product Prin; Systems. 14,793 13.804
Digital Imaging 13,700 -
Total assets 103,740 47587

Assets are alloczted to the segment which has responsibility lor thew contral

Na infermation is provided for segment liabilities as this measure is not prowded to Ihe chief operating decision maker
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6. Business and geographical segments continued
Other segmen- information - Continuing operations

Priglhead Uigetal Imaging Unallesated Canzoldmies
Year ended 3t Bevemser 202 Hotes €000 €000 <ot €000
Depreciation anc amertisation g 3,BLs 510 - & bdd
Impairment of PIE - - - - -
Share-hased payment charges ¥ - - - 758 758
Capital expenditure 17 2,353 160 127 - 2,640
Product
Print

Prinlhead Systems  Digial Imaging Unatiscated  Censolidated
Year andad 31 Devember 020 haes co0g o0 oo (1] [
Depreciation and amartisation 8 4,302 387 - - 4,669
Impairment of PFE 158 115 - - 271
Share-based payment charges 9 - - - 348 348
Capital expenditLre 17 957 5% - - 151

Revenues fram major producis and services ~ Continuing operations
nn 2620
£000 €000
Prnthean 35,283
Product £rint Sysitems 1270
Digital trmagqung -
Consohidated revanue lexclud.ng Investment income) 47984

Geegraphical irformation

The Group opera:es in three principal geographical aress. EMEA. the Amencas and Asa. The Group's revenue from external custemers
and infarmation 3bout ils segments [non-current assets excluding delerred taa assets and alher inancial assels] by geographical tacalion
are detailed below

Revenuk Irom artarpal custamens

Cantinuivg eeratens
2041 20
00 000
EMEA 23,730 18113
Asia

- China 10,582 7836
- lapen 575 1235
- Other B28 420
The Amaricas Iincluding USA) 23,55¢ 20.280
59,254 47.984

Revenues are altributed (0 geagraphical areas on the bas:s of the customer s aerahing location
Non-gUrrem assets
wH wm
Coul £000
EMEA 7,784 14,755
Asia 90 38
The Americas linc uding USAI 7457 7m
) ) B.51 24,584

Non-curcenl ass€ls, bemng Guadw (L. Other intang:ble assets, Propeny, plant and equpment and Right-of-use assels are atributed to the
localinn where thay are situated.

information aboJt major customers.
There are no castamers whase revenue exceeds 10% of 1otal revenues from cortinuing opperabions during the current and preceding year
Mo other single customer contributed 10% or more (o the Group's revenue In e her 2027 or 2020

Revenug fram the lap hive customers represents 28% of revenues (2020 28%|
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021

7. Government grants

The accounting pelicy in relation to the adopted and applicable treatment of government grants is disclosed in note 3, N sccordance with
1AS5 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclasure of Government Assislance

Xaar plc and its UK based subsidianies have decided nat to lake part 1n any of the government suppart schemes ansing from the
COVID-1% cisis.

Na employees have been placed on furlough and no claims made wia the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme ICJRS]

« Nosubrmissions have been made ter financial support wia ether the Corenavirus Business interruption Loan Scheme ICBILS) or Bounce
Back Loan Scheme {BBLS|

The UK entities operate primarily under a VAT repayment position due 10 the signilicant level of export sales, so de nat ulilise the
government scheme in deferring VAT payments

No submussion has been made for salary compensatian, which could arise due to employees being retained thal could otherwise nave
been released. No employees have left the business
Ouring the peried it was part of ihe Xaar Group fup ta ¥ November 2021) Xaar 3D ApS, based in Denmark, operated in a repayment

position for Danish VAT, and tike the UK did not utilise Lhe exlension availabie for payments, and also did nol take part 1n any govarnment
support mezsures In response ta COVID-1%

A Xaar Group company based in the USA, Engineered Printing Solutions [EPS], took part in the US Government Loan scheme which prowded
a $1 million loan IL81%k], which under certain provisions linked to mantaining employment and avoiding redundancy could be wawed The
company mel the requirements af the waiver, and therefore Lha loan was waived, and has therefore been treated as a government grant,
The Group has presented this amount as exceplianal incame i 2020 in the consolidated income statement Government support grants are
recogrised in the consolidated income statament on 2 systemalic basis over the penads in which the related revenue or expense for which
the grants are intended lo compensate Furlher details are provided under note 4

8. Profit/lloss| for the year

Profit far cantrhuing operalions i the yesr has been arrived ot alter charging/lcrediting).

02
o000
Research and develop Inet ol capitali development costs|® 5,708
Grants towards research and development ncluding the research and development expenditure ciedit 22m az]
Deprecration of praperly, plant and equipment 3,118 3400
Oepreciavan of right-cl-use assel Ll 1.107
Amartisalion of capitalised development costs included in research and development expenses) 77 B2
Amortisation ol other intangible assets |ingluded in general and administralve expenses] ELL) 21
Loss on d sposal of property, plant and equipment 7 99
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 38,227 31,487
Imgairment reversals on hnanoial assels 3ge 46
Total fees payable to the Cormpany's auddor and (s associates 451 02

* Tatal spand on resaarch and developmant in 2021, befors capitalised and amanised developrnant costs included i ngrg 16, was £5.704.000 12020 £4 535 000}

Auditor’s remuneration

2821 2020
£y 000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 20 20
Fees payable ta the Company's auditor and its asseciates for olhes services lo the Group
- The audit of the Company’s subsidianes 473 272
- Prior year overrun 120 70
otal audit fees 413 382
- Interim review 18 40
Total non-audit fees 33 40
Total lees payable for the continuing operations 851 402
Tolatl audit fees payable for the discontinued operations g B
Total lees payable to the Company’s auditors and its assocates 489 440

The Audit Commiitee has considered the independence of the auditor in relation to non-audit services threughaut the year A descriphon
of the work of the Audit Committee 15 set out in the Corporale Governance statement on pages 77 to 80 and includes an explanation of how
auditor's objectivity and independence 15 safequarded when non-audit services are prowded by the auditor.
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9. Staft costs
The average monthly number of persans emplayed by the Group including Executive Directors was s fallows
w2 Restaied 2020
Number
Research and development 86 %
Sales and marketmg &6 a7
Manufacturing and engineering 22 189
Adminisicalion 51 1]
407 357
2020 heactount has been restated to remove agency staff Their aggregate remuneration comprised
2021 2020
Hoes vona €000
Wages and salanes 20,950 18,784
Social secunty cosis 2,004 162
Pension costs 33 0 240
Share-based payments 758 353
24,660 21,629

Share- based payment charges comprise the IFRS 2 charge for 1he yaar of EA53.000 |2620- £246.000) ang 3 credit relaling to National
tnsurance on the oulstanding polential share option gains ot {105,000 2020 £107,00D chargel, of which a charge ol £440 (2020 £5,000]

felates to tiscontinved operations in Xaar 30

10, Investment income

roup 200 Growo 30 2%
o0 Total £0 €000 L6000 Torsl €020
Interest regewable on cash and bank balances and treasury deposits [ & 4 n

Sroup interest accrued recevable of £1,000 at year end [2020- £8,000) Cash interest receved at year end was £13,000 12020: £44,000).

11. Discontinued operations

The Thin Film business which was discontinued v 2019 incurced ¢osts in 2020 and 2021 which mainly related 1o supplier Lalives and
inventary for last time buy sales All Faoiliies have now been setlled and we maintain an amount of iInventery that 1s fully provided and not
likely te bie sold OF the total Group net assets, il (2020 £271.000) 15 related ta Thin Film which 15 net included in net assets held for sale

As detaile in the strategic and financial update, the Xaar 30 business completed its divestment on 1 November 2021 Xaar racewved net
cash of £9,272,000 and as specihed i an ‘earn oul’ clause in the sale agreement, additional cash cansideration of up to $15,456,000 will be
recevable At the time of sale, the fair value of the conseration was determined to be £10,863.000 It has been recagnised as a linancial
2g501 3t farr value through profit or loss. Further detail is disclosed further in note 22

At year end, the farr value was re-gsimated 1o be £11,850,000 The gan of £987.000 15 presented in the income statement as fair value gain
en financial assets at far value through profit or tass The resulis af Xaar 30 business for the period ended 1 November 2021 are included in
the discant.nued operalions in the income statement The results of Thn Fitm and 30 celated actwities for the year are shown balow

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

11. Discontinued operations continued

Thit Fiim.

3w Telal Then Fimm kvl Tatas
) 221 H Jar) 2070 02
[ €600 oo {5 Cole

Auributable Lo
Owners of the Campany (2391 15,743 15,574 (3.664) [3,6471 17 311)
Non-cantrolung interest - 1,991] 11.991) - 12 9841 12.984]
{239} 13,772 11,533 i) 16,6311 110.295)

The majar classes of assets and Labilties of 3D classiied as held lar sale a5 at 31 December 2020 and its carrying amounts as al the dale

ot sale {1 November 2021] are as follows.

1 Mavember 2021 2080
Lo (3.1
Assets
Proparty, plant and equipmen; 1,207 1.041
inlangible assels 4,849 31
QOelerred Lax asset 164 68
Right-of-use asset 592 L0
Inventory 870 1%
Debters 2,085 ™
Corporate inceme 1ax mn ]
Cash and cash equivalents 6 2120
Assets heid for sale 10,034 9958
iahil
Creditors 15.542) 111151
Corporate income lax - -
Prowisions [Warranty & Restructuring) 1an 1)
IFRS 16 lease Liability 15251 43|
Liabilities associated with the assets held for sale 15,098 11.5891
Met assets associated with disposal group 1.5% BJI79
The net cash flows incurred by Thin Filrm and 30 are as follows
Thin fim. n Tels Thinfitm 1 fotal
202 201 2091 w20 00 o
£°000 (3] o0 oon €000 £ 00
Net cash inflow/loutllow] from operating actvities 103 191 11,88%) 15 0581 l6.212) 1112711
Net cash autflaw Iram ivesting activities - 1221 122 125 [645) 1870
Net cash outflow Iram financing actinties - 98] (L] - [1&0] 1140)
Net cash generaled/lused] from discontinued operations 109 2,012} 11,909 15,083 7018 1z
2 200
Perce par Pence par
share snare
Earnings (loss) per share
Basic earmings / Hoss] lor the year from disconbinued operalons 20.0p 9 Spl
Diluted earnings / [lossl for the year from disconunued aperations 19.7¢ 19 5pl

Thin Film 30 Tetel Thin Fm k1) Totat
202 2028 2021 010 202 2020
€100 [ £000 £000 £100 <00
Revenue 384 2,918 3,302 258 735 992
Expanses {6230 (2,075l 17,6981 13.922) 17.175) 111,097)
Loss belore ncome 1ax [23%) [4,1571 14,3981 [3.664) 164411 10,1051
Income tax credil - s 30 - 1190) 190t
Net loss befora gain on sale (23%) %127 14,3¢4) 13.684] 16.631) 110,251
Gan on sale of wivestmenl in subsidiary - 17,89% 17,899 - . -
Prohtfiloss] aller incorme E2x from discontinued operations 12as) 12,772 13,533 12,4641 18,6311 110.2951

The gain an sale of Invesiment In subs«diary 15 not subject to income tax bacause it lalls under the Subslantial Sharehalding Exemptians (SSE] Rule

The £7,075600 expenses in 30 are nel of £297.000 that relates to service charge receved trom the Group undertaking which has to be
eliminated in the Geoup s consolidated income slalement

Xaar pic - Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021 ._ Hw m
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The sale of Xaar 30 business 1s summansed betow The total consideration recewed mctudes the milrat cash canswderatian and cantingent
consideration less lransaction casts that are directly altnbutable ta the sale. The carmying amount of the net assets sold represents 55% ol
Xaar shareholding to 30 adjusted by an intracampany markug that relates Lo inventory
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11. Disconinued eperations continued

w011
£'D00
Consideralion rezerved or recevable,
Cash L2
Fair value of con ingent consideration 10,883
Less Transaction costs 1244)
Tetal disposal consideration 19,889
Carrying amount of net assets sold 11,990]
Gan on sale of irvestment in subsidiary 17,899

The carrying amaunt of nel assets sold includes an inventary mark up from the Group Lndertaking amounuing ta £172.000 which has to be
eliminated i the Group consalidaled balance sheet. Following the dvestment of 30, 1us eimination was reversed and adjusted to the gain
on sate A recycled foregn exchange dilference of £3.000 was also included in the carrying amount as a result of translation.

12. Tax
Total tax calcul ation:
2021 200
Nates €000 000
Current tax - UX 100 158
Currert tax - overseas 14 125
115 283
Amounts uneer provided 10 previous years kal &1
otal current income tax cha’ge 188 3
Delerred tax - or1ination and reversal 45 3l
Adjustmert in resoect of prier years 38 [84]
Total deferred tax credi B3 (821
Total tax fcrecal / charge *or the yaar 249 242

The rate of tax o * the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporalion tax, rs 19% (2020, 19%| Taxalion for olher jurssdichans rs
calculated at the rates prevaiing in the respeclive Jurisdichions

The Finance Azl 7021, whizh was substantively enacted on 10 June 2021, amen jed the main rate ot corporatian ax fo 25% from the hnancial
year 203 As de erred Lax assets and liabilities are measured at the rates that are expetied 10 3pply n the perods of the reversal. deferred
tax balances at 3 December 2021 have been calculaled at the rate al which the relevant batance 1s expected 1o be recovered or sattied

The note to the cash How sialement [nate 311 shows repayments of lax for £ 150,000 during the year [2020: £1,446,000

The closing delered tax rabibity at 31 Decernber 2021 has been calculaied 3t 19% and 25%, reflecling the Iax rale at which Lhe deferred tax
liabilily 15 expected Lo be reversed in future periods, Detaits on deferred tax assets are disclosed in note 23
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

12. Tax continued

The changa lor the year can be reconciled fo the profit per the income statement as follaws,

an nw
Holes cota €000
Profit / [Loss] before tax from continuing acl 994 12322
Protit { [Loss) betore tax from di i activilies 13,503 o105/
Prolit / {Loss] before income tax 14,497 N4 427
Tax on ardinary actwities al standard UK rate of 19% (2020, 19.00%] 2754 27400
Effect of:
Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes 398 883
INon-taxzblel income 4,192) nnt
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries cperating overseas {1as] ns|
Effect of change in UK corporation tax rate on delerred tax - 7
Current year losses not racognised 1,195 2303
Derecagnition of previcusly recognised deferred tax balances 14 -
Prior year adjustments 108 124l
Total tax expense / [credit) for the year 249 242
Income tax expense / (credit] reported in the statement of profit and loss 299 52
Income 1ax expense / (credit) aliributable to discontinued operations n 130 190
26% 202

Tho oxpense
paymenis

The effective tax rate for the year 15 1 9% [2020- -1.7%]
13. Dividends

Na interim or final dnwdend was proposed or paid during the current and preceding year
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14. Earnings per share - basic and diluted
The calculation of bast: and diluled earnings per share 1s based on the follgwing data

2021 200
£'o00 £'000
Earnings
Earmings for the purposes of basic earnings per share deing
net profil/lloss] atiributable to equily holders of the parenl 16,219 [11,685]
from conlinuing operations 495 16,372
{rom discantinued operations 15,524 17,3113

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary $hares for the purposes of basic earnings per share
Effect of diutive potential ordinary snates:

Share apuiens.

77,528,084 721035991

1,261,215 -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted garmings per share

78,789,279 77102593

w1 0
Pentepershare  Pance per shane
Hasic 20.%p {15 2a!
Duluted 20.4p (15 2p]
Continuing operatiors
Basic o 15 701
Dhluted 0.9p 15 7p)
Discontinued operations
Basic 20.0p 19.9p)
Dituted "7 19.5p1

Potentral ordinary shares are treated as dilutive If thewr conversion to ordinary shares would decrease eacmings per share or increase loss
per share Therelore in 2020, the diluted earnings per share is nol impacted by the effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares. givea the lose

per share

The weighted average number ol ordwary shares far the purposes 91 Dasic earmings per share is calculated alter the exclusion of ardinary
shares in Xaar plc held by Xaar Truslee Ltd, Lhe Xaar ple ESOP Trust and the matching shares held in trust for the Share Incentive Plan,

For 2021 there ware share optians granied over 107,490 shares that had not been included in the diluled earnings per share calculation

because Ihey were anu-dilutve al the geriod end (2020 310,100 shares that would not have been included)

The perfarmance contitions for | TIP awards over 1,510,685 shares (2020 570,482 shares) have nat been met 1n the current financial period,
and Lherefore the dilulive elfect of those shares has not been included i the dilyted earnings per share calculation
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

14. Earnings per share - basic and diluted continued
Adjusted earnings per share

This adjusted earmungs ger share inlormation 1s considered to provide a farer representation of the Group s trading perfarmance year on
year, as It removes items which, 1n the Board s opimon. do not reflect the underlying perfarmance ol the Group and 1s a measure used 1n

establishing remuneration

The calculation af adjusted EPS, excluding the items bsted below 15 based on the loss on cantinuing operations of

nh 2020
(3114 £000
Earmings { |loss) an continung aperanons far the purposes of basic carnings per share being
Net profit / [loss] atinbutable ta equily holders of the parent 495 (6.374]
Share-based payment charges 758 348
Exchange difference relating to intra-group transachions 95 347
Gain on dervative financial insiruments 12,9191 177
Reslructuring and transaction expenses 1,404 T4
Other operating income - g
Fa'r value gain on hnancial assets at FYPL 1987} -
Amortisalion of acquired intangibte assets A54 -
Tax eftect ol adjusbing iterns T 217
Adjusted loss after tax - confinying operatians irri (4.038]
Tax ellect of adjusling ttems 1s calculated at current corparation tax rate [19%I less any disallowed tax Wems
The denominatars used are the same as those detailed abave for both basic and dlwied earmings per share
Adjusted earnings per share on continuing operalions I1s easnings ped share excluding the tems adjusled for as detaded abave
. 02 30
Panceparshare  Perce per share
Adjusted basic i1.0pl 15 2pl
Adyusted diluted 11.0p] 15.2p]
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15. Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2071 was £6,882,00012020 £5,152.0001
Goodwill acouired in a business cambmation 15 allocaled, at acquisition, la the cash-generating units [CGUs) that are expected to benefit

fram that business combinatian, Goodwill accurred trom the acquisition of Encineered Prat Sotvtions [EPS) in Juty 2016 and FFET Limited
in July 2021

2021 2029
€000 £000
Balance at the beginning of the year 5152 5.333
Addiuon  acquision of FFEN Limited 489 -
Forgign curegnty ranslation 53 el
Balance of 1he end of the year 5.894 5.152

As part of the refortable segments, goodwill amounting o £5.205.000 [2020: €£.152,000) 15 attributed to Praouct Print Systems fa single
COUtand £689 L0 is attributed to FFEN a single CBUJ.

The Group tests coadwill annually lor impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired Having
perfarmed irmpament 1esing, no IMparment has been identiied and Lherefor2 no impairment loss has been recegnised furing the cyrient
and preceding yedr

“he recoverable emounl of the CGU 1s determined from a value-in use caleulat on The key 2ssurmphions 16 which Lhe vatue-in-use
calculaton 1s most sensitive are thase regarding the expected change .n sales, he gross margin percentage from those sales, and the
discount rate used

Engineered Print Salutions goodwilt impairment review

A cash flow lorecz st was prepared lor a penad of [ive years based upon the stra eqic plan for the business and a 1ermnal value detecmined
using a 140% 12620 2%l grawtn rate 1n Engineered Print Selutions, based on 0=C0 growth rates

To evaluate the rick of impairment, the Group adjusted its cash llows over the [ne-year period to reflect the current constraint on revenue
due to the size of he manulacturing facility, and removed all investment costs assoostes wilth expansion. These adjusted cash flows have
then beer used in the value1n-use calculalion For impairment testing purposes, gress margin has been maintamed in line with actyal
current results The discount rale anplied to the cash low prajections 15 13.74% [2020 11 65%) and refiects external third party advice on Ihe
discount rate asscciated with Enginecred Print Splubhiens The discount rate reflects the risk free rare, equity beta and local market premium
as calculated al the year-end

The recoverable s nount calculated gn the basis sel oUl above exceeds Ihe carry ng value of the EPS CGU by £10.0 miluon (2020 £15
million) Sensitivit- analysis has been completed on each key assumpuion {Reverue, Gross Margin % and Discount Rate! for the ERS
Husiness The carrying amount of goodw:ll wauld exceed its recoverable amount when compared Lo Ihe adjusted cash flows, i

« revenue growlh wece to decline 19% from the forecasted figures over the five- @ar period,

 gross marg:n ar sales were e decline 4% over the five-year period

FFE{l Limited goodwill impairment review

FFEI Lrmiled was : cquired on 11 Juty 2021 Due to the fact that the trne betweer acquisition and the year end date 15 less than six manths
and post acquisiticn performance to date at both the profit and cash How level hes exceeded the forecasts used for the PPA calculations, no
imparment adjust nent 15 required at 31 December 2021
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for the year ended 31 Oecember 2021

16, Other intangible assets

Capitalived Techaslogy-
development bitset intarigible Customer

<oits Sattwara anset relatianships Tous!

€000 (350 £000 (11 €000 000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 42737 709 3,453 - - 47899
Exchange movements - - 1] - - 18]
Assels held for sale 15 050] 17 hol - - 15,237)
At 1 January 2021 38,487 532 3437 - - 42,854
Additions - - 124 - . 124
Acquisitions. - - - 3044 1204 4,248
Transfer - - 180) - - {80}
Exchange movements - - 2 - - 2
At 31 Dacember 2021 39,447 532 3,483 3,044 1.204 48950
Amartisation
At 1 January 2020 3857 554 i - - 427354
Charge for the year 587 13 a5 - - 485
Exchange movements - - ta) - - 14}
Assels held for sale 1547] 1351 (8 - - (5881
At \ January 2024 w61 532 3,304 - - 42,449
Charge for the year 7 - a6 254 100 475
Transfers m - L] - - 1371
At 31 December 2021 487 532 3,204 254 100 42,907
Carrying amount:
At 3) December 2021 - - 14% 2,7%0 1,104 4,043
At 31 December 2020 7% - m - - 207

Internally generated product development costs relate to the Platlorm 2, Platform J and Platform 4 ranges of pantheads and technolagy
All three ptattorms are now fully amortised.

n July 2021, Xaar acquired addibional intangible assels .n relation to the acquisitien of FFE) Limited. These are technology-based patents
and customer relatipnships totalling £4.248.000. Further delails on the acquisitran are i note 34

Licences acquired are amortised over their esimated useful lives which 5 the shorter of the licence term and 20 years

Thie amoriisation peniod for soltware is three to 15 years and for other product development costs incurred on the Group's product
development is three to 20 years.

The amortisaticn fer technology- based patents and soflware and customer relalionships s six years
Amortisabion 15 recorded n adminisleative expenses of the consolidated accounts

As at 31 December 2021 the Group had not entered inta any contractual commitments lor the acquisition of intangible assets.
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17. Property, plant and equipment

Furniture, Asaats inthe

Land and Lessehald Plant and tings and course of

buildings preperty machinory wruipmant sensructian Tatal

€000 €000 (334 Co00 oo

Cost
AU Janwary 2020 1,684 14,045 68,181 d63a 108 87632
Additions - 199 1,854 382 16 2.
Translers 184 nl [737) - [69] 7531
Exchange movements 157 12 12 18 1) 1691
0 sposals - - 1492) - - 2921
Pssels held lor sale - 15511 11,768) 18 121 325
AL January 2021 1813 13,520 64,832 3992 49 86,204
Additions n 493 74 457 293 2440
Acquisitions - 7 14 " - 2
Transler 68 i35 1 14i 62} [[37] 1061
Exchange movements 19 - 15 L] - 40
Dhsposals - 15051 no2 {L] - 11.5321
At 21 December 2021 1928 13,480 47,949 4667 283 88.305
Depraciation
A1 January 2020 320 8306 54.692 3.408 - 66724
Charge lor the year 48 569 3,506 1 - 4224
Transter 34 (21 rrazl - - 1489
Exthange movements l1e) 2 n \ki} - 1341
Disposals - - {2751 - - (275)
Imgairraent - - 3P - - a9
Assets neld for sale - 1551 11.216) 13) - 11.284]
At 1 January 2021 388 B78% 56395 3489 - 6%.057
Charge lor the year W S84 257 188 3 3318
Translar g 154 1,087 1901 16! kel
Exchange movements I - H 5 - "
Disposals - 13531 1915] 1151 - 11.2831
At 31 December 2021 455 8.962 59,085 3,577 - 72,079
Carrying amount
AL31 December 2021 147 £M1E 8,884 870 16,226
At 31 December 2020 1.423 £.13% 10,437 502 49 17147

The impairment dunng the year is €l 2020 £391,000) The prior year impawment s related Lo the Printhead ang EPS businesses with

associpted 3558ls wiitten down 1o ml

in 202} 355eks held w0 Ihe Printhead business lor sale were transferred back to property, plant and equipment due to addiional produciions

requiremnents These assets haa & cost of £257.010 net book value INBV] of £32.408

Assets held for sale in 2020 refate Lo the 3D business unil that has been sold in Lhe year

As a1 3) December 2021 the Gioup had entered into comractual commitments for the acauisition of praperty, plant and equipment

amounting to 1,330,000 (2020 £218.000)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

18. Leases

The Group has lease contracts far varcus tems of buildings. equipment and vehicles used 1n 1ts operations The Group's obligations under
Its leases are secured by the lessar's hitle to the leased assets Generally, Ine Group 15 restricted from assigning and subleasing Lhe leased

assels ang some coniracts require the Group to maintain certain knancial ratios

The Group also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 manths or less and leases of olfice equipment with low value
The Graup applies the "short-term lease’ and lease of low-value assets recognition exemnptions for these (aases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movemnents during Lhe year:

Bulldings. Equipmant Yotwl
€000 [ €000
Cosl
ar1 January 2020 11.978 119 18 12,11
Addmions 183 - - 183
Dispesals ezl t36t {24! 12241
Assets held for zale 18as) - - (885)
Exchanga mevements 18 1 ~ W
Ar 31 Jecember 2070 1,122 BL - 11,206
Addizans 5.073 W - 5,084
Acquisilion 3057 16 - g
Disposa:s 16,3471 &) - 16,353
Exthange movermnents 4 - - 4
At 31 December 2021 12,915 97 - 12,0492
Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 B8] 56 3 8,552
Charge for the year 1.204 29 k] 1.236
Disposals ne7t 135 gl I21g]
Assets held for sale [445) - - 1645}
Exchange rovements 3 - - 3
At 31 December 2020 207 50 - %128
Charge lor the year 853 18 - 1A
Dispasals 16.341) ha - 16,3551
Exchange movernents . Lo - - -
At 31 December 2021 3,599 5k - 3,864
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 £.325 4 - 368
AL31 December 2020 2044 k1 - 2078

Out of €5,084,000 add tions during the year, £3,272.000 represent lease renewal of the Huntingdon main sile

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under current and non-current Liabilies on the statement ol lnancial

positon} gnd the Movements dyning the perigd- '

2021 2020
£'000 <o0g
At January 2,579 KRZal
Additions 7,734 183
Accretien al interest 6k 8
Payments 1726) 224
Exchange movement m 1%
Lease habihihes assocated with assets held for sale - 1663)
At 31 December 9,70 257
Current 123 1064
Nen-currenl 8,499 1515
#.730 2979
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18. Leases continued

The table below summarises the maturity proiile of the Group s lease liabiuties based vpon the tontractual undiscounted payments as at
31 Decembe- 2021

2021 2020
£o000 000
On dernand - -
Leas than three Swrths 194 222
Four te 12 months 758 545
One to five years 5.047 1945
More than live yaars 4,538 -
10.540 2812

The lollowing are the amouns recogrised in proht or loss.,
021 2020
o0g £'000
Depreciatan expense of nght-of-use assets N 1.235
interest expense an lease habilies Thé 98
Expense relaing o short-term leases [included in administranve cxpenses| 375 152
Total amount reccgrusec n profit or loss 1,390 1.485

Inlerest expense an tgase Lab:tes consists of €144 COC (2020 €62,G001 reported under centinuing operations and £9,.000 (2020, £16.0001
relahing to Xaar 37 businegs reported under disconlinued operations

19. Subsidiaries

Aclist of the inves:ments in subsdiaries, ncluding the name, couniry of incorpo-ation and proportion ol ownership INteresl, 1s given
nate 11 to the Company s separate inancial statements.

20. Inventories

N Restared 2020

oo €oco

Raw mM3tenals ang consurnatiles 5,619 6,354

Work in progress 8.605 1487
Fiushed goods 4,815 _.qn:.wl

18,839 9750

The cast of invent3nies recagmised as an expense includes £1,189.0C0 12020 €3,395,0000 in respect of inventory wrile-downs

Gross stock was £2B.410,000 (2020, £34,371.00C1 wath nventory provisisns of €9.571,000 (2020 £24,621,000) The prowisian of £9,571,000
included £4.289.080 1n relation ta discontinued operations. Inventary for discontmued operations has been recognised at fair value.
A sigruficant praparhion af this ingrease in inveniory 15 attributable 1o the managad investment in our Supply chain capability.

The hinished goods 10 2020 were restated due to the adjustment in EPS 10 the pror year. Refer to note 37 for further details.
There 15 no specihe impact an the vakuation of the Company s inventories ansing trom chimate related malters. Estimates are ased upon
the most reluable wadence svailable at the time the estimates are made

21. Other current assets

The fair vzlue of all tinancial assets and hinancial Labilities approx:mates their ¢carryng value No amounts are expecied to be seltled in
mere than 12 morths Refer 1o note 37 for restaternent of 2020

2021 Restated 2020

Trade and other -eceivables (1] £'000
Amount recewvzble for the sale of gaods 5,336 &,679
Allgwance lor doob-ful debts 1144) {8221

B9t 05T
Contract assets 3,2% 1562
Other cebtors 221 1.218
Prepayments 1,439 822

12,138 9.639
Current lax asaet 51 425
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21%. Other financial assets continued
Trade receivables

The average credit period taken an sales of goods 15 32 days (2020: 47 days] No interest is charged on the recewables tor the period agreed
in the Requirements Contract or, if not specified or applicable, the first 30 days from the date of the invaice Therealter, the Group reserves
the righl to charge interest at & daily rate of the greater of either 3% per annum abave the base rate of the Bank 0! England from time 1o
time, or the maximum rate of interest allowable under the Late Payment of Commercial Debts |Interest) Act 199B, on all sums outstanding
until payment in tull is received. Trade receivables over 120 days are provided for based on esimaled irrecoverable amounis trom the sale
of goads. determined by reference to pasi default experience.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the financisl assets as disclosed on page 150 Before accepting any new
customner. the Group uses an external credit sconng system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit Limits by
customer. Credit irmits are reviewed at least once per year. Of the irade receivables balance ai the end of the year seven customers each
represented greater than 5% of the total recevables balance, totalling £2,100,000 (2020: £1,100,000) The total due from these customers
represents 4% (2020 2%) of the Group's fevenue

Included in the Group's trade recewables balance are geblors with a carrying amount of £1.444,000 (2020 £1.843.000] which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has nol been a significant change in credul quality and the amaounts are stilt
considered recoverable.

Ageing of past due but not impaired recewvables

n21 2020

£00 €000

1-30 days overdue 117 1148
30-60Q days overdue 150 21
60-90 days overdue 264 85
90-120 days overdue 81 266
Over 120 days overdue [13 gt
Total receivables 1,644 1843

Movement in the allowance for doubtiul debts-

2020

£000

Balance at the beginning of the year 7959
Impawment |reversall / losses increased 19291
Amagunls writlen off as uncolleclible 16,4081
Balance al the end of the year 144 622

The Group always measures the loss allawance for trade cecenvables at an amount equal to lifeme ECL The expected credit losses on
trade recervables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference 1a past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor s
current fnancial posilion, adjusted tor factors that are specific 1o the deblors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtars operate and an assessment of bath the turrent as well as the lorecast direction of condihians al the reporhing date The Group has
recagrised 2 loss allowance of 1.0% for recevables aged 40 days or less, 5% for recewables aged between 81 and 90 days, 5% for 91 and
120 days. A ioss allowance of 25% is applied lor recevables aged aver 120 days. The loss allowance calculation excludes recevables with

a specific prowision. Most of the debt aver 120 days has been prowded in lull and relates 10 a small aumber ol customers where none of

the debl 1s expected to be recavered through normal trading A prawsion 15 made against trade recenables until such tme as the Graup
believes the armount to be irrecoverable [such as the hankruptcy of a customer or emerging market risks, which would render the recenabla
ircecoverablel, after which the trade recevable balance is wrilten off Amounts written off in the prior year relate to distributar balances
There 15 no current enforcement activity an the remaining halance

Ageing of impared trade recervables,

2021 2620

£000 £ 000
Current 2 19
1-30 days overdue 2 3
30-40 days overdue - -
40-90 days overdue - -
90-120 days overdue - -
Uiver 120 days overdue 140 s00
Tatal Thde 822

The Directars have considered the sensitwty of doubtful debls and a 1% increase on the ECL percentage would equate to an addional
£51.000 allowarce The Direclars consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewvables approximates their fair value
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21. Other financial assets continued

Treazury deposits
Treasury deposits compnse bank deposite with an original maturity of between throe months and 12 monthe The carmping omount of these
assets approxmates their tar value

1021 020
000 000
Treasury depasits - 161

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivaleats comprise cash held by the Group and shart-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months ar less.
The carrying ameunt of these assets approximates their fair value,

The analysis af cash and short-term bank deposits is as follows

a1 2020
£000 Co00
Cash 25,061 17,956

The crecit risk ar liguid londs 203 deswvabve Inanciat instrumenls 1s Limiled because the counterparhies are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by mernalional credii-rating agencies

22. Financial instruments

Fair valye measurements.

The fallewing 12ble combines information about

+ classes of financial instruments based en their nature and charactenstics;

= the cartying amounts of knancal nstruments,

» fair values of inapcial nstruments lexcept financial Instruments when carrying amount apprommates Iheir fair value); ang
« law vatue hierarchy tevels of financial asseis and financial Labiiities lor which fair value was disclosed

Fair value hierarchy Levels 1to 3 are based on Ihe degree Lo wiwch Lhe fair value 1s cbservable

» Level | fair valise measurements are thase derved from quoted prices [unadjusted) In 3 cive markels for ienticat assets or kabiities.

» Level 2 fairvalue measurerments are these derved fram wnpuls other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable lor
the aszet or labiity, either directly lie as prices) or indirectly |1 e. derived from prices). and

 Leval 3 fair value measurements are those derwved fram valuation techniques that include inputs far the asset or ligbility that are not
based on observable market data [unobservable nputs|

Financial assets Financisl liabilitiss
FYTPL- FVTPL -

FyTPL - maadatorly Amartized mandaterily Amortised
designatad measursd cost meagurad Rt Total
200 cont C00 €000 cotn ot £000
Financial asset at fair value through profit o~ - 11,850 - - - 1,850

1as5 Inete 114

Trade and other receivables lnote 211 - - 0,699 - - 10,699
Treasury depasits inote 21} - - - - - -
Cash and bank balonces Inate 21] - - 25,051 - - 25,051
Trade and olher payables (note 24} - - - - (21,4891 21,4891
Other Inancial hambilies due alter mace than - - - - 13,354} 13,3541

one year [note 26]
Dervative financial instrument - - - - - -

Addimonal disclasure tor lease Liabiles 1s reparted in note 18

Finane
FVTRL - FyTPL-
FYTAL - mandatarily Amort sed mand3tority Amarused
designaled measured cost measured cost Totat
7020 Restated €000 [0 000 £'000 ‘a0n 0o
Trade and ather recewables [nele 21] - - 8817 - - 8817
Treasury deposits Inpte 211 - - 181 - - 181
Canh and bank balances [note 21 - - 17,854 - - 17,925
Trade and other payables [note 24] - - - - 19,940 19.940)
Derwalive hinancial instrument 180 - - (29191 - 2.759)
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22. Financial instruments continued

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Groua's financial assets and linancial liabilities are measured at lair value at the end ol each reportig pariod The lollowing
1able gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial Labiltes are deterrmined (in particutar, the vatuation
techmiguelst ang inputs used!

Relationship and

Financial asset/ Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable  sensitivity of unobservable
financial tiabilities and key inputfs] inptls) inputs 1o fair value
Derwative financial Black-Schales model. The Undertying pree ol she share Not applicable as the ophians
istrurnent [Level 31 tollowing vanables were taken into have been exercised this year

consideration current underlying Volatllty of the underlying

price al the underlying share, share. B
ophans strike price, ime unli|
expiration [expressed as a percent
of a year). imptied volatibty of the
underlying share and LIBOR.
Financial asset at tar Monte Carla Simulation madel. Revenue volatility 10% ncreasef|decrease] in
lue through pralit or : ]
valu gh prali The foltowng varables were reverue volalilty would resull
loss llevel 3 n £41,000 decrease and
taken inlo Conseralion. revenue £3.000 wicrease in f !
prajections, management farecast Em, ol air value
and discoun rate. pectively
. . 1% ncreasefldecrease) in
The milestone cansideralion ant Risk-adjusted discount rate

discount r
3% earn-out consideration are unt rate would result

calculated based on the terms of wzmmwwmo:qﬂn%mmﬂm_:a _
the proposed transaclion and by _amvaﬁ_.hm“mnmm_ air value

reference to simnulated revenue
This 15 then discounted back to the
valuation date using a discount rale
over 8 period cornmensurate wilh
the year inwhich payments are
payable

The-e were na iransiers between Level 1 and 2 during the curcent or prior year

Tne financial liabilities measured using Level 3 fair value measurement represent written call aptions retating to a business cembination
During the year, with a revised term of the call option, Stratasys exercised the call ophion and acquired the remaining 55% sharehalding
of xzar The value of the derivative hinancial Liability has therefore been recognised in the income statement

0n 1 Novemnber 2021, the sale of Xaar 30 Limited Lo Stratasys was compleled through a change 1o the terms of the call option wilhgut cest
which was then exercised immediately The fair value of the previous option immediately prior to exercise was ml Xaar received nel cash
of £9.272,000 and contingent consideration of £10,863.000 with a faw value of £11,850,000 as at year-end The conungent consigeration
recogrised as a hinancial assel at fair value througn protit or loss The only mavement in the year represents the revaluatian between 1
Novernber to 31 Qecember 2021, Additional disclosure information 1s provided m note 11 -Urscontinued operations and note 35 -
Non-controlling interest

Financiat assat a
Drrrvaiet hegnciat Lo value Ihrough

anslrument prell artass.
€000 €000
Balance al 1 Janyary 2021 12919 -
Recognitien of contingenl consideratian - 10,882
Exeraised of call cption 2919
Total gans of lasses = in probt or loss - 987 _—
Balance at 31 Decamber 2021 - 11.350

4 B.m uuv_n.;:._u—l-wulnlﬂ_:-’.-—m_l—-x—o:_nun:
Financial Siatements



22. Financial instruments continued

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financiai liabitities that arz measured at fair value on a recurring basis continued
Ihe use ol hnan -1al dervatives 1s governed by the Group s palicies approved by the Board of Oirectors, which prowide writted principles

on the use of knancial dervatives cansrstent with the Graup's risk management strategy The Group does not use derivative hnancial
instruments for 3pecutative purposes

Financial risk management objectives

The Group s polizy 15 20 manage the Group s hinancal nsk, secure cost aflectiv: funding for the Group's aperations and ta nimise the
adverse eftects ¢f fluctuations in the tinancial markets on the value of the Group's financial assets and labilities, on reported prolitability
and on the cash “lows of the Group.

The Group linances its activilies with a cambinabion of cash and treasury depocits Gther financial assets ang Labilives, such as trade
debtors and tradz creditors. arise pirectly from the Group's operaling actmties

finangial nstruments give rise to foreign cugrency, nterest rate, eredit and Liquidity nsk The Group s management of its exposure le credit
risk 15 discussed in note 21

The Group 5 expe suri has been calculated with reference 15 these balances as at the year-end

Interest rate nzk

As the Graup cLrently has no borrowings, its exposure lo 1nterest rale nsk relztes 1o the interest rale on its cash, cash equivalent and
treasury deposit Jalances The Group's interest rale risk arises mawaly from its tunds invested .n short-term bank deposits. To mitigate
these risks, Lt s have Bbeen set by the Board 1o relation to matunity period and maximumn deposits with any ane institubien

If Interest rates had been 10% higher/reduced by 10% and all other vanables were held constant, the Graup s prolit for he year endey
31 December 207 1 would increase by {136,000 or decrease by £147,000 [2020 increase by £100.000 or decrease by £100,000]. There would
be no effecl an equily reserves

Foreign currency risk

The Group recenes approximately £0% of s revenues in US Dallars and 7% of us revenue in Eures, which are partally naturally hedged by
suppties in these currencies, but the remainder requires conversion into Sterl-rg in order to fund the remaining costs of the UK operatans,
The Group has R&O operations in Sweden, and therefore incurs costs and halds cash balances in Swedish Krona,

The Group 1s mai1ly exposed to toreign currency nisk resulting from transactions in US Dollars, Euros and Sweaish Krana The following
table demanstratzs the Group s sensitmty ta 3 10% increase and decrease i i Sterling exchange rate against the retevant foraign
currencies on the Group's profil before tax and equity [due to changes in the fa vatue of monetary assels, labilties and forward currency
contracts| 10% represents management s assessment of the reasonably possible movement in exchange rates The sensilvly analysis
includes only outstanding loreign currency dencrminated monetary items and acjusts heir translation al the penod end for 2 10% change
w foreign corrency rates The sensitvty analysis includes inter-company balances within the Group where the denarmination ol the batance
15 1n @ currency ofher than the functional currency of the debtar or the creditor 4 positive number below indicates an increase in profit

or equsty

Eure US Dollar Swedlah Krena
Currency impact currency mpact curreney mpant
0 W00 0 2070 ]
(o] 4,13 'ooe €000 £000
Effect of a 10% inc-ease ' re.evant exchange -ate on
Prokt or loss 198 1139 (50! fa201 LY (171
Equity %61 3¢ [528} (1,00 1] (107
Efiect ot 3 1G% dec-ease in relevant exchange rate on
Proht or loss 17 170 &1 514 12 1
Equoy 17 170 645 1225 na K1

Cagpital risk management

The primary objec e of 1he Group s copital management is to ensure Lhal it ma ntains 2 strang credit rating and healthy capital ratgs in
order to support its busingss, maximise sharehelder value and prowvide flexmility lar value enhancing investments The Growp manages iis
capital structere and makes adjusiments to 1t in Light of changes in ecanomic conditions or 35 a result of carporate strategy To maintain or
adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust Lhe deadend payment 1o sharenolders, return capital to shareholders or Issue new shares.
In addition, any pe entrai value enhancing investments ray be funded through additonal debt instruments Ne changes were made in the
ohjectives, policies or processes during the cureeat or prior year No dividend 15 proposed for 2021

Further information can be found on pags 138 [nete 131,

Tne Group moniLoss capital using a gearing ratio, which 15 geterrmined as the preportion of debl to equity Oebt s defined a2 long- and short-
term borrowings Tquity Includes g0t capital and reserves ot the Group altribulab.e to the equity helders ol the parent The Group ¢ pelicy for
115 existing busines s 18 to use debt where appropriate, whilst maintaining the gearing ratio at a level under 10%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

22. Financial instruments continued
Capital risk management continued
The gearing ratio [excluding IFRS 16 leasesl at the year-end 15 as follows:

2021 120

(8 ] £ oag
Nel debt - R
Total equity 49,790 54,159
Gearing ratio 0% 0%

The Group 1s nat subject to externally imposed capital requirements

Credit risk management
Credit sk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Graup The

Group hos adapled 2 polizy of only dealing vath creditworthy counterpartios and incuring the cupplers, a¢ 3 meang of mitigating the nigk -
of inanciat lass from defaults,

Trade recewables consist of a large number of customers. spread across different industries and geographical areas. Ongaing credit
evaluation 1s perlormed on the financial candiion of accounts recervable

The credit risk on liquid funds rs limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit rahings assigned by internatianal cradit
rabing agencies. Addibonal credit insurance coverage 1s mainlained where appropriale against agreed credit terms with custamers.

Liquidity risk

The Group 2ims to migate liguidity risk by managing cash generation by s operations and spplying cash collection targets throughout the
Group Irnwestment is carefully contralled, with authorisation lirmits eparating up to Group Board fevel and cash payback periods applied as
part of the investmenl appratsat process. In this way the Group aims to mantain 3 good credit rating to facililate fund rasing

In arder ta mitigate the Group's liquidity risks, the Group ¢an choose ta fund significant fixed asset purchases by finance leases repayable
over a peried of three lo five years dependent on the ind vidual asset being hnanced and intarest-bearing loans

Ints funding strategy, the Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuily of funding and flexibility through the use of
averdralts, bank loans. firance leases and hire purchase contracts The Group manages liguidity nsk by maintaining adequate reserves.
and banking fac lities by continuously monitoring cash flows and matching the matunly profiles of financial assels and Lahilibes Gwen the
current level of cash avadability Ihere are currently no overdrafi or bank loan lacilites arranged with banks erther drawn or undrawn

Ngn-dervalive financ.al liabiibies of £21 48% 000 (2020 £9,940,0C0) compnise trade creditars. The trade creditors are withan current
liahilmes The inherent liquidity nisk of these hinancial lsbilities 1s managed within the overall liquidity risk of the Group »s described abave.
The maturity profile of lease liabibties is set out in note 18

The Group's poticy is Lo invest any excess cash used in managing Liguidity in iinancial mstruments exposed to Insigmilicant risk of changes
in market value, being placed on interest-beanng deposil with maturities no more than 12 months

23. Deferred tax

The follawing are the major deferred lax liabil ties and assels recogrised by the Group and mevements theresn during the current and prior
reporting peqods:

Gt
Acceloraled tax Share-bawd _....va:“
depreciation payment  intangibie asners Tak tosses Aditierence Total
£gan 200 €000 cuon €000 £
At January 2020 05 leg - (5821 213 1ol
(Creditlfcharge to Income 55 39 - nasl 31 14l
{Credul{charge for discontinued operations 1681 - - - - L:]]
Forewgn exchange movernent - - - - & 4
4t 31 December 2020 692 i - [721) i178) {208)
[Creditlcharge to ncome 336 - (64] (a0el 175 138
[Creditlfcharge for discontinued operations 158] - - (38 - 1941
Acquisitions - - 98% (9891 - - e
Disposals 124 - - 38 - 164
Foreign exchange movement - - - - 3 3
AL 31 Decamber 2021 1094 1 928 121009 - 4

Certain deferred tax assets and liabiiities have been offset. The followsng 15 the analysis of the delerred iax balances [sfler offset] for
hipancial reporting purposes:

ﬂ m D -!u_-nb:....-_n-__n:-._nﬂ_isn_lm.h.-_.‘:.-»o»_
Financial Stalements



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

23. Deferred tax continued 24. Share capital

209 200 282 2020

[yl £ 000 o 000
Deferrad 1ax Liah 1 - Issued and fully pa:
Deferred tax assels - 208 78,445,230 (2020. 78,334 298] ordinary shares of 10 B each 7,844 7833
Being Oelerred Lax assets fram conlinuing operatiors 1 130 The movemenl during the yea: on the Company’s 1ssued and fully paid shares was as follows
Being Deferred tax assets kam discontinved operations - 48

2621 2020 2021 2070

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of £117,300,000 (2020. £75,900,000) avaitable to ofiset against future prolits. As Number Humbee Lo €000
at 31 December 2021 the Graup has an unrecogrised delerred tax asset in respect of these losses lotalling £28,200,000 (2020 £14,500,000} Batance at | January 78,334,294 78,334,796 7823 7.833
Thase losses may be carried forward indefinitely As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused captal losses of £1,100,00012020 Exerose of share oftons .:._ 934 i v " b

£1,100,000) available foc ottser agawnst luture gaing e - . B

Bal 3 0 b % 7 3
The impact ol elimate change has been considered 17 the farecast and valuation of futyre taxable profits and no 1mpacts were mated. 2ance 2 ecember 644,230 8,334,298 7.846 7823
Mo delerrad tax asset 1s recognised by the Group The Cempany bas ane class ol erdinary shares which carry no right 1o hxed ncome
Mo deterred tax asset has been recognised i respect of these capital lo§ses as it 1s not constdered probable that there will be future
chargeable gains available These losses may be carred forward indelinitely 5"._“.-.,.”..” F,Hﬂ“.””mw_
u_uvu:a: asut uuv:o) a Subscrption
ecember 1 D b
24, Trade and other payables Scname Die o grary 201 0 jried
oo o Xaar plt 2004 Share Gptian Plan 01 June N - 40,000 50 0p
01 May 12 90,000
Current liabilities AL 20.000 226 5p
Trade payobles ang accruals 19,500 9,540 : o 90,000 130.000
Other finarcial habdilies 1,58% - Xaar plc 2017 Share Save Scheme O November 17 - 7010 344 0
— PR Py v 01 November 18 34,975 1156,5%6 142 Op
— 01 December 19 893,038 937,505 34 Op
Non-currenl liabilities 02 November 20 £081,104 702,032 102 0p
Qther financial habilives 3,354 - 04 November 21 632,995 - 129 0p
Trade payable and accruals pr noipally omprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and engoing costs The average credit taken for - o 2,262,112 AL .
trade purchases 1s 28 days (2020 18 days]. Xaar plc 2013 Share Incentive Plan 17 apnl 13 4,332 6,309 00p
The increase in trade creditars balance 1s mainly due to improved <redit terms with suppliers and increasing slock held across the Group of 14 Apnil 14 &769 8,844 a0p
1,734,000, wngrease In customer depesits in EPS (2,389, 000) and the addition of FFELN the year [£3.654.000). 15 Apnl 16 %1} 1n.M? 00p
Tha other financial Uailites represent the deferred consideratien 1n relation to the acqursition of FFEI Limiled sphit between the current 13 Apra 17 3.952 >.280 10p
portn cue in 2022 [£:.589.0001 and noa-current partion 19,799 32171
The Directors consider that the carrying amsunt ol krade payabies approximales ta therr fair value Tolal share options outslanding at 31 December 2,351,911 1525215

25. Provisions

Frovtsion lar

Warranty dilapmalion Tatal

[ £o00 Lon

AL T Janvary 2020 247 - 2947
Aaditional / [releasel provision in the year 1 - 756
Utilisation of prowision na) 13,105) - 13.228)
Release of provision nam - - (120}
At Y January 2021 7 280 - 57
Additional f lreleasel prowision in the year 233 " 230 914
Acquisiian - - 50 50
Unlisatzon of provision 1nal (280 - 1298
Release of prowisten 159] - - 59)
At 3% December 2021 253 1 300 LT

The warranty and commercial agreements frowision represents managemnent’s best estimate of the Group's ability related to claims
against product warranties or commercial sales agreements The timing of the uuibisatien of this provision 15 uncenain

Addiuenal restructuring provisicns of £11.000 have been added
£280,000 1n 2021 was for the relocauon of HQ to Walerbeach

marily n relation te redundancy 1o be utibsed in 2022; the ytilisation of the

Mon-current provisions relate to provisions for dilapidation which form past of night -of-use assels and are deprecialed over the lease term
Further delals on leases 15 n note 18
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26. Share capital continued

Cptions granted Lnder the Xaer plc 2004 Share Jpuion Plan are ordinanly exercisable within three to len years after the date ol grant
The maximom vzlue of approved options, under the Xaar plc 2004 Share Opuor Plan, which may be granted to indwidual employees s
£30000

Options under the Kaar plc Share Save Scheme are ordinanily exercisable betwen 36 and 42 manths atter the date of grant

fwards unger the Xaar plc Share tacentive Plan are ordinanily exercisable betwzen three and five years afler the date of grant,

Long-Term Incentive Plan
Performance Shi re Awands oulstanding under the Xaar plc 2067 Lang-Term [nzente Plan are as follows

! Rumber of Humber ol
shares undar shares under
option as at option 85 8l
21 Decamber 31 Dacember
bate of gram n izl
IMay 11 - 4533
1 May 12 5,229 7291
2 Apoil 15 30.179 35933
28 September 15 2,538 3.06%
7 Dacember 15 - 9.35¢
1 April 18 17,733 34,645
11 May 16 437 4977
T dune 1 37133 TN
& Seplember 16 70D 700
1 December 16 15,093 15,093
i - 80,1680 19,33
All awards under Whis scheme ase exercisable wathin three to ten years after the date of grant
Performance Share Awards have been made under the Xaar plc 2017 Long-Term Incentive Plan as follows
an 020
Nurnber Mumber
Date of gram of shares ol shares
6 May 17 18,804 30472
03 April 18 - 126,735
2 Aprt 2007 104.292 110,792
30 aprn 2029 59.78% 59,789
4 October 2019 180,328 180328
2% April 2020 394,000 504,000
4 June 2020 §35,000 535.000
1 October 202C 21,000 21,000
14 Oriober 2021 984,272 -

2.299.485 1468115

All awards under IF 15 scheme are exercisasie wi

n lhree ta len years after the Cate of grant,

27. Share premium account

2021 020

£000 900

Balance a1 1 Janvar + 29,328 29328
Prerniurs anising on 1ssue of equity shares b1l -
Balance at 31 Decerber 29.427 #38
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

28. Own shares

2021 2020

oot £ 000
Balance as at 1 January 11,9571 [2.876)
Sold in the year k] LAk
Baiance at 31 Decembar 1,923t (1.957|

Of this balance, £20,000 [2020. £20.000) represents 91.250 ordinary shares in Xaar plc held in lrust by Xaar Trustee Ltd Xaar Trustee Ltd
was formed (n 1995 to act as teustee to Ihe Employee Benefit Trust established in 1935 10 hold shares for the benelit of 1he employees of the
Company and the Group. There has been no movement in the number of shares held in trus! by Xaar Trusiee Lid during the year

The remarsing balance of £1.503,000 {2020. £1.937.000) represents the cost of 692,575 2020. 705,083) shares in Xaar plc purchased in the
market at markel value and held by the Xaar plc ESOP trust to satisty options granied under the Gormpany's share oplion schemes

The market value ol own shares at 31 Decernber 2021 was £1,427,000 (2020 £1,421,000]

29. Translation reserves

Restateg

2021 2020

£00d €000

Balance a1 1 January B4i 818
Exchange thiferences on refranstation of net investment 141 )
Balance at 31 Decamber 1011 Bod

Exchange filferences relaung io the transiation of the nel assets of the Graup’s loreign operations, which relate 10 subsidizries only, from
their functianal currency 1nto the parent’s funclional currency, being Sterling, are recognised directly in the translation reserve

30. Retained earnings and other reserves

Merger  Shere-besed Tstal uther Retained
restrve payments rescrves Rarninga Tatal
Mates (411 £00 (4111 £400 €000
Balance at 1 January 2020 las reported) 1105 14,645 20921 7,998 28,919
Prior year reslaternant i - - - - 17581 17861
Balance at ) Janwary 2020 |as reslated] 1,105 14,645 5151 20921 5832 27.753
Net loss far the year - - - - [11.4851 f11.685)
Tax on items directly to equity - - - - 151 151
Own shares sald in the period ~ - - {7110] [kalil]
Charge to equity tor equity-seltled share-based
payments 3z - 248 - 2Ub - 246
Piar year restaternent 37 - - - - 4 4
Balance at 31 December 2020 (as restated| 1,108 14541 5151 21187 15.5641 15,603
Net prafit for the year - - - - 16 21% 16.219
Dwin shares sold In the peried - - - - - -
Share options ezercises - - - - 132 1321
Charge 1o equiy for equity-setiled share-based
payments 32 - 653 - - 6353
Batlance st 31 Bacembar 2021 1,108 16,564 5,151 10,5623 32643

The merger reserve and other reserves are not distributable. The merger resenve represents the share premium account in Xaar
Technology Lirmited.

The share-based paymenl reserve represents the comulauve charge made under IFRS 2 in relalion to share aplions and LTIP swards.
Other reserves represent the non-distributable portion af the diwdend recewed in Xaar ple fram Xaar Digital Limnited
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21. Notes to the cash flow statement

w1 00
000 £ 000
Profitflossl bafore tax irem conunuing operations bl 143221
Prohi{lloss! belore tax from discentinued operations 13,503 110.105)
Tatal Profic  [lass] belore tax 14,457 14437
Adjustrents for
Sharg-based payments 758 35
Depreciation el property, plant and eguipment 3,318 4223
Depreciztion of right-of-uze assels art 1238
Amaorisation of intangible assets 475 685
Imparrment of assets - M
Research and development expenditure credn {582) 1654)
Investment income 18} 1721
Intarest expense 252 %
Foreign exchange gains/(loss| 1231 523
Gaingn remeasyrament of derivative Liabiity 2919 1771
Fair value gain an hinancial assels at farr value threugh profit o toss (9871 -
Loss on dispesat of praperty. glant and equiprient kal %
Profil on disposal of investment 1 Subsidiary l17,899) -
Other gains and losses - 02
Decrease in provisions 174) 12.5721
Operating cash llows belore mevements in warking caplal 12,2401 19,7941
lncrezsel/decraase 1 Inventories 12,944) [3-%
In{raase n recewables 11,5251 1337
Increase o payables 2.525 2o
Cash used 1n operations 12,204) 16,2731
Income Laxes recewved 150 1644
Net cash usad v gperating activites 12,054) 12.8071

Luring the year non-cash ipvesting activity pertains to purchase of praperty, plant ang equipment by the Company on credit amaunting te

£472.400 {2020 £1.152.000!

Curther mlormaton on cash flows from discontinued operaliens can be found i note 11,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements cunlinued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32, Share-based payments
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Campony's Share oplion sehermes are open ta oll employees of the Croup. Options are cxercinable at a price equal to the average quoted
market price of the Company’s shares on the date of grans The standard vesting penod 15 three years

An option granted under the Xaar ple 2004 Share Option Plan fram 2011 onwards will be exercisable aver shares with a market value at

lhe date of grant ngl exceeding a person’s annual salary, if al the third an-versary of grant, Xaar plc has achieved posttive adjusted profit
before tax as shown in the conselidated income siatement in the Company $ Annual Report end Accounts for any ol the three years ending
duning the vesting period One 1hird of the shares subyect ta the aption graoted raunded ta the nearest whole share will vest based on the
performance condition being met per year for each of the three years ending in The veshing period |t the adjusted protit before tax as shown
in the consolidated income statemenl in Xaar plc's Annual Repont and Accounis lor any relevant year 1s restated before the opion becomes
exercizable, the restated figure shall. unless the Remunerauon Committea determines atherwise, be applied in determining whether the
above targets are met, In addition, options shall only become exeraisable in respect of any shares 1f the Commttee 0 1ls absolute discretion
determines that the overall financial performance ol Xaar plc over the pertormance penad 1s satistactary

The Xaar 2007 and 2017 Share Save Schemes provige an gppartunity Lo all UK employees to save & sel manthly amount {up ta £5008] over
Ihree years towards the exercise of a discounted share ophion, which iz geanted a1 the start of the threc yrars

The Xaar Share Incentive Plan prowdes an oppartunity for all UK employees 1o buy shares from thewr pre-tax remuneration ug o the imit
permitled by the relevant tax legislalinn [£1.500 per year tor the awards made i 2013 and 2014. £1,800 per year for awards made fram 20151
and additional shares are awarded tor free on 3 matching basis: the Company currently operates the plan an the basis ol ¢ 1 1 match but
may award matching shares up 16 the maximum ratio permitled by the relevanl lax legislation lcurrently a 2 1 ratiol

Options and awards under the Xaar 2007 and 2017 Share Save Schemes and Xaar Share Incentrve Plan sre nol subject to parlarmance conditions.

If the options remain unexercised atter a period of 1en years [rom the date of grant, or 42 manths in the case ol the Share Save Scheme,
or five years in the case of the Share Incentive Plan [being the contractual lves), the options expire, Save a& permitted n the share option
scheme rules. optrons ordinarily lapse on an empleyee leaving the Group

Details of the share oplians autstanding during the year are as follows.

20

Weighted

Humber avrage

al shary taevcion eneruise

ogtions. wriculC) aptiong pece 1|

Qutstaneing at beginning of year 1,948,315 0.79 1.603.864 0.72
Granteq during the year 632,995 1.4% 702032 102
Lapsed dunng \he year 1104,8614) 1.5¢ 1349323 094
Exercised dunrg the year [101,785§ 1,08 €31.2581 Q.22
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,351, 9.88 1925315 7%
Exercisable ot the end of the year 14,774 1.75 182,172 187

The winghied dverage share price at the date of crercise lor share options exerrised dunag the period was £1 54 12020 €1 10] The optons
outstanding at 31 December 2021 had a weighted average remaining centraclyal Life ol two years [2020 three and 2 hail years! In 2021.
optians were granted on 4 Novernber The aggregale of the estimated lair values ol the options granted on those dates s 541,000 in 7070,
aplions were granted on 2 November, The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the oplions grantad on those dates i« £525.000
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32. Share-nased payments continued
Equity-settled = hare option schema continued
The inputs inka th e Black-Schotes madel are a5 fullaws

200 2020
We ghled average share price (3] El.28
Waghted average exercise price .29 £1.02
Weghled average expected volatlity % Ti%
Fxpected bie 3.25years 35years
Risk-free rate 0.49% 10 051%
Weightad average expecied dividends. 0.00% 0.0

Expected volatilil was determined by caleulating the historical votatility of Lhe Group s share price over periods ranging fram the previous
ane ta three year; The expected Irie used m the model has been adiusled. based on management's best estimate, lor the effects of
non transierabiliy, crerose rectnictians and behawoural contideralions.

Long-Term inteqtive Plan
The Company’s |ang-Term Incentive Plan 1s agen to all employees ol Lhe Group

AILTIP snare awards granted before 2015 are subject to the achievement of EFS perlormance conailions and the number of shares that
vest will depend ca the EPS growth of the Campany for the three hinancial years of the Company commenaing on ) January of the year ol
grant, as fodaws

[1) Mone gi the av ards will vest If the Comgany s EPS growth does not exceed gowth in the Retait Prices lndex | RPI] by at least
4% compound p.a

121 35% of Ihe awz rds wll ves! « the Company's EPS growth exceeds growth in the RP) by at least 4% compound p.a.
|3) All of 1he awar s will vest f the Company s EPS growth exceeds growth i th RPI by at least 10% compound p.a
141 Awards will vet on a straight-line 0asis for EPS growth in excess of growth 11 the RPY of between 4% and 16% compound o 3

LTIF share awards granted 1n 2015 enwards are subject to the achievemeni of & flerent perfarmance conditians depanding on The level
of the employer The number of shares that vest will depend on the three finanaal years of the Comgany commencing
an 1 January of th= year of grani, and are subject ta one, lwe, theee, four or five of the conditions as set ou below

111 Absolule cumitatwe EPS performance ove - the period, wherety 29% of the wards will vestd the threshold targetis acheved, below
threshold 0% v ikl vest and up to & maximum of 100% if the maxmum EPS ta 'get or figher 15 ach-eved

12} For 2015 and 2136 grants, TSR relate 1o FTSE TechMARK All Share Index, wherety 25% of the awards wll vestif the median rank in the
comparator groug is achieved, below median 0% will vest ang up to 8 maximarn of 100% 1 the upper quarble or higher 15 achieved For
2017 and 2018 jrants. TSR autperiormance multiplier determined by comparisan to the FTSE SmallCap Index, whereby a pecformance
rullipher of between 116 7% [far upper quartle performancel and 150% or 230% lfor upper decite performancel s applied tg the base
award refaling o awards granted with EPS and revenue performance condiliens

=

| “or 2015 ang 2014 grants, achievement of positve adjusted profit before tax s shown in the consolidated income statement in the
Company's Anrual Report and Accounts for any of the three years ending durng the vesting penod. One third of the shares subject 10
the oplion gran ed, rounded ta the nearesi whole share. will vest based on the perfarmance condition being mel per yeas for each u._ lhe
three years eaing 10 the vesting peniod I the adjusted prohl before tax as shawn in the consotidated ncome stalement in Xsar plc's
Annuyal Report ang Accounts lor any relevant yeas 1s restated betore the option becomes exercisable. the restated higure shall, unless
the Rernunerat on Comemittee determines otherwise, be applied 1 deterninmy whether the ebove largels are met. [n additien, options
shatl only hecame exercisable i respect of any shares if the Commuittee in its absolute discretion determines that the overall linanciat
umlo:.?wunm of Xaar plc qver the performance pertod is satislactory

} From 2017, revenue growth over lhe period, whereby 25% of the awards will v2stf the threshold 1arget is achieved, below threshold 0%
wall vest and up to a maximum ol 100% if the maximurn ravenue growth targe or higher 1s acheved

151 From 2018, revenue lrom rnew progducts in the thied year in the vesting peried, whereby 25% of the awards will vest if the threshald target
15 achieved, beluw threshold 0% will vest and up to a maxmum of 100% if the raximum revenue target or higher s achieved

There are also a number of LTIP share awards granted that are subject lo the achievenent ol different performance conditions for specific
s, GEPENTETR Uh TRERTIrE OF PIoit pRriaa o st & wth perfr fhanie 2eied,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

32. Share-based payments continued

Long-Term Incentive Plan continued

In addition, optians shall only become exercisable in respect of any shares f the Committee in its absolute discretion determines that
the overall financial performance of Xaar ple over the perfarmance period 1s sabisfactory, All awards that will vest will be calculated on a

straight-line basis, All awards made under this scheme are exercisable within hree t6 ten years after the date of grant Save as permitted
in the Lang-Term Incentive Pan rules. awards lapse on an employer leaving the Group

Key individuals have previously been invited 1o participate in a benus matching scheme where matching LTIF share awards are granted
when the emplayee invests their bonus 1n Xaar shares and retains ownership of these shares for the duration of the LTH® share award
vesting pencd. The matching share award s a | far 1 match on the pre-1ax value of the bonus used ta acquirg bonus mvestment shares
Matching LTIP share awards are subject to the same performance criteria as al{ other LTIP awards.

Details of Performance Share Awards outstanding during the year are as lollows.

202 200
Awards dutstanding al start of year 1,587,450 1.135.0m1
Granied durmg the year 953,000
Lapsed during the year {275,418)
Exertises during the year 132,522] 1236 3431
Awards outstandwng at end of year 2,379,645 1.587.450
Exercisable at end of year 98,904 147 806

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for awards exercised during the period was €1.47 (2020 £0.58]. The optians
outslanding at 31 December 2021 had a weighted average remaining contractual lite o 8.67 years [2020 9 Syears) In 2021, Performance
Share Awards were made in Octaber. The aggregate of the esimated Jair values of grants made an that date is £1,457.000. In 7020,

Performance Share Awards were made in Apnil. June and Dctober. The aggregate of the estimated fair values of granis made an these dates
15 £440,000

The estimated fair values lor grants with non-market based performance condions were calculated using the Black-Scholes madel,
The inputs into the Black-Scholes modei were as follows

2021 2020
Weighted average share prica £ €048
Weighted average exercise pice Enil Lt
Weighted average expected volatiity 1% 7%
Waighted average expactec life 2.44 years 3 years -
Weighted average risk free rare 0.67% 10.05/%
Weighted average expected dwdends 0.00% 000%

The estimated tair values for grants with market based perlormance conditions were calculated using the Monte Carla modet, The inputs
nta the Monte Carlo medel were as follows:

201 2020
Weighted average share price £1.37 £0 44
Werghted average exer¢ise price £nil Emt
Weighted average expected volatility 0% %
Weighted average expecled life 2.44 years 3years
Weighted average risk Irea rate 0.55% 0 04%
Weighted average expected dividends 0.00% 0 00%

Deterred Bonus Plan

Under the Group’s Deferred Bonus Plan, executives recenve 70% ol the participant’s banus achieved i cash and 30% in the form of rights

to deferred shares of Xaar plc. These awards are subject only to service conditions, 1 e, the requirement for recipients of awards 1o remain

1n employment with the Campany over the vesting period The awards were granted on 14 Qclober 2021 All of these awards have been
raeiad im raoprah o the RRIIRRAIN'S RRis Ion Wik CRATpRNG S iihankieh year whith endtt un Y Detettiber 7020 and wii vest on the dealing

day follewing the announcement by the Company of its annual resulls for 2022 lassumed 24 March 2023) or, if later, the date on which the
Commiltee determines | the normal vesting date™).

The executives do not receive any dividends and are not entrtled to vote in relalion to the deferred shares aunng the vesting penod
It an executive ceases to be employed by the Group within this period, the nghts will be lorfeted. except in imited circumstances that
are approved by the Board on 8 case-by-case basis

s_ mm x,-qu_nn.).__t___-—’uuu_.n-_nﬂ_:.-:nmbrm-ln-!l-:-unn_
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32. Share-based payments continued
The Iollowing tabie shows Lhe deterred shares granted and oulstanding at the beginning and end of the reporing period

wnn 2020
Awards outstanding 81 start of yeer - o
Granted guring the year 34,098 -
Eapsed durag ihe yoar - .
Exercized during the year 3 - -
Awards outstanding at end of year 1% ] -

The weighted average share price at the dale of exercise for awards exercesed dunng the periorf was Enil [2020 £mill The options
outstanding at 31 December 2021 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of one year and Lhree monlths {2020 mil). In 2027,
Deierred Bonus Plan awards were made in October The aggregate of the estmated lair values of grants made on thel date 15 £60.000

The pstimated fas vatues lar grants with non-market based pertormance conditions were calculated using the Black-Scholes madel.
The inputs inlo the Black-Scholes madel were a5 lollows

an 2020
‘Weighled average share price £477 £§ 48
Wewhted average exgrcise price il £ml
Weighted average expected valalility 8% -
Weighled average expected ite 1.25 years. -
Weighted average risk free rate D.&7% -

Weighted average expecied dvidends - -

The Graup recogmsed total expenses of £653,000 and £246,000 related o all equdy-setiled share-based payment transactions w 2021
and 2020, respectively

33. Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The UK based employees of the Group's UK companies have lhe aption Lo be members of a defined contribution pension scherme managed
by a third party pension provider For each employee wha 1s a member of he scheme the Company will contribule a fixed percentage of each
employee s saiary 1o the scheme The only obligation of 1he Group with respect to tis scheme 15 lo make the specified contribulions

The total ¢cost charged ta the incame slalement in respect of these sehemes during 2021 was £930,000 (2020 £740.000] As at 31 December
2021 contributions of £102.000 (2020 {B5.000) due i respect of the current reporting peried had nol been paid ever ta the schermes

34, Related party transactions

Transachions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related partes. have been eim.naled on consclidation and are not
disclosed i this nate

Dunng the yeai, with a revised term of the call ophion, Siratasys exercised the call optien and acquired the remaining 55% shareholding of
¥aar The revised lerm of the call option allows Xaar 1g recewve $13,500,000 as iminal consideration and with the 3% revised ean-oul ang'the
earn-oul payments allow Xaar lo recene up to $34,750,000 of the total cansideration

On 1 Novermber 2021 the sale of Xaar 30 Limited 10 Siratasys was compleled and Xaar received net cash of £9,272,000 and contingent
cansideratian with a fair velue of £10.863 000 as at year-end The sale 5 disclesed further in nate 11

Additional disclosure on the transaction i& ncluded in note 22 - Financial instruments and note 35 - Non-cantrolling interest

Cuning 2021 there were bolh product sates between Xaar and 5515, and related party transactions associated with the “go-lo-market”
funclions whare S5YS employees have been seconded to Xaar 30 Linnited and the costs recharged

+ Sales between Xaar and 555 in 2021 £3,04%.00012020 £634.078)

« Purchases batween SSYS and Xaer £1.331 {2020- €2.620]

+ Employees seconded to Xaar from SSYS £274.945 12020, £219.201)

There were no other transactions during the year with related parties who are not memyers of the Group.

ation af key 9 personnel
The actual remuneration of the Direclors, who are the key management persannel of the Group. 15 disclosed in Ihe Directors Remuneraton
repart The contractual employee benefits are set aut below In aggregate for esch of the categares specified i 1AS 24 Related Party
Gisclosures

Further information about the remuneralion of individual Diréctorsis provided in the audiled part of the Directors’ Reruneration
repart gn pages Y2 to 6.
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34. Related party transactions continued

ation of key q Rersonnel continued
2021 2020
coon [10]
Shart-term empleyee benefils 24 1.640
Post-employment beneiits n 29
Share-based payments 168 183
1124 1.262

35. Non-controlling interest

Summarised financsal information in respect of the Group's subs diary. Xaar 30 Limuted, In which it has a matenal nen-cantroling rterest
15 sel out below The summarnised financial infarmation below represents amounts befare inira-group eliminations. Duning the year, with a
rewised term of the call optien. Stratasys exercised the call option and acquired the remaining 55% shareholding ol Xaar. The revised term of
the call optron allows Xaar to recenve $13,500.000 as 1mbial consideration with a 3% rewised earn-oul The earn-gul paymenls for a 15-year
periad allow Xaar lo receve up to $34,750.000 of total consideration

On 1 Novernber 2021, the sale of %aar A0 Limited Lo Stratasys was completed and Xaar receved nel cash of £9.272.000 and contingent
consideratinn with 3 lair valye of £10,B43.000 The sale s distlosed further in nole 11

The carrying amount of Xaar 30 assets and Liabilities, the income stalement and the maovernen n cash flow as at and up 1o the date of sale
(1 November 2021} are as follows.

Xaar JD Limited

1 November 2021 A76

Statemunt of financiat posit +'000 o0
Current assets 3,422 3770
Non-current assels 4,612 6,198
Current Liabilities 15,0171 11233
Non-¢urrent babiliies 1281} 1356]
Equity attributabie to owners of the Company 1.3% B.377
Nan-tontrolling interests (2021 45% / 2020 45%| 1.7 3
1w 2030

NCAME statement #3 other comptEhenIses CHT €000 £ 00
Revenue P&l 734
Expenses . 17,3420 (73881
Lass for the year 14,4240 16.632
Lass auribulabie to ewners of the Cornpany 12.433) i3 648)
Loss aitributable to the nan-controlling interesis 1,971) {2.984]
Loss lor the year 4,&261 (¢.8321
Total comprehenswe lass attribulable to ewoers ol the Company 12,420 13,6481
Toral comprehensive loss attriputable to the non-contralling interest 1,995 12.9581
Total comprehensve loss for the year 14,428) 16 6161
al 00

Caxh Row statement £'009 £000
Nel cash outllow (rom eperating aclivitigs e 16.213)
Net cash autflow from investing actimuies (2a |645)
Net cash gutflow krom hinanting achbes. 1981 B3]
Net cash autflow {2,012) 17.018]
2021 20

Non-carirplling interasl squity €000 000
Balance at 1 January Im 5739
Share of other comprehensive expense for year 11,995} 12,968
Derecogrition of -canirolling nterest 11,778) -
Balance at 11 Oecember - it
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34, Business combination
O 11 July 2027, €aar acoured 100% of the issued share capitzt of FREI Limited, & leading integrater and manulacturer of industnal dignal
inkjet systems ard digital Ule science lechnology wath many years of expenence in managing technical integration and engineering projects

Detanls of the net assets acquired, goodwiil and purchase consideration are as ‘ollaws

Recognised amounts d identifiable assets acquired and labilies assumed

Cash

Trade & other receivables
Corporate incams lax
Inventories

Property. piant ard equiprnent
Right-of-use assets
Intangiple assels

Trade & other sayables

Lease batlitres

Prawision inan-cu-rent|

Tatat net identifiatle assets
Goadwill

Tetal consideratio 1

Salistied by: 000
Cash 1,507
Deterred consideration L 4,055
Total considerauo translerred 8,762
Net cash outflow a-ising on acquisition 000
Cash consideratio s 3,97
Less cash and cash equivalents acquired 5075
Total ret cash mtcw ansing on acausimian 168

The far value of acquired trade recewanles s £1,310,000 The gross contractual 3mount for trade recevables due 1s £1.388,000, with 2 loss
allowance of £78,000 recognised on acguisdion

The goedwill of £639.000 ansing irom the acauisitian represents those characlenshics and valuable attributes of the acquired business

that cannot he quantihed and attributed to separately ientifiable assets in accounting terms  This goodwil! 15 underpinned by a number of
elements, the most sigmificant of which 15 the well established, skilled and expenenced operations leam which wall allow Xaar lo accelerate
the Company’s exriting growth strategy and will enabie Xaar lo capture additionzt opportunities in vertically ntegrated solutions None of
the goodwil recog vised 1s expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The far value of thz inlangible assets attnbuted to the acquisition of the business relates to palents and software [£3,044,008] and customer
relatieaships 1£1,234,000) These have an estimated uselul fe of six years The a-mochisalion from the date of acquisiion io 31 December
2021 5 £354 000 wrich 1s included in the income statement under general and administralive espenses.

In addition to the cash consideration, deferred consideration shall be paid i Lhre2 annuat instalments The undiscounted amount af all
future payments that the Company is required to make under the delerred consiceratian arrangerment 1s £5.200.000.

Acguisrion related costs which are included in admimstrative expenses in the consolidated mcome statement for the period ended
31 Decernber 2021 amounted 1o £618,000

The acquired busin2ss contribuled revenues of €£5.250,000 and net profit of £410.000 te the Group for the penad fram 11 July 2021 to

31 Decemnber 2021 FFEI Limiled had an accounting refecence date of 31 March prior te acquisition. reporting on 2 & week/s week/5 week
basis 10 their ERP systemn, which has subseguently been atigned with the Xaar Group date ol 31 December and manth end reporling FFE)
Limited reported under FRS 102 up to 31 March 2021, transitioning to IFRS and reparting under FRS 103 fram 1 Apnl 2021. Jue to the
ditficulties presented in performing an accurate calculaton of the results as If the acquisitren had occurred on 1 January, the Board has
decded thal it 15 e procucable 1o present the pro farma revenue and prefit,

Xaar plc - Annual Regert and Financial Statersents 202t ‘_ @._
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37. Restatement of prior period

The hinancial statements wiclude a pror period restatement in relation ta non-cash invenlory related adiustments identified gl EPS in

2021, that relate prior to 2020 Inventery items with a totat value of $827.000 1£627.0001 were identiied 35 being held on the balance sheet
that had been previously thsposed. scrapped or consumed prior to ) January 2020. The errors occurred as a resuit of the internal control
deticiencies identified in the EPS subsidiary, 1n respect of the adequacy of controls aver inventory managemenl, as disclosed in the 2020
Annual Report and Financial Stalements Additenally an amount owed ta an EPS suppber of $153.000 {£115,000) was incorrectly classified
a5 a vendor deposit on the balance sheet when the payment was made ta them in 2020, which should have been recognised as an expense
10 2016. The inc-ease in the brought forward Lax losses a5 a result of these adjustments has not been recogrised as a deferred tax asset but
has increased the level of unused tax tosses las alss drsclosed in note 23] There wes no impact of the restalement on earings per share,

Actions have been taken in 2021 to remediate the deliciencies entified. Process changes have been made to prevent the reaccurrence of
such errors

The lollowing tables summarise the impact af the prior perind restatement on the financial slatements of the Group for the periods ended
1 Januvary and 31 December 2020:

1 an 2020 EPS 1.4an 2020
a3 reparied adjustment restated
4 statemant of financial pasition 000 100 £ 0on
Current assets
Inventories . 14,530 1£27) 15,903
Tatal assets 88,224 (8271 87,597
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17.9731 1114} 18,0891
Tolal liabiities (12,887) (114} (18.003)
Netassats 70.337 [7&2f 59,575
Equity
Translation reserve 594 24 518
Retaned earnings 7.598 (78] 6832
Total equity 70337 1742) 69,595
31 Onc 2020 EPS 11 Onc uﬂv,.n
» repartog adjustment restated
Consalidated statement of comprahensive incoma 000 £'000 £1000
Loss far the year 114,869) - 14,669)
Exchange differences on retranslation of net investment 240 22 262
Tax (sl - 151
Dther comprehensive income for the year 235 n 257
Tatal comprehensive loss for the year 114,434) 22 114,412}
Attributable to:
Cwriers of the Company 111,468 22 (11,644
Non-controlling nterests 12.958) - 129681
[14,434] 22 114.412)

._ O M Financial Statemants.



37, Restatement of prior period continued

1 Dec 2070 (3 310ec 2020
as reportad adjustmant restaiad
Conolldated Stalement of hinancial pasitn o Cont com
Non-current assets
Goodwill 5102 - 5152
Diher intangrble assels 207 - 207
Pronerty, plant and equipment 17147 - 17147
Righ-af-use asset 207 - 2078
Deterred tax asset 139 - 13¢
24,723 - 24,123
Current assets
lawertories 10,355 1505] 9.750
Trade and other recervables 9751 ni 9440
Current tax gsset 429 - 425
Treasury deposits 181 - 151
Cash and cash equivalents 17.95¢ - 12956
Derwative nancial instruments 160 - 1860
Assers held ler sale . . 43 - 43
38,851 718 38,125
C1sposal group assets held for sale LALL] - 9 %68
48,819 1718) 48107
Total assets 73,562 {714 72,826
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19,9401 - 1%.9401
Sravisions (357 - 13571
Derwalive ngroal irslrurents [2.9491 - 12.919]
wedse babilities 11,064} - 11.064)
14,280 - 114,200
Liabilities assoctated with disposal greup [1.589] . (5891
115.848] - 115,8491
Net current assets 32,960 718l 32,234
Hoh-cufrent liabiities
Lease biabihuies 11.515) - £1.5151
Total aon-curtent liabilites |_._Pu.u_ - 11,5151
Total Liabilities (17,384) - [17,384]
Netassets 54,158 1718} 58,442
Equity
Share capital 7883 - 7.883
Share premum 25,328 - 23328
Own shares (1,957} - ,s57
Translation reserve 818 13 844
Qther reserve 21,187 - 21187
Retained earnings (4,802 (782t 15,5841
Equity attributahle lo owners of the Company 52,287 (718) 51,8711
Non-controlling interests kil - 37N
Tatal equity 55,168 714} 55,442
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 Decermber 2021

38, Non-adjusting post balance sheet event - Megnajet acquisition
On 2 March 2022, Xaar compteted the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Megnajel Ltd and Technomation Lid

The compames trade tagether under the name of Megngjel, and design and manufacture indusinal ink management and supply systems
lor digital inkjet The acquisitions will accelerate the Company's growth strategy by creating a more inlegraled inkje! solution whereby
customers £an sccess More of the prnting ecosystem lsuch as ink supply systems and the electronicsi from Xaar

The (mtial combined cash consideraucn af £3,600,000 (€1,860,000 for each of Megnajet Lid and Technamanion Ltdl was pad an campletion,
wth an adddisnal combined £400,000 defecrad consideration [£200,000 for each of Megnajet Ltd and Technomalion Lid] 1o be paid oulin
two years. The Board expects the acquired expertise and resource will contribute to the long-term profitable growts ia Xaar s core printhead
business. The acquisition accounting 1s nol yet complete due Lo the birming of the transaction Oue to the short time since the acquisiion

of Megnajet Ltd and Technamation Ltd and date of the financial statements. and the work yet Lo be completad with regacd (o transiliening
the entities Lo IFRS, this presents diftcullies in perfarming an accurale calculatian of the results as if the acquisiton of Megnajel Lid ang
Technomation Ltd had accurred on 1 Janupry 2021 Therelare Ihe Board bas decided that it 1s smpracticable to present the pro-forma
revenue and profit.

39. Subsidiary audit exemption

The fcllowing companies are exampt 1rom the requirements retating to the audil af individual accaunts for the year ended 31 December 2027
by wirtue of section 6794 ol the Companies Act 2006 Xaar Jet Limited (3375941, Xaar Jet |(verseas) Limied (043124311, Xaar Technolagy
Limited 102469592, Xaar Digilal Limited [03588171], Xaar Trustee Linited ((13G25096], Xaar 30 Holdings Lamirted [11425548], and FFE!
Limded (032444521
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Company balance sheet Company statement of changes in equity
as at 31 December 2021 for the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Noles €008 €000 Called up Dther Qwn  Share-based  Profit and
reserees shares. payments  Lacs aecount Tatal
Fixed assets Notes £eaa E'000 €000 %o £000
< k | ki
,;:ma_m faed as=ets M c“ "w“ w00 At January 2020 36,541 12 6561 3460 3982 78,488
:«m‘m_‘?\.mim 4 - Profit for the linancial year - - - - - 6,663 5,663
o . #3.952 §2.0% Total comprehensive income - - - - - 5,663 5663
Lurrenl assats for the period
Debtors 5 8,803 5572 Cwn shares seld in the period - - - g - - ne
Cash at hark and in hand 9,77 2,061 Share opticn esercises - - - - - o [alil}
Capilal contriuticn for share-based 4 - - 162 - - - 162
18,182 12,623 payments
Credit to equily for equity-settied
1
Total assers 12,73 share-based payments I _ B _ _ 30 B 80
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year _
Trade and niher piyables 5 122,8771 19.280] AN 31 Decamber 2020 7,213 29,328 35,720 1.93M 3,520 9,935 85,402
Lease babililies 3 (851 1) Loss lor Ihe financiat year - - - - . 11 867 1.867
(24,0621 [9.294] Total tomprehensive axpense - - - - - 11,8471 11.867]
— - 5,200/ 1397 for the peried
zn|:.:2n=~ assets 15,2801 i QOwn shares sald in the pericd - - - 34 - - kT
Total asseis less currend Liabilities. 88,672 85421 Share option exercises 11 99 - - - 321 78
Creditors: amoun :s falling due afer more than ane year Capital contribution for share-based [ - - 385 - - - 385
Lease Labililes 3 (778) 1kl] u&.:..m:_w . )
Qiher financial liakilines 13.356) . Credit Ip equily for equity-settled
- share-based payments 0 - - - - 260 - 260
(4,130 19 .
At31 December 2021 7.844 29.427 37,108 119031 3,780 8,016 84,292
Frowsians for liab 7 (2501 - i
The share premium account and other reserves are non-gistributable
Net assets 84,292 85,402

Other reserves represent the profit trom the sale of a subsidrary. the non-distribuiable partion of the dividend recewved in Xaar ple from Xaar
Capital and reserves Digital Limited and the capital contribution lo wwestments relating to share-based payments

M”M_ﬂn Mom.ﬂ.,w” MMHH_: M NHHMH uwwww The share-based payment reserve represents the cumulative charge made uader IFRS 210 relation to share options and LTIP awards
(M#er resarves 9 37,108 36,723 Full details of share capital, share prermum and own shares are given in notes 24, 27 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
Own sha-es k4 11,903) 1.937]

Share-based payment reserve 9 3,780 3520

Prafit and Ioss accaunt 9,035 9935 -

£quity shareholde s funds 84,292 85,402

Xaar pie reported a loss [or the hinanaal year ended 37 Decernber 2021 of £1,847 000 (2020 profit of £4,643,000]
As permitted by sestion 408 of the Cempanies Act 2004, the Company nas eleciec aot Lo present its own protit and loss account for the year.

The financial statenients of Xaa- pic, regislered number 3320972, were approved by Lhe Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on
29 March 2027 Thzy were signed onits behalf by

w m._n_:_ Miils fan Tichias
Chief Execulive Officer Cheel Finangial Officer
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate hnancial statermerits of the Company are presented as required by the Compamies Act 2006 and iy accordance with FRS 101
['Financial Reportng Stardard 101) Reduced Disclosure Framewark’ as asued by the Financial Reparting Counce. The results of Kaar pic
are included in the consolidated hnancial staternents of Xaar ple

&s permitted by FRS 101 the Camnpany has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avallable under that standard 1n relation to IFRSs 1ssued
but not effective, share-based payments, financial mstruments, capital management, presentation of comparative intormation in respect ol certain
assets, preseatation of a cash flow staternent and certain relaled parly transaclions.

Where requwed, equivalent disclosures are given n the consolidated hnancral statements of Xaar ple
The hnancial staterents have been prepared unoer the historical cost convention

The principal accownting policies adopted are the same as those set out in note 3 of the consalidaled financial statements excepl as noled below.
They have all been apphed consistently throughout the year and the preceding year

Share-based payments
The share-based payment reserve represents the cumulatwe charge made under IFRS 2in relatian ta share options and LTIP awards
The casts related to emptoyees coniracted with other Group entives are recharged 'rom Xaar ple 1o lhe related entty

Guing concern

The Compary's business aclivities, together with the lactors likely to affect it future development, perfarmance and position, are set out in the
Strategic Report an pages 1210 1h Notes 21and 22 to the conseldated inancal statements include a description of the Cormpany's objectives,
policies and processes for managing its capital, s financial sk managerment objectwes, aetails of is financial instruments and hedging actwities,
and its exposure ta credit nisk and bquidity risk

Alter making enguiries, and having regard lo the princinal risks, the Direciors have a reasorable expectalion that 1he Company has adequate

resources Lo continue i aperational exstence for the foreseeable future. The Direclars have assessed the Campany’s forecasts and cash fow
arojections for the period 1o 30 June 2023 which have undergane reverse stress tests by significantly reduting revenue across the period, and
\dentibied cost mitigatons For this reason, we continue to adapt Lhe going concern hasis in preparing the bnancial siatements

Please refer to Directors seport an page &7 for going concern and naote 3 to the consolidated financial staternents for more detad

Investments

Fixeg asset inveslimants in subsidianas are shown at cost less provision for impairment and include capital cantributions arising trom share-bosed
payments Each year, the Company carres. out impairment tests of 115 Investments which require estimates fobe made of the value n use of s
CGUs and groups of CUs The value in use calculations are dependent on estimates of fulure cash flows, lang-Term growth cates and appropnate
discount rates o be applied to future cash flows

For mvestments m subsidiores acquued far consideration, Including the ssue of shares qualifying for merger rebiet, cast s measured by reference
to the nominal value only of the shares rssued. Any promium 1s ighored As the merger reliel arose Irom Iransactions before the Introduction of
FRS 101, the transaction has utilised grandfathering rebief rather than recalculating and presenling under appropnate FRS 101 treatrent

Leases
[ he Company assesses whelner a contract isar onlains a tease, at nception ol the contraci The Campany recogrises a right-of-use asset anda
carresponding l2ase Labilny with respect lo all lease arrangements 1n which It is the lessee, except for short-term leases [defined as leases with
2 lease term of 12 months or less| and Leases of low-value assets Fos these leases, the Company recogrises the lease payments as an operating
expense an 3 straght-ling basis over the term of the fease unless analher systematic basis 1s more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benatits from the leased assets are consumed Please reler to page 125, note 31 Wne consolidated hinancial statements lor more detal

Dividends.
Dwidend income 1s recagnised when an srrevocable right te recewe payment has been established pravided that LS probable thal the
econoric benehts will How Lo the Company and the amount of Intome ¢an be measured reliably

2. Profit/|loss) for the year
As permitted by section 408 of the Comganies Act 2006, the Company has elecled not to present its own profil and loss accaunt for the year
The average number of employces theoughout 2621 was 3112020 321, Staff costs amaunted to £2,652,000 [Restated 2020 £2,326,000)
inctuding share-based paymenis Inforination ghaut the remuneration of Directors is provded in the audited pait of the Direclors’
Remuneralion report on page 83. For the remuneration of key management personnel of the Company see note 34 - Refaled party
transachans of the cansobidated tinancial statements

The Directors’ Remuneration raport can be found an page 83
The audit fee for the audit of the Company’s financial statements in 2021 was £20,000 (2020 £20.000)
The figures for the auditor's remuneratian for the Corpany required by regulation S11ib] of the Companies [hsclasure of Avditor

Reruneration and Liability Limitation Agreements) Regulations 2008 are not presented as the consolidated financial statements comp
with this regulation on a consolidated basis
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Notes to the Company financial statements ccntinued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Tangible fixed assets

Cost
At January 2021 113
Additions 1186
Transfer to subsid:ary 144l
At 31 Decomber 2021 1,146
Depreciatian
ALY January 2021 151
Charge for the year 1R
Transfer to subsidary 5
At 31 December 2021 no71
Cartying amsunt
At 31 December 2021 1059
At 31 December 2020 ki
Set oul below are the carryng amaunts of lease Liabilties Lincluded under interesl-beanng loans and borrowings] and 1he movements
during the period
2021 nm
£ €000
At ) January kL) -
Additians 8% 45
Accretion of interes: 17 -
Paymenls is1] ®
Exchange movement - 1
Transter to subsidiary 135) -
At 21 December B&2 (351
Current a5 14
Non-current 774 1%
a1 35
The Labte below summanises Lhe maturily prohle of the Group's financial Labilies based upon the contractual undiscounted payments
for the year
2021 2020
€900 £ 000
On demand - -
Less than three months 26 -
Four ta 12 months 77 A
Qne to hve years. 384 19
More Lhan five years 4460 -
947 3
The lollowsng are the amounls recagrised in profit ot loss
2021 2020
Coon £000
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 107 [
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1? -
Total amount recognised in profit of loss 124 &
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4. Investmants

2021 2040
£000 £000
Subsidiary undertakings hetd at cost :
Al beginriag of th2 year 82,085 32893
Additions i Lhe year 10,453 49,000
Camtal conlributions srising from share-based payments 85 162
At end of tne year 72,00 82.055
The Directors bel eve that the carrying value of the investments 15 supported by the.r underlying net assets
5. Debtors
204 2020
€000 £ 000
Amounts receivatie within one year
Amourits owed by Jroup underlakings 8.638 5.572
Trade debtors 90 -
Other dedtors 75 -
6,003 5.572
Amdunts owed by Sroup ungerlakings are trad ng balances and interest s not charged and 15 payable on demand.
4. Creditors
2021
£000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amaunis awed to C roup undertakings 21,818 LAY
Other payzbles anc accruals 577 156
(ther hmancial liatrlibies 1,589 -
23,977 2280
2021 2020
Amounts falling due alter one year _ Lo €000
Otmer financia, hiabibbies 3,356 -

Amourts owed to Broup undertakings are trading balances under normat commeraial terms and interest s nol charged and 15 payable on
demand.

The other nnanciat Labililes represent the deferred consideration 1 relation te 11e acquisiton of FREI Limited sphit between the current due
10 20272 (£1.589,00( | and nan-current postion Fyurther detans are in nate 36 to the consolidaled financial statements
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Notes to the Company financiat statements continued
for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2021

7. Provisions

a2 2020
[y €
Current
ALY January - 119
Additional provision in the year . 13 -
Ulilisation of provisten [[73] 1119)
At 3} Decembe- - _
Hon-current
Prowvision for dilapidatian 250 -
250 -

Current provision movements relate to restructuring cosls arsing in Xaar ple Man-current provisions relate ta prawision for dilapidation ot
Xaar Walerbeach olfice which form pan of right-of-use assels and are depreciated over the lease term

8. Dividends

There were no diwdends declared ar paid dunog Lhe current and preceding year

9. Share capital and share premium account

Full details of movements in share capital, share premium accouAt, other reserves, own shares and the sharce option paymerit reserve are
green in notes 26, 27, 28 and 30 1a the consolidated financial statements.

10. Share-based payments

Equity-settied share option scheme

The Company’s share oplion schemes are open to all employees of the Company Options are exercisable at a price equal to the average
quoted markel price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant. The vesting period 1s three years The vesting criteria of these options
are disclosed in note 32 ta the consolidated financial statements If the options remain unexercised after a periad of ten years from the date
of grant, 42 months in the case of the Share Save Scheme, or five years n the case of the Share Incentive Plan, the optrons expire Save as
permitted m 1he share option scheme rules, aplions lapse on an employee leaving 1he Comoany.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was £1 67 (2020 £0.53). Tha oplions
outstanding at 31 December 2021 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of two and 2 halt years 2020, two and a half years]. and
arange of exercise prices between O pence and 227 pence [2020: 0 pence and 344 pence).

The perfarmance conditions retating to the above share aptions and the exercise prices of oplions outstanding at the year-end are qven in
note 32 to the consolidatad financial statements

Long-Term Intentive Plan

The Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan 1s open to all emplovees of the Company Vesting of Performance Share Awards made under this
scheme |5 condilionat upan the achisvernent of performance condiions. Full details of the performance conditions are shown in note 32 of
the consolidated hnancial statements. All awards made under this scheme are exeraisable within three to ten years afler the date of grant
Save a5 germitled in the Long-Term Incenlive Pian rules. awards l2pse on an ecployee leaung the Company

The weighted average share price at the date af exercise far awards exercised during the period was £1.67 [2020. £0.45] The awards
outsianding at 31 December 2021 had a wewghted average remaining contractual life of nine years [2020. nine years] All swards have
& Cnil exercrse price

Groups Deferred Bonus Plan

Under the Group’s Deterred Banus Plan, executives receme 70% of the partiipant’s bonws achieved 10 cash and 30% 10 the lorm of righls ta
deferred shares ol Xaar plc. These awards are subject only to service contdions, 1.2, the requirement for recipients of awards te remain in
employment with the Company over the vesting period. The awards are granted on 14 Oclaber 2021 All of these awards have been granted
w raspect of the participant’s bonus for the Company's financial year which ended an 31 Decernber 2020 and will vest on the dealing day
followang Lhe announcemenl by the Company of its annual results for 2022 (assumed 24 March 2023] or. if later, the date on which the
Cammuttee determines ["the normal vesting date”|

The weghter average share price at the date of exercise for awards exercised during the period was £niL 12020 €nil] The opticns
outstanding at 31 Decernber 2021 had a weighted average remawnng contraciual Lile of oneyear and three menths 12020 mit) 1o 2021,
Qeferred Bonus Plan awards were made in October The aggregale of the esimated kair values of grants made on Lhal date 1s £40,000.
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11. Subsidiary undertakings

The tollowing entities are the subsidiary undertakings of the Company

Mame

Country
st Incargoration

Address of
registered office

Principat
activity

ssued and lully
Pald up sha
capital

Xaar fechnalogy
Limited

Xaar Jot Limned

XaerJet |Overseas|
Limied

Xaar Trustee
L iteg!

Xaar Digital Limited

Xaar 30 Holdings
Limited

Xaar US Holdings
Inc

Engineered Prinung
Solunans?

*aar Americas Ing ?

Xaar fnkset
Techaology
{Shenzten! Company
Limitee

FFE: Limites

Megnaet Lid?

Technomation |td*

Englang & Wales

England & Wales

England & Walcs

England & Wales

Eng.znd & Wales

England & Wales

usa

usa
USa

Chira

England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales

Cambridge Research Park,
Woterbeach, Combricge, CB25 9PE

Cambridge Research Park,
Walcrbeach. Cambrigge. CBZ5 $PE

Cambneye Research Park,
Walerbeach, Cambridge, CB25 9FE

Cambridge Research Park,
Waterbeach, Cambrdge, CB25 9P

Cambricge Research Park,
Walerbeach, Cambridge. CB25 3PF

Cambridge Research ark,
Walerbeaeh, Lambridge, CA25 9PE

1209 Qrange Sireet, Wilmington,
New Castle Coupty. Nielaware, USA

201 Tenms Way, East Dorset,

VT 05253, USA

1000 Pest and Paddack, Suite 403,
Grana Prairie, TX 75050, USA

Roum 409, Flaor 4, Buildng 13,
Fuhai Industrial Jone, Fuzhou
Aveaue, Shenzhen, China

Cambridge Rasearch Park,
Waterkeach, Cambrioge, CO25 ¥PE

Cambridge Research Park,
Waterbeach, Cambridge 825 9PE

Cambridge Research Park,
Waterpeach, Cambridge, CBZ5 ¥°E

Research and development

Manufacturng, research
and developmen! and sales
and markating

Sales and rmacketing

Trustee

Treasury

Hotding sempany

Holding tampany

Manufacturing. sales and
marketing

Sales and markeling

Sales and mark:

Manufactuning, sales and
marketing

Manutacturing, safes ang’
markeung

Research and development

4 445122 ordinary
Ei shares

2 ardinary €1 shares

1 ordinary €1 share

2ordinary £1 shares

100 ord nary £1 shares.

1100 ordinary shares of

£0.07 each

10,000 shares of comimsn
swch $1 each

200 shares of commen
stock $1 each

10,000 shares of
common stock USS1 each

30 ordnary shares o
£10 000 each

100,900 ard nary E1
shares

T orhnary €1 share

100 ordnary £1 shares

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

1W01%

100%

0%

W%

1 Xaar Trustee Limued shares 2re held by A8ar Technalogy L

ted

7 Xaar Americas Ing and Ergineenng Printing Selutibng Shanes ars held by Xaar US Holdings Inc

2 Segnajer Lid and Technpmatian Lid were aequired by Xaar plc on 2 March 2022 See nole 38 19 Ihe consohdated haancial stakgme i

for move detsll
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Five year record

®n 20
Continultig Cantimuing
operatians operations il e w017
€000 £a0n £onn €080 [ 000
Summarised consolidated results
Results
Revenue 59.254 47984 49 379 50,468 100,142
Gross prght 20,1%¢ 13m0 12.290 25686 47,045
Adjus:ed Hossipralit belore tax Inote &) 1571} 13,9110 17,9521 Q5% 18,012
Adjusted profit/|lass) alter tax Inale 141 209 [4,038) 111 8321 4,530 16,613
Adjusted diluted earmings per share fnote 14) 1n.op) {5 2p) [EER ] 10.0p 07
Siatutory profil before tax kol 14,3221 (10,937 260 12,290
Statutory earnings per shace 0.%p 15.7p) 118 7p) 36p %2
Dividends pence per share - - - 10p Wwzp
Assets amployed
Net gash? 25,051 18,1017 25377 27948 44 407

Tt the wransitian o IFRS 15 & bs, 1he Group used The modiiad 3pASITA 4nd M IMpacl an AHOT years was adjusied thecugh retained earamgs Camparatives weré nol restated
2 el cagn is made up ol cash and cash equnvalents 1reasury deposUs Thas BaFoweags and 35591k heid Tor sals
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Notice 15 hereby given that the twenty- hlth Annual General Meeting |AGM ] of Xaar pic ithe ‘Company ] will be held al Xaar plc, 1 Hurrnicane
Cigse, Ermine Business Park, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire, PE 29 6XX on Wedr esday 25 May 2022 at ? 30am lor the follewing purposes.

Qrdinary business
To consider and, fihought ht, pass the followsng Reselutions which will be proposed as Grdinary Resolutions.

1. THAT the Company s annual baancial statements for the tinancial year end 24 3% Decernber 2021, together with the Directors report and

auditor s regart on those iinancial stalements, be received and adopted

2. THAT Ernst & Young LLP be re-appointed as the Company's auditers lo hold offce from 1he concluzien of this meeting unbl the
conglusion of the next general meeting ol the Company at which financial statements are laid

. THAI the Drrectors be aulhonsed to determine the remunecation of the aucitors

. THAT Or Robert Mitls ce re-alected as a Dwector of the Company

. THAT Chnistozher Morgan be e-elected as a Dhrector of the Company

.._
p
m.:_stnﬁmézm&m:cmqm.mfm:mnmmmD,wmn.o_.o:jmnc_jnm:._
p
7. THAT lan Tictias be re-clected as a Director of the Company.

B

. THAT Alison Littley be re-elected as a Director of the Company.

9. THAT the Directors’ Remuneration report lexcluding the Directars’ Remune -ation Policy which is set aut on pages 86 to 8% of the Annual
Reportl for the year ended 31 December 2021 be approved.

Special business
Ta consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions which will be progosed in the case of Resolution 10 as an Grdinary Resolution
and in the case of Resolutions 11 to 13 as Special Resolutions:

10. THAT, in substitutien for all existing authorities including the authority conferred on the Directors of the Company by Article 4(b of the
Company's Articles of Association, pursuant to and in accordance with sect on 551 of the Companies Act 2006 {'Act’] the Directers of the
Company be hereby generally and unconditionally suthgrised tn exercise all pawars of the Company ta allot equity securities (within the
meaning of section 340 of the Actl, ar grant rights to subscribe for. or convert any security into, shares in the Company [ Rights'l:

(it up1eanaggregate norinal value ot £2,614,874 laeing the nominal valuz ol zpproximately one third af the issued share capital of 1h
Company!; and

up o an aggregate nominal value ol £5.229.749 (being the nominal valuz of approximatety bwo thirds of the issued share capital
of the Companyl [sueh amaunt 10 be reducad by the naminal amount ol any equity securilies allotted or Rights granled under
paragraph (i1l in connection with an ofter by way of a rights issue [as defined in the Listing Rules issued by the Financial Conduct
Autherity pursuani to Part Vi of the Financial Services and Markets Act 20001 or other pre-emptive offer ta:

lal the holders of ardinary shares of 10 peace each in the capidal of Ihe Company | ‘ordinary shares'| in praportion |as nearly as may
be praclicablel to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held b thern; and

[0} holde:s ol other equily securilies, as required by the rights of those securities ar, subject ta such rights, as the Direclars
otherwise consider necessary. and so Lhat, in each case, the Directcrs of the Company may impose any limits or reslrictions
and make any arrangements which they consider necessary or apprapriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional entillernents,
record dates, \egal, requlatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of, any tetrilory or the requirements of any regulatary
body or stock exchange or any other matter.

The authority conferred by this rasalulion will expire on the earlier of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company held aiter

the date an which this resolulion becomes unconditional and the date 15 manihs alter the passing ef this Resalution, save that the
Company may at any Lime belore such expiry make any ofler{s) or enter inle any agreementls) which would or might require shares o
be allotted ar Rights to be granted alter such expiry and the Directors may :llot shares or grant Rights in pursuance of any such citerls)
or agreementls} as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired. This R2selution revekes and replaces all unesercised authorities
previously granted ta the Directors to allot shares or grant Rights but witheut prejudice to 2ny allotment of shares or grant of Rights
already made, offered or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities.

11. THAT, subject to the passing of Resalutian 10, the Qirectors of the Company be avtharised te allot equity securities (as defined in section
540 of 1he Act) for cash under the authorily conferred by that Resolulion anc/or ta sell ordinary shares held by the Company as treasury
shares ag il section 561 of the Act did not apply Lo any such allolment or salz2, prowded that such authority shall be imited to

lal the allotrrent of equity securiiies in connection with an offer of equily secur
paragraph [nl of Resolution 10, by way of a nights issue onlyl:

s [but. in the case of the authority granted under

Il 1o the holders of ordinary shares in preportion |as nearly as may be practicable| to their respecte haldings, ang

Inl to hotders ol other equity securities as required oy Lhe nights of thoce secunilies or as the Direclors othenwise consider
necessary, but subject to such exclusiens or ather arrangements as the Direclors ol the Company may deem necessary or
expedhient in relation Lo lreasury shares. fracuanal entitiements, record dates. legal or pracucat problems in or under 1he laws
of any termary or the requirements of any requlatory body or stock exchange, and

Xaar plc - Anaual ®eport and Financal Statements 2021 A .w w
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12. THAT, subjec! te the passing of Resalution 10, the

Notice of the Annual General Meeting continued

Special business continuad

Ib] the altotment of equily securities or sale of Lreasury shares |olherwise than pursuant o paragraph Bl of this Resslution] to any
persen up to an aggregate nominal amount of £392,231.

The authoriy granted by this Resolution will expire at the conctusion of the Company's next Annual General Meeting after the passing of
this Resolutien o, if earlier, at the close of business an the date 15 manths after the passing of this Resolution, save that the Campany
may, betore such expiry make affers or agreements which wauld ar might require equity securities to be allotted lor treasury shares ta
be sold| aiter the authority expires and the Directors of the Company may allat equity securities for sell treasury shares| in pursuance of
any such offer or agreement as if the authorily had not expired.

L ) 56 reciars of the Company be authorised in addition to any authority granled under
Resclution 11 to allol equity securities [as defined in section 560 of the Act) for cash under the authority conferred by Resolation 10 and/

or te sell ardinary shares held by the Campany as treasury shares as il section 561 of the CA 2006 did not apply to any such allotment or
sale, provided that such autharity shall b

la] limited to the allotment of equity securities or sale of ireasury shares up tg an aggragate nominal amount of £392,231; and

16l used only for the purpose of financing lor refinancing, if the autharity is lo be used within six manlhs after the o iginal transaclion] a
transactien which the Directors of the Company determine to be an acquisition or other capital investment of a %ind cantemplalec by

:“m_mauﬁ_.:mﬂ of Principtes on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the Pre-Emption Group prior to the date
of this notice.

The autherity granted by this Resolution will expire at the canctusion of the Company's next Annuat General Meeting after this

Resclution is passed or, if earlier, at the close of business on the date 15 months aktar the passing of this Resalution, save that the

Company may, before such expiry make oifers ar agreements which would ar might require equity securities to be allotied lor treasury

shares to be sotd} after the autharity expires and the Directors of tha Company may atlat equity securities lor sell treasury shares) in

pursuance of any such olfer or agreement as il the authority had not expired. T

13. That the Campany be generally and unconditionally autharised for the purposes of section P01 of the Aet to make one or mare market

purchases [within the mezning of section 893(4] of the Acl) of erdinary shares provided that:

la) the maximum aggregate number of o

ary shares aulhorised to be purchased is 11,688,488 Irepresenting 14.9% of the issued
ondinary share capital

Ibl the minimum price lexcliding expenses] which may be paid for an ordinary share is the par value of the shares:

lcl the maximum price [excluding expenses| which may be paid for an erdinary share is an amount equal to the higher of [il 105% of the
average of the middle market guotations for an ordinary share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the
five business days irmmediately preceding the day on which that ordinary share is purehased, and fiil the igher of Lhe price of the
lastindependent trade anc the highest current independent bid on the trading venue whare the purchase is carried out;

ld

this autharity m.:m: expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. or, if earlier, at the clase of business
on the date which is 15 months after the passing of this Resolution unless renewed, revoked or varied before that tme: and

lel 1he Company may rmake a contract to purchase ordinary shares under this autharity before the expiry of the authority which will or

maly be executed wholly or partly aiter the expiry of the authority, and may make a purchase of ardinary shares in pursuance ol any
such contract,

By order of the Board

Camila Cottage
Company Secretary

29 March 2022
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Company information and advisors

Registered office

3950 Camoringe Research Park
Walerbeach

Camosdge CB25 9PE

Registered number
3320972

Company Secretary
Camila Cottagea

Unsolicited mail:

The Company 15 obbged by

law to make its share register
publicly available should 2
request be received. Asa
consequence, shareholders
may receive unsol cited mail
from grganisations that use it
as a railing tist. Shareholders
wishing 1o limil the amount of
such mail should either write

to Mailing Preference Service,
OMA Hause, 70 Margaret Street,
Londan WIW 855, register
online al www.mpsoenline.org.
uk ar call the Mailing Preference
Service [MPS) on +44 101845 703
4599, MPS is an independent
organisalion which offers a free
service ta the publ

Design and Production
www.carrkamasa.co yk

Brokers
Investec
30 Gresham Streel
London, EC2V 7QP

Registered auditor
Ernst & Young LLP
Cambridge Business Park
Cowley Rd

Cambrigge CB4 OWZ

Warning to shareholders -
boiler room scams

with the average vicim losing
around £20,000. What is more,
itis estimated that only 10% of
the peopla thal becorne victims.
of investment fraud actually
repart il

Investment scams are
becoming ever mare
sophisticated - designed to
tock like genuine investments,
they are increasingly ditficult
to spot. They are targeted at
those mast at risk. lypicaily
pecgple in retirernent who are
aclively seeking an investment
opportunity.

!

a

i B
Solicitars

Mills & Reeve LLP

Botamc House -
100 Hilfs Road

Cambridge C32 1PH

Principal Bankers
HSBC Bank ple -

43-64 St Andrews Street
_um_._._w_.wnmm B238Z

+ .o
]
1

Pratect yourself

1. Reject cold calls
1F you have been cold called
with an offer to buy or sell
shares, ely te be a
high-risk investment or
scam. You shoutd treal the
call with extreme cautian.
The safest thing to do is
hang up.

(Fyou are offered unsolicited
investment advice,
digcounted shares, a
premium price for shares
¥ou own, or free company
or research reports, you
should get the name of the
person and organisation
contacting you and 1ake
these steps before handing
over any money.

N

Check the firmen

the Finzncial

Services Register at

www.fca.org.uk/register

The Financial Services

Registeris & public

record of alk the firms ang

indwiduals in the financial

services industry that are

requlated by the FCA

Use the details on the

Financial Services Register
o contact the firm,

Registrars

Link Group

10th Fleor

Cenlral Square

29 Wellington Street
Leeds LS1 4DL

1. Get impartial advice
Think abeut gedling
impartial financial advice
betore you hand over any
money. Seek advice from
s0meone unconnected
ta the firm that has
approached you,

REMEMBER, sounds
oo gacd to be true, it
probably is!

11 yous use an unautherised
firrn 10 buy or seli shares
or olher investments, you
will not have access to the
Financial Ombudsman
Service or Financiat
Services Compensation
Scheme if things go wrong.

Report a scam

 you suspect you have been
approached by fraudsters
please tell the FCA using the
share fraud reporting form
al www.fea.org.ukfseams,
where you can find out more
about invastrent scams.

You ¢an also call the FCA
Consumer Helpline an
+84 101800 111 6758,

If you have lest money to
investment fraud, you
should report it to Action
Fraud on +44 (01300 123
2040 or ontine at www,
actionfraud. pelice.uk.

Find out more at
www.{ca.org.uk/scamamart

Xaar ple

3950 Cambridge Research Park
Waterbeach

Cambridge

CB25 9PE
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